
The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and

Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not
scheduled on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. 
If appropriate, the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

Consent.,Cal.endar

Note: The items listed on the Consent, Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless

removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled
will be considered at the end of the agenda.)' 

A. Approval of Meeting Minutes

April 21, 2015 — Regular Meeting
Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

Reference: Susan Garcia, City Clerk
Recommendation: Approve Minutes

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands

Reference: Cathy Till, Finance Director
Recommendation: Ratify, Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: James P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this

agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title

only

D. Claim Denial

The City Council will consider denying a claim received by the City„ 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Deny Claim

E. Award Contract for Traffic Signal and Communications Systems Maintenance, 

Emergency Repairs, and Related Construction Services

The City Council will consider a resolution approving an agreement between the
City ( along with four other cities in a consortium) and CTE, Inc. to provide traffic
signal and communication system maintenance, emergency repairs, and related
construction services. 

Reference: Tamara O' Neal, Interim City Engineer
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution



2. Resolution Approving Limitations on the Two -Year EDCO Corporation Rate Schedule

The City Council will consider a resolution approving a maximum two- year rate
schedule for EDCO for residential and commercial waste collection and recycling
services. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

3. California Home Financing Authority

The City Council will consider two resolutions related to participation in two Property
Assessed Clean Energy ( PACE) financing programs for residential, commercial, 
industrial, and agricultural properties. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt Resolutions < 

4. Public Hearing to Consider General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001 and Zoning
Amendment ZA150- 0001 ( Request to Amend the General Plan Land Use Designation

from Transportation and, Retail ,Commercial to Medium/ High Residential Density and to
Amend the Zoning District from General, Commercial ( GC). to Residential Medium/ High
RMH) on the South Side of Broadway between 8305 and 8373 Broadway) . 

The City Council will consider conducting a public hearing, adopting a General Plan
amendment and a zoning amendment for properties between 8305 and 8373
Broadway, and certifying Negative Declaration ( ND15- 01'). The proposed

amendments would change land use designation from " Transportation" and " Retail
Commercial" to " Medium/ High Residential Density" and amend the zoning from
General Commercial" to Residential Medium%High." 

Reference: Carol Dick, Community Services Director
Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing, Adopt Resolution,, Introduce Ordinance

No. 427 and Conduct First Reading by Title Only

5. Draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 General Fund and General Reserve Fund Budgets

The City Council ,will consider and provide feedback regarding the draft Fiscal Year
2015- 2016 budgets for the General Fund and the General Reserve Fund. 

Reference: Cathy Till, Finance Director
Recommendation: Provide Feedback

6. Planning Commission

The City Council will consider a proposal to disband the Lemon Grove Planning
Commission. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Recommendation: Provide Direction



7. Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 8. 08 and 8.48 of the Lemon Grove Municipal
Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual

The City Council will consider introducing Ordinance No. 428, an ordinance

amending Chapters 8. 08 ( Excavation and Grading) and Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater
Management and Discharge Control) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with
reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices Manual. This ordinance

is responsive to Regional Water Quality Control Board Order No. R9- 2013- 0001
and Order No. R9- 2015- 0001. 

Reference: Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Introduce Ordinance No. 428 and Conduct First Reading by Title
Only

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

53232. 3. (d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings attended
at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 

Department Director Reports ( Non -Action Items) 

Closed Session

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957. 6: Conference with Labor Negotiators

Agency Designated Representative: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Employee Organization: Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Public Employee Performance Evaluation

Title: City Manager

Adjournment

In compliance w• the Americans w.,

n.....___ 

h .... it with Disabilities Act (ADA), the City of Lemon Grove will provide
special accommodations for persons who require assistance to access, attend and/ or participate

in meetings of the City Council. If you require such assistance, please contact the City Clerk at
619) 825- 3800 or email sgarcia@lemongrove. ca. gov prior to the meeting. A full agenda packet is

available for public review at City Hall. 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

April 21, 2015

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency

Call to Order

Members present: Mary Sessom, George Gastil, Jerry Jones, Jennifer Mendoza, and Racquel Vasquez, 
Members absent: None. 

City Staff present: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Carol Dick, Development Services Director; Daryn
Drum, Division Fire Chief; Susan Garcia, City Clerk; James P. Lough, City Attorney; Mike James, 
Public Works Director; Lt. May, Sheriffs Department; Tamara O' Neal, Interim City Engineer; and
Cathy Till, Finance Director. 

Presentations

Graham Mitchell introduced Laureen Ryan Ojeda, Administrative Analyst. 

Monica Emanuele, Marketing Department San Diego County Fair, provided a presentation of the
2015 Fair. 

Public Comment

Brenda Hammond commented on the lighted crosswalk downtown and cell phone applications.. 

John L. Wood thanked Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez for the manner in which she led a recent City

Council meeting and on planes landing at the San Diego Airport. 

1, Consent Calendar

A. Approval of City Council Minutes
April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting

B. Ratification of Payment Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda
D. Claim Denial

E. Claim Denial

Action: Motion by Councilmember Gastil, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to
approve the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Vasquez

Abstain: Mendoza

2. Beekeeping

Carol Dick reported that during a recent City Council meeting, several citizens spoke about an
existing beekeeping activity and their positions regarding that activity. The activity is a current
code enforcement case and was brought to the attention of the City Council during the public
comment item. 



City Council directed staff to prepare an agenda item that would allow the City Council to
discuss potential guidelines for beekeeping activities in the City. 

Beekeeping can be a commercial business or a backyard hobby and is commonly referred to as
an apiary. This report does not consider large beekeeping operations that may be the sole use
of a commercial site. 

Safety and liability of beekeeping is a concern identified by insurance companies who advise
homeowners of what needs to be considered with the hobby. 

Ms. Dick noted that the Lemon Grove Municipal Code contains provisions in the Animal Keeping
Sections regarding beekeeping. The records do not show that any beekeeping permits have
ever been issued. 

City staff recalls less than six requests in the past decade for beekeeping activities and less
than that in code enforcement activities related to unapproved beekeeping activities. 
Out of the nineteen jurisdictions, four agencies ( including Lemon Grove) include existing
standards for beekeeping activities in their regulations. National City prohibits beekeeping by
ordinance and the City of San Diego established standards. Although the City of San Diego
does not require permits, the hives must be registered with the County of San Diego
Department of Agriculture, Weights, and Measures. 

Current San Diego County regulations require all beekeepers, small and large, to keep hives
100 feet from roads and 600 feet from homes. The County of San Diego is undergoing
revisions because of concerns expressed by the San Diego County Beekeeping Society who
claim County regulations make it difficult for beekeepers to prosper. 

Public Speaker( s) 

Michael Golden and Larry McGill spoke in favor of beekeeping in Lemon Grove. 

Leticia Oliver and Marisol Olmos expressed concerns for beekeeping in their neighborhood. 

After the discussion, the City Council City Council directed staff to return with a draft ordinance
that provides comparisons between provisions in the County of San Diego and City of San
Diego ordinances. City Council also directed staff to provide the County of San Diego with
comment on the Mitigated Negative Declaration recently circulated. 

2015 City Council Priorities

Graham Mitchell reported that on April 7, 2015, the City Council discussed potential priorities
established at its February 24, 2015 workshop. The purpose of this agenda item is to present
the goals identified for each priority and recommended target completion dates. 

During the discussion, the City Council reiterated the six priorities identified during the
workshop: 

Economic Development, 

City Appearance, 
Infrastructure, 

Public Safety, 
General Plan, and

Recreational Opportunities. 

PubbliccSS eaker(s), 
There were no requests from the public to speak. 

N



After the discussion, the City Council City Council directed staff to return to the May 5 meeting
with the priorities and goals that require budget considerations. 

4. San Diego Pooled Insurance Program Authority

Mike James explained that on April 1, 1986, the City of Lemon Grove entered into a joint powers
agreement with various other cities, entitled " San Diego County Cities Joint powers Agreement
creating the San Diego Pooled Insurance Protection Authority ( SANDPIPA) for Municipal

Entities," to provide for and administer a risk management and insurance program. 

Since 2014, in light of the General Manager' s retirement announcement, the SANDPIPA Board

of Directors ( Board) has been discussing options for moving forward. Options may include
backfilling the General Manager position, implementing a different management process, or
dissolving the organization and each city will find a different risk management and insurance
program. 

On March 26, 2015, the SANDPIPA Board held a meeting to come to a final decision to
continue with the SANDPIPA model or to move forward with the dissolution process with a

planned run- off of all outstanding liability while also encouraging each individual member city to
join the California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority ( CSAC) for excess
liability coverage for a minimum one- year period. After receiving a presentation from the
General Manager and the consulting team, the Board voted unanimously ( 12- 0) to move
forward with the dissolution process. 

In light of the SANDPIPA' s Board decision, staff recommends that the City rescind its notice of
intent to withdraw from SANDPIPA and enter into agreement CSAC as the City' s excess liability
insurance coverage provider. The change in excess liability insurance coverage does not
negatively impact the level of service or coverage that the City will have in FY 2015/ 16. The
City will continue to receive the same coverage ( e. g. general liability, crime, cyber, pollution, and
property). The only noticeable change that will occur is the City' s general liability self- insured
retention which will reduce from $ 125, 000 to $ 100, 000. Staff anticipates that in FY 2015/ 16

there will be a nominal decrease in the City' s annual premium. Furthermore, the City will likely
begin to receive a portion of its share of equity in the form of dividends during the dissolution
process. It is also important to note that the SANDPIPA Board Council recommended two

amendments to the SANDPIPA by- laws that were created to protect each member' s right to its
share of equity. 

Based on the responses received, staff will return to the City Council with a recommendation for
approval that may or may not include continuing with CSAC as its excess insurance liability
coverage provider beyond the initial one- year term. 

Public Speaker( s) 

There were no requests from the public to speak. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to
adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. ;2015 — 3327: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California' Providing its Written Authorization to the Dissolution of the San Diego Pooled
Insurance Program Authority



City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. ( GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

Councilmember Jones toured the Padre Dam Advanced Water Purification Facility and attended
an East County of Chamber round table and the grand opening of an independent pharmacy in
Lemon Grove. 

Councilmember Mendoza attended the Citizens of Courage Awards Luncheon and reported that

H. O. P. E. provided a presentation during a recent Soroptimist meeting. 

Councilmember Gastil attended a MTS meeting. 

Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez reported on recent Heartland Fire Training Authority, League of
California Cities, and City County Reinvestment Task Force meetings. She attended the
Citizens of Courage Awards Luncheon and Women Incorporated 501h Anniversary. 

Mayor Sessom attended a League of California Cities Executive committee luncheon and

reported that she resigned as Chair of SANDAG' s Public Safety committee. 

City Manager and Department Director Reports

Mike James reported on upcoming City clean- up events. 

Lt. May reported that Lemon Grove has experienced a reduction in crime and added that the
District Attorney' s office will be prosecuting those who scavenge items to be recycled. 

Closed Session

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957. 6: Conference with Labor Negotiators

Agency Designated Representative: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Employee Organization: Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Public Employee Performance Evaluation

Title: City Manager

Closed Session Report: No reportable action was taken. 

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor
Agency, the meeting was adjourned at 7: 30 p. m, 

r

Susan Garcia, City .....CL ......................................... erk

4



City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary

Approved as Submitted: 

Cathleen Till, Finance Director ACH/ AP Checks 04/ 10/ 15- 04/ 22/ 15 269, 527. 92

For Council Meeting: 05/ 05/ 15

Payroll - 04/ 14/ 15 117, 045. 23

Total Demands 386, 573. 15

CHECK

CHECK NO INVOICE NO VENDOR NAME CHECK DATE Description INVOICE AMOUNT AMOUNT

ACH Apr 15 Aflac 04/ 10/ 201. 5 Aflac Insurance - AprA. 5 566. 02 566. 02

ACH Mar15 Wells Fargo Bank 04/ 13/ 2015 Bank Service Charge - Mar' 15 891. 66 891. 66

ACH Marl5 Horne Depot Credit Services 04/ 1. 3/ 2015 Home Depot Charges Mar' 15 1, 01151 1, 01351

ACH GASB68 Ca Public Empl Retirement System 04/ 13/ 2015 GASB 68 Reporting Services Fee 4, 250, 00 4, 250. 00

ACH Mar3- 31' 1.5 Ca Public Empl Retirement System 04/ 15/ 20. 1. 5 Pers Retirement 3/ 4/ 15- 3/ 31/ 15 94, 131. 89 94, 131. 89

ACH Apr1.4 15 Employment Development Dept, 04/ 16/ 2015 State Taxes 4/ 1. 4/ 15 5, 974. 60 5, 974. 60

ACH Apr16 15 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Servires LLC 04/ 1. 7/ 2015 Postage Usage 4/ 16/ 3. 5 25000 250. 00

ACH Apr14 15 USTreasury 04/ 21/ 2015 Federal Taxes 4/ 14/ 15 23, 550. 85 23,550, 85

3655 27449 KTU t A Planning t Landscape Architecture 04/ 15/ 2015 Prof Sens: Main St Promenade Phase 2 - Marl. 31, 2015 26, 493. 00 26, 49300

3656 1031. 2 AAA Imaging 04/ 15/ 201. 5 Regular & Window Envelopes 561. 60 561. 60

2657 0067292 Art' s Lawnmower 04/ 15/ 2015 Lawrinnower Supplies 6153 98. 1. 6

0067870 Supplies- Chains, Bolt, Air Flits, 35. 63

3659 565675572107 AutoZone, Inc. 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Sylvania Bulb 5. 82 52. 06

5656757139 06 Threadlocker 12. 94

5656773557 Oil Filter, Engine Oil 2359

5656779378 Stop/ Tail/ Turn Light 9. 71

5659 CA Building Standards Commission 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 BSA Fees: Jan Mar' 15 23040 23040

3660 04/ 1. 6/ 15 California State Disbursement Unit 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Wage Witholding 26700 26700

3661. 1000675 Cannon Pacific Services Inc. 04/ 15/ 2015 Street Sweeping/ Parking Lot- Mar' 15 6,05128 6, 051. 29

3662 81441239 Corelogic Information Solutions Inc. 04/ 15/ 201. 5 Image Requests Mar' 15 1650 1. 6, 50

3663 15CTOFLGN09 County of San Diego- RCS 04/ 15/ 2015 800 MHZ Network - Mar' 15 3, 017 50 3, 017. 50

3664 Apr7 1. 5 Cox Communications 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Calsense Modern Ane: 2259 Washington 4/ 6/ 15- 5/ 5/ 15 1. 957 1, 120A2

Aprl 15 Fire Phone Service 4/ 1/ 1.'.1- 4/ 30/ 15 38724

Apr7 15 Calsense Modern Line: 7071. Mt Vernon 4/ 6/ 15- 5/ 5/ 1. 5 I957

Aprl 1. 5 Monthly Phone Serv: Apr' 15 City Hall 565. 64

AprB 15 Fire Backup Phone Service- 4/ 7/ 15- 5/ 6/ 15 30, 85

Apr5 15 Phone Service 31. 31. School I.. n - 4/ 5/ 155/ 3/ 15 9755

3665 Jan- Mar15 Department of Conservation 04/ 15/ 2015 SMIP Fees- Jan- Mar' 15 833. 79 83379

3666 28778 Dokken Engineering 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Citronica II/ Vernon Ranch Parcel Map Review - 2/ 1./ 1. 5- 2/ 28/ 1. 5 562 50 56250

3667 3/ 30/ 1. 5- 4/ 2/ 1.5 Esgil Corporation 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 75% Building Fees- 3/ 30/ 1. 5- 4/ 2/ 1. 5 4, 572. 23 7, 63225

4/ 6- 9/ 15 75% Building Fees- 4/ 6/ 15- 4/ 9/ 15 3, 060 02

3668 Jan26 1. 5 Gamester, Seen 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Reimls: Elevator Emergencies & Rescue Training Jan2s 29, 2015 325. 00 496. 33

Mal -26 1. 5 Uniform Allowance - Gamester 3/ 26/ 15 171 33

9669 146379- 81 Hawthorne Machinery Cc 04/ 15/ 201. 5 Equip Repairs - Bal Due 263..67 26367



3670 Mar24 15 Hayward, Brian 04/ 1. 5/ 201. 5 Uniform Allowance Hayward 3/ 24/ 15 4258 4859

3671 Hernandez Hernandez, Pio 04/ 15/ 2015 Refund/ Diversion Deposit/ Herridez, Pio/ 81. 3- 104 500. 00 500. 00

3672 00029762 Hudson Safe - T Lite Rentals 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Traffic Signs 33790 33790

3671 Apr14 1. 5 Huey, David 04/ 15/ 2015 Reimb: Bluetooth Portable Speaker System for Daycamp 1. 0739 107. 99

3674 32989 Hunter' s Nursery Inc.. 04/ 15/ 201.5 Plants - Lester Parking Landscape 41. 938 419, 58

3675 71. 185672 John Deere Landscapes, Inc 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Playground Mulch 2, 037. 96 2, 037. 96

3676 Klevmoen Klevmoen, Bruce 04/ 1. 5/ 201. 5 American Memorial Lease Refund 1" 25000 1, 25000

3677 1. 08978 Knott' s Pest Control, Inc 04/ 1. 5/ 20.1. 5 Monthly Bait Stations - Derry St - Apr' 15 70. 00 1. 75, 00

1. 08979 Monthly Bait Stations- Civic Center - Apr' 15 60. 00

108980 Monthly Bait Stations- Sheriff - Apr' 15 45, 00

3678 Jeri -Mar 15 Landeros, Sam 04/ 15/ 2015 Cell Phone Reimbursement -. Jan- Mar' 15 6000 6000

3679 IMar 1. 5 Lounsberry Ferguson Aftona & Peak 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 General 01163- 00002 3, 649, 80 19, 81287

Mar 15 Moore Vs City 0.1. 163- 00019 8, 81. 6. 59

Mar 1. 5 Affordable Housing 011.63- 0001.9 3, 928, 09

Mar 15 RDA- General 01163- 00004 679 40

Marls City vSempra Energy, pt at 022 41639

Mar 15 Cost Share Agreement 2, 32160

3680 Jan26 15 Maxfield, Brad 04/ 15/ 2015 Reimb: Elevator Emergencies & Rescue Training- Jan25 29, 2015 325. 00 365, 00

Mar20 15 Reimb: Firefighter 11 Certification 40. 00

3681 00614800SNV Municipal Emergency Services Inc 04/ 15/ 2015 Uniform Allowance - Wreley 3/ 24/ 1. 5 24300 24300

3682 187495 Ninyo & Moore 04/ 15/ 2015 Air Monitoring 5ervices- Citrus Heights Felp' 15 3, 495, 26 3, 495 26

3683 1. 5030268 Nolte Associates, Inc. 04/ 15/ 2015 LGA Realignment - Final Design 2/ 1/ 15- 2/ 28/ 15 3, 314. 75 3, 31475

3684 1. 18137 Orange Commercial Credit 04/ 15/ 2015 Vehicle Repairs - LGPW# 01 205. 60 20560

3685 PD -27519 Plumbers Depot Inc. 04/ 15/ 2015 Debri Scooper 185. 20 185. 20

3686 1. 169 USC Sol Price School of Public Policy 04/ 15/ 2015 Executive Education Program- Apr17- 18, 2015 275, 00 275, 00

3687 Rios Rios, Omer 04/ 15/ 2015 Refund/ Partial Deposit/ Omar, Rios/ I. BH 4- 16- 16 10000 1. 0000

3688 LG04092015 SID Sports Medicine and Family Health Ctr 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 Physical Exams 1., 50000 1, 50000

3689 0241725 SCS Engineers 04/ 1.5/ 2015 Soil Excavation, Transportation & Disposal -Main St Prop.- Sep' 14 2, 09350 3, 140 25

0251280 Soil Excavation, Transportation & Disposal -Main St Prop.- Feb' 15 1, 04635

3690 Mar1. 5 SDG& E 04/ 15/ 2015 Gas & Electric 2/ 20/ 15- 3/ 23/ 15 20, 539. 11 20, 539 11. 

3691 282130. 1. 937 Sharp Rees- Stealy Medical Centers 04/ 1. 5/ 2015 DMV Exam 5900 259. 00

2821302094 Medical Exam 100. 00

2821302223 Medical Exam 1. 0000

3692 150884 SOS Printing 04/ 15/ 20.1. 5 500 Building Inspection Notice Forms 455. 76 45536

3693 5721 Spring Valley Lawn Mower Shop 04/ 1. 5/ 201. 5 Hand Blower Maintenance 7680 76. 80

3694 1775 Springbrook Software Inc 04/ 1. 5/ 201.5 Onsite Svc: Training/ Consulting, PM, BPS & Conversion Fees 1, 400. 00 1, 400. 00

3695 086726 State of California- Justice 04/ 1, 5/ 2015 Fingerprint Apps - FeWIS 64 00 35200

092094 Fingerprint Apps - Mar' 15 28800

3696 2900 7 -Man Traffic Supply 04/ 15/ 2015 Traffic Paint 1. 6150 16350

3697 00032327 The East County Californian 04/ 15/ 2015 Notice of Public Hearing 4/ 27/ 15 1. 47= 14700

3698 Apr14 1. 5 Vantage Point Transfer Agents - 457 04/ 15/ 2015 ICMA Deferred Compensation Pay Period Ending 4/ 14/ 15 280. 77 280 77

3699 70664739 Vulcan Materials 04/ 15/ 2015 Asphalt 112. 32 368 82, 

7069G444 Asphalt 13014

70726544 Asphalt 12636



3700 L1072895 American Messaging 04/ 22/ 2015 Pager Replacement Program- 4/ 1/ 15- 4/ 30/ 15 45..30 4530

3701 6431946 AT& T 04/ 22/ 2015 Fire Backup Phone Line - 3/ 1/ 15- 3/ 31/ 15 32. 06 32.06

3702 14813635 Canon Financial Services Inc, 04/ 22/ 2015 Canon Copier Contract Charge - 4/ 12/ 1.5 642. 60 64260

3703 AR135999 City of Chula Vista 04/ 22/ 2015 Animal Control Services- Mar15 16, 240. 15 16, 240. 15

3704 13060 City of EI Cajon 04/ 27./ 2015 HFTA QTR 4 2, 93200 2, 93200

3705 2826 D- Max Engineering Inc.: 04/ 22/ 2015 Valencia Storm water Services- Mar' 15 1, 985. 75 1, 985. 75

3706 0410152305 Domestic Linen- California Inc. 04/ 22/ 2015 Shop Towels & Safety Mats 4/ 10/ 15 75. 25 75. 25

3707 Ivester Ivester. Desiree 04/ 22/ 2015 Refund/ Ivester, Desiree/ LBH- 4/ 18/ 15 200. 00 200.00

3708 00618780_ SNV Municipal Emergency Services Inc. 04/ 22/ 2015 Hydrotest of Cylinders 200. 00 232. 41

00619321_ SNV 0 Rings 32. 41

3709 4080 North County EVS, Inc. 04/ 22/ 2015 Fire Apparatus Inspection & Driver' Training 306. 18 306. 18

3710 Spence Spence, Jennifer 04/ 22/ 2015 Refund/ Spence, Justin/ Daycamp 34. 00 34.00

3711 356997 Sun Badge Company 04/ 22/ 2015 Spare Badges - 160, 161, 162, 163, 164 452. 45 551. 74

357382 Badge- Drurn 99. 29

3712 Stmt 3/ 23/ 15 US Bank Corporate Payment Systems 04/ 22/ 2015 Equipment Rental Concrete Trailer Mixer 194. 32 6, 232. 77

Aluminurn Cargo Carrier 86. 39

Pesticide Seminar - Mendoza, Landeras, Hunt 3/ 19/ 15 300. 00

Spray Paint 21. 11

Wood Screw, Foarn Assembly 16. 96

Dish Soap 3454

Oil Change, RotatiomVeh Inspection -' 04 Ford Expedition 43. 08

Car Rental - JEMS Conference, Baltimore MD 222. 90

Hotel Parking Feb24- 28 - JEMS Conference, Baltimore IVID 174. 00

Fill Valve Kit 16. 19

Mise Supplies - David Clark Co, 8050

Truck Bead Liner 29. 15

Flat Brush, Frog Tape - for Medics Stairs 26. 34

LCW Conference Exp 9. 47

Recruitment. Exp - Admin Analyst Interviews 49.09

Recruitment Exp - Battalion Chief Exam/ Interviews 194.98

12V Extension Cord 5. 25

Union Tribune. Subscription 34. 85

Station Supplies 8. 06

Hose Clamp, Reflective Strips, Laminate Pouch 23. 73

Fire Lunch Meeting 45. 63

CWEA Membership - Mendoza Jr, Bell 135. 00

Farmers Market Pennysaver Ad 1, 588.51

PC Monitors - Basement 914. 24

Wall .Socket Set, Breaker Bar 42. 63

Faucet Single Basin 401. 16

Push Button Assembly Kit for Non ADA Coolers 8100

Recruitment Exp - office Aide Interviews 21. 24

Postage 15. 80

CPA Renewal Required Course 59. 90

Office Supplies 47. 96

Computers - Basement 1, 099.80

Metal Surge Protector/ FF Room 39. 39

Elevator Rescue. Tools 169. 60

3713 9743872804 Verizon Wireless 04/ 22/ 2015 Mobile Broadband Access 3/ 13/ 15- 4/ 12/ 15 76. 02 76. 02

269, 527 92 269, 52792



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. D

Mtg. Date May 5, 2015

Dept. Public Works

Item Title: Denial of Claim

Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

Deny a claim submitted by David Mironyuk. 

Item Summary: 

The City of Lemon Grove received a claim from David Mironyuk. Staff investigated the claim and

based on the finding of the investigation, recommends its denial. j

Fiscal Impact: 

None.'!, 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section01

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information: 

None ' Newsletter article  Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Notice published in local newspaper  Neighborhood meeting

Attachments: 

None. 

1- 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. E

Mtg. Date May 5, 2015
Dept. Development Services

Item Title: Award Contract for Traffic Signal and Communications System Maintenance, 

Emergency Repairs, and Related Construction Services.: 

Staff Contact: Tamara O' Neal, Interim City Engineer

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) awarding a contract for Traffic Signal and Communication
System Maintenance, Emergency Repairs, and Related Construction Services.: 

Item Summary: 

Since 1995, the City of Lemon Grove has worked in a consortium with the cities of EI Cajon, La
Mesa, Poway, and Santee to achieve cost savings by jointly advertising contracts for traffic signal
maintenance to a contractor that would serve all five cities. 

On March 17, 2015, four bids were received by the City of EI Cajon ( acting as the five -city
consortium' s procurement lead) on the traffic signal maintenance contract. CTE, Inc. was found to

be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Staff recommends awarding a contract for the
Traffic Signal and Communication System Maintenance, Emergency Repairs, and Related

Construction Services Contract ( Contract No. 2015- 09) to CTE, Inc. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Sufficient funds will be allocated in the TransNet Budget for Fiscal Year 2015- 16 through Fiscal
Year 2019- 20. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. E

Mtg. Date May 5, 2015

Attachment A

Item Title: Award Contract for Traffic Signal and Communications System Maintenance, 

Emergency Repairs, and Related Construction Services

Staff Contact: Tamara O' Neal, Interim City Engineer

Discussion: 

Since 1995, the City of Lemon Grove has worked in a consortium with the cities of EI Cajon, La
Mesa, Poway, and Santee to achieve cost savings by jointly advertising and awarding a
separate contract for traffic signal maintenance. to a contractor that would serve all five cities. 

As a result of the success of this partnership and the pending June 30, 2015 expiration of the
current five- year traffic signal contract, staff from the five cities worked together to prepare bid

specifications for the traffic signal and communication system maintenance, emergency repairs, 
and related construction services. 

The procurement of the contract is discussed below. 

On February 12, 2015, the City of EI Cajon, acting as the procurement lead representing the five
cities, advertised a notice inviting bids and conducted a pre- bid meeting. Four bids were

received and opened on March 17, 2015. The bidders name, location, and bid amount are listed

below: 

Bidder' s Name Location Total Bid
Lemon Grove

Portion

1- CTE, Inc. EI Cajon, CA 347, 379. 00 29, 736. 00

Siemens Industry, Inc. EI Cajon, CA 402, 271. 00 34, 434. 00

3A McCain _ Vista, CA 472, 42 9..0 0 ............................ 40, 440..0..................... 
4, Aegis ITS, Inc. Anaheim, CA

www. 

496, 023. 84

w ® ww. 

51, 020. 00

CTE, Inc. was determined to be the lowest responsible and responsive bidder, and is also the

contractor currently under agreement for the City' s street light maintenance and repair. The term
of the new contract is one year with four additional option years available at the City' s discretion, 
with escalation of unit pricing each year subject to City approval. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) awarding the Traffic
Signal and Communications System Maintenance, Emergency Repairs, and Related

Construction Services Contract ( Contract No. 2015- 09) to CTE, Inc. 

3- 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE ;CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEM

MAINTENANCE, EMERGENCY REPAIRS, AND RELATED CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove' s current agreement for traffic signal maintenance
services expires on June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the cities of EI Cajon, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, Poway, and Santee jointly
solicited bids for a Traffic Signal and Communication System Maintenance, Emergency Repairs, 
and Related Construction Services contract; and

WHEREAS, four bids were received for the Traffic Signal and Communication System

Maintenance, Emergency Repairs, and Related Construction Services Contract ( Contract No. 
2015- 09); and

WHEREAS, said bids were opened on March 17, 2015 and the lowest responsive and

responsible bidder was CTE, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the term of the contract is one year with four additional option years subject

to City Council approval; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest that a contract for said services
be awarded. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the; City Council ' of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Awards a contract in the base amount of twenty-nine thousand, seven hundred thirty- 
six dollars ($ 29, 736. 00) to CTE, Inc., and

2. Sets a $ 10, 000. 00 contingency relating to any emergency repairs and construction
services, and

3. Authorizes the City Manager to execute said contract. 

5- 



LEMON GROVE :CITY COUNCIL: 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. Date May
Dept. pity Mana ter°s Office

Item Title; Resolution Approving Limitations on the Two -Year EDCO Corporation Rate
Schedule

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving a maximum two- year EDCO rate limitation. 

Item Summary: 

EDCO provides solid waste disposal services for City residents under a franchise granted by the
City Council. Staff presents a resolution for City Council consideration that limits the maximum rate
that can be charged for Fiscal Years 2015- 16 and 2016- 17 by the franchise holder. The staff

report ( Attachment A) provides an analysis regarding the proposed resolution and fee limitation
amendment. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Nominal increase in revenue from EDCO franchise fees— approximately $ 611, 000 in Fiscal Year

2015- 16. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft

El. Neighborhood meeting



LEMON GROVE :CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 

Mtg. Date May 5, 2015

Attachment A

Item Title: : Resolution Approving Limitations on the Two -Year EDCO Corporation Rate
Schedule. 

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager] 

Discussion: 

EDCO, a local company headquartered in Lemon Grove, is a regional company with solid waste
operations throughout Southern California. EDCO provides solid waste disposal services for

City residents under a franchise granted by the City Council. EDCO has been operating under
the same City Council -approved rate ceiling since 2013. The purpose of this agenda item is to
present a resolution that approves a new two- year EDCO Rate Ceiling for Fiscal Years 2015- 16
and 2016- 17. 

Earlier this year, staff met with EDCO staff regarding a request to increase the maximum waste
collection and recycling rates from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. In summary, EDCO
requests that the basic residential service rate increases from $ 20. 44 to $ 21. 10 per month and

basic commercial service rate increases from $ 102. 74 to $ 106. 74 per month. The following
table identifies the proposed EDCO rates for the next two years for all EDCO services: 

Since 2009, the City and EDCO have utilized a two- year rate structure. This model continues to
help even out expenses for residential and commercial customers. The current rate schedule, 

established by resolution, sunsets on June 30, 2015. 

The City Council, having granted EDCO its exclusive franchise, can place limitations on EDCO' s
rates so that the public is charged a competitive rate. The Resolution establishes the maximum

rate that EDCO can charge during the two fiscal years. EDCO has the right to charge up to the
maximum rate, but cannot exceed that rate. Under its franchise, EDCO has the right to set

rates within the limits set out by the City Council. 

Current Proposed Actual Percent

Service Rate Rate Increase Increase

Basic Residential Service 20. 4..4...........................$...1........... 2 0. 66 3. 2% 

recycling, green waste, & refuse) 

Additional Cart Service 3. 14 3. 14 0. 00 0. 0% 

Senior Residential Service ( seniors 16. 35 16. 88 0. 5953 3. 2% 

62+ with income under $ 17, 196) 

Silver Bag Service ( seniors 62+) 3. 20 3. 33 0. 13 3. 9% 

3 -yard bin once per week 102. 74 106. 28 3. 54 3. 4% 

3 -yard bin twice per week 173. 46 179. 44 5. 98 3. 4% 

3 -yard bin three times per week 244. 20 252. 62 8. 42 3. 4% 

3 -yard bin four times per week 314. 91 325. 77 10. 86 3. 4% 

3 -yard bin five times per week 385. 65 398. 95 13. 30 3. 4% 

3 -yard bin six times per week 456. 36 472. 10 15. 74 3. 4% 

Since 2009, the City and EDCO have utilized a two- year rate structure. This model continues to
help even out expenses for residential and commercial customers. The current rate schedule, 

established by resolution, sunsets on June 30, 2015. 

The City Council, having granted EDCO its exclusive franchise, can place limitations on EDCO' s
rates so that the public is charged a competitive rate. The Resolution establishes the maximum

rate that EDCO can charge during the two fiscal years. EDCO has the right to charge up to the
maximum rate, but cannot exceed that rate. Under its franchise, EDCO has the right to set

rates within the limits set out by the City Council. 



Attachment A

Various cost factors have impacted the solid waste industry, including EDCO. These costs

include landfill tipping fees, cost of fuel and labor, and the loss in offsetting revenue from the
sale of recycled materials. EDCO requests that the City Council raise the ceiling placed on its
solid waste rates. However because the City has granted a franchise to EDCO to collect solid
waste, recycled goods and other green waste within the City of Lemon Grove, the City Council
has the right to set the maximum rate that the private contractor can charge for its services. 

The proposed rate schedule reflects both the increase in service costs, as well as the

anticipated revenue from recyclable materials diverted through the City' s AB 939 programs. 
That revenue absorbs a portion of the cost increases, keeping fees lower than they would be
without the resale of the recycled materials. In addition to collection service costs, the fees also

include tipping fees, AB 939 fees, and the franchise fee. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution ( Attachment B) approving the two- 
year Rate Limitation for Fiscal Years 2015- 16 and 2016- 17. 

4.. 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. ` 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH EDCO

CORPORATION TO GRANT AN AMENDED MAXIMUM RATE LIMITATION

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 3186, a

Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Approving a Two -Year Service Rate Schedule for
EDCO Disposal to Provide Residential and Commercial Waste Collection and Recycling
Services; and

WHEREAS, EDCO Corporation is the City of Lemon Grove' s franchisee for solid waste
collection; and

WHEREAS, a franchise agreement exists between the City of Lemon Grove ( City) and
EDCO Disposal for providing waste collection and recycling services; and

WHEREAS, under the franchise agreement, the City Council has the right to set the
maximum rate that EDCO may charge for its services; and

WHEREAS, EDCO has been operating under the same City Council -approved rate
ceiling since 2013; and

WHEREAS, EDCO has provided the City with a proposed service rate schedule for the
upcoming two fiscal years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Foregoing recitals are true and correct; and

2. Establishes a maximum two- year Rate Schedule for Fiscal Years 2015- 16 and 2016- 

17: 

Residential and Commercial Maximum Monthly
Waste Collection and Recycling Rates

Services 7/ 01/ 2015- 6/ 30/ 2016

Basic Residential Cart Service ( One each – 
21. 10

recycling, green waste, & refuse) 

Addition.a.l Cart Service 3. 14

Senior Rate Residential Cart Service ( For
16. 88

seniors 62+ with income under $ 17, 196) 

Silver Bag Service ( For seniors 62+) 3. 33

3 - yard bin once per week3- yard 106. 28

3 -yard bin twice per week 179. 44

3 -yard bin three..... times per week 252. 62

3 -yard bin four times per week
en.....,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,..,....,.,., 

325. 77

3 -yard bin five times per week 398. 95

3 -yard bin six times per week 472. 10



Attachment B

3. Repeals any previously adopted resolutions in conflict with the terms of this
resolution. 

A



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL; 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 3

Mtg. Date May 5, 2015
Dept. Citv Manager' s Office' 

Item Title: California Home Financing Authority

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 
1) A resolution ( Attachment B) consenting to Inclusion of Properties within the City' s

Incorporated Area in the City of Lemon Grove Community Facilities District No. 2015- 1
Clean Energy) to Finance Renewable Energy Generation, Energy Efficiency, Water

Conservation and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Improvements and approving
associate membership in California Home Finance Authority ( CHF); and

2) A resolution ( Attachment C) consenting to inclusion of properties within the City' s
Incorporated Area in the CHF PACE Program to Finance Renewable Energy
Generation, Energy and Water Efficiency Improvements and Electric Vehicle Charging
Infrastructure and approving associate membership in CHF.; 

Item Summary: 

In 2013, the City began participation in the HERO PACE and the Figtree PACE programs. Staff
presents a third program for City Council consideration that provides property owners a third
option with a different financing mechanism. The California Home Finance Authority ( CHF) has
established two Property Assessed Clean Energy ( PACE) financing programs for residential, 
commercial, industrial and agricultural properties to address high up -front costs for property
owners who wish to improve their properties through installation of measures that will generate

renewable energy or reduce their energy and water use. The staff report ( Attachment A) 

provides background information about PACE programs and describes the PACE Community
Facilities District and the PACE Contractual Assessment Program through the CHF. 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no cost to the City to become an associate member of the JPA or by opting into the
PACE programs described in this report. The City will have no administrative responsibilities, 
marketing obligations, or financial obligations associated with the PACE program.; 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None ® Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution — participation in CFD 2015- 1

C. Resolution — participation in CHF PACE program

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

D. California Home Finance Authority Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 3

Mtg. Date May 5. 2015

Item Title: California Home Financing Authority

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Discussion: 

California Home Finance Authority ( CHF), which is in the process of formally changing its name
to Golden State Finance Authority, is a joint exercise of the powers authority ( the Authority
JPA). CHF has established two Property Assessed Clean Energy ( PACE) financing programs
for residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural properties to address high up -front costs
for property owners who wish to improve their properties through installation of measures that
will generate renewable energy or reduce their energy and water use. CHF contracts with

Ygrene Energy Fund CA LLC ( Ygrene) to serve as the program administrator and to operate the
Ygrene Works for California PACE financing program. 

CHF PACE Financing Programs

CHF has established two different types of PACE programs under the legislative authority of two
separate California PACE laws: 

SB 555 PACE Community Facilities District: Senate Bill 555 amended the Mello -Roos

Community Facilities Act to allow for the creation of Community Facilities Districts ( CFDs) for
the purpose of financing or refinancing energy efficiency, water conservation, renewable energy
and electric vehicle charging infrastructure improvements. 

Individual properties can voluntarily be annexed into the district and be subject to the special tax
that is imposed to repay project financing only if ( i) the City Council adopts a resolution
consenting to the inclusion of parcels in the incorporated areas of the City within the CFD and

ii) each participating owner provides it unanimous written approval for annexation of its property
into the PACE CFD. 

AB 811 PACE Contractual Assessment Program: By the passage of Assembly Bill 811, the
California State Legislature added Chapter 29 to the Improvement Bond Act of 1911. This

legislation authorized cities and counties to establish property improvements that promote
renewable energy generation, energy and water efficiency and electric vehicle charging
infrastructure. 

As with the SD 555 CFD, properties can voluntarily be annexed into the AB 811 PACE program
and subject to the property tax assessment that is imposed to repay project financing only if ( i) 
the Council adopts a resolution consenting to the inclusion of parcels in the incorporated areas
of the City within the program and ( ii) each participating owner consents in writing to the
annexation of its property into the PACE program. 

The City has previously approved participation in two other PACE programs. Adding the CHF
PACE programs, to be administered by Ygrene, provides more options for City property owners. 
It will not add to or require any additional responsibilities for the City. 

3- 



Attachment A

JPA Associate Membership

To participate in the CHF PACE programs, the City must become an Associate Member of CHF
JPA Agreement is included as Attachment D). Associate membership requires no dues or

other costs to the City, but permits participating in all CHF programs including the PACE
program. The attached resolutions approve joining the JPA as an Associate Member. 

Program Authorization

CHF is in the process of seeking validation judgments for both the SB 555 and the AB 811
programs from the Superior Court of the County of Sacramento. However, CHF intends to only
implement one of the above PACE programs. Once the court enters the validation judgments, 

CHF will select the PACE program it believes will provide property owners with the greatest
flexibility. The other PACE program will not be implemented unless changes in the PACE laws
warrant changing or adding that option. 

In support of CHF' s approach, staff recommends that the City Council adopt two resolutions that
approve both programs. The first resolution ( Attachment B) permits property owners within the
incorporated areas of the City to participate in the CHF AB 555 Community Facilities District. 
The second resolution ( Attachment C) permits property owners within the incorporated areas of
the City to participate in the CHF AB 811 Authority PACE Program. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider two resolutions:. 

1) Resolution ( Attachment B) — authorizing membership to Inclusion of Properties within
the City's Incorporated Area in CHF Community Facilities District No. 2015- 1 ( Clean

Energy) to Finance Renewable Energy Generation, Energy Efficiency, Water

Conservation and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Improvements and Approving
Associate Membership in CHF. 

2) Resolution ( Attachment C) — consenting to Inclusion of Properties within the City' s
Incorporated Area in the CHF PACE Program to Finance Renewable Energy
Generation, Energy Efficiency, Water Conservation and Electric Vehicle Charging
Infrastructure Improvements and Approving Associate Membership in CHF. 

4- 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2015- 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

CONSENTING TO INCLUSION OF PROPERTIES WITHIN THE CITY' S JURISDICTION IN
THE CALIFORNIA HOME FINANCE AUTHORITY COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 

2015- 1 ( CLEAN ENERGY) TO FINANCE RENEWABLE ENERGY IMPROVEMENTS, 

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND WATER CONSERVATION IMPROVEMENTS AND ELECTRIC
VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE AND APPROVING ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP

IN THE JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AUTHORITY RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, the California Home Finance Authority, a California joint powers authority, 
the " Authority") has established the Community Facilities District No. 2015- 1 ( Clean Energy) in

accordance with the Mello -Roos Community Facilities Act, set forth in sections 53311 through
53368. 3 of the California Government Code ( the " Act") and particularly in accordance with
sections 53313. 5( 1) and 53328. 1( a) ( the " District"); and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the District is to finance or refinance ( including the payment
of interest) the acquisition, installation, and improvement of energy efficiency, water

conservation, renewable energy and electric vehicle charging infrastructure improvements
permanently affixed to private or publicly -owned real property ( the " Authorized Improvements"); 
and

WHEREAS, the Authority is in the process of amending the Authority Joint Powers
Agreement ( the " Authority JPA") to formally change its name to the Golden State Finance
Authority; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove is committed to development of renewable energy
generation and energy efficiency improvements, reduction of greenhouse gases, and protection
of the environment; and

WHEREAS, in the Act, the Legislature has authorized a parcel within the territory of the
District to annex to the District and be subject to the special tax levy of the District only ( i) if the
city or county within which the parcel is located has consented, by the adoption of a resolution
by the applicable city council or county board of supervisors, to the inclusion of parcels within its
boundaries in the District and ( ii) with the unanimous written approval of the owner or owners of

the parcel when it is annexed ( the " Unanimous Approval Agreement"), which, as provided in

section 53329. 6 of the Act, shall constitute the election required by the California Constitution; 
and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to provide innovative solutions to its property owners to
achieve energy efficiency and water conservation and in doing so cooperate with Authority in
order to efficiently and economically assist property owners the City in financing such
Authorized Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has established the District, as permitted by the Act, the
Authority JPA, originally made and entered into July 1, 1993, as amended to date, and the City, 
desires to become an Associate Member of the JPA by execution of the JPA Agreement, a copy
of which is attached as Exhibit " A" hereto, to participate in the programs of the JPA and, to

assist property owners within the incorporated area of the City in financing the cost of installing
Authorized Improvements; and

5 



Attachment B

WHEREAS, the City will not be responsible for the conduct of any special tax
proceedings; the levy and collection of special taxes or any required remedial action in the case
of delinquencies in the payment of any special taxes in connection with the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Finds and declares that properties in the City's incorporated area will be benefited by
the availability of the Authority CFD No. 2015- 1 ( Clean Energy) to finance the
installation of the Authorized Improvements; and

2. Consents to inclusion in the Authority CFD No. 2015- 1 ( Clean Energy) of all of the
properties in the incorporated area within the City and to the Authorized
Improvements, upon the request of and execution of the Unanimous Approval

Agreement by the owners of such properties when such properties are annexed, in
compliance with the laws, rules and regulations applicable to such program; and to

the assumption of jurisdiction thereover by Authority for the purposes thereof; and
3. Assents to the assumption of jurisdiction by Authority for all purposes of the Authority

CFD No. 2015- 1 ( Clean Energy) and authorizes Authority, upon satisfaction of the
conditions imposed in this resolution, to take each and every step required for or
suitable for financing the Authorized Improvements; and

4. Approves joining the JPA as an Associate Member and authorizes the execution by
appropriate City officials of any necessary documents to effectuate such

membership; and

5. Authorizes and directs staff to coordinate with Authority staff to facilitate operation of
the Authority CFD No. 2015- 1 ( Clean Energy) within the City, and report back
periodically to this City Council on the success of such program; and

6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. The City Clerk is
directed to send a certified copy of this resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 

M



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
CONSENTING TO INCLUSION OF PROPERTIES WITHIN THE CITY' S JURISDICTION IN

THE CALIFORNIA HOME FINANCE AUTHORITY, PROGRAM TO FINANCE RENEWABLE

ENERGY GENERATION, ENERGY AND WATER EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENTS AND

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE AND APPROVING ASSOCIATE

MEMBERSHIP IN THE JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AUTHORITY RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, the California Home Finance Authority (" Authority") is a joint exercise of

powers authority established pursuant to Chapter 5 of Division 7, Title 1 of the Government
Code of the State of California ( Section 6500 and following) ( the " Act') and the Joint Power

Agreement entered into on July 1, 1993, as amended from time to time ( the " Authority JPA"); 
and

WHEREAS, the Authority is in the process of amending the Authority JPA to formally
change its name to the Golden State Finance Authority; and

WHEREAS, Authority has established a property -assessed clean energy (" PACE") 

Program ( the " Authority PACE Program") to provide for the financing of renewable energy
generation, energy and water efficiency improvements and electric vehicle charging
infrastructure ( the " Improvements") pursuant to Chapter 29 of the Improvement Bond Act of

1911, being Division 7 of the California Streets and Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within

counties and cities throughout the State of California that elect to participate in such program; 

and

WHEREAS, City of Lemon Grove ( the " City") is committed to development of renewable

energy generation and energy and water efficiency improvements, reduction of greenhouse
gases, and protection of the environment; and

WHEREAS, in Chapter 29, the Legislature has authorized cities and counties to assist

property owners in financing the cost of installing improvements through a voluntary contractual
assessment program; and

WHEREAS, in Chapter 29, the Legislature has authorized cities and counties to assist

property owners in financing the cost of installing Improvements through a voluntary contractual
assessment program; and

WHEREAS, installation of such Improvements by property owners within the
jurisdictional boundaries of the counties and cities that are participating in the Authority PACE
Program would promote the purposes cited above; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to provide innovative solutions to its property owners to
achieve energy and water efficiency, and in doing so cooperate with Authority in order to
efficiently and economically assist property owners within the City in financing such
Improvements; and

WHEREAS, Authority has established the Authority PACE Program, which is such a
voluntary contractual assessment program, as permitted by the Act, the Authority JPA, originally
made and entered into July 1, 1993, as amended to date, and the City, desires to become an
Associate Member of the JPA by execution of the JPA Agreement, a copy of which is attached
as Exhibit "A" hereto, to participate in the programs of the JPA and to assist property owners
within the jurisdiction of the City in financing the cost of installing Improvements; and



Attachment C

WHEREAS, the City will not be responsible for the conduct of any assessment
proceedings; the levy and collection of assessments or any required remedial action in the case
of delinquencies in the payment of any assessments or the issuance, sale or administration of
any bonds issued in connection with the Authority PACE Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California: hereby: 

1. Finds and declares that properties in the City' s incorporated area will be benefited by
the availability of the Authority PACE Program to finance the installation of the
improvements; and

2. Consents to inclusion in the Authority PACE Program of all of the properties in the
jurisdictional boundaries of the City and to the Improvements, upon the request by
and voluntary agreement of owners of such properties, in compliance with the laws, 
rules and regulations applicable to such program; and to the assumption of

jurisdiction thereover by Authority for the purposes thereof; and

3. Assent to the assumption of jurisdiction by Authority for all purposes of the Authority
PACE Program and authorizes Authority, upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed
in this resolution, to take each and every step required for or suitable for financing
the Improvements, including the levying, collecting and enforcement of the
contractual assessments to finance the Improvements and the issuance and

enforcement of bonds to represent such contractual assessments; and

4. Approves joining the JPA as an Associate Member and authorizes the execution by
appropriate City officials of any necessary documents to effectuate such

membership; and

5. Authorizes and directes staff to coordinate with Authority staff to facilitate operation
of the Authority PACE Program within the City, and report back periodically to this
City Council on the success of such program; and

6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. The City Clerk is
directed to send a certified copy of this resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 



Attachment C

EXHIBIT A

CALIFORNIA HOME FINANCE AUTHORITY

AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT

Original date July 1, 1993 and as last amended and restated December 10, 2014) 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT

Agreement") is entered into by and among the counties listed on Attachment 1 hereof and
incorporated herein by reference. All such counties are referred to herein as " Members" with the
respective powers, privileges and restrictions provided herein. 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the California Rural Home Mortgage Finance Authority (" CRHMFA") was

created by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated July 1, 1993 pursuant to the Joint

Exercise of Powers Act ( commencing with Article 1 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the
Government Code of the State of California ( the " Act"). By Resolution 2003- 02, adopted on
January 15, 2003, the name of the authority was changed to CRHMFA Homebuyers Fund. The

most recent amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement was on January 28, 2004. 

WHEREAS, the Members of CRHMFA Homebuyers Fund desire to update, reaffirm, 

clarify and revise certain provisions of the joint powers agreement, including the renaming of the
joint powers authority, as set forth herein. 

WHEREAS, the Members are each empowered by law to finance the construction, 
acquisition, improvement and rehabilitation of real property. 

WHEREAS, by this Agreement, the Members desire to create and establish a joint
powers authority to exercise their respective powers for the purpose of financing the
construction, acquisition, improvement and rehabilitation of real property within the jurisdiction of
the Authority as authorized by the Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Members

individually and collectively agree as follows: 

1. Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall for purposes of this Agreement
have the meanings specified below: 

Act" means the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, commencing with Article 1 of Chapter 5 of
Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California, including the Marks -Roos
Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, as amended. 

Agreement" means this Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, as the same now exists or as it

may from time to time be amended as provided herein. 

IQ



Attachment C

Associate Member" means a county, city or other public agency which is not a voting member
of the Rural County Representatives of California, a California nonprofit corporation (" RCRC"), 

with legal power and authority similar to that of the Members, admitted pursuant to paragraph
4. d. below to associate membership herein by vote of the Board. 

Audit Committee" means a committee made up of the nine -member Executive Committee. 

Authority" means California Home Finance Authority (" CHF"), formerly known as CRHMFA
Homebuyers Fund or California Rural Home Mortgage Finance Authority. 

Board" means the governing board of the Authority as described in Section 7 below. 

Bonds" means bonds, notes, warrants, leases, certificates of participation, installment purchase

agreements, loan agreements and other securities or obligations issued by the Authority, or
financing agreements entered into by the Authority pursuant to the Act and any other obligation
within the meaning of the term " Bonds" under the Act. 

Delegate" means the Supervisor designated by the governing board of each Member to serve
on the Board of the Authority. 

Executive Committee" means the nine -member Executive Committee of the Board established
pursuant to Section 10 hereof. 

Member" means any county which is a member of RCRC, has executed this Agreement and
has become a member of the Authority. 

Obligations" means bonds, notes, warrants, leases, certificates of participation, installment

purchase agreements, loan agreements and other securities or obligations issued by the
Authority, or financing agreements entered into by the Authority pursuant to the Act and any
other financial or legal obligation of the Authority under the Act. 

Program" or " Project" means any work, improvement, program, project or service undertaken by
the Authority. 

Rural County Representatives of California" or " RCRC' means the nonprofit entity incorporated
under that name in the State of California. 

Supervisor" means an elected County Supervisor from an RCRC member county. 

2. Purpose

The purpose of the Authority is to provide financing for the acquisition, construction, improvement
and rehabilitation of real property in accordance with applicable provisions of law for the benefit of
residents and communities. In pursuit of this purpose, this Agreement provides for the joint

exercise of powers common to any of its Members and Associate Members as provided herein, 

or otherwise authorized by the Act and other applicable laws, including assisting in financing as
authorized herein, jointly exercised in the manner set forth herein. 

10- 



Attachment C

3. Principal Place of Business

The principal office of the Authority shall be 1215 K Street, Suite 1650, Sacramento, California
95814. 

4. Creation of Authority; Addition of Members or Associate Members

a. The Authority is hereby created pursuant to the Act. As provided in the Act, the Authority shall
be a public entity separate and distinct from the Members or Associate Members. 

b. The Authority will cause a notice of this Agreement or any amendment hereto to be prepared
and filed with the office of the Secretary of State of California in a timely fashion in the manner
set forth in Section 6503. 3 of the Act. 

c. A county that is a member of RCRC may petition to become a member of the Authority by
submitting to the Board a resolution or evidence of other formal action taken by its governing
body adopting this Agreement. The Board shall review the petition for membership and shall
vote to approve or disapprove the petition. If the petition is approved by a majority of the Board, 
such county shall immediately become a Member of the Authority. 

d. An Associate Member may be added to the Authority upon the affirmative approval of its
respective governing board and pursuant to action by the Authority Board upon such terms and
conditions, and with such rights, privileges and responsibilities, as may be established from time
to time by the Board. Such terms and conditions, and rights, privileges and responsibilities may
vary among the Associate Members. Associate Members shall be entitled to participate in one
or more programs of the Authority as determined by the Board, but shall not be voting members
of the Board. The Executive Director of the Authority shall enforce the terms and conditions for
prospective Associate Members to the Authority as provided by resolution of the Board and as
amended from time to time by the Board. Changes in the terms and conditions for Associate
Membership by the Board will not constitute an amendment of this Agreement. 

5. Term and Termination of Powers

This Agreement shall become effective from the date hereof until the earlier of the time when all

Bonds and any interest thereon shall have been paid in full, or provision for such payment shall
have been made, or when the Authority shall no longer own or hold any interest in a public
capital improvement or program. The Authority shall continue to exercise the powers herein
conferred upon it until termination of this Agreement, except that if any Bonds are issued and
delivered, in no event shall the exercise of the powers herein granted be terminated until all

Bonds so issued and delivered and the interest thereon shall have been paid or provision for

such payment shall have been made and any other debt incurred with respect to any other
financing program established or administered by the Authority has been repaid in full and is no
longer outstanding. 

In



Attachment C

6. Powers: Restriction upon Exercise

a. To effectuate its purpose, the Authority shall have the power to exercise any and all powers of
the Members or of a joint powers authority under the Act and other applicable provisions of law, 
subject, however, to the conditions and restrictions herein contained. Each Member or Associate

Member may also separately exercise any and all such powers. The powers of the Authority are
limited to those of a general law county. 

b. The Authority may adopt, from time to time, such resolutions, guidelines, rules and regulations
for the conduct of its meetings and the activities of the Authority as it deems necessary or
desirable to accomplish its purpose. 

c. The Authority shall have the power to finance the construction, acquisition, improvement and
rehabilitation of real property, including the power to purchase, with the amounts received or to
be received by it pursuant to a bond purchase agreement, bonds issued by any of its Members
or Associate Members and other local agencies at public or negotiated sale, for the purpose set

forth herein and in accordance with the Act. All or any part of such bonds so purchased may be
held by the Authority or resold to public or private purchasers at public or negotiated sale. The
Authority shall set any other terms and conditions of any purchase or sale contemplated herein
as it deems necessary or convenient and in furtherance of the Act. The Authority may issue or
cause to be issued Bonds or other indebtedness, and pledge any of its property or revenues as
security to the extent permitted by resolution of the Board under any applicable provision of law. 
The Authority may issue Bonds in accordance with the Act in order to raise funds necessary to
effectuate its purpose hereunder and may enter into agreements to secure such Bonds. The
Authority may issue other forms of indebtedness authorized by the Act, and to secure such debt, 
to further such purpose. The Authority may utilize other forms of capital, including, but not
limited to, the Authority' s internal resources, capital markets and other forms of private capital
investment authorized by the Act... 

d. The Authority is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary for the exercise of its powers, 
including, but not limited to: 

1) executing contracts, 
2) employing agents, consultants and employees, 

3) acquiring, constructing or providing for maintenance and operation of any
building, work or improvement, 

4) acquiring, holding or disposing of real or personal property wherever located, 
including property subject to mortgage, 

5) incurring debts, liabilities or obligations, 

6) receiving gifts, contributions and donations of property, funds, services and
any other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations or governmental
entities, 

7) suing and being sued in its own name, and litigating or settling any suits or
claims, 

8) doing any and all things necessary or convenient to the exercise of its specific
powers and to accomplishing its purpose

9) establishing and/or administering districts to finance and refinance the
acquisition, installation and improvement of energy efficiency, water

12- 



Attachment C

conservation and renewable energy improvements to or on real property
and in buildings. The Authority may enter into one or more agreements, 
including without limitation, participation agreements and implementation
agreements to implement such programs. 

e. Subject to the applicable provisions of any indenture or resolution providing for the investment
of monies held thereunder, the Authority shall have the power to invest any of its funds as the
Board deems advisable, in the same manner and upon the same conditions as local agencies

pursuant to Section 53601 of the Government Code of the State of California. 

f. All property, equipment, supplies, funds and records of the Authority shall be owned by the
Authority, except as may be provided otherwise herein or by resolution of the Board. 

g. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 6508. 1 of the Act, the debts, liabilities and obligations of
the Authority shall not be debts, liabilities and obligations of the Members or Associate Members. 
Any Bonds, together with any interest and premium thereon, shall not constitute debts, liabilities
or obligations of any Member. The Members or Associate Members hereby agree that any such
Bonds issued by the Authority shall not constitute general obligations of the Authority but shall
be payable solely from the moneys pledged to the repayment of principal or interest on such
Bonds under the terms of the resolution, indenture, trust, agreement or other instrument

pursuant to which such Bonds are issued. Neither the Members or Associate Members nor the

Authority shall be obligated to pay the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, or
other costs incidental thereto, except from the revenues and funds pledged therefor, and neither

the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Members or Associate Members or the Authority
shall be pledged to the payment of the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, 
nor shall the Members or Associate Members of the Authority be obligated in any manner to
make any appropriation for such payment. No covenant or agreement contained in any Bond
shall be deemed to be a covenant or agreement of any Delegate, or any officer, agent or

employee of the Authority in an individual capacity, and neither the Board nor any officer thereof
executing the Bonds or any document related thereto shall be liable personally on any Bond or
be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of any Bonds. 

7. Governing Board

a. The Board shall consist of the number of Delegates equal to one representative from each
Member. 

b. The governing body of each Member shall appoint one of its Supervisors to serve as a
Delegate on the Board. A Member' s appointment of its Delegate shall be delivered in writing

which may be by electronic mail) to the Authority and shall be effective until he or she is
replaced by such governing body or no longer a Supervisor; any vacancy shall be filled by the
governing body of the Member in the same manner provided in this paragraph b... 

c. The governing body of each Member of the Board shall appoint a Supervisor as an alternate
to serve on the Board in the absence of the Delegate; the alternate may exercise all the

13- 



Attachment C

rights and privileges of the Delegate, including the right to be counted in constituting a quorum, 
to participate in the proceedings of the Board, and to vote upon any and all matters. No

alternate may have more than one vote at any meeting of the Board, and any Member' s
designation of an alternate shall be delivered in writing (which may be by electronic mail) to the
Authority and shall be effective until such alternate is replaced by his or her governing body or is
no longer a Supervisor, unless otherwise specified in such appointment. Any vacancy shall be
filled by the governing body of the Member in the same manner provided in this paragraph c... 

d. Any person who is not a member of the governing body of a Member and who attends a
meeting on behalf of such Member may not vote or be counted toward a quorum but may, at the
discretion of the Chair, participate in open meetings he or she attends. 

e. Each Associate Member may designate a non- voting representative to the Board who may not
be counted toward a quorum but who may attend open meetings, propose agenda items and
otherwise participate in Board Meetings. 

f. Delegates shall not receive compensation for serving as Delegates, but may claim and receive
reimbursement for expenses actually incurred in connection with such service pursuant to rules
approved by the Board and subject to the availability of funds. 

g. The Board shall have the power, by resolution, to the extent permitted by the Act or any other
applicable law, to exercise any powers of the Authority and to delegate any of its functions to the
Executive Committee or one or more Delegates, officers or agents of the Authority, and to cause
any authorized Delegate, officer or agent to take any actions and execute any documents for
and in the name and on behalf of the Board or the Authority. 

h. The Board may establish such committees as it deems necessary for any lawful purpose; 
such committees are advisory only and may not act or purport to act on behalf of the Board or
the Authority. 

i. The Board shall develop, or cause to be developed, and review, modify as necessary, and
adopt each Program. 

8. Meetings of the Board

a. The Board shall meet at least once annually, but may meet more frequently upon call of any
officer or as provided by resolution of the Board. 

b. Meetings of the Board shall be called, noticed, held and conducted pursuant to the

provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Chapter 9 ( commencing with Section 54950) of Part I of
Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California. 

c. The Secretary of the Authority shall cause minutes of all meetings of the Board to be taken
and distributed to each Member as soon as possible after each meeting. 

d. The lesser of twelve ( 12) Delegates or a majority of the number of current Delegates shall
constitute a quorum for transacting business at any meeting of the Board, except

14- 



Attachment C

that less than a quorum may act to adjourn a meeting. Each Delegate shall have one vote. 

e. Meetings may be held at any location designated in notice properly given for a meeting and
may be conducted by telephonic or similar means in any manner otherwise allowed by law. 

9. Officers; Duties; Official Bonds

a. The Board shall elect a chair and vice chair from among the Delegates at the Board' s annual
meeting who shall serve a term of one ( 1) year or until their respective successor is elected. The
chair shall conduct the meetings of the Board and perform such other duties as may be specified
by resolution of the Board. The vice chair shall perform such duties in the absence or in the
event of the unavailability of the chair. 

b. The Board shall contract annually with RCRC to administer the Agreement and to provide
administrative services to the Authority, and the President and Chief Executive Officer of RCRC
shall serve ex officio as Executive Director, Secretary, Treasurer, and Auditor of the Authority. 
As chief executive of the Authority, the Executive Director is authorized to execute contracts and
other obligations of the Authority, unless prior Board approval is required by a third party, by law
or by Board specification, and to perform other duties specified by the Board. The Executive
Director may appoint such other officers as may be required for the orderly conduct of the
Authority' s business and affairs who shall serve at the pleasure of the Executive Director. 
Subject to the applicable provisions of any indenture or resolution providing for a trustee or other
fiscal agent, the Executive Director, as Treasurer, is designated as the custodian of the

Authority' s funds, from whatever source, and, as such, shall have the powers, duties and
responsibilities specified in Section 6505. 5 of the Act. The Executive Director, as Auditor, shall

have the powers, duties and responsibilities specified in Section 6505. 5 of the Act. 

c. The Legislative Advocate for the Authority shall be the Rural County Representatives of
California. 

d. The Treasurer and Auditor are public officers who have charge of, handle, or have access to

all property of the Authority, and a bond for such officer in the amount of at least one hundred
thousand dollars ($ 100,000. 00) shall be obtained at the expense of the Authority and filed with
the Executive Director. Such bond may secure the faithful performance of such officer' s duties
with respect to another public office if such bond in at least the same amount specifically
mentions the office of the Authority as required herein. The Treasurer and Auditor shall cause
periodic independent audits to be made of the Authority' s books by a certified public accountant, 
or public accountant, in compliance with Section 6505 of the Act. 

e. The business of the Authority shall be conducted under the supervision of the Executive
Director by RCRC personnel. 

10. Executive Committee of the Authority

a. Composition

15- 



Attachment C

The Authority shall appoint nine ( 9) members of its Board to serve on an Executive Committee, 

b. Powers and Limitations

The Executive Committee shall act in an advisory capacity and make recommendations to the
Authority Board. Duties will include, but not be limited to, review of the quarterly and annual
budgets, service as the Audit Committee for the Authority, periodically review this Agreement; 
and complete any other tasks as may be assigned by the Board. The Executive Committee shall
be subject to all limitations imposed by this Agreement, other applicable law, and resolutions of
the Board. 

c. Quorum

A majority of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for transacting business of the
Executive Committee. 

11. Disposition of Assets

Upon termination of this Agreement, all remaining assets and liabilities of the Authority shall be
distributed to the respective Members in such manner as shall be determined by the Board and
in accordance with the law. 

12. Agreement Not Exclusive; Operation in Jurisdiction of Member

This Agreement shall not be exclusive, and each Member expressly reserves its rights to carry
out other public capital improvements and programs as provided for by law and to issue other
obligations for those purposes. This Agreement shall not be deemed to amend or alter the

terms of other agreements among the Members or Associate Members. 

13. Conflict of Interest Code

The Authority shall by resolution adopt a Conflict of Interest Code as required by law, 

14. Contributions and Advances

Contributions or advances of public funds and of personnel, equipment or property may be made
to the Authority by any Member, Associate Member or any other public agency to further the
purpose of this Agreement. Payment of public funds may be made to defray the cost of any
contribution. Any advance may be made subject to repayment, and in that case shall be repaid
in the manner agreed upon by the advancing Member, Associate Member or other public agency
and the Authority at the time of making the advance. 

15. Fiscal Year; Accounts; Reports; Annual Budget; Administrative Expenses

a. The fiscal year of the Authority shall be the period from January 1 of each year to and including
the following December 31, except for any partial fiscal year resulting from a change in
accounting based on a different fiscal year previously. 

16- 



Attachment C

b. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board shall adopt a budget for the succeeding
fiscal year. 

c. The Authority shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts as may be required by
generally accepted accounting principles. The books and records of the Authority are public
records and shall be open to inspection at all reasonable times by each Member and its
representatives. 

d. The Auditor shall either make, or contract with a certified public accountant or public

accountant to make, an annual audit of the accounts and records of the Authority. The minimum
requirements of the audit shall be those prescribed by the State Controller for special districts
under Section 26909 of the Government Code of the State of California, and shall conform to

generally accepted auditing standards. When an audit of accounts and records is made by a
certified public accountant or public accountant, a report thereof shall be filed as a public record

with each Member ( and also with the auditor of Sacramento County as the county in which the
Authority' s office is located) within 12 months after the end of the fiscal year. 

e. In any year in which the annual budget of the Authority does not exceed five thousand dollars
5, 000. 00), the Board may, upon unanimous approval of the Board, replace the annual audit

with an ensuing one- year period, but in no event for a period longer than two fiscal years. 

16. Duties of Members or Associate Members; Breach

If any Member or Associate Member shall default in performing any covenant contained herein, 
such default shall not excuse that Member or Associate Member from fulfilling its other
obligations hereunder, and such defaulting Member or Associate Member shall remain liable for
the performance of all covenants hereof. Each Member or Associate Member hereby declares
that this Agreement is entered into for the benefit of the Authority created hereby, and each
Member or Associate Member hereby grants to the Authority the right to enforce, by whatever
lawful means the Authority deems appropriate, all of the obligations of each of the parties
hereunder. Each and all of the remedies given to the Authority hereunder or by any law now or
hereafter enacted are cumulative, and the exercise of one right or remedy shall not impair the
right of the Authority to any or all other remedies. 

17. Indemnification

To the full extent permitted by law, the Board may authorize indemnification by the Authority of
any person who is or was a Board Delegate, alternate, officer, consultant, employee or other
agent of the Authority, and who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to a
proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was such a Delegate, alternate, officer, 
consultant, employee or other agent of the Authority. Such indemnification may be made against
expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in
connection with such proceeding, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person
reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Authority and, in the case of a criminal
proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful and, in the case
of an action by or in the right of the Authority, acted with such care, including reasonable inquiry, 
as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances. 

17- 



Attachment C

18. Immunities

All of the privileges and immunities from liabilities, exemptions from law, ordinances and rules, 

all pension, relief, disability, workers' compensation and other benefits which apply to the activity
of officers, agents or employees of any of the Members or Associate Members when performing
their respective functions, shall apply to them to the same degree and extent while engaged as
Delegates or otherwise as an officer, agent or other representative of the Authority or while
engaged in the performance of any of their functions or duties under the provisions of this
Agreement. 

19. Amendment

This Agreement may be amended by the adoption of the amendment by the governing bodies of
a majority of the Members. The amendment shall become effective on the first day of the month
following the last required member agency approval. An amendment may be initiated by the
Board, upon approval by a majority of the Board. Any proposed amendment, including the text
of the proposed change, shall be given by the Board to each Member' s Delegate for
presentation and action by each Member' s board within 60 days, which time may be extended
by the Board. 

The list of Members, Attachment 1, may be updated to reflect new and/ or withdrawn Members
without requiring formal amendment of the Agreement by the Authority Board of Directors. 

20. Withdrawal of Member or Associate Member

If a Member withdraws as member of RCRC, its membership in the Authority shall automatically
terminate. A Member or Associate Member may withdraw from this Agreement upon written
notice to the Board; provided however, that no such withdrawal shall result in the dissolution of

the Authority as long as any Bonds or other obligations of the Authority remain outstanding. Any
such withdrawal shall become effective thirty ( 30) days after a resolution adopted by the
Member's governing body which authorizes withdrawal is received by the Authority. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any termination of membership or withdrawal from the Authority
shall not operate to relieve any terminated or withdrawing Member or Associate Member from
Obligations incurred by such terminated or withdrawing Member or Associate Member prior to the
time of its termination or withdrawal. 

20. Miscellaneous

a. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall
be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

b. Construction. The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not to be
construed as modifying or governing the language in the section referred to. 

18- 



Attachment C

c. Approvals. Wherever in this Agreement any consent or approval is required, the same shall
not be unreasonably withheld. 

d. Jurisdiction; Venue. This Agreement is made in the State of California, under the Constitution

and laws of such State and is to be so construed; any action to enforce or interpret its terms
shall be brought in Sacramento County, California. 

e. Integration. This Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement

among the parties hereto, and it supersedes and merges all prior proposals, understandings, 
and other agreements, whether oral, written, or implied in conduct, between and among the
parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

f. Successors; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit
of the successors of the parties hereto. Except to the extent expressly provided herein, no
Member may assign any right or obligation hereunder without the consent of the Board. 

g. Severability. Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decided by the courts to
be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of California, or otherwise be rendered
unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or provisions hereof shall
not be affected thereby. 

The parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed and attested by their properly
authorized officers. 

AS ADOPTED BY THE MEMBERS: 

Originally dated July 1, 1993
Amended and restated December 10, 1998

Amended and restated February 18, 1999
Amended and restated September 18, 2002

Amended and restated January 28, 2004
Amended and restated December 10, 2014

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

19- 



Attachment C

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR NEW ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

NAME OF COUNTY OR CITY: 

Dated, 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Attest: 

By

Clerk of the Board Supervisors or City Clerk] 

AFTER EXECUTION, PLEASE SEND TO: 

Golden State Finance Authority
formerly California Home Finance Authority) 
1215 K Street, Suite 1650

Sacramento, CA 95814

20- 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date Ma 5 201
Dept. Developt]oent Services Cie p tment 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001 and Zoning
Amendment ZA150- 0001 ( Request to Amend the General Plan Land Use

Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to Medium/ High

Residential Density and to Amend the Zoning District from General Commercial
GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) on the South Side of Broadway

between 8305 Broadway and 8373 Broadway) 

Staff Contact: Carol Dick, Development Services Director

Dave DeVries, Principal Planner

Gino DeSanti, Intern

Recommendation: 

1) '', Conduct the public hearing; and
2) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001

and certifying Negative Declaration ND15- 01. 
3) Introduce Ordinance No. 427 ( Attachment C).', 

Item Summary: 

The proposed project is a request to amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from

Transportation and Retail Commercial land use to Medium/ High Density Residential ( up to 29
dwelling units per acre) land use and to amend the Zoning District from General Commercial ( GC) 
to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) for ten separate properties located on the south side of

Broadway between 8305 Broadway and 8373 Broadway. The project area consists of

approximately 7. 2 developed acres. The existing development in the project area consists of five
residential properties ( 1 duplex and 4 single family residences), a residential care facility with
vehicle parking lots on separate lots, a condominium development and an auto repair facility. The
project is a City initiated project. 

The staff report ( Attachment A) outlines the proposed amendments in detail. The Planning
Commission conducted a public hearing April 27, 2015 and recommends City Council approval.; 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Exempt, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Tribal Government Consultation Request

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 



Attachments: 

A. IStaff Report

B. IResolution ( GPA15- 0001 & ND15- 01) 

C. Ordinance ( ZA15- 0001) 

D. Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration ND15- 01

E. 1996 General Plan Land Use Table

F. RMH District Regulations

2- 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date May52QI5

Attachment A

Item Title: ( Public Hearing to Consider General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001 and
Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001 ( Request to Amend the General Plan Land

Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to Medium/ High

Residential Density and to Amend the Zoning District from General
Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) on the South Side of

Broadway between 8305 Broadway and 8373 Broadway) 

Staff Contact: Carol Dick, Development Services Director

Dave DeVries, Principal Planner

Gino DeSanti, Intern

Application Summary: 

APPLICANT City of Lemon Grove

PROPERTY
Total of 10 legal lots and one sliver lot with 47 different property

OWNERS: 
owners. One of the 10 legal lots consists of condominium lots with 28

owners and 10 common area owners. 

PROPERTY The properties are located on the south side of Broadway between
LOCATION: 8305 Broadway Lane and 8373 Broadway. 

PROJECT AREA: Approximately 7. 2 acres ( 313, 632 sq. ft.) 

EXISTING ZONE: General Commercial ( GC). 

GENERALPLAN

LAND USE Retail Commercial and Transportation, 

DESIGNATION: 

North: Broadway / State Route 125 / State Route 94

SURROUNDING South: Single Family Residential / County of San Diego
PROPERTIES: East: Storage Facility / Multi -Family

West: Caltrans Drainage Facility / State Route 125

A Negative Declaration ( ND) of Environmental Impact will be filed

ENVIRONMENTAL
subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project

IMPACT: by the City Council. The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this
project identified no potential environmental impacts. Mitigation

measures are not included in the ND. 



Attachment A

Project Description

The project consists of amending the General Plan Land Use Designation of properties between
and including 8305 and 8373 Broadway from Transportation and Retail Commercial to Medium/ 
High Density Residential and amending the Zoning District from General Commercial ( GC) to
Residential Medium/ High ( RMH). This project was initiated by the City to address existing
nonconforming uses and to promote the conversion of existing nonconforming uses to the
predominant existing residential uses in the area. 

The properties are located on the south side of Broadway adjacent to a single family residential
zone in the County of San Diego as shown below. 

Analysis

w

The properties are located in an area surrounded by transportation uses ( Broadway, SR94 and
SR125), commercial and residential uses. The area was significantly affected by the design
and construction of SR125. Several single family residential properties were identified with the
transportation land use designations because it was thought the properties would be used for

the construction of the freeway. Those properties were not used or taken and the land use
designation modification from Transportation to Residential Medium/ High is part of this request. 

The background information from the 1996 General Plan process identifies several existing land
uses along the south side of Broadway from SR125 to the east City boundary consisting of
commercial, residential and light industrial/ warehouse land use designations. The existing
development has remained essentially the same in this area with the exception of the
construction of a mini -storage facility. The project area is approximately 7. 2 acres and involves
10 legal lots. 

El



Attachment A

Existing Conditions
The 1996 General Plan revised the land use designations for properties that contained existing

single family homes, existing condominiums and a residential care facility from a variety of uses
to Retail Commercial and General Commercial zones. The auto repair property was not
changed in that General Plan process ( commercial land use designation and zone). 

With the recent listing for sale and marketing of the auto repair lot, City staff believes there is an
opportunity to pursue more compatible land use designations in this area. The auto repair

business ( composed of eight businesses) has been the subject of numerous complaints from

neighbors located both in the City of Lemon Grove and the County of San Diego. 

The lots containing the auto repair businesses, the condominiums, and the single family
residences are all considered non -conforming to the current zoning district ( General

Commercial). The Lemon Grove Municipal Code contains provisions that govern nonconforming
lots and structures ( LGMC 17. 24. 090) and restricts owners from exceeding specific limitations
on maintenance and/ or improvements. These provisions are meant to ensure that the

designated land use and zoning objectives can be realized and that the lifespan of the
improvements are not extended beyond a reasonable timeframe. The provisions have been

very difficult to apply and for property owners to accept. 

The following tables and exhibits describe each of the properties within the project area ( Table
2) as well as the properties to the east of the project area ( Table 3). The tables show that the

predominant use is residential use and the average residential density within the project area is
18 dwelling units per acre and the area outside is 36 dwelling units per acre. The 36 du/ acre

average is due in part because the structures were motels/ hotels and the conversion was

5_ 



Attachment A

approved as proposed. The current General Plan land use designation of this property is
Residential Medium/ High Density. 

The Planning Commission recommends that the Residential Medium/ High land use designation

be applied to the project site. A residential density of 29 dwelling units is consistent with existing
development along Broadway and service systems can support, or be made to support, the
additional residential units. With the proposed amendments, the single family residential units
would continue to be nonconforming to the land use and the zone, but would be consistent in
the broader land use of residential use. The five residential lots may eventually redevelop but
may require assembling the lots in order to meet the objectives and requirements of the
Residential Medium/ High zone. 

Existing Site Conditions Summary

Table 2 below provides a development summary of each property within the proposed project
area. The shaded cells represent nonconforming uses or structures. 

Table 2

Address
Existing

Existing
Existing Proposed

APN
Acres Land Use

Development
Density Density

Zone 29 du/ ac

8321- 23 Broadway Transportation
s- 

Lane 0. 15 General Commercial Duplex 13 du/ ac 4

499- 220- 27

8319 BroadwayLane 0. 16 Transportationp  SFRSFR 6 du6 du/ ac 4

499- 220- 26 General Commercial
m. ........—..-. ..-....,  ...... 

8313 Broadway Lane 0. 17
eeeee— ------ --- 

d-«. 

Transportation SFR 6 du/ ac 4

499- 220- 06 General Commercial

8307 Broadway Lane 0. 16 ansportationTransportation SFRSFR 6 du/ ac
ww_.., 

4

499- 220- 08 General Commercial

8309 Broadway Lane 0. 16 Transportation
000,...,. _...-....._.. 

SFR 6 du/ ac 4

499- 220- 09 General Commercial

Broadway Lane 0. 18

pw....
o.  

Transportation Pa"" Parking Res. 62 beds / ac 76

499- 220- 10 General Commercial Care/ Hospital

8351 Broadway 1. 92 Retail Commercial 165 Bed Res. 

499- 220- 35 General Commercial Care/ Hospital

Broadway 0. 53 Retail Commercial Parking Res. 
499- 220- 61 General

8361- 5 Broadway 0. 91

Commerc ial

Retail Commercial

Care/ Hospital _ 

28 Unit Condominiums 30 du/ ac 26

499- 220- 57 General Commercial

9- 8369 85 Broadway 2. 88 Retail Commercial I ai8 Auto. Repair Repair n/ a 83
4 - 220- 58 General

Com
Businesses L. 

TOTALS 7. 22

o, 

Nonconfor .. g

ne arel
199 units 18 units/ ac

n..........._ . 

205- 209

highlighted in grey. 34 du, 165 beds) average maximum

dwelling
units

H



Attachment A

Table 3 below provides a development summary of each property to the east of the proposed
project area: 

Table 3

Address
Existing

Existing Existing
APN

Acres Land Use
Development Density

Zone

8409 Broadway 0. 93 General Business Public Storage n/ a

499- 220- 60- 00 Limited Commercial

8413- 27 2. 77 Residential Medium/ High Density 82 Unit Apartment 29

Broadway Medium/ High Residential

499- 220-56- 00

8429 Broadway 1. 45 Residential Medium/ High Density 70 Unit Apartment 48

499- 220- 59- 00 Medium/ High Residential

8465 Broadway 0. 51 Residential Medium/ High Density Vacant/ Proposed 16 du 31

499- 220- 53- 00 Medium/ High Residential Density Bonus Project

Totals 5. 66

Residential 4.73 168 du 36 du/ ac

average

The Retail Commercial and Transportation land use designations would be replaced with

Medium/ High Residential Density land use designations in the project area. The existing
General Business and Medium/ High Residential Density land use designations would remain as
shown below. 

WFNTT.. 

Existing Land Use

7- 



Attachment A

The General Commercial zones shown below in the project area would be replaced with the
Residential Medium/ High ( RM/ H) zone. 

IResidentiai

IMedllum/ Higlh ( RIM/ 1H) 

General Commercial ( GC) 

oaf
Ul1JJ Limited Commercial ( LC) 

Heavy Commercial ( HC) 

County of San Diego

sR

sidential— Sinle RSS

9a e g

rr  

Existing Zoning
The Government Code requires that the zoning designation be consistent with the property' s
General Plan land use designation. 

The properties' close proximity to State Route 94 ( freeway noise prevalent in the area) requires
that future development consider noise attenuation in the structures to meet current Building
Code requirements. 

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the April 2, 2015 edition of the East County
Californian and the property owners of the subject properties and property owners within 300
feet of the properties were notified via US mail delivery of the Planning Commission meeting on
April 2, 2015 and of the City Council public hearing on April 14, 2015. 

A Native American Tribal Government Consultation was conducted pursuant to Government
Code Section 65352. 3. 

On April 27, 2015, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing. The Planning
Commission recommends that the City Council approve the proposed project. No formal public
comments were received. 

M



Attachment A

Conclusion: 

he Planning Commission recommends that the City Council: 1) conduct public hearing, 2) 
adopt the resolution ( Attachment B) certifying Negative Declaration ND15-01 and approving
General Plan Amendment GPA15- 0001, and 3) introduce Ordinance No. 427 approving Zoning
Amendment ZA15- 0001 ( Attachment C). 

0



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE (CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT GPA15- 0001 AMENDING THE GENERAL

PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM TRANSPORTATION AND RETAIL COMMERCIAL

TO RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM/ HIGH DENSITY FOR TEN PROPERTIES LOCATED ON THE

SOUTH SIDE OF BROADWAY AS SHOWN ON EXHIBIT A IN LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove conducted an environmental assessment for
Zoning Amendment ZA15-0001 and General Plan Amendment GPA15- 0001 on April 1, 2015, to
amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to

Residential Medium/ High for ten properties located on the south side of Broadway as shown on
Exhibit A and to amend the Zoning District from General Commercial to Medium/ High
Residential; and

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration ( ND) of Environmental Impact will be filed

subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project. The Initial

Environmental Study prepared for this project identified no potential environmental impacts. 
Mitigation measures are not included in the ND; and

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2015, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council certify
Negative Declaration ND15- 01 and approve General Plan Amendment GPA15- 0001; and

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2015, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the General Plan Amendment is in accordance
with Government Code Sections 65350 to 65359; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the General Plan Amendment is consistent with
the goals and the policies of the General Plan and Chapter 18. 40 ( General Plan Conformity) of
the Municipal Code; and ' I, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the (City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Certifies the adequacy of the Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact
ND15- 01; and

SECTION 2. Approves General Plan Amendment GPA15- 0001 amending the General
Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to Residential

Medium/ High Density for ten parcels as shown on Exhibit A. 

11- 



Attachment B

EXHIBIT A

PROPERTIES IN PROJECT SITE

1. 8321- 23 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 27

2. 8319 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 26
3. 8313 Broadway Lane APN: 499-220- 06

4. 8307 Broadway Lane APN: 499-220- 08
5. 8309 Broadway Lane APN: 499-220- 09

6. Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 10
7. 8351 Broadway APN: 499- 220- 35
8. Broadway APN: 499- 220- 61
9. 8361- 5 Broadway APN: 499- 220- 57
10. 8369- 85 Broadway APN: 499-220- 58

12- 



Attachment C

ORDINANCE NO. 427

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING ZONING AMENDMENT ZA15-0001 AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT FROM

GENERAL COMMERCIAL ( GC) TO MEDIUM/ HIGH RESIDENTIAL, LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA] 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove conducted an environmental assessment for
Zoning Amendment ZA15- 0001 and General Plan Amendment GPA15- 0001 on April 1, 2015, to
amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to

Residential Medium/ High for ten properties located on the south side of Broadway as shown on
Exhibit A and to amend the Zoning District from General Commercial to Medium/ High
Residential; and

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration ( ND) of Environmental Impact will be filed

subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project. The Initial

Environmental Study prepared for this project identified no potential environmental impacts. 
Mitigation measures are not included in the ND; and

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2015, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council certify
Negative Declaration ND14-01 and approve Zoning Amendment ZA15-0001; and

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2015, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, General Plan Amendment GPA15- 0001 was approved and Negative

Declaration ND15- 01 was certified; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following findings required to approve a
Zoning Amendment can be made in accordance with Section 17. 28. 080( B) of the Municipal
Code: 

1. That the proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan, in accordance

with Government Code Section 65860, as amended. 

The amendment will allow residential development in an area that is suited for more

intense residential development and is more compatible with the surrounding
development. 

2. That the public health, safety, and general welfare benefit from the adoption of the
proposed amendment. 

The amendment eliminates an existing land use conflict and provides for the ability to
develop residential land uses consistent with the existing predominant land uses in
the vicinity; and

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA DOES ORDAIN AS

FOLLOWS:; 

SECTION ONE: Approve Zoning Amendment ZA15- 0001 amending the Zoning District
from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) for those properties

identified in Exhibit A. 

13- 



Attachment C

EXHIBIT A

PROPERTIES IN PROJECT SITE

1. 8321- 23 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 27
2. 8319 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220-26
3. 8313 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 06

4. 8307 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 08
5. 8309 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 09

6. Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 10
7. 8351 Broadway APN: 499- 220- 35

8. Broadway APN: 499-220- 61

9. 8361- 5 Broadway APN: 499- 220- 57
10. 8369- 85 Broadway APN: 499- 220- 58

14- 



Attachment D

1. 

2. 

3. 

Project Title: General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0001 & Zoning Amendment ZA1- 
500- 0001 — East Broadway Rezone

Lead Agency Name and Address: 

Contact Person and Phone Number: 

City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

David De Vries, Principal Planner

619) 825- 3812

4. Project Location: Ten contiguous properties on the south side of Broadway
located at 8305- 8331 Broadway Lane and 8351- 8385 Broadway, Lemon Grove, CA 91945. 
Assessor' s Parcel Numbers: 499- 220- 06- 00, 499- 220- 08- 00, 499- 220- 09- 00, 499- 220- 10- 00, 

499- 220- 26- 00, 499- 220- 27- 00, 499- 220- 35- 00, 499- 220- 57- 00, and 499- 220- 58- 00

respectively. 

5. Project Sponsor' s Name and Address: City of Lemon Grove, 3232 Main St., 

Lemon Grove, CA 91945. Phone: ( 619) 825- 3805. 

6. General Plan Designation: The subject properties are designated as

Transportation and Retail Commercial in the Land Use Element of the General Plan. 

7. Zoning: The subject properties are located in the General Commercial zone. 

8. Description of the Project: The proposed project is a request to amend the

General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to

Medium/ High Density Residential ( up to 29 dwelling units per acre) and to amend the Zoning
District from General Commercial )( GC) to Residential Medium/ High for ten separate properties

located between and including 8305 Broadway and 8373 Broadway. The project area consists

of approximately 7. 2 developed acres. The existing development in the project area consists of
one duplex development and four single family residential properties, a residential care facility
with vehicle parking lots, condominium developments and an auto repair facility. 

9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: The site is located in a developed urban

commercial and residential area. The site is surrounded by transportation, commercial and
residential land uses. SR94, SR125 and Broadway are on the north and west sides of the
project area, a storage facility and multi -family dwellings on the east side of the project area and
single family residential development in the County of San Diego is on the south of the project
area. The project area contains ornamental vegetation and slopes gently downward from
Broadway to the southerly edge of the project . The existing development in the project area
consists of four single family residential properties, a residential care facility with vehicle parking
lots, condominium developments and an auto repair facility. 

15- 



Attachment D

10. Other public agencies whose approval is required ( e. g. permits, financing
approval, or participation agreement): None

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

X Ifind that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the
environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the
environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project
have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE
DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and
an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a " potential significant impact" or " potentially
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but a least one effect ( 1) has been

adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and ( 2) has
been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached
sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the
effects that remain to be addresses. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the
environment, because all potentially significant effects ( a) have been analyzed in and earlier
EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards and ( b) have been avoided
or mitigated to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation
measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

16- 



Attachment D

On file Aorll 1. 2015

Signature Date

David Cie Vrlo. P,rincia_1P lanner Cit f Lemon Grove
Printed Name For

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

1. A brief explanation is required for all answers except " No Impact' answers that are

adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses
following each question. A " No Impact' answer is adequately supported if the referenced
information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved
e. g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A " No Impact' answer should be explained

where it is based on the project -specific factors as well as general standards ( e. g. the project
will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project. 

2. All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as
on- site, cumulative as well as project level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as

operational impacts. 

3. Once the lead agency has determined that a particularly physical impact may occur, 
then the checklist answers must indicated whether the impact is potentially significant, less than
significant with mitigation, or less than significant. " Potentially Significant Impact' is appropriate
if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more

Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4. " Negative Declaration: Potentially Significant Unless Mitigation Incorporated" applies
where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from " Potentially
Significant Impact' to a " Less Significant Impact'. The lead agency musty describe the
mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant
level ( mitigation measures from Section 17, " Earlier Analysis", may be cross- referenced). 

5. Earlier analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR or other
CEQA process, and effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative
declaration. Section 15063 ( c) ( 3) ( d). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the
following: 

a) Earlier Analysis used. Identify and state where they are available for
review. 

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above
checklist were within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant
to applicable legal standards, and state whether such effect were addressed by

mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis. 

C) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are " Less than Significant with Mitigation

Measures Incorporated" describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or

refined from the earlier document and extent to which they address site-specific
conditions for the project. 

6. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to

information sources for potential impacts ( e. g. general plans, zoning ordinances, etc.). 

Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should where appropriate, include a
reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 

17- 



Attachment D

7. Supporting Information Sources: a source list should be attached and other sources
use d or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8. This is only a suggested form and lead agencies are free to use different formats: 
however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that relevant
to the project' s environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

9. The analysis of each issue should identify: ( a) the significance criteria or threshold

used to evaluate each question; and ( b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the
impact to less than significance. 

ISSUES AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. AESTHETICS. Would the Project: 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic? 
C) Substantially degrade the existing visual character
surroundings? 

but not limited to trees, rock

or quality of the site and its

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or
nighttime views in the area? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact

Discussion: 

The site is located in a developed urbanized area. The site is not located in or near a scenic
vista or scenic highway. The project area consists of single- family residences, multi -family
condominiums, a residential care facility, and auto repair land uses on developed sites with
ornamental landscape. No development is proposed as a part of this project and multi -family
residential land uses will be required to comply with performance standards related to noise, 
glare, traffic, vibrations, hazardous materials, airborne emissions, and liquid and solid wastes. 
Source: 1, 2, 3, 5

2. AGRICULTURE RESOURCES: In determining whether impacts to agricultural

resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California
Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model ( 1997) prepared by the California
Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture
and farmland. Would the project: 
a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of Statewide Importance
Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring

Program of the California Resources Agency to non- agricultural use? 
b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 
C) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or
nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non- agricultural use? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

I



Attachment D

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is located within a developed urban commercial area. The property is not located in
an area used for agricultural purposes and no such impacts will occur. 

Source: 1, 2

3. AIR QUALITY: Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable
air quality management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following
determinations. Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 
b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air
quality violation? 
C) Results in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which
the project region is non -attainment under any applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard ( including releasing emissions, which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone

precursors? 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is not expected to result in a future increase in traffic because the projected vehicle

trips for the existing land uses is approximately 737 trips less than the projected vehicle trips for
the subject area if built out at 29 dwelling units per acre. No significant impact on air resources

is likely to occur. The Master Environmental Impact Report ( MEIR) for the City of Lemon
Grove' s General Plan anticipates air quality impacts associated with the build out of Lemon
Grove but not to a level of significance. The cumulative air quality impacts will remain
significant and unmitigated. However, this project is not considered to result in a cumulatively

considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant. Standard conditions of future development
project approval will require the control of dust during site grading and construction. 
Source: 1, 2, 3, 5, 6

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect either directly or through habitat modifications on any
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, 

policies or regulations, or by the California Department of fish and Game or U. S. Fish and
Wildlife service? 

b) Have a substantially adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional plan, policies, regulations or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or U. S. Wildlife service? 

C) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act ( including but not limited to march vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 
d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident, migratory wildlife species or
with established native resident migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife
nursery sites? 

19- 



Attachment D

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a
tree preservation policy or ordinance? 
f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural

Conservation Community Plan and other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation
plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The MEIR for the City of Lemon Grove' s General Plan confirms there are no known sensitive
biological resources, riparian habitat, or wetlands within the project area. 
Source: 1, 2

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as
defined in Section 15064. 5? 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to Section 15064. 5? 

C) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique
geologic feature? 

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact
X No Impact

Discussion: 

No development activities are proposed as a part of this project. 
Source: 1, 2, 5

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project: 
a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk
of loss, injury or death involving: ( i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the

most recent Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the
area based on the other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and

Geology Special Publication 42. ( ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ( iii) Seismic - related

ground failure, including liquefaction? ( iv) Landslides? 
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 
C) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as

a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

d) Locate on the expansive soil, as defined in Table 18- 1- b of the Uniform Building Code
1997), creating substantial risks to life or property? 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative
waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water? 

Potentially significant Impact

20- 



Attachment D

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

No development activities are proposed as a part of this project. New structures will be required

to comply with the current seismic requirements of the California Building Code. Like most

urban areas in Southern California, Lemon Grove is subject to earthquakes. The project site is

not located in an Earthquake Fault Zone according to the Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault
Zoning Act and no active faults or ground ruptures have been mapped underlying the site or
within the City of Lemon Grove. Active regional faults may cause ground shaking in Lemon
Grove. Typical erosion control measures will be required during site grading. 
Source: 1, 2, 5

7. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine

transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials? 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous materials
into the environment? 

C) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 
d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites complied

pursuant to Government Code Section 65962. 5 and , as a result would it create a significant

hazard to the public or the environment? 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan, or where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a

safety hazard for people residing or working in the area? 
f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip would the project result in a safety
hazard for people resident or working in the project area? 
g) Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response
plan or emergency evacuation plan? 
h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving
wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas, or where residences
are intermixed with wildlands? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project and future multi -family residential land
uses will be required to comply with performance standards related to noise, glare, traffic, 
vibrations, hazardous materials, airborne emissions, and liquid and solid wastes. Future

development of any site will implement recommendation is a Phase 1 or 2 environmental

assessment. 

The subject property is not located within the Influence Area of a private airstrip or public airport. 

The project is located within an urbanized area and there are no wildlands located within the

vicinity of the subject property. 

21- 



Attachment D

Source: 1, 2, 5, 7

8. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project: 
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 
b) Substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater
recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the
groundwater table level (( e. g. the production rate of pre- existing nearby wells would drop to a
level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have been
granted)? 

C) Substantially alter existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would resulting a substantial
erosion or siltation on- or off- site? 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through
the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate of surface
runoff in a manner which would resulting flooding on- or off- site. 
e) Create or contribute runoff which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned
stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 
f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 
g) Place housing within a 100 -year floodplain on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or
Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 
h) Place within a 100 -year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect
flood flows? 

i) Expose people or structures to significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 
D Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project and future multi -family residential land
uses will be required to comply with performance standards related to noise, glare, traffic, 
vibrations, hazardous materials, airborne emissions, and liquid and solid wastes. 

Future project are required to comply with the Regional Water Quality Board regulations and
requirements. 

This project is not located in a flood plain or zone and is not subject to flooding, 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5

9. LAND USE PLANNING. Would the project: 
a) Physically divide an established community? 
b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agency with jurisdiction
over the project ( including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal

program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating environmental
effect? 

C) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural communities' 
conservation plan? 

22,. 



Attachment D

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project will not divide the community. This amendment is expected to address existing land
use conflicts created as a result of the SR125, historical uses, City and County of San Diego
zoning. The project also meets current General Plan programs by addressing some of the
remaining transportation land uses on properties identified by Caltrans for SR125 and not
utilized for that purpose. The majority of properties on the south side of Broadway east of
Sweetwater Road and to the City boundary are developed as multi -family residential land uses
and this project is compatible with those existing uses. 
The FAA Notice Criteria Tool has identified the project area in proximity to a navigation facility
and in accordance with CFT Title 14 Part 77. 9, development specifics must be filed with the

FAA prior to construction. 

Source: 1, 2, 5, 8

10. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to
the region and the residents of the state? 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally -important mineral resource recovery site
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

There are no known mineral resources of value located within the City of Lemon Grove, 
Source: 1, 2, 5

11. NOISE. Would the project: 

a) Expose persons to or generate noise levels in excess of standards established in the

local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

b) Expose persons to or generate excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne

noise levels? 

C) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity
above levels existing without the project? 
d) Result in a substantially temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the
project vicinity above levels existing without the project? 
e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public use airport, would the project expose people residing or
working in the area to excessive noise levels? 
f) For a project within vicinity of a private airstrip would the project expose people
residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

go



Attachment D

No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project. The proposed project will not introduce

significant noise sources in the vicinity that are inconsistent with the surrounding area. The

surrounding land uses include single- family residences to the south in the County of San Diego, 
the SR -125 freeway overpass to the west, the SR -94 freeway to the north, and a public storage
facility, multi -family residences, and single-family residences in the County of San Diego to the
east. This amendment will address conflicts between existing residential and heavy commercial
land uses. 

The SR -94 and SR -125 are noise sources within close proximity of the project. Figure N- 2 in

the 1996 General Plan indicates that the project area is located within an area encompassing 75
db CNEL noise levels or less. The MEIR for the General Plan states that residential uses with

existing noise levels below 75 db CNEL is normally unacceptable and a detailed analysis of the
noise reduction requirements must be made and the needed noise insulation features included
in the design. New development within the project area will require a noise study for a specific
project and measures will be implemented according to the project specific study to reduce
potential noise impacts to below a level of significance and in conformance with the California
Building Code. 

The subject property is not located within the Influence Area of a private airstrip or public airport
as it relates to noise . 

Source: 1, 2, 7

12. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project: 
a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly ( for example, by
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly ( for example, through extension of roads or
other infrastructure)? 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing units, necessitating the construction
of replacement housing units elsewhere? 
C) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project will not induce substantial population growth. Apprpoximately 155 additional
dwelling units may result from the project. The project does not displace existing housing units
or numbers of people. 

Source: 1, 2, 5

13. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts

associated with the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for new or
physically altered government facilities, the construction which could cause significant

environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other
performance objectives for any of the public services: 
a) Fire protection? 

24- 



Attachment D

b) Police protection? 

C) Schools? 

d) Parks? 

e) Other public facilities? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project. Approximately 155 additional dwelling
units may result from the project. The proposed project will result in minor increase in the

demand for public services and facilities. 

Source: 1, 2, 5

14. RECREATION. Would the project: 

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood or regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be
accelerated? 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion

of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project. Up to 155 additional dwelling units may
result from the project. The proposed project will cause a minor increase in the demand on

recreational services in the community. 
Source: 1, 2, 5

15. TRANSPORTATION/ TRAFFIC. Would the project: 

a) Cause an increase in the traffic which is substantial in relation to the existing traffic

load and capacity of the street system ( i. e., resulting a substantial increase in either the number
of vehicle trips, the volume to capacity ratio on roads, or congestion at intersections? 
b) Exceed, either individually or cumulatively, a level of service standard established by
the County Congestion Management Agency for designated roads or highways? 
C) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or
a change in location that result in substantial safety risks? 
d) Substantially increase hazards to a design feature ( e. g. sharp curves or dangerous
intersection) or incompatible uses ( e.g. farm equipment)? 
e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 
f) Result in inadequate parking capacity? 
g) Conflict with adopted policies or programs supporting alternative transportation ( e.g. 
bus turnouts, bicycle racks)? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

25- 



Attachment D

X Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project. The project is not expected to result in a

future increase in traffic because the projected vehicle trips for the existing land uses is
approximately 737 trips more than the projected vehicle trips for the subject area if built out at
29 dwelling units per acre. No significant impact on existing traffic loads and capacities is likely
to occur. East Broadway would operate at a Level of Service ( LOS) D or higher at 33, 400
average daily trips ( ADT). The SANDAG 2050 Forecast estimates 30, 600 daily trips for this
section of Broadway and the proposed traffic would be below the acceptable LOS D standard. 

Development within the area is required to file an application to the FAA for a determination
regarding impacts to the navigation aids in the area. 
Source: 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8

16. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project: 
a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality
Control Board? 

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental
effects? 

C) Require or result in the construction of new storm drainage facilities or expansion of
existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects? 
d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements
and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment facilities which services or may
serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project' s projected demand in
addition to the provider' s existing commitments? 
f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project' s
solid waste disposal needs? 

g) Comply with the federal, state, and local statues and regulations related to solid waste? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project. Approximately 155 additional dwelling
units may result from the project. The proposed projects will increase the demand for utilities
and service systems, but can be made to meet those demands with facilities that do not cause
significant environmental effect. 

Source: 1, 2, 5

17. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. 
a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to

drop below self- sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the
number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important

examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory? 

KIM



Attachment D

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project and future residential land uses will be

required to comply with performance standards related to noise, glare, traffic, vibrations, 

hazardous materials, airborne emissions, and liquid and solid wastes. 

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively
considerable? ( Cumulatively Considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of the past projects, the effects of other

current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

k— No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project and future residential land uses will be

required to comply with performance standards related to noise, glare, traffic, vibrations, 

hazardous materials, airborne emissions, and liquid and solid wastes. The project will not result

in impacts that are cumulatively considerable. 

C) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse

effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

No development is proposed as a part of this project and future residential land uses will be

required to comply with performance standards related to noise, glare, traffic, vibrations, 

hazardous materials, airborne emissions, and liquid and solid wastes. The proposed project

will not cause a substantial adverse effect on human beings. 

Source: 1, 2, 3, 5

In view of the above analysis, it is determined that the project will not have a significant

impact on the environment and an environmental impact report is not required. 

EARLIER ANALYSIS

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, 
one or more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. 
Section 15063 ( c)(3)( D). 

27- 



Attachment D

Earlier Documents prepared and utilized in this analysis are listed below. All of the documents

are available at the City of Lemon Grove, Development Services Department, 3232 Main Street, 
Lemon Grove. 

Reference # Document Title

1. City of Lemon Grove General Plan
2. Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General Plan
3. City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code
4. Firm Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 06073C1910G May 16, 2012
5. GPA- 150- 0001/ ZA1- 500- 0001 Application Packet
6. Brief Guide of Vehicular Traffic Generation Rates for the San Diego Region, 

SANDAG; April 2002

7. Montgomery Field Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan, May 2009
8. FAA Notice Criteria Tool

Individuals and OLqipeknizqtio, ns, Consulted

Carol Dick, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove
Tamara O' Neal, Associate Engineer, City of Lemon Grove
Chris Jensen, Deputy Fire Marshal, Heartland Fire & Rescue

28- 



Attachment E

D- I' ull!' 

29- 

II

haul uK I ' 2 CiAk" Il"" IM'' IlllkilIIIII
I

I AND COOTINWINNNUM

1
l

SII
1 

Ilu I IIVu IIk III' 

4 m

lll 

a, 

Rm l wwwwwwwww  

I I Iu  '' " 4" Aww" mmcm IW he Omsauull ° II, 

Iulamam Nwm la' alllWmlllI sa'" '"' 
pry"', 

u' A m' a' m,. 11W II' I' m m uVWl, alu"mmW' II' I iIm ' I' I; WW' open

llmlll1m' 1W' bili N hu I'MiNIIm' W'aMOM and 011140* 

wl N Mill COMOVIIIVIIIII' „ Illh mlWxfou mdIn

mem llim' m

maYlwmwraww
wsawau rwx ii A:' wX 6 mtt+N.i#! w rv; W: o u - ww btiwwwwmwmwmwmwuiwmawx wwur r. .... P n uu w. mm Rn

I a wAlAsemWluml 7 Di''Wagre 6. 25 Ob " 4C' 61hollm i'a " wma. ryjoc,Ws uq* jji qlu,,Ngj a kgus , h

Damrsity Wlea m" fir was A" Ov, 4s" chustows, r uW,, amllllllm u, A lan

Mlu a uW m' W l mW , maaYalum'> pkMv mmWkm! ml, w hoer tauamliiinsWMWmes vvI achms

a m'ameh we conloaftisOthl Ow morcoundirito

14 1III"n l' I1iftot" Anka Ijiiiirj baa"uwWI OClsePtel, IIIIhmo" iuding duo&engils and
awWqurn maaWmuWluuWaw, ml Onwited° u" me m^u' W a W WW ivri

aWg"WtirrvlWul uW „ Iff' r"M u"mils Wilakd a oses44"OO & 

O" stoory dmiOirn air" W WI m m^amam` d iss, edirjWf uaWlum ma r); MT' m
W aPawb, ae PA'Aft ff",rbWmr ilbIIW I @ uHM I s Iia miNtsllAl nm § 

aft,04 as c4iiiiinquitbis a ds f.tilllWW slluirww~ swOI ig
aWnW"m amW^ulm l.. 

w

I m^ IIS° Iw. ° mil1 29 DUsime24. 5 ° III ' m romtos, W amwn mAus, ooamdorrinhu m uvl

Wmmmu'W m1 111! I1111116" I' s Tr' m m̂tl° mlliWam uses OWaW l uoos stoch vu's
1111111sadentW' 4Mlicessovy heyviAng toft, `„ ch"If'mml idmW dkamv ife", arml

soil mm , Ptsb6c,° f " Ili ., ?" ets"Wo buommilisuiseand Dees

0 umc„h amt urnowdbis luov ' gym the umWw> tx%divau

MilIIl' mllm m' m m wlwl' mmm 04, 

1I61I : uWI' u ' Uis

w o o„   

1I f jsw' " a°wwm  m W ; a

i

W kr m” r wm  MIlllumIUM, C ° muu um" W Wild m Wwmm^ mrlflrom mflWllt„ 
Nm 2 ' 1 1, 251 W  it Wiled Offitm l" Oses N04" 1007, Old, airis bt " IIW g, Ot

In
mw, rililullu, Withl â tike Witarg, mmf fresting 404olly PQd4lITIW- 
orim4iild m leigi a' mWW lr m e voififnr suAtiong, Piallimi

a4neftelso smmm

uu
Wryh I" vu" Imnu Illlllu m rrwax" of 4 m iImImIUVW" occur wi

Wpa
W! III

ros tuldo m lli0aws mak m a uml on 11m, sam level
on.. 

aw., ww w .« 

Astall cW'mw°" mmom me m1,, Oi

m.....- w wv w,. a: . ro, I ar ."," n . m rm moo. .,, 

I FAR 0 I FAA 11148UM comsdans piavWlin 0 Ivaad rove of mgids mid , 

1 sorlimas, cam,vtq to DomIOW i W mW Y' " nIIWWIi

ImWll

mm
m'

I NIll mamW' vs A1415a

wmm
W. ...... «. rwenmrrv. xrwrwxzio rxxwuw

m m W' WW amWWm lni' m
d

u uu min
000w I w ,. aw r. ura ' wow. mr:' a. uwrno s.. ootintin

IIIIIIIII, uu

III
M' µ' 

4 wx+ iva w. 00000uouo 000u ornwv.. 

grow
w IIII Iryu' u IIII ryI ryryy III SII,, ,W' W, y Ip m Ni f IOJ mµ' Ml w ! W MI 1̂' Y' y'" ' M III""' l "'

S
BIIIIIII IM M' i :amV' mP (faW1

P ",

14y/,R' w, y W i I "0 mW" ulVl''w' smr, a wM' uM' WRvkflm'

klhµV m;
m

IIIA i comm lh III I 111 m1W' m m' W ' W I

ll

m mau" Jlm"

mm IIIII molw, yW Ilium lm a m° Ilpllli % 

pll 
m o. flwwwmw wyw w w w+ m. s s s rxx

nnnnn;. 
0 rvrv::: o. r. , nmmmmno o uo, mm w' amm rmm mmrvr;«, aa« xwxmr, R,w, w eeeee¢ vU. urwv ei... r vo rv rvo., 4GJuoum u nW MM4tlq:'. ns w.+... 

mom D- I'

ull!' 



Attachment E

7MwdMAM Emiamed
ri! Laud Use DoweiCOMM" ftwelopmem

C.Millillillimillilliilliiilliiw 111w 1ftt Am Nr Nu Aca L1111111111111W Use CM@gwV C119@CfqM* M
OL 1kc.1 Ice

7
0, 71 FAR 0, 911; I FAA Minure of

iiiiiind OfAIN ftwut 111weeii, 11" w4wiftus frattwime old
adw,iiiiiii & wt mIght be atterw1re lo m" mm ing athar

Inesso. 

A Ito 1: 111VOOMI' lowal 1 0 19 I''''' w' (), 4 1 FAR, ON.Vir, m, Aself and fiardem fihclftimsw:,h &I
gnAWt, U01104112", Apom, 

c0ftca' Oft"Mries, rkil awrild kew

pqrkmAggrgaut), O. S I FAR 0 1 A FAR Cryfrinturfty
Iw

OVA Wo 1AAA Str Mms 19' enway " trolivy Ouff * Awl land U1149daigile, 

hu f&c111W,, ' poOK- iond o idn' Omw and asswuftd

If 1111 ahwans peNts * wtiopmwit

1111ROM" in 11118 491W- 64,,wey M" Ov SM -1 26 twerwav Is
constnxted'' " devskx"' AMI Must Canhwen t o

1010twO9 dwagnatmM issit mnd imt a? SR, 12S - 
Aet* f CmirnivieraW, wo wum of to, ei* wway
Cw" VwgSw mSnews d" ginvan as tho

icftwwmwirm CW Adlibeent aileamum

01 MassacKpiatts s4adiii!iiin

IV Vftstarn Ceinlysi Avenue n4awkwool
NIP' F* d* F# i 60uhiiiiiiiiveirl Ai64Lwvw( Ibft Sg4m ij) tiiiiut

V1 Coniiii! rW Lamn ( kove Avexis
V's Tf Oy S4100,0W 125 Plarm" Area
M Cutmon Conrao Avirs6o Residwidal

W 1111 iiie ifenwtv of poiskeinjW &* dk43MM is 4empnewd tiii i duding unns jiw Am* Okkibarwi, The intelOgiat' m n? nogy, 
riniewwwobw 4ftVOOP" W" T if 09000610d jig 16OF M% G p1hM OrAP" i . Vishich is 1he fe" a me butorg 111% pcw W" to the land
AHW

1W Diiie tiiwz=" utn dow-wopwt" jVWOOSmA The g" Olegf IVmwlm* 4 ud & ttsing, rani thak gwv rurw an MtChftt* AO pwrdft of
waved

Ttiorrwabiwow" awmiyi, W" I'M & 0 11100MOMPAW 14041W4H w' mw Iwlwwul50aftil fat Orqw7te JwVwidMV Wifordswit hLwang'. 
6% AKOOPdance swith mwe olwegisky vininn pnPutowww ne olmf $ 4400" 65010 of 0% C0114048 GO4wwM4" qVw1 Code, 
ThOOV40" Id davakn" Mmt I'Mobteta the flat * 104 ' I' d ds%NWPwvw vokk* It" u~ r* d ivii 40* han mat v*& J" 4 The
Iftn" W" iftwed Akn** V « gym^ Woold%', MrMd ruw1a dowwagongot is $" a 4" witod ;* be 6940 dOMMAr4od" O Ow dis

iummmted s' MLnRwmm,, Tho ampsawd devakwmang pMVWOM M MWO ? 0" W PRINVO 116 INAM OOWOOP74PR * NMn

thm kwd us* W890118S. md a 11walwo wasd to piqwn jDapidabon, iiiiiind ujmWMjj dgiiiji, 
www wmuwwmwwww04 wNfq Ongus, Vowan 1" MiapgRub"' I gighe"" sy, " WOMPO 014POOMM MAth Cdorm", 

x^ dwwWGpVMN" 

wig be 9~ to Cdwiiiiiiijims town f@4pjfwMi41a, ind ohm b* Lmnewista i" th diiis % amwiii dwvs Gensiral Pson. 

CID1111120

30- 



Attachment F

17. 16. 040 Residential medium/ high density ( RMH) zone. 
A. Purpose. The residential medium/ high density zone is intended to provide for more

compact multifamily housing development, such as garden apartments. 
B. Uses Permitted. In the RM/ H zone, the following uses are permitted, subject to the

development standards in this section and elsewhere in this title as specified: 

1. Day care and residential care facilities for six or fewer persons. 
2. Parks and playgrounds. 

3. Accessory rental dwelling units in compliance with Section 17. 24. 060( C)( 13)( a through
i). 

C. Uses Requiring Use Permit. 
1. The following uses are permitted subject to the approval of a conditional use permit

according to the provisions of Section 17. 28. 050: 
a. Duplex dwellings. 

b. Public service and utility structures and facilities. 
c. Churches and schools. 

d. Boarding or lodging houses. 
e. Day care and residential care facilities, except large family day care, for seven or more

persons. 

f. Senior citizen housing. 
g. Multifamily dwellings consistent with the following implementation program set forth in

the general plan implementation manual: community development programs No. 14, 23, 34, and
35; safety program No. 23; noise programs No. 1, 2, and 4; conservation and recreation
programs No. 15, 18, 22, 28, 31, and 41. 

2. The following uses are permitted subject to the approval of a minor use permit
according to the provisions of Section 17. 28. 052: 

a. Expansion of nonconforming single- family dwellings used for residential purposes
where lot coverage is increased by more than twenty percent. 

D. Development Standards. The following property development standards shall apply to
all land and structures in the RM/ H zone. Furthermore, all development must obtain a planned

development permit as prescribed in Section 17. 28. 030. 

1. Minimum Site Area. Six thousand square feet, subject to a minimum one thousand five

hundred square feet per dwelling unit, for residential purposes; ten thousand square feet for
churches and other uses. 

2. Minimum Density. No residential development shall be permitted which contains an
overall density of less than one unit per three thousand square feet. 

3. Minimum Lot Width and Depth. Sixty feet for width; ninety feet for depth. 
4. Minimum Yards ( as prescribed in Section 17. 24.030). 

a. Front: Twenty- five feet. 
b. Side: Five feet. 

c. Rear: Twenty feet. 
5. Maximum Building Height ( as prescribed in Section 17. 24. 040). 
a. Main Buildings: Forty- five feet. 
b. Accessory Structures: Fifteen feet. 
6. Minimum Usable Open Space ( as prescribed in Section 17. 24.070). Five hundred

square feet for each dwelling unit. 
7. Off -Street Parking ( as prescribed in Section 17. 24. 010) 
a. Resident: Two spaces per dwelling unit. 
b. Guest: One space per four dwelling units. 

31- 



Attachment F

E. Additional Zoning Provisions. All uses shall be subject to the applicable regulations of
this development code, as specified in this section or prescribed elsewhere. Additional

development standards relating to this zone are located in the following sections: 
1. Landscaping, Section 17. 24. 050. 
2. Fencing, Section 17. 24.050. 
3. Home occupations, Chapter 18. 20. 

4. Accessory uses, Section 17. 24.060. 
5. Temporary uses, Section 17. 28. 040. 
6. Signs: Chapter 18. 12. 
7. Animal keeping, Chapter 18. 16. 
8. Nonconforming use/ lot, Section 17. 24. 090. 
F. Properties located within special treatment area I ( STA 1) are subject to the

requirements of the city of Lemon Grove downtown village specific plan. ( Ord. 349 § 2 ( part), 

2005) j

32- 



LEMON GROVE (CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 5

Mtg. Dater 5 2015
Dept. City Maria fr's jqe

Item Title: ; Draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 General Fund and General Reserve Fund Budgets

Staff Contact: Cathy Till, Finance Director & Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Recommendation: 

Consider and provide feedback regarding the draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 budgets for the
General Fund and General Reserve Fund. 

Item Summary: 

Staff has prepared draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 ( FY 2015- 16) budgets for the General Fund and

the General Reserve Fund ( Attachment B) that reflect the direction provided by the City Council
at various meetings and workshops held throughout the year. The draft budgets include updated

revenue and expenditure projections for FY 2014- 15 and reflect revenue projections and an

expenditure plan for FY 2015- 16. 

Staff seeks feedback regarding the proposed budgets in preparation for the final FY 2015- 16
budget that will be presented for consideration at the June

2nd

City Council meeting. Staff

anticipates providing draft budgets for the other 22 funds managed by the City at the May
19th

City
Council meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

i, Negative Declaration

I Mitigated Negative Declaration

E) Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

A. Staff Report

B. Draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 General Fund and General Reserve Fund Budgets



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE : CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 5. 

Mtg. Date av5, 2015, 

Item Title: : Draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 General Fund and General Reserve Fund

Budgets

Staff Contact: Cathy Till, Finance Director & Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Discussion: 

IS has prepared draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 ( FY 2015- 16) budgets for the General Fund and

the General Reserve Fund ( Attachment B) that reflect the direction provided by the City
Council at various meetings and workshops held throughout the year. 

Staff has updated the FY 2014- 15 mid -year budgets with revised revenue and expenditure

projections. Staff also presents draft FY 2015- 16 budgets that reflect revenue and expenditure

projections based on year-to-date trends. 

Staff seeks feedback regarding the proposed budgets so that they may be presented for
adoption at the June 2nd City Council meeting. 

This staff report includes the following sections: 
Budget Overview ( General Fund), 

Historic Revenue and Expenditure Trends, 

FY 2014- 15 General Fund Budget, 

Proposed FY 2015- 16 General Fund Budget, 

General Reserve Fund ( Fund 6), and

Analysis of the City' s Overall General Reserves. 

Budget Overview (General Fund) 

For FY 2014- 15, staff anticipates that the City will generate $ 12. 1 million in combined revenue

and interfund transfers and will expend $ 11. 3 million— generating a surplus of approximately

737, 200, which is significantly more than the surplus projected in the FY 2014- 15 mid -year
budget ($ 358,600). 

The budget anticipates revenues to be 2 percent more in FY 2015- 16 than FY 2014- 15, an

increase of approximately $ 242, 600. The proposed budget also shows an increase in the

expenditure plan of $467, 700 over FY 2014- 15. 

The presented draft budget results in a surplus of $ 512, 100 in FY 2015- 16, growing the General
Fund balance from $ 2,394, 700 to $ 2, 906, 800. 

3 



Attachment A

Historic Revenue & Expenditure Trends

As the City continues it steady recovery from the recession, staff felt it important to provide
historical perspective, which can serve as a reminder of the highs and lows the City experienced
over the past decade. Staff presents a chart illustrating revenue and expenses from FY 2005- 
06 through the draft FY 2015- 16 budget (these figures are not adjusted for inflation). 

14, 000, 000

12, 000, 000

10, 000, 000

Revenues Versus Expenditures

n T T T T T T T T T T

O O O O O

Ir T V 0O 10 O N N W $ Ul

OO O O
01 V O l0

Revenue Expenditure

Of the major revenue sources, sales tax revenue has experienced the most fluctuation over the
past ten years. In FY 2015- 16, staff projects that the City will collect $ 5. 40 million in sales tax. 
That is approximately $ 715, 000 more than the high of $ 4.68 million that the City collected in FY
2006- 07. It should be noted that approximately $ 200, 000 of this is a one- time true up payment
due to the wind down of the " Triple Flip" program. Property tax has been steadily increasing
since the low of $ 1. 82 million in FY 2010- 11, and is projected to be $ 2.23 million in FY 2015- 16. 
Vehicle license fees have also increased at an average rate of 1 percent since FY 2005- 06. 

In FY 2015- 16, overall General Fund revenues are projected to be $ 11. 8 million dollars, which is

an all- time high for the City, exceeding pre -recession revenues by approximately $ 281, 200. 

FY 2014- 15 General Fund Budget

Staff, in preparation for the FY 2015- 16 budget, updated projections for General Fund revenue
and expenditure from the FY 2014- 15 mid -year budget. This section provides a review of the

updated revenue and expenditure projections and an explanation of significant variances. 

FY 2014- 15 Revenue

General Fund revenue is anticipated to increase from the mid -year budget of $ 11. 6 million to
12. 1 million. This is an increase of approximately $ 423, 900. The primary reasons for the

increase are sales tax (+$ 376, 000) and development fees (+$ 108, 000), partially offset by a
decrease in property tax (-$ 92, 300) due to a higher deliquency factor than was used in the mid- 
year budget. Other smaller variances, both positive and negative, make up the difference
between the mid -year budget and the anticipated budget. 

4- 



Attachment A

FY 2014- 15 Expenditures

Expenditures are projected to increase by $ 45, 300, primarily due to increased costs in fire and
development services. These increases are partially offset by decreases in public works

51, 500) as well as other, less material, variances in the other departments. 

The net result is an anticipated $ 737, 200 surplus in FY 2014- 15, resulting in an anticipated
year- end fund balance of approximately $ 2. 4 million. 

Proposed FY 2015- 16 General Fund Budget

The strengthening economy and conservative budgeting approach are leading the City out of its
fiscal challenges of the recession. Staff believes that the proposed FY 2015- 16 budget

continues to reflect cost containment, but at the same time remains aware that factors such as
unexpected repairs or capital costs, along with price fluctuations ( e. g. the price of fuel) can
occur. This section of the staff report presents a detail of staff' s forecast of revenue, a proposed

expenditure plan, and a resulting General Fund surplus. 

FY 2015- 16 Revenue

Revenue is expected to increase by $ 264, 400 in FY 2015- 16 over anticipated FY 2014- 15

revenue. Sales tax is projected to grow by $ 324, 000, or 6. 4 percent, due to a one- time payment
of approximately $ 200, 000 ( due to the scheduled termination of the " Triple Flip" program) as
well as continued strong sales in the auto and construction sectors. One of staff' s concerns for

the future, given the City' s reliance on these two predominant sources of revenue, is the
potential that at least one of these sectors will flatten out or even decrease. It is already

projected that sales tax will decrease approximately $ 200, 000 in FY 2016- 17 due to the end of
the " Triple Flip" program. Property tax is projected to grow at a rate of 4. 2 percent, or $ 89, 900, 
in FY 2015- 16. Development fees are expected to decrease by $ 145, 000, but this could change
depending on building activity in FY 2015- 16. Other revenue sources reflect small variances

between FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16. 

The following table provides a summary of the major revenue sources that make up the General
Fund. The table includes actual figures from FY 2012- 13 and FY 2013- 14, as well as the

FY 13- 14 FY 14- 15 FY 14- 15

Department Actual Mid -Year Anticipated Variance

City Council .................

m

130, 200 67, 600 67, 600 0

City Manager 525, 400 219, 000 217, 900 1, 100) 

City Attorney 112, 600 151, 500 140, 700 10, 800) 

Finance 400, 700 189, 800 191, 800 2, 000

Law Enforcement 4, 801, 100 4, 944, 000 4,944, 000 0

Animal Control 202, 100 201, 100 208, 800 7, 700

Fire 3,623, 700 3, 863, 200 3,885, 800 22, 600

Development Services 1, 304, 900 571, 600 648, 000 76, 400

Public Works 1, 870, 800 1, 068, 700 1, 017, 200 51, 500) 

Total 12, 971, 500 11, 276, 500 11, 321, 800 45, 300

The net result is an anticipated $ 737, 200 surplus in FY 2014- 15, resulting in an anticipated
year- end fund balance of approximately $ 2. 4 million. 

Proposed FY 2015- 16 General Fund Budget

The strengthening economy and conservative budgeting approach are leading the City out of its
fiscal challenges of the recession. Staff believes that the proposed FY 2015- 16 budget

continues to reflect cost containment, but at the same time remains aware that factors such as
unexpected repairs or capital costs, along with price fluctuations ( e. g. the price of fuel) can

occur. This section of the staff report presents a detail of staff' s forecast of revenue, a proposed

expenditure plan, and a resulting General Fund surplus. 

FY 2015- 16 Revenue

Revenue is expected to increase by $ 264, 400 in FY 2015- 16 over anticipated FY 2014- 15

revenue. Sales tax is projected to grow by $ 324, 000, or 6. 4 percent, due to a one- time payment
of approximately $ 200, 000 ( due to the scheduled termination of the " Triple Flip" program) as

well as continued strong sales in the auto and construction sectors. One of staff' s concerns for

the future, given the City' s reliance on these two predominant sources of revenue, is the
potential that at least one of these sectors will flatten out or even decrease. It is already

projected that sales tax will decrease approximately $ 200, 000 in FY 2016- 17 due to the end of
the " Triple Flip" program. Property tax is projected to grow at a rate of 4. 2 percent, or $ 89, 900, 

in FY 2015- 16. Development fees are expected to decrease by $ 145, 000, but this could change
depending on building activity in FY 2015- 16. Other revenue sources reflect small variances

between FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16. 

The following table provides a summary of the major revenue sources that make up the General
Fund. The table includes actual figures from FY 2012- 13 and FY 2013- 14, as well as the



Attachment A

projected revenue for FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16. Finally, the table includes a column that
shows the percent increase/decrease in revenue between FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16. 

Transfers from other funds to the General Fund are projected to decrease by $ 25, 400 in FY

2015- 16, mainly due to decreasing gas tax revenues. 

FY 2015- 16 Expenditures

The proposed budget shows an increase in the expenditure plan of $ 467, 700. Staff costs
increased by $ 131, 300 due to the two new positions created in FY 2014- 15 and step increases. 
Services and supplies increased $ 209, 400, which is due primarily to increases in the City
Manager, Fire and Public Works departments. 

In addition, contractual obligations increased $ 94, 200 primarily driven by an increase in the
Sheriffs Department' s contract. Although personnel costs were distributed among affected
funds, staff felt it important to present a table to the City Council that details total personnel
costs for comparison purposes. 

Descri tip _ ___......... Y 2015 16 .. Difference .. . _. on FY 2014- 15 F...  Change
sal $

4, 684, 700 $ 4, 937, 400 252, 700 5. 4/° laries o  

PERS 974, 600 994, 200 19, 600 2. 0% 

Other Benefits 974, 700 975, 200 500 0. 1% 

Total Personnel Costs $ 6, 634, 000 $ 6, 906, 800 $ 272, 800 4. 1% 

The following table shows the proposed expenditures for each City department. It includes

actual figures from FY 2012- 13 and FY 2013- 14, as well as the projected expenditures for FY

0

Change

from FY
FY 12- 13 FY 13- 14 FY 14- 15 FY 15- 16 14- 15 to

Description Actual Actual Anticipated Budget FY 15- 16

Sales Tax 3,897, 100 4, 294, 800 5, 076, 000 5, 400, 000

mm

6. 4% 

Property Tax 2, 035, 700 2, 064, 200 2, 135, 000 2, 224, 900 4. 2% 

VLF 1, 886, 800 1, 940, 700 2, 024, 500 2, 074, 500 2. 5% 

Franchise Fees 889, 300 923, 600 932, 000 932, 000

Rents & Leases 325, 800 330, 900 236, 000 224, 000 5. 1% 

Fire Department Fees 271, 000 254, 800 270, 600 265, 600 1. 8% 

Development Fees 300, 000 312, 700 368, 000 223, 000 30. 4% 

Licenses 110, 200 109, 000 104, 000 105, 000 1. 0% 

Recreation Fees 108, 000 100, 300 98, 700 96, 700 2. 0% 

Traffic Fines 103, 400 120, 700 140, 000 137, 000 2. 1% 

Other 162, 800 120, 500 102, 500 69, 000 32. 7% 

Total 10, 090, 100 10, 572, 20.,,. 0 11, 487, 300 11, 751, 700 2. 3% 

Transfers from other funds to the General Fund are projected to decrease by $ 25, 400 in FY

2015- 16, mainly due to decreasing gas tax revenues. 

FY 2015- 16 Expenditures

The proposed budget shows an increase in the expenditure plan of $ 467, 700. Staff costs
increased by $ 131, 300 due to the two new positions created in FY 2014- 15 and step increases. 

Services and supplies increased $ 209, 400, which is due primarily to increases in the City
Manager, Fire and Public Works departments. 

In addition, contractual obligations increased $ 94, 200 primarily driven by an increase in the
Sheriffs Department' s contract. Although personnel costs were distributed among affected

funds, staff felt it important to present a table to the City Council that details total personnel
costs for comparison purposes. 

Descri tip _ ___......... Y 2015 16 .. Difference .. . _. on FY 2014- 15 F...  Change
sal $

4, 684, 700 $ 4, 937, 400 252, 700 5. 4/° laries o  

PERS 974, 600 994, 200 19, 600 2. 0% 

Other Benefits 974, 700 975, 200 500 0. 1% 

Total Personnel Costs $ 6, 634, 000 $ 6, 906, 800 $ 272, 800 4. 1% 

The following table shows the proposed expenditures for each City department. It includes

actual figures from FY 2012- 13 and FY 2013- 14, as well as the projected expenditures for FY

0



Attachment A

2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16. Finally, the table includes a column that shows the percent increase
or decrease in department expenditures from FY 2014- 15 to FY 2015- 16. 

FY 12- 13 FY 13- 14 FY 14- 15 FY 15- 16

Description Actual Actual Anticipated Budget Change

City Council 130, 100 130, 200 67, 600 68, 000 0. 6% 

City Manager 473, 000 525, 400 217, 900 302, 800 39. 0% 

City Attorney 128, 900 112, 600 140, 700 141, 500 0. 6% 

Finance 361, 100 400, 700 191, 800 236, 400 23. 3% 

Law Enforcement 4, 567, 600 4, 801, 100 4, 944, 000 5, 042, 400 2. 0% 

Animal Control 202, 600 202, 100 208, 800 203, 800 2. 4% 

Fire 3, 505, 600 3, 623, 700 3, 885, 800 4, 120, 100 6. 0% 

Development Services 1, 207, 800 1, 304, 900 648, 000 615, 800 5. 0% 

Public Works 1, 780, 100 1, 870, 800 1, 017, 200 1, 058, 700 4. 1% 

Total - --- 12, 35.......0 12, 356, 800 12, 971, 500 11, 321, 800 11, 789, 500 4. 1% 

The following paragraphs detail major changes in each department' s expenditure plan, not
including the shift in personnel costs. 

City Council — no significant changes proposed. 

City Manager — the increase is due primarily to professional services. This is driven by the City
Council' s directive to provide security at the Promenade ($ 50, 000) and increase public outreach

efforts by the City ($ 10, 000). In addition, one position was added toward the end of FY 2014- 

15. 

Finance — the Finance Department will experience an increase of $46, 900. This is primarily due
to the addition of one position that occurred in late FY 2014- 15, increased PERS costs, and job
reclassifications. 

Law Enforcement — the FY 2015- 16 budget reflects costs associated with the law enforcement

contract with the San Diego County Sheriff' s Department. The contract increases by $ 96, 400

over FY 2014- 15. At this time, staff does not know the cost of a communication infrastructure

backbone contract that is due to go into effect FY 2016- 17. 

Animal Control — it is anticipated that animal control costs will decrease slightly ($ 7, 700) due to

fewer calls for service. 

Fire — the Fire Department expenditures reflect an increase of $ 276, 500, which is due to

increases in operational costs and contractual obligations. The lease -purchase agreement for

the fire engine has been shifted to the Fire Department budget from the General Reserve

budget, since staff anticipates that this will be an on- going, permanent expenditure. 

Development Services — it is anticipated that Development Services will experience a decrease

mainly due to a decrease in building inspection fees. Building fee revenue reflects a
commensurate decrease. 

Public Works — the Public Works budget shows an increase of $ 46, 000 which includes a storm

drain inventory study, projected to be $ 75, 000. 

10



Attachment A

General Fund Surplus and Potential Expenditures

The proposed FY 2015- 16 budget results in a surplus of $512, 100. Combined with the General

Reserve Fund, this provides the City with a reserve of $ 3, 881, 900 or 32. 9 percent of General
Fund' s proposed expenditures. Staff recommends that the City Council consider several uses
of this surplus to support City Council goals and enhance the effectiveness of the City' s
government. These uses include: 

Pay down a portion of the PERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability ($ 6, 935, 698). Paying down
200, 000 of the liability will save the City approximately $ 649, 600 over twenty years. 

Increase Public Works staff by one Street Technician position ($ 31, 700). This will allow

the Department to designate one person to aggressively abate graffiti, litter, illegal
dumping, and other important community aesthetic issues. 

Set aside the one- time " Triple Flip" payment into a newly created capital

projects/ equipment fund to save for future capital expenditures ($ 200, 000). 

Increase Development Services staff by a part- time Assistant Planner, due to the
increased permitting activity ($ 38, 600). During the recession, the City eliminated the
Principal Planner position. In the past four years, the number of permits has increased

from 700 to 943, an increase of approximately 34. 7 percent. 

Job Reclassifications of the Human Resources Analyst to Human Resources Manager
4, 000) and Accounting Clerk to Administrative Accounting Assistant ($ 6, 900). Over

the the past few years, the HR Analyst has begun to manage the City' s human
resources and payroll functions. The position is also now managing the City' s complex
PEPRA issues as well as responsibilities with the Heartland Fire JPA. The Accounting
Clerk has taken on IT responsibilities, website maintenance, and other special projects. 

Cost of Living Adjustment ( COLA) for the Miscellaneous employee group. In the past

four years, Miscellaneous staff has received COLAs totaling 4 percent. During this same
period, the Consumer Price Index ( CPI) has increased by 7. 2 percent. A 2 percent

COLA will keep up with the anticipated CPI growth of 1. 6 percent for the next year. A 2
percent COLA results in a loaded General Fund cost of $ 14, 625

Proposed General Reserve Fund (Fund 6) Budget

The General Reserve Fund serves as the City' s " savings account." The fund was created for
several purposes: emergencies, election services, and one- time capital/ equipment purchases. 

The FY 2014- 15 budget allocated funds for the purchase of the following major items: capital

improvements at city hall, senior center, and Sheriff's station, as well as the lease of the fire
engine. 

In FY 2015- 16, the City anticipates minimal revenue to the General Reserve Fund ($ 4,400 from
interest earnings). Staff proposes four expenditures from the Fund in FY 2015- 16: 

General Plan Update — $ 150, 000 ( set aside), 

Fire Station Exhaust System — $65, 200, 

Capital Improvements at the Senior Center— $15, 000, and

Animal Control Vehicle — $30,000. 

INJ



Attachment A

City' s Overall General Reserves

Combining the City' s General Fund balance with the General Reserve Fund balance, the City
anticipates having $ 3. 88 million in its combined reserves by the end of FY 2015- 16. The

following graph shows the City's combined reserves for the past ten-year period. 

5, 000, 000

4, 000, 000

3, 000, 000

2, 000, 000

1, 000, 000

1 b RK 4a

000 010
O 

005, 

Oti

titiy 
ti

w, 

The total reserve shown in the General Fund and General Reserve Fund equals 33 percent of

the presented FY 2015- 16 expenditure plan. 

Not included in the table above are the fund balances of the City' s two additional insurance
reserve funds, which set aside monies for potential settlements for both workers compensation

and general liability claims. The City' s goal has been to maintain a balance sufficient to meet
the deductible for three claims ($ 375, 000 in each fund). This may be re-evaluated depending
on the outcome of the migration from SANPIPA to a new insurance provider. These funds are

considered reserves; as such, they have the same characteristics as the General Reserve
Fund. The FY 2015- 16 draft budget reflects a combined balance for these two funds of

808, 300. The combined reserves of these funds with the General Fund and General Reserve

Fund represents 40 percent of General Fund expenditures. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council provide feedback to assist in preparing a final FY 2015- 
16 General Fund budget for City Council consideration. Specifically, staff seeks feedback
regarding: 

Staff' s revenue projections for FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16, 

Changes to the proposed expenditure plan for FY 2015- 16, and

Other potential uses for the City' s combined anticipated surpluses of $ 207, 600 in FY

2014- 15 and $ 244, 300 in FY 2014- 15. 

With City Council feedback, staff will prepare a revised budget for City Council consideration at
the June 2nd meeting. At that time, staff will present the Master Fee Schedule, along with the

City' s entire consolidated budget. 

IIS



7, 57 MCI987900

Attachment B

t, 394 700

Licenses 110, 200 109, 000 103, 000 104, 000 105, 000

Property Tax 2, 035, 700 2, 064, 200 2, 227, 300 2, 135, 000 2, 224,900

Development Fees 300, 000 312, 700 260, 000 368, 000 223, 000

Sales Tax & Triple Flip Adjustment . 25% 3, 897, 100 4, 294, 800 4. 700, 000 5, 076, 000 5, 400, 000

Franchise Fees 889, 300 923. 600 932, 000 932, 000 932, 000

Transient Occupancy Tax 36, 800 39, 400 35, 800 35, 800 35, 800

Interest Income 2, 200 2, 500 2. 500 2, 000 2, 000

Miscellaneous Income 110. 400 67. 500 21, 500 54, 000 20, 500

Vehicle License Fees 13, 400 11, 100 10, 700 10, 700 10, 700

Vehicle License Fee Adjustment 1, 886, 800 1, 940, 700 2, 024, 500 2, 024, 500 2, 074, 500

Parks & Recreation Fees 108, 000 100, 300 95, 400 98, 700 96, 700

Rents & Leases 325, 800 330, 900 238, 000 236, 000 224,000

Traffic Fines -Public Safety 103, 400 120, 700 125, 500 140, 000 137, 000

Fire Department Fees 271, 000 254, 800 253, 600 270, 600 265, 600

TOTAL REVENUES: 10. 090..100 10. 572. 200 11, 029, 800 11, 487. 300 11J 61. 700

77777777?" ff' 77777777777=,,' ' IT

Gas Tax Fund 830, 200 927, 400 64, 900 60, 000

Supplemental Law Enf.Service Fund 100, 100 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000

TDA Administration 60, 300 64, 200 3, 600 3, 600 17,400

Lighting District - General District Administration 48, 300 25, 100 4. 700 4, 700 9, 000

Lighting District Lac Ben. Administration 30, 600 61, 300 2, 600 2, 600 4, 900

TransNet Administration 84, 300 81, 700

Integrated Waste (AB939) Administration 26, 500 28, 200 600 600 1, 300

Sanitation District Administration 1, 483, 900 1, 562, 200 548, 500 548, 500 552, 400

Wildflower Dist Administration 5. 500 5, 300 100 100 100

Serious Traffic Offender Program Fund Admin. 2, 000 2, 000

Storm Water Administration 36, 800 39, 000

Successor Agency - Administration 250, 000 248, 000 37, 800 16, 600 21, 100

Transfer to Storm Water Fund 1 11 ( 81. 100) 1 11 (( 5, 500)[ 1 ( 157

TOTAL TRANSFERS: 8' 900 605,100 571 s, 5 507000

TOTALREVE35NUES & TRANSFERS,_ 12, 967. 5001 13 64 0 1 1 S 11 6 100 12. 301, 700

TOTAL RESOURCES: .... 344 .700 i 4, 629, 000, 1 13, 292, 600 13. 7__ 

1



Attachment B

THI$ BLANK



Attachment B

500 21 $ 12! 356. 00, J Ls ] [ $ 1111¢ 76. 500 $ 117321, 800] J, kIOTA L EXPENDITURES: 12, 971 $__ 11, 789, 500„ I

I ------- -- ----- ................... I,-. $ GENERAL F UNDIBALANCE

77- jr

7- 7
wo

iii

City Council 130, 100 130, 200 67, 600 67, 600 68, 000

City Manager 473, 000 525, 400 219, 000 217,900 302, 800

City Attorney 128, 900 112, 600 151. 500 140, 700 141, 500

Finance 361, 100 400, 700 189, 800 191, 800 236, 400

Law Enforcement 4, 567, 600 4, 801, 100 4, 944, 000 4, 944, 000 5, 042, 400

Animal Control 202, 600 202, 100 201, 100 208,800 203, 800

Fire 3, 505, 600 3, 623, 700 3, 863, 200 3, 885,800 4,120, 100

Development Services 1, 207, 800 1, 304. 900 571, 600 648,000 615, 800

Public Works 1, 780, 100 1. 870. 800 1, 068, 700 1, 017, 200 1, 058, 700

500 21 $ 12! 356. 00, J Ls ] [ $ 1111¢ 76. 500 $ 117321, 800] J, kIOTA L EXPENDITURES: 12, 971 $__ 11, 789, 500„ I

I ------- -- ----- ................... I,-. $ GENERAL F UNDIBALANCE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: .............. 1"$ 12 3. 5... 6... 1.. 8.....0...0... _ S... 12797"

I1'
l.-

510110- $ 11. 276. 500 $_ 11, 321 , 800 $ 11. 789. 500

I

77- jr

F: 

iii

Salaries 4, 125, 200 4, 389, 500 3, 018. 900 3, 038, 900 3, 170, 200

Retirement 816, 200 838, 100 621. 500 625, 300 623, 900

Benefits - Other 974, 500 945, 800 667, 300 661, 100 694, 300

Services 8, Supplies 1, 600, 500 1, 725. 400 1, 661, 300 1, 693, 100 1, 902, 500

Contracted Services 4, 790, 700 5, 013, 500 5, 246, 900 5, 243, 800 5, 338, 000

Recreation Programs 49, 700 59, 200 60, 600 59, 600 60, 600

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: .............. 1"$ 12 3. 5... 6...1.. 8.....0...0... _ S... 12797"

I1'
l.-

510110- $ 11. 276. 500 $_ 11, 321 , 800 $ 11. 789. 500

I



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

4



Attachment B

sib6f'' Y+ ls ®... -.--- .. _..__ 47, 500._ 

4

4.x, 900 17, 000

Salaries

17, 000 17, 000... 

Retirement

120, 500

9, 500

137, 100

9, 300 3, 900

67, 400

60, 200

3, 900 4, 200

Benefits -Other

Services & Supplies

25, 500

36, 500

26, 300

45, 900

9, 000 L.- 9, 000 9, 000

Services & Supplies

9 pp4, 770, 200.. 
0 $ 

47, 600

5145100. 

45, 700„ 00

q
my2d600_. I

37, 700 37 7 37, 800

I ...... 1 C _ _ I L JTOTAL 130, 0 13®,200 $ 67 60 0 $ 67, 600 $ 68, 000

TOTAL. J 1 ..... .... w... !  
v $ 

473 000 $ 525, 400 ' % 90 QNY t $ at P7'' 00 $ 302, 600

112 600 141 5d0 141 500i

1

on alrSe

icrr r rry

clary} 
140, 700

City A9

128 300.. 

i.. ..... 

p
TOTAL.....,, C _. l.,$ I I I-- . 112 600 1 N 0 151, 500 I ,. _ 

192, 700 226, 700 ___ 73,. 266- ........................ .. 73, 200 99, 900. Salaries.......... 

Retirement 36, 600 42, 100 15, 700 15, 800 28, 500

Benefits - Other 39, 700 49, 800 17, 100 17, 300 18, 900

Services & Supplies 92. 100 82, 100 83, 800 85. 500 89; 100„ 

TOTAL .:...................... . ...... .... .. Ih11 $ 361 100. 47P17kY0, $ _._. 1$ 9, 80® $ ... 191, 800 $ 230- 1- 16 .. 

F/ iRwis

Sheriffs Contract 4, 459, 266' j 4 698 800 4 894, 300

Salaries 315, 800 340, 700 120, 500 120, 500-- 137, 100

Retirement

Benefits -Other

62, 500

58, 200

67, 400

60, 200

29, 100

23, 500

29, 100

23, 800

42, 200

22, 600

Services & Supplies

202, 600

36, 500 57. 100 45, 900 44, 500 100,900

TOTAL. J 1 ..... .... w... !  
v $ 

473 000 $ 525, 400 ' % 90 QNY t $ at P7'' 00 $ 302, 600

112 600 141 5d0 141 500i

1

on alrSe

icrr r rry

clary} 
140, 700

City A9

128 300.. 

i.. ..... 

p
TOTAL.....,, C _. l.,$ I I I-- . 112 600 1 N 0 151, 500 I ,. _ 

192, 700 226, 700 ___ 73,. 266- ........................ .. 73, 200 99, 900. Salaries.......... 

Retirement 36, 600 42, 100 15, 700 15, 800 28, 500

Benefits - Other 39, 700 49, 800 17, 100 17, 300 18, 900

Services & Supplies 92. 100 82, 100 83, 800 85. 500 89; 100„ 

TOTAL .:...................... . ...... .... .. Ih11 $ 361 100. 47P17kY0, $ _._. 1$ 9, 80® $ ... 191, 800 $ 230- 1- 16 .. 

F/ iRwis

Sheriffs Contract 4, 459, 266' j 4 698 800 4 894, 300 4 894 300 4, 99 700

Services & Supplies 108, 400 102 300 49, 700 49, 700 49, 700

Animal Control 202, 600 0? 100 201, 100 208. 800 203. 800

TOTAL .......... 
9 pp4, 770, 200.. 

0 $ 
500i 20 t.

mV $ 

5145100. 5152,809 II ?,... 
q

my2d600_. I

5



Attachment B

kIl u:' s

Retirement

Benefits

2, 044700

452, 000

2, 144,400

444, 200

2, 292, 300

475, 500

2, 308, 300

475, 500

2, 419, 300

426, 400

Other

161, 900

514,700 480,700 499, 600 490, 000 530, 900

rare x wb t reeler _ 

33, 000

494, 200 554 400 _, 595, 800 612, 000 743, 500

OTAL
m

3 505 t30Ct..: I

28, 100 28, 100

3 88u, 800 UFI w._._._._._ 4, 120, 800... 

4t61" ius 312, 300 335, 000 149, 900 149, 500 161, 900
Retirement 56, 100 62, 100 33, 000 33, 000 43, 200
Benefits -Other 49, 000 56, 000 28, 100 28, 100 28, 400

ero e5 & u phy Vn y 233, 200 248 800 185, 800 244,900 184,100

SUBTOTAL -_ qqP 650, 600 701 900 396800, 456, 50® 

354, 600 390, 600 6087, 0 96, 500 91, 600

Retirement 58, 600 64, 600 13, 800 15, 800 29, 600

Benefits -Other 71, 500 73, 500 13, 300 15,400 15, 200

Services & Supplies 72. 500 74, 300 59, 900 64. 800 61. 800

SUBTOTAL

pp

557, 200 603 000 174 800 192 500 198, 200m

TOTAL .. ,..., 
V 571. 600  I

64$, QD00  F. 615, 800

INJ

d1t1 i/ 

Salaries 162 300 179, 400 24, 100 32, 300 ' .. ,,,.,... 24, 600

Retirement 32, 000 35, 300 5, 300 7, 000 7, 000

Benefits -Other 26, 900 28, 000 9, 500 10, 400 9, 000

Services & Supplies 21, 000 30,80048,900 55. 600 125,200

SUBTOTAL,..,... ... 
n ...... $ .,... 

242 200 ' 2i3 600 N 5...® 87 800 $ ... 105 300. 4 t  ...... 165, 800

m

SUBTOTAL. b70, 400 597 100 x 1440400143 900 134 800

101



Attachment B

FF
E.,, 

Salaries 119 500 113 600., 

M ... .............. 

125 300 110, 300 112, 100

Retirement 12, 300 12, 600 96, 200 16, 200 17, 500

Benefits -Other 21, 600 26, 700 29, 400 29, 400 28, 300

Services & Supplies 53, 500 48, 100 50, 400 49, 900 50, 500

60, 600Pra4rams------- 49, 700 59 200 60 600 59 600

sUBTOTAL: _ l y _ 2,56, 600 L 260y OmG $ µ 281, 900 $ 265, 400 F... 169,

000 1a_ 

v,..,,.... 4, goo 4,600 Bene

her Services & tS+drp l( es 249 100mm 231, 300 „ 227 500 226 700 226

700 SUBTOTAL: ... ... _ 0 ;+ 100' $ ..........236 200 ...$ ..... 232, 300 ......... 231, 3¢ 1 I ......... 23' tl,

3d Salaries 116,_

560 [1120,

000 600 128, 800 _..... 131, 300. 106,

700 Retirement 22, 00 , 300 29, 000 29, 000 25,

300 Benefits - Other 30, 200 , 000 33, 000 33, 100 27,

400 Services & 

Suoolies

p >8, 200 132, 000 87. 000 88,

800 SUBTOTAL: .] .. 226 9dd ......... 301, 900 Q $-.........322 800 $ ... 280 400 ........ 248,2.

dd al Saries 138, 060 145,

100 Retirement 24, 200 21,

300 Benefits - Other 29, 300 35,

500 Services & Supplies

100
pp SUBTOTAL: _$ 191. 600 _ 

2011900 TOTAL.,..,,,. - a=1058. 700 .

1 GENERAL FUND GRAND TOTAL: 12 356, 600 $ 1 921 OiFCn 11 276, 500 $ 11, 321, 800 1 50U 1

789 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - $ 377, 200 $ 987 900 I $ 1,65' r, 5dG1 $ C 6 T," 
Od $ 

m 2.394-„
700" 

k_ _ TOTAL REVENUES $ tld 440, 144 $ 1d 572, 204 029800 .$......11 487, 300
S

m„ 11

751x700 TOTAL TRANSFERS `$ 2 877- 400 $ ....._.3 068 900 I 6d5, 9d0 571 lOdj $ 550, 000

1 TOTAL REVENUES &
TRANSFERS: $ .

a„12 967 500 13, 64' f,fOt pp qq $ 11 635, 100 $ 12 059,
000 9

1.. TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 12 356 800j [$ 12, 971, 500 11y 16x9p ^ 91 321. 800 $ 11, 789,

500 ENDING FUND BALANCE $ : fJ87 9CNi±  S 1 657 500 1 1 $ _ 2 016, 100 5 2 394 700„ a gOfa

900



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Aj



Attachment B

18, 600 19, 300 6, 500 6, 500 6, 500

7] 

6. 100 6, 200 2, 100 2, 100

IIt 17t1 L

700 300 300

Salaries Regular 47. 500

100 100

1 7, 000 17. 000 . 

SUBTOTAL SALARIES S 47, 500

9, 500 9, 300

7 '00P 17, 000, 

Medical Insurance 18, 600 19, 300 6, 500 6, 500 6, 500

Retirees Health Insurance 6. 100 6, 200 2, 100 2, 100 2, 100

Medicare 700 700 300 300 300

Life Insurance 100 100 100 100 100

Retirement 9, 500 9, 300 3, 900 3, 900 4, 200

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 35,000 1j 1 35 6 0_1 [ 4 - - ---------------- 112 9 09 1'$ 13. 20090_0j

Community Promotions 7, 000 2, 500 2, 500 2, 500 2, 500

Computer Maintenance 4, 600 3, 900 3, 300 3, 300 3, 400

Copier Service 400 200 200 200

Insurance Premium: Liability 2, 300 2, 500 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

Insurance Premium: Property 200 300 300 300 300

Membership & Dues 21, 200 22, 200 22, 200 22, 200 22, 200

Mileage 6, 900 9, 300 3, 200 3, 200 3, 200

Office Supplies 1, 000 600 200 200 200

Travel & Meetings 1, 500 2, 200 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

Utilities -Gas & Electric 2, 000 2, 200 2, 800 2, 800 2, 800

Utilities - Telephone 500

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 47.600 37. 700 37, 700 37, 800S 45. 700

TOTAL
111--..... -. .-..._........ $ 130. 10 I [] K [ A- 6-----7--- 1600] I. $..... 68. 000.... 

M



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

10



Attachment B

Insurance - Medical 28. 200 29. 400 14, 800 14, 800 13. 500

Retirees Medical 9. 200 9, 200 2, 800 2, 800 2, 800

Deferred Compensation 6, 000 6, 000 1, 800 1. 800

Salaries - Regular

Employee Assistance Program

340, 700 120, 500 120 11 137, 100

100

SUBTOTAL SAL RIES 3 5.800 12050 S 120. 500 137, 100

Insurance - Medical 28. 200 29. 400 14, 800 14, 800 13. 500

Retirees Medical 9. 200 9, 200 2, 800 2, 800 2, 800

Deferred Compensation 6, 000 6, 000 1, 800 1. 800 li800

Employee Assistance Program 100 100 100 100 100

Workers Compensation 6, 100 7, 100 800 900 900

Medicare 4, 700 5, 000 1. 800 1, 800 2, 000

Life Insurance 300 300 300 100 100

Long Term Disability 3, 600 3, 100 1, 100 1, 500 1, 400

Retirement 62, 500 67,400 29, 100 29, 100 42,200

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS __- 120I00 127, 600J 152,600] 52 00] L@6£,800

Computer Maintenance 11, 300 15, 500 6, 000 8, 000 4, 200

Copier Service 200 500 1, 000 1, 200

Insurance Premium - Liability 8,400 6, 900 5, 800 5, 800 5. 800

Insurance Premium- Pripperty 500 900 900 1, 000 1, 200

Membership & Dues 800 2, 400 2. 700 3, 700 3, 000

Mileage 6, 100 6, 300 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

Office Supplies 2, 100 3, 900 2, 300 2, 300 2, 300

Professional Services 12, 500 15, 000 10, 000 70, 000

Publishing 2. 600 1, 600 2, 000 2, 000 2, 000

Subscriptions and Books 300 300 300 300 300

Training 1, 500 1, 600 1, 600 1, 600

Travel & Meetings 300 1, 100 500 600 500

Utilities -Gas & Electric 2, 000 2, 200 4, 000 3, 000 31500

Utilities - Telephone 1, 700 1, 700 2, 100 2, 100 2, 100

Utilities -Water 200 300 400 400 400

Wellness Program 1, 000 1, 000

11



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

12



Attachment B

EXPENDITURE DETAIL CITY ATTORNEY

Code Enforcement - 3, 500 1, 300 1, 500 700 1, 500

Investigation - Other Atty 10, 000

Professional Services ( Non -Salary) 125400 111. 300 140. 000 1' 40000 140. 000

TO TAL ...... 151500 ... _.... 14 1, 5-00

13



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

14



Attachment B

17

Salaries Regular ' 92, 600 7 73, 200 99, 900

Salaries - Overtime 100

2216J00 $ 73. 200

mmmonca Medical

Retirees medical

Employee Assistance Program

Workers Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

BENEFITS

15, 100 22, 700 10, 600 10, 600 11, 100

15, 400 15, 400 2, 300 2, 300 2, 300

100 100 100

13. 100

100

3, 900 6, 000 2, 400 2, 400 2,400

2, 900 3, 400 1, 300 1, 300 2, 300

200 100

200 zoo mo

2, 100 2J00 400 700 700

36,600 42, 100 15 , 700 16,800 28, 500

MOO 91. 900 32800 33. 100

6. 100

Computer Maintenance 13, 100 22. 100 16, 70 16J0 18, 80

Copier Service mm 600 mm 1, 20

Credit Card and Bank Fees 13. 100 13,700 14, 000 16, 90 16, 90

Insurance Premium -Liability 6, 400 5, 900 4. 500 60 500

muuranceprem/ umproperty 400 800 200 zoo mo

Membership mDues 1. 300 t000 1. 100 1. 100 1. 100

Mileage 3, 200 3, 00 mm mm mm

Office Supplies 2, 600 6. 100 2. 500 2. 500 2, 50

pnnonu 100 100 100 1100 100

Professional Services r. 000 23, 600 36. 000 35,000 35,000

Subscriptions and Books 200 ono eoo oo

Training ono 2, 200 1. soo 1. 500 2, 000

Travel & Meetings 100 100 100 100

Utilities -Gas & Electric 2, 000 2, 200 4. 000 3, 000 3, 500

Utilities - Telephone 1. 000| 2. 000| u. soo| 2, 000 mo

Utilities -Water 200 300 300 300 300

SUBTOTAL SERVICES uSUPPLIES 92.100||* 82, 100] M_ J__ 

15



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

16



Attachment B

I EXPENDITURE, DETAIL - LAW ENFORCEMENT I

800 Mhz 78, 900 78. 900 25, 500 25, 500 25, 500

Arjis 16, 000 16, 000 16, 300 16, 300 16, 300

Cal Id 5, 600 5, 500 6, 100 6, 100 6, 100

Contractual Services 4, 459, 200 4, 698, 800 4, 894, 300 4, 894, 300 4, 992, 700

Insurance Premium -Property 5, 000

I

1

Computer Maintenance -Animal Control 2, 400 2, 400

Contractual Services 191, 500 193, 500 190, 000 199, 100 192, 700

After Hours Calls 700 3, 600 3, 600 3, 600

Fuel - Animal Control Vehicle 4, 600 2, 800 5, 000 3, 000 5, 000

Office Supplies - Animal Control 800

I

00 r 5. S 5, 246120010. 200 1

17



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

im



Attachment B

Insurance - Medical

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Uniform Allowance

Holiday Pay

Paramedic Recertification

EMT - DC Incentive

Education Award

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Retirement

Unemployment

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

ALS Supplies Pass Thru

City Emergency Preparedness

Community Risk Reduction/ Fire Prevention

Computer Maintenance

Copier Rental

Departmental Expenditures

Dispatch Services

Fire Station Supplies

Fire Truck Purchase

Fuel

Insurance - Liability

Insurance - Properly

JAC Reimbursable Expenditures

JPA Reconciliation Expenditures

JPA Reimbursable Expenditures

Loan Payment

Medical Examinations

Medical Services & Supplies

Membership & Dues

Office Supplies

Patient Care Reporting Pass Thru

Personal Exposure Reporting

Personal Protective Clothing

Personnel Recruitment

RCCP Pass Thru fees

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Mai rite ri a nce- Veh icles

Reserve Firefighter Expense

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus ( SOBA) 

Subscriptions and Books

TIP - Trauma Intervention Program

217, 400 210, 000

AGIUA 02

205, 200

67, 900 63, 300

Salaries 1, 657, 600 1, 674, 200 1, 618, 700 1, 618, 700 1, 716, 800

Constant Staffing - Scheduled 119, 900 118, 500 125, 300 121, 300 124, 300

Constant Staffing - Unscheduled 338, 200 346, 600 512, 000 512, 000 512, 000

Salaries - Part Time 49, 900 51, 900 56, 300 56, 300 66, 200

Salaries - Credit From JPA 120, 900) 46, 800) 2 0, 000) 

1, 500

SUBTOTAL SALARIES . ................... ...................... 27044j00 2 1144, 400 2, 29 2, 300 $ 2, 308, 30 j 2. 419. 300

Insurance - Medical

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Uniform Allowance

Holiday Pay

Paramedic Recertification

EMT - DC Incentive

Education Award

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Retirement

Unemployment

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

ALS Supplies Pass Thru

City Emergency Preparedness

Community Risk Reduction/ Fire Prevention

Computer Maintenance

Copier Rental

Departmental Expenditures

Dispatch Services

Fire Station Supplies

Fire Truck Purchase

Fuel

Insurance - Liability

Insurance - Properly

JAC Reimbursable Expenditures

JPA Reconciliation Expenditures

JPA Reimbursable Expenditures

Loan Payment

Medical Examinations

Medical Services & Supplies

Membership & Dues

Office Supplies

Patient Care Reporting Pass Thru

Personal Exposure Reporting

Personal Protective Clothing

Personnel Recruitment

RCCP Pass Thru fees

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Mai rite ri a nce- Veh icles

Reserve Firefighter Expense

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus ( SOBA) 

Subscriptions and Books

TIP - Trauma Intervention Program

217, 400 210, 000 205, 200 205, 200 205, 200

67, 900 63, 300 84, 000 84, 000 84, 000

600 600 600 600 600

25, 300 17, 400 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

45, 000 39, 900 42, 300 39, 200 76, 500

36, 600 36, 000 39, 300 38, 300 39, 300

1, 500 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

7, 300 8, 000 10, 700 10, 200 10, 700

76, 900 68, 600 60, 000 55, 000 55, 000

33, 500 34, 900 34, 300 34, 300 36, 400

600 500 1, 700 1, 700 1, 700

452, 000 444, 200 475, 500 475, 500 426, 400

2, 100

16, 700

19, 300

1, 000

17, 800

1, 500

7, 200

158, 500

4, 000

28, 600

65, 300

4, 000

1, 100

22, 600

3, 900

1, 500

3, 000

1, 500

300

15, 100

1, 800

4, 900

44, 200

4, 900

3, 800

19

27, 600

26, 600

800

23, 500

10, 600

202, 300

4, 000

28, 600

45, 400

6, 100

600) 

4, 100

600

22, 600

2, 200

400

3, 000

5, 400

300

13, 200

100

1, 100) 

2, 600

56, 100

3, 500

5, 600

1, 600

3, 800

975. 100

25, 800

24, 000

1, 000

25, 000

2, 400

8, 000

220, 000

4, 000

26, 000

41, 500

6, 500

1, 500

22, 700

7, 500

600

2, 000

5, 800

300

11, 000

500

4, 000

48, 000

6, 000

4, 000

300

3, 800

965. 500

25, 800

24, 200

1, 000

25, 000

2, 400

8, 000

220, 000

4, 000

26, 000

41, 500

6, 500

1, 500

22, 700

7, 500

600

2, 000

5, 800

300

11, 000

500

3, 000

65, 000

6, 000

4, 000

300

3, 800

957, 300

46, 200

24, 500

1, 000

25, 000

2, 400

9, 000

239, 000

5, 000

86, 700

26, 000

41, 500

6, 500

1, 500

22, 700

7, 500

600

2, 300

5, 800

300

13, 500

500

4, 500

54, 000

6, 000

4, 500

300

3, 800



Tools and Supplies

Training

Training - AMR Pass nhru

unnvnnn

Utilities -Gas & Electric

mmoe* re/epou^ e

Utilities -Water

Vehicle Supplies

Weed Abatement Expenditures

sevICeSmSUPPLIES

Attachment B

3, 700 2, 000 3, 000 3, 000 3, 000

12, 200 18. 200 30. 000 30, 000 39, 000

t000 1.* 00 19. 100 19. 100 19. 100

2w00 2, 800 5, 00 5, 00 5, 00

14, 600 1e. 600 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

4. 200 5, 500 5. 500 o' 000 5. 500

o.^ no 3, 000 3, 000 3, 00 3, 000

2. 100| 2. 600| 2. 000 2, 000 2, 300 | 

7, 400 3. 400 6, 000 6, 000 6, 000

L__ 1, 1_ 

TOTAL 3. 623. 700 $ 4.120. 100

20



Attachment B

0 _ 7141t
151, 900Salaries - Regular

Extra Help 10,000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 112 iijo 1 $ 335 149. 900I ..... ......... .. 1 11111_111111111111114 
E$ 149, 500

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Workers Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

Computer Maintenance

Copier Service

Development Support

Fuel

Insurance Premium -Liability

Insurance Premium - Property

Membership & Dues

Mileage

Noticing

Office Supplies

Plan Checks/ Consultations

Printing

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles

Subscriptions and Books

Training

Travel & Meelings

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities -Telephone

Utilities -Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

29, 900

6, 200

100

4, 200

5, 800

100

2, 700

56, 100

N
1, 100

10, 900

700

1, 700

3, 000

1, 300

3, 000

197, 800

600

100

WE

2, 000

1. 500

200

233. 200

32, 200

6, 200

100

8, 200

6, 200

100

3, 000

62, 100

1-1- 8-100

MKIL

2, 211

7, 90* 

1, 101t

2, 00* 

3, 1011

1, 100

5, 104' 

W
I J, 

I
100

2, 100

400

1. 900

1. 800

400

15, 400 15,400 15,400

3, 100 3, 100 3, 100

200 200 200

4, 600 2, 200 2, 500

2, 400 4, 800 4,800

600 600600

1, 200

1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

33, 000 33, 000 43,200

61, 100 1 I Is 71, 600

8, 600 9, 200 9, 700

500 1, 000 1, 200

400 400

10,000

2, 100 1, 500 1, 500

7. 600 7, 600 7, 600

1, 200 1, 200 1, 200

2, 500 2. 500 2, 500

1. 500 1, 500 1, 500

1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

4, 000 3, 000 3,000

150, 000 210,000 135, 000

300 300 300

200 200 200

200 200 200

400 400 3, 000

100 100 Soo

4, 000 3, 500 4, 000

1, 200 1, 200 1, 200

400 500 500

185. 800 1 1 $ 244, 900 1 1 $ 184. 100

701, 900 $ 465! 500 $ 417. 6006SUBTOTAL $ 1 i [ 11 1- 1 11- 1. SI . . .................... - ---------- I I . .. .. .... ................. - ------ I [ 

21



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

22



Attachment B

EXPENDITURE DETAIL - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Extra HeID 13, 300 29A00 19, 200 19, 200 157600

390fi00 $ 87. 800 96, 500 '
16001

341. 300 361, 200 68, 600

354, 600

Salaries

Insurance - Medical 43, 600 46, 200 6, 900 8, 100 8, 700

Insurance -Medical Retirees 9, 200 7, 700 900 1, 100 1, 400

Employee Assistance Prog 100 100 200 200 200

Worker' s Compensation 8. 300 10, 200 2, 200 2, 400 2, 200

Medicare 6, 210 7, 601) 2, 700 3, 100 2, 300

Life Insurance 100 100 200 300 200

Long Term Disability 800 900 200 200 200

Retirement 58, 600 64, 600 13, 800 15, 800 29, 600

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS $ 130, 100 138 1100 $ 27, 100 31. 200, 1 ' S 441800

Computer Maintenance 11. 700 14. 800 7, 00 10, 00 7, 100

Copier Rental 1, 100 wm 1, 000 1, 200

Cost Recovery 4, 200

17418001

Development Support 2, 500 2, 900 5, 300 5, 300 5, 300

Fuel 1, 70 1. 500 1. 20 1* 00 1, 400

Insurance -Liability 10, 30 e, 90 e, 90 6, 90 6, 90

Insurance- Property 600 xmm 1. 100 1, 100 1. 100

Membership & Dues nm 300 mm 1, 100 mm

Mileage 3, 600 3, 500 uun 000 000

Office Supplies 2. 500 5. 100 2, 000 2, 300 2, 300

Personnel Recruitment mo mo

Printing 100 onn 1o00 1. 000

Professional Services 1. 200 1. 100 2, 000 2, 000 2/ 00

Protective Clothing mn nn mo 000

nep, and Maintenance -Vehicles 1. 1no 1. 700 1 000 000 0oo

rrammo om ono sno mo soo

Travel & Meetings 1. 600 ono soo mo mo

Utilities - Traffic Signals 25. 100 26. 300 26, 000 26, 000 26, 000

Utilities - Tele phone 3, 300 3. 200 3" 300 3, 500 3. 500 | 

Utilifies- Water 300 500 600 600 600

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES j 72, 500 74 300 5" 00J y

SUBTOTAL 557, 200 17418001 2. 20_0

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 000

23



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFIT INTENTIONALLY BC ANK

24



Attachment B

EXPENDITURE DETAIL -` PUBLIC WORKS

MW ... . . .. ....... 

Zt!/"',' 

Salaries - Regular 179, 100 23, 800 32, 000 24, 300

Salaries - Overtime 300 300 300 300

11 .......... . . . .......................... . 

SUBTOTAL SALARIES $ 162.300 $ 179. 400 24, 100 327300 24. 600

Medical Insurance 18. 200 16. 600 2, 700 3, 700 2, 700

Employee Assistance Frog 100 100 100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation 4, 200 6, 100 5, 500 5, 400 5, 500

Medicare 2, 600 2. 900 600 600 400

Life Insurance 100 100100 100

Long Term Disability 1, 800 2, 200 500 500 200

Retirement 32, 000 35, 300 5, 300 7, 000 7, 000

SUB...., _ BENEFITS 5  L 1- 111, 

63 300
1111--- 1111111111-1111] L 8. 900 _ j 1 $ 14. 800 1 [ $ . . ......... 1 17 400 1 1 $ 16, 000

Computer Maintenance

Copier Service

Insurance Premium -Liability

Insurance Premium - Property

Marketing Supplies

Membership & Dues

Mileage

Office Supplies

Professional Services

Protective Clothing

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Training

Travel & Meetings

Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities -Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

3, 800

400

4, 500

600

3, 000

1, 600

2, 700

800

200

200

2, 000

1, 000

200

21. 000  1 $ 

I. 

I
900

200

100

2, 200

2, 200

300

8, 200

200

3, 100

1, 000

1, 000

1, 700

500

2, 500

2, 000

7, 000

900

13, 000

500

4, 000

3, 000

300

48

8, 200

1, 000

3, 100

1, 000

7, 000

1, 700

900

2, 000

2, 000

7, 000

900

13, 000

500

4, 000

3, 000

300

3, 000

1, 200

3, 100

1, 000

7, 000

1, 700

500

2, 000

77, 000

7, 000

900

13, 000

500

4, 000

3, 000

300

11
1 [

1

800SU211141187, 800 165i

llIl 

B TOTAL -
1-1- 11-1- ........... .... ... -" -.

111" = 

19



Attachment B

T)- flS F" AGE LEFT INTI NlIONAL I Y BLAN K

0



Attachment B

Salaries - Regular 302, 100 320, 700

4, 000 4, 500 2, 500

Salaries - Overtime 8, 400 10, 400

5, 000 5, 00 6, 000

Extra Help 10, 800 8, 400

oo oo mo

Cost Recovery Expenditures' 

44, 600 45, 600

1. 000 1. 000 1, 000

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical 1, 500 1, 500

2, 100 2, 100

Equipment Rental External

Employee Assistance Program 200 200

9, 000 9, 000

Fuel

Worker's Compensation 10, 700 12, 200

15, 000 m/ mo

Graffiti Cleanup

Medicare 4, 600 4, 900

1. 800 1/ 00

Herbicides/ Pesticides

Life Insurance 200 100

1, 000 1. 000

m= uranceprem/ um' uebility

Long Term Disability 2, 800 3, 100

6, 600 6, 600

msurancepremmmpmperty

Retirement 50, 400 54, 900

o

Medical Exams

Unemployment Insurance

100

4, 600

eoo 200

Membership uDues

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS[_- 00 _ 127. 100 ] L___] L___ J 

Computer Maintenance 5, 100 7, 600 4, 000 4, 500 2, 500

Contract Services nm mm 5, 000 5, 00 6, 000

Copier Service 400 oo oo mo

Cost Recovery Expenditures' 000 1. 000 1. 000 1, 000

Dead Animal Removal 2, 000 1. 700 o.` on 2, 100 2, 100

Equipment Rental External 8, 500 3, 100 9. 000 9, 000 9, 000

Fuel 20, 700 13, 600 17, 000 15, 000 m/ mo

Graffiti Cleanup 1.* 00 1. 700 1. 800 1. 800 1/ 00

Herbicides/ Pesticides 1' 100 soo 1. 000 1, 000 1. 000

m= uranceprem/ um' uebility 15. 900 11. e00 6, 600 6, 600 6, 600

msurancepremmmpmperty mo. eon 1, 001, 1,000oo

Medical Exams oon 100 mo eoo 200

Membership uDues 000 noo 000 mm

Office o" nmeo oon mo xoo eoo 200

Pavement Markings oon

Permit Expenses aoo ou oo oo

Personnel Recruitment uo

Protective Clothing 3, 900 3, 800

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment 15. 000 17, 800 15. 000 15, 000 e/mo

Repair and Maintenance - Sidewalk 3, 800 4. 500 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000

Repair and Maintenance - Storm Drain 3, 500 10. 000 5, 000 15, 000

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles 9, 700 12. e00 n/. 000 21, 000 22' 000

Street Sweeping 13. e00 13, 900 14. 000 14,000 14, 000

Tools and Supplies cno 7, 800 ouu 7, 000 7, 000

Training meets saoo 3, 300

Utilities - Gas & Electric 3, 000 000 1. 200

Utilities - Telephone | cno z. r» o a.»«» | x.»« o | o | 

I Utilities -Water 15, 300 16, 500 15, 500 15, 500 15, 500

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & _ m___ 1 L$__ 

M



Attachment B

M



Attachment B

Noll

wy) 
TI) A ti" fjI n fbaa6 f

Salaries 66, 000

Contractual Services

68, 600

500

70, 300 70, 300

Credit Card Fees

72, 000

Overtime

Daycamp 18, 300

400

100

Insurance - Liability 6, 200

Insurance - Property

Extra Help

400

53, 500 44, 600

Medical Exams

55, 000 40, 000 40, 100

SUBTOTAL SALARIES ... --- 119, 500,.; $,,,.,., 113, 600 $......, 125 300 $ ............. 110 300

111111-- 

112 110 0

Insurance -Medical 8, 500 10, 800 13, 500

Rental Expense - Senior Center

13, 500

4, 500

13, 500

Insurance - Medical Retirees

100

6, 200 6, 200

Special Events

6, 100

18, 000

6, 100 6, 100

Employee Assistance Frog 500

Utilities - Telephone

500

1, 100

500 500 500

Worker's Compensation 2, 500 3, 000 3, 700 3, 700 3, 700

Medicare 3, 100 2, 800 4, 600 4, 600 3, 500

Life Insurance 100 100 100

Long Term Disability 500 800 800 800 800

Retirement 12, 300 12, 600 16, 200 16, 200 17, 500

Unemployment 300 2, 600 100 100 100

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 33 900 39300 _ 45, 600 $ ........ 4....5..... 6...0. 5 600 45, 80...... 0 _ 

Computer Maintenance 1, 200

Contractual Services 500

Copier Rental 300

Credit Card Fees 400

Daycamp 18, 300

Fuel 100

Insurance - Liability 6, 200

Insurance - Property 400

Maintenance - Supplies

Medical Exams

Membership & Dues

Mileage 100

Office Supplies 1, 300

Personnel Recruitment 200

Printing

Recreation Center 300

Rental Expense - Senior Center 4, 500

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment 100

Softball 1, 600

Special Events 18, 000

Training

Utilities - Gas & Electric 34, 300

Utilities - Telephone 1, 100

Utilities - Water 14, 300

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIESIJ $ 103, 200

2, 000

1, 000

400

2, 200

12, 000

3, 100

200

100

100

100

500

200

500

5, 000

500

1, 500

21, 000

100

40, 000

4, 500

16, 000

111. 000

I ., ...... 
SUBTOTAL .,,........ I N $ 256 600- 1 I $ 260, 200- 1 f $ ,,..... 281 900 $.,,,,,,,,, 265. 400 $ 269 000„ 

1, 000

1, 000

1, 200

1, 500

12, 000

3, 100

200

100

100

100

500

200

500

5, 000

500

1, 800

21, 700

100

40, 000

4, 500

16, 000

111, 100

29



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

30



Attachment B

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 1 $ 1 4 900 4 800, j J_ . 600 4r 60043, 30 j $ -- _ I _ .... . . 
A] 1 $ ...... 

Contract Services 119, 300 112, 900 115, 000 116, 000 115, 000

Insurance Premium - Liability 400

Maintenance - Lighting

N= 

1, 500

E= 

2, 200

Maintenance - Supplies 20, 900 19, 300 22, 000

Medical Insurance

7, 200 2, 000

Retirees Medical 4, 600 4, 600 4,600 4,600 4, 600

Worker' s Compensation 38. 000 300 200

19, 000 19, 000

Medicare

Utilities - Gas & Electric 4, 000 4, 100 4, 800 4, 000

Long Term Disability

Utilities - Telephone 1. 300 1. 200 2, 200 1, 500

Retirement

Utilities - Water 77, 800 69, 700 63, 000 1 63, 000

Unemployment 700

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 1 $ 1 4 900 4 800, j J_ . 600 4r 60043, 30 j $ -- _ I _ .... . . 
A] 1 $ ...... 

Contract Services 119, 300 112, 900 115, 000 116, 000 115, 000

Insurance Premium - Liability 400

Maintenance - Lighting 2, 200 1, 500 2, 200 2, 200

Maintenance - Supplies 20, 900 19, 300 22, 000 22, 000 22, 000

Repair and Maintenance 7, 200 2, 000

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment 300

Tree Trimming 17, 900 19, 900 19, 000 19, 000 19, 000

Utilities - Gas & Electric 4, 000 4, 100 4, 800 4, 000 4,000

Utilities - Telephone 1. 300 1. 200 2, 200 1, 500 1, 600

Utilities - Water 77, 800 69, 700 63, 000 1 63, 000 63, 000

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES $ 249. 100 .. .... 231. 300] L$ 226,700

F 236 0,0 232, 300 231. 300SUB..., ," T'0'O'A' . ......... 292 . ... ... 

31



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

M



Attachment B

EXPENDITURE DETAIL -` PUBLIC WORKS

N Id

Salaries ' - - - -_ Reg - u - lar ---------- ----- ---- -- 4 " 1100 2 "' 400 - 123, 400 126, 300- 1, 26, 300 1'0'4,2'0'0" 

Salaries - Overtime 2. 200_ 1 2. 200 2. 500 5, 000 2, 500

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 11 0 U5. 600 128 80 9 131 300 106.700

200

Medical Insurance 21, 100 21, 600 22, 500 22, 500 18, 000

Retirees Medical 3, 100 3, 100 3, 100 3, 100 2,400

Employee Assistance Prog 100 100 100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation 4, 000 6, 100 4, 600 4, 700 4, 700

Medicare 900 1, 000 1, 200 1, 200 1, 000

Life Insurance 100 100 100 100 100

Long Term Disability 900 1, 000 1, 400 1, 400 1, 100

Retirement 22, 000 24, 300 29, 000 29,000 25, 300

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS$ 52. 200 56. 300 62, 000 62,.,100 52 700

Advertising 300 300 300

Computer Maintenance 2, 600 4, 000 1, 600 2, 200

Contract Services 4, 100 45, 300 54, 000 10, 000

Copier Rental 400 200

Cost Recovery 500 600 600

Equipment Rental 400 200 200 200

Fuel 1, 100 3, 500 2, 500 2, 500

Insurance Premium - Liability 4, 000 4, 900 3, 200 3, 300

Insurance Premium -Property 200 700 500 Soo

Maintenance -Services 15, 800 10, 000 15, 000 16,000

Maintenance -Supplies 18, 200 32, 000 28, 000 28, 000

Office Supplies 100 100

Protective Clothing 1, 700 1, 300

Repair and Maintenance 10, 000 5, 000

Repair and Maintenance -ADA 1, 000

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment 2, 300 1, 700 2, 000 2, 000

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles 5001' 0 700 3, 200

Special District Assessment 5, 200 5 . 300 5, 300

Tools and Supplies 1, 400 3, 300 3, 000 3, 000

Training 100 100

Utilities -Gas & Electric 3, 600 3, 800 3, 600 3, 600

Utilities -Telephone 1, 600 1, 200 1 1, 200 1, 200

Utilities - Water 100 100 100 100

SUBTOTAL SERVICES &, SUPPLIES ........ 1 I_$ 58, 200 1 $ ------------- 120.000, 1 1 ......... . 132n000 87, 000 J' S 88. 800] 

9.1 5 - SUB TOTAL
j

226. 900 301. 900 $ 322. 89 $ 280. 400 248, 

33



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

ell



I EXPENDITURE DETAIL - PUBLIC WORKS

Salaries - Regular 124, 500 136, 400

Salaries - Overtime 2, 700 6, 400

Extra Help 10. 800 2, 300

SUBTOTAUS-A—LARIES --- 1-45, 100
I I I I I -------------------- . . . ............ . .. . ......... 

Medical Insurance

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

21, 000 26, 200

100 100

4, 300 5, 900

2, 800 2, 100

100 100

1, 000 1, 100

24, 200 21, 300

53. 500.. 00 - 

Attachment B

Medical Exams 100

S........U.... . .... . ... .6........fA----SERVICES IS—UPP L—IE-----S------------------.................... lob'' 

90 $ 20 — ----- . ........ A—._ ------------ - 

068.700 1, 058, 701) 

12. 366 11. 789, 500

35



Attachment B

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

36



Attachment B

1, 906,` 1100 1, 772, 500

Interest -Other 4, 500 4, 200 4, 000 4, 400 4, 400

Property Tax Service Fee Refund ( one- time) 98, 400

AVL _ E S 0U_ IIC E _S; $ 2, 106, 600 $ 1, 776, 500 $ 1, 776. 900, 1, 247, 3000

measure=$ 6, 000) 

Fire -Side Fund Pay -Off (HCFA) 
General Plan Update

Sick Leave Payout

Telephone Upgrade

Transfer to Self Insured Funds

Transfer to Capital Improvement Projects Fund

Vacation Pay Off
Capital Asset Purchases

Finance System

Fire Engine and Fire Equipment

IT System upgrades

Facility Replacement -City Hall
Facility Replacement -Senior Center
Facility Replacement -Sheriffs Station
Animal Control Vehicle

0
17, 800

85, 000

1, 700

32, 700

15. 700

0WOR

38, 000

35, 600

13, 600

LENDING FUND 134ILAt4bt - June 30 [ - ------ -- li- manfl F

M

MIM

4, 600

50, 000

12. 200

32, 000

114, 000

50, 000

115, 000

95, 000

5, 500

150, 000

180, 000

37, 500 12, 000

32, 000

114,000 65, 200

50, 000

115, 000 15, 000

30, 000



LEMON GROVE : CITY COUNCIL: 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 6

Mtg. Date May 5, 2015
Dept. City Manager's Office

Item Title: Planning Commission

Staff Contact: ; Graham Mitchell, City Manager. 

Recommendation: 

Provide direction on whether to implement the proposal set forth in the staff report
Attachment A). 

Item Summary: 

On January 20, 2015, staff presented an agenda item entitled " Planning Commission Analysis." 
This agenda item followed up on a similar November 4, 2014 item. At the conclusion of the

January 20th discussion, a motion passed directing staff to develop a plan to disband the Planning
Commission within nine months. The City Council also directed staff to solicit input from former
Councilmembers and former and current Planning Commissioners. 
The staff report ( Attachment A) provides information on input received from former

Councilmembers and former and current Planning Commissioners. It also addresses the direction

from the City Council to develop a plan that 1) repurposes the Planning Commission, 2) ensures
that public participation is protected and enhanced, and 3) establishes an implementation

schedule. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. ; Staff Report

B. Cover Letter & Questionnaire

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

C. : Questionnaire Responses

D. January 20, 2015 Staff Report (" Planning Commission Analysis") 



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 6

Mtg. Date May 5, 2015

Item Title: Planning Commission

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Discussion: 

On January 20, 2015, staff presented an agenda item entitled " Planning Commission Analysis." 
This agenda item followed up on a similar November 4„ 2014 item, During the January

20th

report, staff addressed four specific questions asked during the November
4th

meeting: 

1) What are the alternative ways to solicit community input on a project? 
2) How can we engage citizens proactively? 

3) If the Planning Commission were dissolved, how would that be implemented? 
4) What would be the impact on the City Council agenda schedule? 

Staff also included information on appeals, potential unintended consequences of items

addressed in the report, and information about project streamlining. 

At the conclusion of the January 20th agenda item discussion, a motion passed directing staff to
develop a plan to disband the Planning Commission within nine months. The plan was to

relying on City Council comments and input received from former Councilmembers and former
and current Planning Commissioners. The City Council acknowledged that the next step would
be to consider the plan presented by staff and provide direction on whether to implement the
plan. 

This staff report provides information on opinions sought from former Councilmembers and

former and current Planning Commissioners. Secondly, the staff report addresses the direction
from the City Council to develop a plan that 1) repurposes the Planning Commission, 2) ensures
that public participation is protected and enhanced, and 3) establishes an implementation

schedule. 

Planning Commission/City Council Questionnaire

Staff determined that the most effective way to solicit opinions of former Planning
Commissioners and former Councilmembers was through a questionnaire. The questionnaire

allowed respondents to answer the same questions and to spend time needed to answer

thoroughly. The questionnaire also allows the City Council to see the responses first- hand, 
rather than a summary of verbal interviews conducted by staff. 

Staff identified seventeen former Planning Commissioners— not including two former Planning
Commissioners that currently serve on the City Council. Staff also identified former

Councilmembers— four of these Councilmembers also served as Planning Commissioners. 
Staff mailed a cover letter with background information and a questionnaire to former

Councilmembers and former Planning Commissioners ( Attachment B). Staff also solicited

information from current Planning Commissioners, seeking their thoughts on strategies to
ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on projects. Several current Planning
Commissioners provided comments to this request for input ( Attachment C). 

3- 



Attachment A

Staff received a total of twelve responses— eight from Planning Commissioners, two from
Councilmembers, and two from Planning Commissioners/ Councilmembers ( questionnaire

responses are provided in Attachment C). Staff notes some information from the questionnaire

responses in the paragraphs below. 

To the question, " do you believe the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the
Planning Commission," the following responses were received: 

Planning Commissioners: No — 3, Yes — 5

City Councilmembers: No — 1, Yes —1

Planning Commissioners/ City Councilmembers: No — 1, Yes — 1

Respondents that indicated " no" were asked to explain why not and those that answered " yes" 
were asked to explain why. Following is a summary of the responses to these questions: 

Why the City Council CANNOT effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning Commission": 
Value when Council is at arms length from cases, in the event of appeals, 

Extra layer of oversight, 

PC allows ordinary citizens to have a say in their government without winning an
election, 

Councils cannot always be objective because of political influence or lure of bolstering
the General Fund while Commissioners can make recommendations that benefit
neighborhoods without political pressure, 

A concern that the City Council will not have time to review plans or visit the site, thus
slowing down the approval process. 

Why the City Council CAN effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning Commission": 
Eliminating the Planning Commission " cuts out the middleman," 

Two current members are former Planning Commissioners and all the City Council
should be very familiar with the process, 

The City Council is already the final decision making body and the City Council is
supported by qualified staff and legal counsel, 

The low number of Planning Commission items do not justify a Planning Commission, 
there is duplication of a disputed issue, it is more efficient use of staff time, and more
discretion could be given to staff, 

Other cities have been able to operate without Planning Commissions, 
Decisions belong with elected representatives. 

The questionnaire asked about concerns that the respondents would have for disbanding the
Planning Commission. Following is a summary of the responses: 

One less layer of oversight, 

Reduces community involvement, 

An overloaded City Council may approve projects too quickly, 

Losing feedback from the community at a Planning Commission meeting ( however, this
could be taken over by the City Council), 

Less opportunity for public to weigh in on a decision ( it is at a hearing that many learn
about the project and the time between the Planning Commission meeting and the City
Council meeting is when research can take place), 
Appeal process would be eliminated, 

Time to train the Council. 



Attachment A

The questionnaire asked if the Planning Commission were disbanded, what measures the
respondents would recommend to safeguard the public' s opportunity to comment on a project or
permit. Following is a summary of the responses: 

Longer timelines and opportunities for community input, 

Utilize the City' s website — put all pending actions to be taken on the website, 
Post projects on social media, print and electronic media, 

Utilize the public forum during Council meetings to make sure opinions are heard, 
Increase public outreach ( e. g. focus groups), 
Post projects at The Home Depot, 

Current noticing is sufficient — would not increase public notice beyond 300 feet, 

Add a City Council meeting to only address land use/ planning issues. 

The final question posed on the questionnaire was " do you oppose, support or are neutral" 

regarding the disbanding of the Planning Commission. The following responses were received: 

Planning Commissioners: Oppose — 4, Support — 4

City Councilmembers: Oppose — 1, Support —1

Planning Commissioners/ City Councilmembers: Oppose —1, Support — 1

Proposal

Based on information discussed by the City Council and input from former Planning
Commissioners and Councilmembers, staff presents a proposal for City Council consideration. 
The proposal addresses three topics: 

1) Repurposing the Planning Commission, 
2) Ensuring that public participation is protected and enhanced, and
3) An implementation schedule. 

Repurposing the Planning Commission

On January 20, 2015 and during the goal setting workshop, Councilmembers weighed in on
expanded roles of former members of the Planning Commission in the future. The ideas shared

achieve goals of increasing community involvement and obtaining more input on policy issues. 
The ideas also continue support for the focus group concept. 

Staff recommends that if the Planning Commission is disbanded, the existing Planning
Commissioners form a Community Advisory Panel. Staff recommends that ultimately this Panel
be made up of three City Council appointees. The Panel members will serve as permanent

members of community focus groups. Each time a focus group is formed, one of the Panel
members will serve as the chair of the focus group. Staff continues to recommend that the

appointments are for three year terms. 

The value of using the former Planning Commissioners in this capacity is that they currently
serve as a link between the community and the City Council and have developed relationships
with staff. Perhaps most importantly, they can provide leadership for the focus groups that
currently does not exist. Because focus groups meet only a few times, staff tends to be the de
facto leader of the groups. Having the leadership of a former Planning Commissioner will
ultimately be helpful to ensure that the focus groups are not overly staff driven. 

The other advantage of having the former Planning Commissioners serve in this capacity is that
there may be times when the City Council does not need a full focus group to provide feedback



Attachment A

on a community issue. In these occurrences, the City Council can direct the issue to only the
Community Advisory Panel. 

Ensuring Public Participation

One of the concerns identified during the City Council discussions and through the
questionnaire sent to former Planning Commissioners and Councilmembers is the issue of
ensuring that the public has an opportunity to weigh in on public projects. One of the concerns

with eliminating the Planning Commission is that the public has only one opportunity to voice
opinion on a project. However, it is important to note that of the 31 issues heard by the Planning
Commission between 2011 and 2014, only 12 also required City Council consideration. In other

words, with the current system, over the past four years, 60 percent of projects only required
one hearing, which was at the Planning Commission level. 

If the Planning Commission is disbanded, staff recommends three strategies be implemented to
protect the public' s opportunity to provide comments on projects. 

Expanded Noticing Area — staff recommends that the noticing area from projects be expanded
from a 300 foot radius to a 500 foot radius. This will increase the number of residents receiving
notices at a nominal cost to the developer. 

Billboard" Noticing — staff recommends that on Conditional Use Permits, Planned Development

Permits, Major Subdivisions, and Variances that the City require the applicant to pay for the
posting of a 4' x 8' or 4' x 4' sign noticing the public hearing on the site ( similar to the examples
shown below). 

Neighborhood Meetings — staff recommends that " billboard" noticing projects ( as defined in the
previous paragraph) require a neighborhood meeting. The meeting would be held prior to the
City Council' s review of the project and costs associated with the meeting would be borne by
the applicant. Noticing of the meeting would include mailed notice to those within 500 feet of
the project, through a general circulation newspaper, and on the City' s website. 

The purpose of the meeting would be to present the project to the neighborhood and allow for a
dialogue between existing community members and developers. Staff would facilitate the

conversation and meetings would ideally be held at a location near the project, such as a school
site. Ideas discussed would be recorded and presented as part of the public record at the City
Council meeting at which the project is discussed. The neighborhood feedback would be used

as a tool for the City Council to evaluate the project and perhaps require additional conditions. 
Ideally, the developer will incorporate valuable feedback into the plans that will ultimately be
reviewed by the City Council. 

0



Attachment A

Implementation

If the City Council determines to proceed with the proposal presented in this staff report, staff
recommends that it establish a goal to implement the plan at the beginning of 2016. This

process will require review and modification of the Municipal Code ( specifically Chapter 2. 08 — 
Planning Commission and Chapter 17 — Zoning). Any references to the Planning Commission
and noticing requirements in other chapters will also be sought. In order to meet the goal of a

January 1St implementation date, staff recommends that the City Council consider an ordinance
addressing the Municipal Code changes no later than December 15, 2015. Because this could

prove to be a significant project, staff may need to modify target completion dates of City
Council priority projects that are being coordinated by the Development Services Department. 

In the meantime, staff recommends that the current Planning Commissioners be asked to be
part of two focus groups that will be discussed further by the City Council on July

15th—

the

General Plan group and the Recreation focus group. 

Conclusion: 

Staff seeks direction from the City Council on whether to implement the proposal set forth in this
staff report. 

BE



Attachment B

Mr./Ms. Former PC/ CC

123 Anystreet Drive

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

SUBJECT: Lemon Grove City Council Seeks Your Input on the Disbanding of the Planning
Commission

Dear Mr./ Ms. Former PC/ CC: 

The City Council has been considering alternatives to operating a Planning Commission. A

proposal is being considered to disband the Planning Commission and have the City Council
assume Planning Commission duties ( like in the cities of Imperial Beach, Poway and Santee). 
Over the past few years, the City' s development code has allowed more land uses to be
approved at the staff level, which has reduced Planning Commission activity. In the past four

years, the Planning Commission has met an average of 5. 5 times annually, considering an
average of 7. 75 permits each year. 

One primary concern with eliminating the Planning Commission is potentially limiting the
opportunity for the public to provide comments on development projects. One significant

advantage is a streamlined approval process, making Lemon Grove potentially more attractive
to developers. To mitigate the concern about limiting public involvement in planning processes, 
a plan is being developed that could expand noticing areas around projects ( from 300 feet up to
700 feet) and/ or require neighborhood outreach meetings for larger projects. 

In determining how to move forward, the City Council expressly directed staff to solicit opinions
from former City Councilmembers and former and current Planning Commissioners. A survey is
enclosed that seeks your insights on the matter. Please respond to the questions and return the

survey in the pre -stamped envelope by April 8, 2015. Your completed survey will be shared
with the City Council as part of an upcoming agenda item. 

thank you in advance for your response. Please contact me at ( 619) 825- 3800 or

gm itchell( cD-lemongrove. ca. gov if you have any questions or comments. 

Sincerely, 

Graham Mitchell

City Manager

Enclosure

In



Attachment B

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name: 

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

Planning Commission _ City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? 

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
and/ or City Council? 

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

YES _ NO

If you answered NO, why not? 

If you answered YES, why? 
6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose _ Support _ Neutral

9) Please share any additional comments ( you may use the back of this page). 

10- 



QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES

1) Former Planning Commissioners
2) Former Councilmembers

3) Former Planning Commissioners/City Councilmembers
4) Current Planning Commissioners

Attachment C

SEE



1) Name ( Optional?): 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

Planning Commission City Council Both

Y Y ( tannin C. ' 
I

3 What ears did you served on th P,._

M

orli " h and/ or City Council? 7ppq— - 1` 1

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
and/ or City Council? 

I

wtll e- oy  mQpckv- e`
a ts S c,  aT u aL  

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

YES X NO
If you answered NO, why not? 

If you answered YES, why? 

io 6vc c arvv- 

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 

D r,- \ e; X6- 10 S

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

Lc) N\) y i 2 IuIQS a4Ad ivwe— 

op
TDA co m( oLAA, I { \ 

I

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose Support _ Neutral



Graham Mitchell

From: Brian Kimball < bk4phx@yahoo. com> 

Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2015 2: 01 PM
To: Graham Mitchell

Subject: Planning Commission Survey

Hi Graham, 

1. Brian Kiimball

2. Planning Commission
3. 2002 - 2005

4. First appeal for citizens and business' after a decision rendered by the community development, first approval for
the community development departments with concern for variances of city code and policies, and similar low level
agenda items that need interpretation and or approval. 

5. No. The planning commission is a standard practice in California' s governmental structure. It allows for ordinary
citizens to have a say in their government without winning an election
6. People already feel that the government runs rampant over them, and this is just one more example that they
would point out. Elimination would not allow residents to be involved unless the ran and won an elected office. 
7. Publicize the cities website, and put on the website the need for the community to be involved, and put on all the
pending actions to be taken
8. The planning commission should be maintained IMHO

Thank you for allowing me to participate in this survey. It is nice to have the government ask the people what they
think, and even if it does not go their way it is OK. My opinion has been asked for, it was given, and it is a
pleasure. 



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name ( Optional?): 1-7, pf-)"e- IJ

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

X Planning Commission — City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/or City Council? I q q 1. 9 9
4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission

and/ or City Council? 
d. 

Advisi . ng Council developments of SF homes and multi-tamily buildings, Installation of last food emporia on Broadway (therba too many

andout of step with residenWreped, stated desire tot betterrestaurants); reviewd rules, limiting numeand placement.of rs; 

overhauled the Sign, ordinance; conducted plarming/koning studies and reviewed planning regs like PDPs arid, Code Enforcement ( subsequent
changes adopted) ;, placement of a skateboard area', toes for use of civic parks, application toes, permits, eta, and much more, 

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

YES NO

If you answered NO, why not? 
Councils, however well motivated, cannot always objectively adopt sound planning regulations sans political Influence, (Including from other
cities) andtor the lure of developer toes to bolster General Funds. Volunteer citizens (who should not be pakd)* on a Planning Commission
make recornmendlations that benefit, nalghborhoqds arid the City sans Influence of any kind, This Is not to Impugn the capability of: any council, 
but to stress the importance of Involving and, listening to re(4,mmendaflons from Its citizens, Council members end up talking to each other
andlor to staff ( who may not live In the community, may, have: less Interest In its history or future and am moving on to other cities), 

a If you answered YES, why? 

6) If the City Council disbt.anded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 
An overloaded council may approve projects too quickly. Major and minor civic projects would go forward sans Commission recommenda- 
tions. Example: Monica I has become the ghetto that many of us predicted ( this, In a town that, historically, had no ghettos as all ethnicities
have been evenly spread through neighborhoods, making it the best integrated town in the county); the building would have remained a large, 
while, ugly thing at the entrance to town without public and Commission input, which resulted In mitigations. Also, code enforcement, a part of
city regs, is a troubled area, at best, and needs Commission oversight, too. 

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

A redoubled effort to post projects on social, print and electronic media might help. But we all know how distracted people are. Even In a small
city, many are clueless about what's happening around them. This Is a key reason why Planning Commissions become the eyes and ears of
residents. " Streamlining" implies Impatience with public input, a dangerous route for any elected body to travel. Also, reliance on Project
Working Groups, however effective, cannot replace a Commission that pays attention to the whole city year-round. 

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

X Oppose _ Support Neutral

1 was startled to learn that I would be paid $ 35 per commission meeting. Later, I donated several times to City projects as a way of returning
that money. Given the nature of a commissioner' s job, no remuneration should be provided; it is an honor to serve and vital to civic health. To
paraphrase Ralph Nader, It is " citizens' work." 



62

CITY OF LEMON 6ROVE
PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name ( Optional?): 

4. 6_712110 j _0

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

X Planning Commission _ City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? 
OL OO -s– -- - 7- 009

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
and/ or City Council? 

U  

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

AYES — NO

If you answered NO, why not? 

ff you answered YES, why? 
M

Z 
LL

ncern would you have?(
o

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning C mmi, siori, what co

z  V0,

4, 

7 If the City Cot, ncil disbanded the Planning ComrVn, at measuresmeasures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public's opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? zAA 
v

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose X Support Neutral





CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name ( Optional?):... ) S

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

Planning Commission _ City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? 
vU ^ U JV0

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
and/ or City Council? 

r u 2

6) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

YES NO

If you answered NO, why not? 

If you answered YES, why? 
n / J

2 l),= m 6ca S A2 i; Fd 2Mi2 p. C . M c -,&, c2 S

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 

A- LA CPL & F fol C0 1) c_'?,- rX- tCS) f, 11J 7- S 7-6

G,e- i r,/,/
p1- vEO rn/ cr -r-'l

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public's opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

F" P>G r G vN -TR f4 f (-( ': 9. - Fd C Lr S cJ ft 6 u PS

wi 13SIli f dS7tN6; 5

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose „
mm/

Support Neutral

9) Please share any additional comments ( you may use the back of this page). 



1of2

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name: Leonard Kottong

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

X Planning Commission City Council Both

3) What years did you serve on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? 

1993 — 2000

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning
Commission and/or City Council? 

a) Hear and decide applications for conditional use permits, variances, and planned

development permits other than major subdivisions and modifications to same. 

b) Hear and recommend to City Council modification, approval or disapproval to
tentative maps and planned development permits for major subdivisions. 

c) Hear and decide appeals made to decisions of the Community Development
Director. 

d) Hear and make recommendations to City Council with regards to the general plan, 

specific plans, zoning amendments and amendments to land use regulations. 
e) Perform tasks assigned by the City Council with regards to land use regulation. 

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

X YES NO

If you answered NO, why not? 

If you answered YES, why? 

Outside of the courts the City Council is the final deciding body on all applications
retained for their approval, all land use ordinances, the general plan, specific plans and

appeals to decisions of the Planning Commission. In addition, City Council is supported
by a staff of qualified land use professionals and legal counsel. I do believe the City
Council could effectively fulfill the duties they are now responsible for. 



2 of 2

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 

a) Elimination of one public hearing that gives persons impacted by the
recommendations or decisions being made an opportunity to learn how the land
use process works before a final decision is made. It is at this hearing they learn
the basis of any decision or recommendation, that there is documentation in the
form of staff reports, ordinances and general and specific plans that form the basis
for recommendations and decisions, and decisions of the Planning Commission
are appealable to City Council. There is time between the two public hearings to
research the basis of decisions and to mount a cohesive effort to obtain

appropriate mitigation from project impact. 

b) Except in the case of appeals from the decisions of the Community Development

Director, eliminating the Planning Commission and the public hearings conducted
by the Planning Commission creates a one and done situation. If you don' t like
the decision you can appeal it to the same people who made the decision, or

possibly the decision is final and there is no appeal. 
c) Change in the role of City Council from being the reasonable arbiter of decisions

and recommendations made by the Planning Commission to that of being the
deciding body alone. 

d) Elimination of an area where citizens can become involved in city government

and serving the community. Loss of a pool of potential candidates for
appointment or election to City Council. 

e) The main reason given for eliminating the Planning Commission is reduced
activity due to changes in the development code allowing staff level approvals. 
Another reason for reduced activity may be the economy since the start of the
2008 crash in the economy. With an improving economy more applications may
be received. It is interesting that older approved tentative map projects are only

now being constructed or completed ( San Diego Gas and Electric Site, Mount
Vernon Ave. across from Berry St. Park and San Miguel Ave. across from the
school are a few I' ve noticed recently) 

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you
recommend to be taken to ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on

projects/ permits? 

Provide the maximum time possible between the notice and the public hearing. Provide
in the notice links to staff reports and project documentation. 

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

X Oppose Support . Neutral



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name ( Optional?): 0-h1 C: V-- Pe-NA,, E Z L

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

Planning Commission City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? % — 3

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
and/ or City Council? fzcv® pooz' /, vre) o/ U z4) N/ 0` 1:f— 

Lr c,.., S / Z N  
e Deus

c7

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

X YES NO

werud " why not? e 0 o
1

rIJ! 
A- AAOee- 

c e i 7 -AFF- 1

If you answered YES, why? rwO

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 

Covuc " u*)7 e Ar3[. vsH ` Ttlid—ereZ7,4117 ffe1`r21nla. rOn`e2 u2 Na- 

eW Srr AJ4 M" IA -V5 02 f t. 1VIe ir n, 5 ' a , 42 ` rler S- 4

TO ids x06 c. e- t, be 1AA- ? 

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

p!04l t o 0. C_ % NN / NOS d 5ScJ   pe), 

klo v,% l--:ePVv 7- 

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose XSupport _ Neutral



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name ( Optional?): di I Y)) e

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

XPlanning Commission City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? , 2003

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
arid/ or City Council?, '

i

0 c I ,,) on rimi ts

6aV6 0-Y) 

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

9 YES NO

0 If you answered NO, why not? 

If you answered YES, why? 
04" 1ore t)(, <101 coj

e f" 1) ex, i VAaI f 4 J d - O er,5 A Qe cc P ( A0, 6)) C4') 1CA_ A P(J-b
WDLA ' s"We, me, 4 ym _ fwif). AIL fL

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 

I =W

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

l IVC, 
C& SCA F[

Z

6', P"t, -1 ( A- buklQ no

P AAY (Vl A-,_ C' Acrlj 300-a. 

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose Support Neutral



HOWARD P. COOK

7136 ROSEMARY LN. 

LEMON GROVE, CA. 

91945

I SERVED ON THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

FROM 2010 TO 2014. 

I BELEAVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION

FULFILLED DUTIES THAT IT WAS ASKED TO DO. 

AFTER REVIWING THE AMOUNT OF HOURS THEY

MET DURRING THE FOUR YEARS THAT I SPENT

ON THE CITY COUNCIL, I BELEAVE THAT THE

CITY COUNCIL COULD HANDLE THOSE DUTIES

WITH OUT IT BECOMING TO MUCH OF A WORK

LOAD. 

I ALSO THINK BY DISBANDING THE PLANNING

COMMISSION, IT WOULD STREAMLINE THINGS

AND SAVE NOT ONLY THE CITY TIME AND

MONEY BUT ALSO THE CONTRACTOR AS WELL. 

I DON' T THINK I WOULD HAVE TOO MANY

CONCERNS, REGARDING THE DISBANDING OF

THE PLANING COMMISSION. SEVERAL CITIES' 

HAVE DONE THE SAME, AND HAVE FOUND IT TO

SPEED PERMITS AS WELL PLANS AND OTHER

THINGS UP BY AS MUCH AS 60 DAYS. THERE IS



NOT TOO MANY BIG PROJECTS THAT COULD

COME UP, WHEN LEMON GROVE IS PRETTY MUCH

BUILT OUT. THOSE THAT DO COME UP COULD

VERY EAZLY BE HADDLED BY THE CITY

COUNCIL. 

DO I OPPOSE, SUPPORT, OR ARE NEUTRAL TO
DISBANDING THE PLANNING COMMISSION? 

I SUPPORT THE DISBANDING OF THE PLANNING
COMMISSION. 

HOWARD P. COOK



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name ( Optional?): 

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commi cion, City Council, or both: 

Planning Commission City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? 
Ov.* cCA L

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission

and or City Council? I

p  

PALSO
Lf ram 0f--6 t

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties oftlle l ning
Comrriissiorl? 

X/ SES NO

n If you answered NO, why not
Qo  Or

VSJ

mom.
Ld h

pQ KQ
0 44 re - ; wily? 

C, 

C ''D
Q

If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concern,, would you hav,)? 

t V;.V\ e, Aj O LKt 

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public's opportunity to comment on projects/permits? 

s

11-

16: y NDS LxKQ PS w

8) Do ou oppose, support, or are i° e 11. 11. l to staan in It6P6ii   01 61 
ill, P ri wing Commission . 

Oppose Support Neutral

N

f-Av,z D



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name ( Optional?): 

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

Planning Commission -— City Council Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? 
P1-gNN11VC1 / 9PPROK PFCq- iffy eSOAPVO- 11M19,V 144s - X194- a&oo

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
and/ or City Council? 

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

YES NO

If you answered NO, why not? 

If you answered YES, why? 

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public's opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose Support Neutral



When I first read in the paper that the Lemon Grove City Council was considering eliminating the

planning commission, I thought it was a positive move. After reading the city manager' s letter I have had
second thoughts. 

Here are the reasons I feel the City of Lemon Grove should maintain a planning commission. 

1. It gives the citizens an appeals process that I know from experience is important. 

2. As I recall the City Council sets codes and policies. The planning commission implements those
codes and policies. 

Planning commissioners are appointed not elected. They can work out problems on projects

Millers Ranch, Home Depot, city plan). This lessons most of the heated public hearings before
the project reaches the council. 

4. Planning commission provides a good training experience for future council members. 
5. There are times when people are willing to comment before the planning commission, but not

city council. 

6. If the planning commissioners do their job properly, it is a challenging job. However it is satisfying
to know you have contributed to your community. 

I am sure you will consider this move carefully and make the best decision for the citizens of Lemon
Grove. 



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

PLANNING COMMISSION SURVEY

1) Name: Tom Clabby

2) Did you serve on the Planning Commission, City Council, or both: 

Planning Commission _ City Council X Both

3) What years did you served on the Planning Commission and/ or City Council? Planning
Commission: 1991- 1992. City Council: 1992- 2008

4) What role did the Planning Commission play when you served on the Planning Commission
and/ or City Council? Generally the planning commission convened at the will of the City
Development Service Departments. ( Planning, engineering). Meeting agendas by the staff
were presented to the commissioners for comments and or approval. Similar to existing city
council meetings. Now that the counsel no longer has redevelopment responsibilities the

disbandment of the planning commission should not pose and additional burden on the City
Council or Public. Often when I was on the Planning Commission our recommendatons or
decisions were over turned. That is the reason I ran for City Council in 1992. 

5) Do you believe that the City Council could effectively fulfill the duties of the Planning
Commission? 

X YES NO

If you answered NO, why not? 

If you answered YES, why? City decisions belong with the elected representatives. 
Council verses appointed Commissioners) 

6) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what concerns would you have? 
None, if any thing I believe developers' want and our residents want approval process that is
streamlined and transparent. 

7) If the City Council disbanded the Planning Commission, what measures would you

recommend be taken to ensure the public' s opportunity to comment on projects/ permits? 

The Public always has the opportunity to comment on items brought before the City Council
such as projects and permits etc. Disbanding also presents a cost savings to the Taxpayers
of our Community, which is a consideration that sometimes is overlooked. The Council no
longer has redevelopment issues to review and therefore can handle the extra requirements
and use of less staff time. 

8) Do you oppose, support, or are neutral to disbanding the Planning Commission? 

Oppose _..... X Support Neutral

9) Please share any additional comments ( you may use the back of this page). N/ A



Graham Mitchell

Lemon Grove City Manager

The Planning Commission' s responsibilities have been clearly stated many times. 

What hasn' t been stated is what the Planning Commission is beyond its official responsibilities. 

The Planning Commission, as stated, is not a policy body. It is, however, a guiding voice to that policy body. 
Numerous times the City Council has asked for direction and input on items they were considering. This input
is requested, I believe, because the Council has selected Planning Commission members that they trust to have
valued input that reflect multiple positions from throughout the community. 

The Planning Commission, as non -elected officials, is exactly what Council and the city desire from a
community forum. A trusted body that is concerned about the direction the city is taking and wants to have
input in its own future. They are first and foremost volunteers. Yes they receive a small stipend for their
service, but no commissioner ever applied to the position for the pay. 

One clear advantage to having a Planning Commission is the consistency of input. A group that is both stable
and fluid. It is designed to be a body that can be molded as Council desires. A group that City Council and the
community can count on to be responsible and available. 

The Planning Commission is also, if nothing else, the extended eyes and ears of the Council as well as the rest
of the community. 

While it may be true that some cost savings may result in eliminating the Planning Commission, any reports
that staff is currently preparing for the Planning Commission, will still have to be prepared for the City
Council. While having the City Council handle Planning Commission duties will only extend the meetings a
short amount of time, it' s not only the Council that this extended time affects. Many city and county
representatives, including the Sheriffs dept, Fire dept, and city attorney are also subject to the longer
meetings. 

It has been suggested that Planning Commissioners may not have the technical expertise to handle some
decisions. While Planning Commissioners are not necessarily selected based on their technical abilities, several
past Planning Commissioners have certainly had a level of technical expertise that more than qualified them
for the position. Some of these former commissioners have since been elected to the City Council. Other

Planning Commissioners, without the same level of technical expertise, have also been elected to the City
Council. Does their election to Council suddenly increase their technical knowledge or make them more

qualified? As with anything in life, experience is often the best teacher. 

It has been my great fortune to have served on the Planning Commission for more than 10 years. 

I hope to continue in this capacity as long as the Council deems it beneficial. I fully understand if their decision
is to head in another direction. 

Respectfully, 

Bob Bailey



Graham Mitchell

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Follow Up Flag: 

Flag Status: 

Good Morning Graham, 

Thank you for including us on this. 

Yepiz, Susan < Susan. Yepiz@sdcounty. ca. gov> 

Wednesday, April 29, 2015 9: 13 AM
Graham Mitchell

RE: Future of Planning Commission

Follow up
Completed

I wanted to say, I get to work with absolutely wonderful staff in the Development Services
Department. I have contacted them 2 hours before a planning commission meeting about

additional questions I have and they were able to talk to me for a good 30- 45 minutes. 

I wanted to ask if we had ever considered hiring a professional outside consultant to review the
structure of our City departments before we consider removing the planning commission. 

Reviewing our current business process and possibly restructuring of the City Departments may
be our first step in considering if we want to eliminate a department. Especially with a general
plan update in the near future. 

As far as your plan here are some of my ideas; 

1. Modify Planning Commissions Responsibilities

I know you have said, in the past, that you wish we had a way of organizing volunteers and

putting together more community service projects. The planning commission would be a great
group to help organize events, community service programs, and volunteers. We could also
help to work on the update of our 20 -year-old general plan, or be actively out and about the
community as a " boots on the ground" initiative to help clean- up and re-energize our downtown
district. Help get the word out to citizens on certain projects and events. 

2. Strategies to Maintain Public Involvement

We could also continue to work with focus groups in ways that give more people an opportunity

to have a seat at the table. This setting gives a larger group of people a chance to participate in
an open dialogue with city staff. We could have more on- line polls and public outreach
programs. Work on the Councils directive for more recreational events and facilities. 

I understand that eliminating the Planning Commission would shorten and streamline the
development process for developers. I don' t wish to impose red tape on potential development. 

However the " unknown" that could develop in the dual public hearing process is a GOOD thing. 

Not only for liability purposes but also for airing out the laundry, getting it out in a public
setting and making sure all those that want to attend do, all those that want to be heard also do
so. We would then be able to show, not only was there a public hearing at the Planning
Commission, but also at the City Council meeting, on two different nights and two different
dates, in case one of those you were unable to attend one of those. The more discussion we

have, will hopefully bring to a head issues we want to address now instead of down the line
where it can be much more costly. 



Also, from what I hear from Carol Dick, our city is already mostly developed. There is only the
potential for small developments or redevelopments in the future due to our size. Making a
change specifically for potential developers is not in the best interest of our citizens. 

What I' m hearing from the council meetings I have attended based on future of the planning
commission is that the advisory board to the council and the dual process system is not
necessary. We were appointed to investigate projects and to dig a little deeper that the City
Council would normally do, so we can make recommendations based on our finding facts. I
understand the City Council is fully qualified to handle all the tasks asked of the commission. 
However, I feel that having more citizens look at everything would help take care of the
unknown" that may potentially occur. 

We hada great Planning Commission meeting on Monday with a full room! Commissioner Bob
Bailey made some suggestions to a plan amendment, that would save the applicant thousands
of dollars. This may not have been recognized by the City Council if it were to have been on the
agenda. 

I hope this helped. Let me know if you have any further questions. 
Susan Yepiz



Graham Mitchell

From: seancole@aol. com

Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2015 4:15 PM
To: Graham Mitchell , 

Subject: Re: Planning Commission

Hi Graham, 

You are familiar with the events which led to my interest in serving on the Lemon Grove Planning
Commission. I have found it to be good opportunity be of service to my community without the
overwhelming responsibility which comes more intensive assignments. 

I believe an added layer of common sense review is a benefit the City and City Council gain by
having a planning commission. The projects or initiatives which ultimately are appealed to the
City Council have the sound logic and concerns of the Commission documented and vetted at an
open public meeting first. This gives the Council a solid base to start from when they review and
usually uphold the Commission' s decision. Without the Commission you will need to find a good
starting point for the Council to form it's base. I think doing away with the Commission will detract
from that " public process" feature feature you mention below. 

So on to your question about how to protect that if it is done away with. I think city staff are still
going to end up managing some sort of forum, comprised of the public, regardless of whether it's
officially called a " planning commission" or not. I believe that when our citizens find ' that issue' 
which they feel compels them to attend and hear a discussion and decision be made - they will
expect to hear a conversation which includes how it was vetted through the public. Whether it be
neighborhood/ developer" meetings as you suggest below or some other form of outreach - the

public will expect the Council to draw their advice from some forum which has heard, 

acknowleged and considered public input. And to not have a City Council meeting be the first
public vetting. In order to do that, City Staff will end up managing an entity or process for that to
occur. 

I don' t know that I have any precise offering as to what the new entity or process would look like
just that it should have an air of transparancy and incorporate public input prior to discussion by
the Council. I also have to wonder if the Council is aware of the added work it will entail when

lumped onto their already busy calendar of city business. If doing away with the Planning
Commission in favor of a " different looking" process ends up being more expedient, either by
reduced cost, staff management time or enhanced review then I understand and support your
decision to reccomend as much. 

Respectfully, 

Sean



Attachment D

LEMON GROVE ;CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. Date _ January 20,
r

201

Dept. ity' 1er" fip 

Item Title: : Planning Commission Analysis) 

Staff Contact: 1Graham Mitchell, City Manager] 

Recommendation: 

Receive report and provide direction. 

Item Summary: 

At its October 21, 2014 meeting, the City Council directed staff to provide an analysis regarding the
Lemon Grove Planning Commission. On November 4, 2014, staff presented an initial analysis to

the City Council. The City Council requested that staff provide additional information regarding
several specific questions. 

The staff report ( Attachment A) provides information regarding four specific questions asked by
the City Council as well as other information requested. As a reference, staff provided a copy of
the November 4, 2014 staff report ( Attachment B). 

Fiscal Impact: 

None.: 

Environmental Review: 

U Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

A. Staff Report

B. November 4, 2014 Staff Report — "Planning Commission" 

1- 



LEMON GROVE ICITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date ! January 20. 2015

Item Title: ; Planning Commission Analysis

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Discussion: 

At its October 21, 2014 meeting, the City Council directed staff to provide an analysis regarding
the Lemon Grove Planning Commission. On November 4, 2014, staff presented an initial

analysis to the City Council. In the staff report ( Attachment B), information was provided

regarding: 1) Planning Commission Responsibilities, 2) Planning Commission Activity, 3) 

Streamlining the Approval Process, 4) Planning Commission Costs, 5) Benefits and Drawbacks, 
and 6) Design Review Boards. 

During the November
4th

meeting, the City Council provided feedback and asked for additional
information, requesting that staff specifically address the following questions: 

o If the planning commission were to be dissolved, what are alternative means to ensure
community input is heard and expanded on development projects? 

o Besides a planning commission, are there other ways to for the City to proactively
engage its citizens regarding development projects and other community issues? 

o If the planning commission were to be dissolved, what is the timeframe for that to be
implemented? 

o If the planning commission were to be dissolved, what would the impact be to City
Council agendas? 

The following sections provide information regarding the four questions asked by the City
Council as well as other information requested. 

Alternative Means to Solicit Community Input on Projects

One of the primary purposes of a planning commission is to review development projects and to
provide a forum for community comment regarding the project. The scope of the planning

commission' s purview is defined by the City' s Municipal Code. The planning commission is not
granted authority to act outside of their prescribed scope. 

If the City Council were to dissolve the planning commission, the City Council would hear
projects previously heard by the planning commission. It is important to note that of the 13

Conditional Use Permits or Planned Development Permits considered by the planning
commission in the past two years, only two have also been considered by the City Council— 
meaning only two projects required more than one public hearing prior to approval. 

To ensure an even greater outreach and community engagement than exists now, staff has
identified two possible strategies ( NOTE: staff has identified potential unintended consequences

for each, which are identified on page 5 of this report): 

1) Expand the Noticing Area — currently, the City provides public notices to property owners
within a 300 foot radius of a project (this is the minimum distance prescribed by State law). The

City Council could consider expanding that radius to 500 or 700 feet. Staff used two recently
approved projects to understand the impact that an expanded noticing area would have

N



noticing maps will be provided to the City Council separately). For the recently approved
CityMark project, 37 property owners were notified within 300 feet of the project. If the noticing
radius was expanded to 500 feet, 101 owners would have been notified. If expanded to 700
feet, 147 owners would have been notified. The cost comparison for three noticing
requirements is $ 31 for 37 notices, $ 84 for 101 notices, and $ 122 for 147 notices ( the applicant

pays for the cost to mail notices as well as newspaper noticing). 

Staff also considered a development project surrounded by single family neighborhoods. The

Vista Serrano project ( 9 lot subdivision located at 7128 San Miguel Avenue) required a noticing
of 75 property owners. If the noticing radius was expanded to 500 feet, 145 owners would have
been notified. If the noticing radius was expanded to 700 feet, 214 owners would have been
notified. The cost comparison for three noticing requirements is $ 62 for 75 notices, $ 120 for
145 notices, and $ 177 for 214 notices. 

2) Required Neighborhood Outreach Meeting – for larger projects, the City Council could require
that a project applicant conduct a meeting with neighbors within a designated radius of the
project prior to a hearing. This meeting, facilitated by City staff, would allow the developer to
introduce the project and to solicit feedback. 

Proactively Engaging Citizens

One of the topics of discussion during the November
4th

City Council meeting was meaningful
ways to engage with Lemon Grove residents. The three focus groups conducted in the past

three years have changed the way in which the City solicits feedback from its residents on
defined topics. Staff believes that there are opportunities to expand this concept for other types
of projects. It is important to recognize that focus groups require staff resources to manage. 

However, these groups have the opportunity to be an extension of staff to a certain degree. 

Staff has developed a list of several potential smaller focus groups that could be considered

several of these tasks are currently assigned to the planning commission): 
o Local skaters and artists to provide feedback on the expansion of the skate spot, 

o Group to help develop and manage an organized downtown volunteer crew, 

o Planning group to help staff review a larger -scale development project, 

o Group to review the implementation of the City' s General Plan, 

o Group to consider updating special treatment areas and consider development goals in
those areas. 

These smaller focus groups have the potential to provide leadership opportunities for residents
wanting to become involved in their community. Staff would caution that more than two groups

at a time may be overwhelming for staff to manage given current staffing levels. 
Implementation Plan

4

During the November
4th

City Council meeting, staff was asked to provide the length of time it
would take to dissolve the planning commission. In reality, the City Council could adopt a
simple ordinance that states when the term " planning commission" is used in the Municipal
Code, it is referring to the " planning body which is defined as the city council." Once adopted, 

the City Attorney and staff would prepare a comprehensive Municipal Code amendment to
reflect the change. Staff projects that the entire amendment process would require approximate
6 to 9 months— this change to the Municipal Code would also provide an opportunity to clean up
other sections related to the planning process. Alternatively, the City Council could formally
dissolve the planning commission in approximately 6 to 9 months once all of the clean up
language is prepared. 

se



Impact to City Council Agendas

During the November
4th

City Council meeting, staff was asked for its opinion on the impact to
the City Council' s agenda. In the past four years ( 48 months), the planning commission met 22
times and considered 31 projects or permits. Of those, 12 projects were also considered by the
City Council. The table below shows the frequency of meetings and permits/ projects
considered by year: 

Over the past four years, having a planning commission eliminated 19 agenda items from the
City Council agenda. Using data from this four year period, if the planning commission were
dissolved, the City Council could expect to consider an additional project every two to three
months. Planning commission meetings rarely exceeded 90 minutes. 

Other Questions

During the November
4th

meeting, staff was asked to address the issue of applicant appeals, 
unintended consequences, and data regarding project streamlining. 

Appeals — in the past four years, no applicants or neighboring property owners have appealed a
planning commission decision to the City Council. Because the City Council, per the Municipal
Code, has the final decision authority on land use issues, an applicant with a denied project can
either redesign the project to satisfy the City Council or file a lawsuit against the City. 
Applicants or neighboring property owners currently have this course of action available if a
decision reached by the City Council is not satisfactory to them. 

Unintended Consequences — staff identified several potential consequences from several of the

suggestions identified in this staff report. First, staff is concerned about the conflict that may
arise out of the creation of " pre - development neighborhood review groups" or " neighborhood

outreach meetings." Many times neighbors of a project ( especially a subdivision project) prefer
the land remain undeveloped. Although property owners have the right to develop land
according to the requirements of the Municipal Code, pre - development neighborhood groups
may feel entitled to provide project review, above and beyond project input. Hence, the creation
of this group may foster an adversarial environment for development. 

Staff is also concerned about the impacts that additional noticing requirements may have on
mom and pop" businesses. For a larger development, this expanded requirement may not

pose a burden. However, for a small business owner, the additional cost may be difficult to
bear. 

Project Streamlining — as identified in the November 4th staff report, staff estimates that the time

saved to process a project is approximately 30 days, assuming the project requires approval by
both the planning commission and the City Council. In addition to time, there is also a cost

savings experienced by the applicant by having to only attend one meeting. For example, the

Permits/ Projects Permits/ Projects

of Heard by Requiring Council
Year Meetings Commission Approval

2011 7 11 .............._ 0

2012 7 10 5

2013 3 4 3

2014 5 6 4

TOTAL

mm. ... ..................... 

22 31 12

Over the past four years, having a planning commission eliminated 19 agenda items from the
City Council agenda. Using data from this four year period, if the planning commission were

dissolved, the City Council could expect to consider an additional project every two to three
months. Planning commission meetings rarely exceeded 90 minutes. 

Other Questions

During the November
4th

meeting, staff was asked to address the issue of applicant appeals, 
unintended consequences, and data regarding project streamlining. 

Appeals — in the past four years, no applicants or neighboring property owners have appealed a
planning commission decision to the City Council. Because the City Council, per the Municipal

Code, has the final decision authority on land use issues, an applicant with a denied project can
either redesign the project to satisfy the City Council or file a lawsuit against the City. 

Applicants or neighboring property owners currently have this course of action available if a
decision reached by the City Council is not satisfactory to them. 

Unintended Consequences — staff identified several potential consequences from several of the

suggestions identified in this staff report. First, staff is concerned about the conflict that may
arise out of the creation of " pre - development neighborhood review groups" or " neighborhood

outreach meetings." Many times neighbors of a project ( especially a subdivision project) prefer
the land remain undeveloped. Although property owners have the right to develop land

according to the requirements of the Municipal Code, pre - development neighborhood groups
may feel entitled to provide project review, above and beyond project input. Hence, the creation

of this group may foster an adversarial environment for development. 

Staff is also concerned about the impacts that additional noticing requirements may have on
mom and pop" businesses. For a larger development, this expanded requirement may not

pose a burden. However, for a small business owner, the additional cost may be difficult to
bear. 

Project Streamlining — as identified in the November 4th staff report, staff estimates that the time

saved to process a project is approximately 30 days, assuming the project requires approval by
both the planning commission and the City Council. In addition to time, there is also a cost

savings experienced by the applicant by having to only attend one meeting. For example, the



recent CityMark project required two employees and an architect to attend two different

meetings. There are costs associated with attending these meetings. 

For many developers, the concern about cost is not as critical as the unpredictability of a
planning commission. There are times that planning commissioners do not understand intent
behind City Council policy/ goals or are not as sensitive to deviations that may be supported by
the City Council— in part, because they are not tasked to be policy makers. Developers would

prefer to meet with the body that has the final approval authority in order to ensure more
predictability in the approval process. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive the report and provide direction to staff. 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 7

Mtg. Dater May 5, 201 ) 
Dept. LWu lip Services

Item Title: Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 8. 08 and 8. 48 of the Lemon Grove
Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management
Practices ( BMP) Manual

Staff Contact: : Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce Ordinance No. 428 amending Sections of
Chapter 8. 08 ( Excavation and Grading) and Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater Management and

Discharge Control) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with reference to the Lemon Grove
Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual. 

Item Summary: 

On May 8, 2013, the Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) adopted Order No. R9- 2013- 
0001 ( Permit) and later amended it by Order No. R9- 2015- 0001 ( Permit). The Permit went into

effect on June 27, 2013 and requires that the City develop a Jurisdictional Runoff Management
Program ( JRMP) no later than June 27, 2015. The development of the JRMP requires an update to

City Municipal Code Chapter 8. 08 ( Excavation and Grading) and Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater

Management and Discharge Control). A Lemon Grove Best Management Practices Manual was

also developed in support of the JRMP and for reference in the aforementioned chapters. The
recommended updates to the ordinance; as required by the Permit, are consistent with updates
being made by other cities in the County. Staff recommends that the City Council introduce
Ordinance No. 428.: 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section 15301

Public Information: 

None  ; Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Ordinance No. 428 and BMP Manual

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 7www _ 

Mt Date Ma 5" 2 i5Mtg.  1. 1. 6

Item Title: Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 8. 08 and 8. 48 of the Lemon Grove
Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management
Practices ( BMP) Manual: 

Staff Contact: Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Discussion: 

The Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) adopted Order No. R9- 2013- 0001

Permit) on May 8, 2013 and later amended it by Order No. R9- 2015- 0001 ( Permit). The Permit

went into effect on June 27, 2013 and requires that the City develop a Jurisdictional Runoff
Management Program ( JRMP) no later than June 27, 2015. The development of the JRMP

requires an update to City Municipal Code Chapters 8. 08 ( Excavation and Grading) and

Chapters 8. 48 ( Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) and a reference to the Lemon
Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual ( Manual). The following summarizes the
updates to the aforementioned chapters of the Municipal Code. Additionally, a brief description
of the Manual has been provided. 

Chapter 8. 48 Stormwater Ordinance Update

8. 48. 010 Title, purpose, and intent. 

The language of this section was streamlined to clearly state the chapter's purpose. 

8. 48. 020 Definitions. 

Definitions were revised as needed for consistency with the definitions and terms used in the
Municipal Permit. Definitions were deleted for terms that are no longer referenced in the

ordinance and newly added terms were defined. More significantly, the definition of an illegal
discharge was updated to include irrigation runoff discharges and the term " stormwater

conveyance system" was replaced with the term " MS4" for consistency with the Municipal
Permit. 

8. 48. 030 General provisions. 

Text was updated to clearly establish support for the implementation and enforcement of the
City' s BMP Manual and to eliminate some unnecessary or repetitive administrative language. 
Relocated subsection H, " Guidance Documents" to Section 8. 48. 060. 

8. 48. 040 Discharge prohibitions. 

Includes updates to the types of discharges prohibited under the 2013 Municipal Permit, such
as discharges from irrigation runoff. 

8. 48. 050 Exemptions to discharge prohibitions. 

Includes updates to the types of conditionally allowed discharges under the 2013 Municipal
Permit and the specific conditions that must be met in order for these types of discharges to be
permitted. 

3,- 



Attachment A

8. 48. 060 Best management practice requirements for all dischargers. 

Eliminated specific BMPs and instead included reference to the City' s BMP Manual, which will
contain the minimum BMPs for industrial/ commercial/ municipal/ residential facilities and

construction sites. This is the recommended format, since if BMP requirements must be

modified, revisions can be made to only the BMP Manual, which should avoid the need for
additional Municipal Code amendments. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan ( SWPPP) 

requirements were also removed since this information will be covered by the BMP Manual. 
Subsections E, F, and G were deleted from this section since this information will be included in
the Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination section of the City' s updated Jurisdictional Runoff
Management Program document. 

8.48.070 Additional requirements for land disturbance activity. 
Eliminated specific BMPs and instead included reference to the City' s BMP Manual. Relocated

Agricultural Grading and Clearing" requirements to this section and removed unnecessary
information regarding the State Construction General Permit requirements. 

8. 48. 080 Additional requirements for all land development and redevelopment projects. 

Eliminated specific BMPs and instead included reference to the City' s BMP Design Manual. 

8.48. 090 Maintenance of BMPs. 

Added subsection H, " Assurance of Maintenance for Land Development Projects", which

establishes the requirement for development project proponents to provide the City with proof of
long- term maintenance plans for structural post -construction BMPs. 

8. 48. 100 Inspection and sampling. 
Rephrased language regarding access to structural BMPs for clarity. Removed reference to

easements since verbal or written permission is sufficient for granting City staff or contractors
access to structural post -construction BMPs when needed. 

Chapter 18. 08 Grading Ordinance

18. 08. 050 Definitions. 

Definitions were revised as needed for consistency with the definitions and terms used in the
Municipal Permit. Definitions were deleted for terms that are no longer referenced in the

ordinance and newly added terms were defined. More significantly, the definition of the term
environmentally sensitive areas" was added from the Municipal Permit. 

18. 08. 150 Erosion prevention. 

Similar to Chapter 8. 48, specific BMPs were removed from this chapter and instead a reference
to the City' s BMP Manual was included for minimum BMP requirements for construction sites. 

18. 08. 170 Erosion and sediment control required. 
The title of this section was changed to include the term " sediment control" because the

RWQCB is sensitive to the distinction between " erosion control" and " sediment control". 

Specific BMPs were removed from this chapter and instead a reference to the City' s BMP
Manual was included for minimum BMP requirements for construction sites. Additional

requirements were included in subsection B for post -construction BMP maintenance, repair, and
responsibility. 

This section previously stated that " a site is considered inactive if construction activities have
ceased for a period of 10 or more consecutive days." The definition of " inactive" was changed

to a period of 14 or more consecutive days of inactivity to be consistent with the requirements of

4.. 



Attachment A

the State' s Construction General Permit. This should prevent confusion of site

operators/ owners whose training typically refers to the State' s permit requirements. 

Lemon Grove BMP Manual

This Manual was developed to be used in conjunction with the City' s Stormwater Management
and Discharge Control Ordinance ( Stormwater Ordinance), Chapter 8. 48, and the water quality

protection provisions of the Excavation and Grading Ordinance, in Chapter 18. 08. This Manual

sets out in more detail, by project category, what dischargers must do to comply with the
ordinances and to receive permits for projects and activities that are subject to the ordinances. 
The Manual and the ordinances have been prepared to provide the City with the legal authority

necessary to comply with the requirements of the Permit. The Manual presents the minimum

BMP requirements for: 

construction sites; 

post -construction sites; 

industrial, commercial and municipal sites/ sources; and

residential sites/sources. 

It also includes the enforcement actions performed by the City that address stormwater
ordinance violations by different types of entities. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce Ordinance No. 428 amending Sections of
Chapter 8. 08 ( Excavation and Grading) and Chapter 8.48 ( Stormwater Management and

Discharge Control) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with reference to the Lemon Grove
Best Management Practices Manual. 

0



Attachment B

ORDINANCE NO. 428

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

AMENDING CHAPTER 8. 48 ( STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND DISCHARGE CONTROL) 

AND CHAPTER 18. 08 ( EXCAVATION AND GRADING) OF THE LEMON GROVE

MUNICIPAL CODE WITH REFERENCE TO THE LEMON GROVE BEST MANAGEMENT

PRACTICES ( BMP) MANUAL

WHEREAS, the Regional Water Quality Control Board for the San Diego region
RWQCB) has approved Order No. R9- 2013- 0001 and later amended as R9- 2015- 0001, 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) Permit No. CAS0109266 ( Permit); 

and

WHEREAS, the Permit requires certain changes be made to the Stormwater

Management and Discharge Control Ordinance ( Chapter 8.48 of the Lemon Grove Municipal

Code) and the Excavation and Grading Ordinance ( Chapter 18. 08) with reference to the Lemon
Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to update the Stormwater Management

and Discharge Control Ordinance and the Excavation and Grading Ordinance with Reference to
the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual to comply with the Permit; and

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby
modifies Chapter 8. 48 ( City of Lemon Grove Stormwater Management and Discharge Control
Ordinance) and Chapter 18. 08 ( Excavation and Grading Ordinance) as set out in Exhibit 1 and
approves the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual which is attached

hereto and incorporated herein by reference ( Exhibit 2). 

7_ 



Attachment B

Exhibit 1

Chapter 8.48 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND DISCHARGE CONTROL

8. 48. 010 Title, purpose and intent. 

This chapter shall be known as the " Lemon Grove Stormwater Management and Discharge
Control Ordinance."." 

The purposes of this chapter are as follows:+^ further ens„ re the health, safety and geneFal

spills, clumping or disposal of mateFials other than stGrrnwater; and by reduGing pollutaRts in

pFE)teGt and eRhaRGe the water quality of our wateFGGurses, watep bodies and wetlands iR a
manneF pUrSUaRt to and Gensistent with the Federal VVateF PellutiOR Control AGt ( Clean Wate

AGt, 33 U. S. G. S8GtOGR 1251 et seq.) and SaR Diege RegiGRal Water Quality GentFE) l BOaFd
QrdeF Number R9 2007 0001), as amended. whiGh GORstitutes National Pollutant DisGharge

liMiRatien Systern (" N12DES)Perri . This „ haptee seeks to- prsrnate
those purposes byithese

systern; 

A. To establish requirements for dischar es into the municipalmmmseparate storm sewer system
MS4), receiving waters, and the environment; 

To protect, the

wwMaXiFlIU
M eXtentJbra ti„gable ( MEP), Ilfe _ rLppe"t x receivin waters, 

aquatic life, and the environment from loss. iniur , degradation, or damaae by discharaes from

within the City' s iunsdiction: 

C. To protect the MS4 from damage; and

D To meet the requirements of state and federal law and the California Regional Water
Qualitv Control Board ( RVg B) Order No. R9- 2013- 0001. NPDES Permit No. CAS0109266, as

mm

may be amended ( MS4 Permit).. € stablishiRg n; i rements feF steFrnwate

D. 

developFneRt

dependent habitat • , 

supplement nn -cite pFaGtiGes at new development Sites; R d

8. 48. 020 Definitions. 

The following definitions shall be applicable when the following words or phrases areused
hereafter in this chanter ( including use in the city of Lemon Groves Bestw Management Practices
Manual)„ whether or notthesewords or phrases are capitalized, 



Attachment B

For p irnooes of this aha Pter• 

Acta ed rasideet+a development" 4* ears-any-davefo e4* t#at-pF- vades te++-4a4:- 4 AsFe

Authorized enforcement official" means the city manager of the city of Lemon Grove or

any designee of the city manager of the city of Lemon Grove who is responsible for enforcing
the provisions of this chapter, including but not limited to, the directors, their management staff
and designees. 

Basin plan" means the comprehensive water quality control plan for the San Diego

Basin, adopted by the Regional Water Quality Control Board for theSanDiego Region in July
1975, and all subsequent amendments. 

Best management practices" ( BMPs) means schedules of activities, pollution treatment

practices or devices, prohibitions of practices, general good housekeeping practices, pollution
prevention and educational practices, maintenance procedures and other management

practices or devices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants directly or indirectly to

stormwater, receiving waters or the steFmwater GenveyaRGe systemMS4. Best management
practices also include, but are not limited to, treatment practices, operating procedures, and
practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal or drainage from raw

materials storage. Best management practices may include any type of pollution prevention and
pollution control measure, approved by the City and consistent with the MS4 Permit, that can
help to achieve compliance with this chapter. 

BMP Manual" or " Manual" means the City' s Best Management Drortineo 4RMP3 Manual; 
dem}° e:- errdi- tl e-- itw. r d et had aria e er t- twur of#•P ar' 

doGumeRtLGIVIG X, adopted by resolution as paFt of the City' s i6lFi6diGtional RuReff
Manage rnert Pr gran .: 

eAad
optect by resolution ant ar ende frorn time to time by the City

Council. These aDDlicable version of the BMP Manualfor a development shall be the version in
effect at the time of final pt rc y lm c ' m s nr ri it or other entitlerneiA apgable to the
improvement. 

r l+# or ia- ceae--Pian°- rnear s tk e- i#© rr+ia-0feaa Jaa= atei=-Q afity r tr tar 4or

19911 and all sHhse` vi lent ameRd meats

Channel" means a natural or improved watercourse with a definite bed and banks that

conveys continuously or intermittently flowing water. 

City" means the Gcity of Lemon Grove. 

Contamination", as defined in the Porter -Cologne Water Quality Control Act, is " an
impairment of the quality of waters of the State by waste to a degree which creates a hazard to
the public health through poisoning or through the spread of disease. ' Contamination' includes

any equivalent effect resulting from the disposal of waste whether or not waters of the State are
affected." 

County" means the County of San Diego. 

Gommernial developmentp1 meano any develepMen4 nn Private laRd that is not

excess+vett'-kteavy- iridu-str+al ar- resident+a#-uses: The ateg r++asludes- #+ i s nc} t I+ ra+ted ta: 

M



Attachment B

mails and other bUSiReSG GGMplexe6, shopping malls, hGtels, OffiGe buildiRgs, publiG
w a#sr+eeapd-other medical fasit+t rest MiGR-s

recreational fac+l+ tie6, plant , rseries; Gar -wash faGiIi ealersh -p6- so+ mer6at

airfields, and other I' 

u » 

tdat- fesu4ts4R- t# e-disturbance-, Gf -Gr4e- a rr-e-or-mere- ie- lam

Developer" means a person who seeks or receives permits for or who undertakes land

development activity. 

sterrndraiR witheut fiFst flowing aGF066 permeable vegetated land area ( e. g., lawns). 

Directors" means the directors of the City' s GOMMURity DevelOpMeRtDevelopment
Services Department and the Public Works Department. 

Discharge" when used as a verb, means to allow pollutants to directly or indirectly enter
stormwater, or to allow stormwater or non- stormwater to directly or indirectly enter the
stermwateF cenveyanGe systemMS4 or receiving waters, from an activity or operations which
one owns or operates. When used as a noun, " discharge" means the pollutants, stormwater

and/ or non- stormwater that is discharged. 

Discharger" means any person or entity engaged in activities or operations or owning
facilities, which will or may result in pollutants entering stormwater, the ctnrmwater GGRVeya RGe
systefnMS4, or receiving waters; and the owners of real property on which such activities, 

operations or facilities are located; provided however, that a local government or public authority
is not a discharger as to activities conducted by others in public rights- of-way. 

aR isolated flow from a site (
i.

e., nOt GGMiRgled with flows from aGqaGeRt lands). 

1 DF * - : ReRt" means a legal right graRted by a landowner to a gFaRtee allowing
the -use -

oaf
private land for stormwater maRagemeRt n, ,rpeses

Pr t= ioy mmtr psi f ..progr n "' era o ner ted ew pNoy+ ewlrair it g pr r ram -which
niay-# e rye tuiredess pta:sLjant4o a,.stor w ter f It :Mier -prev tao

to the stoFmwateF GE) RveyaRGe system. " ERGlesed Bays and EstwaFies Plan" means t4e

GalifE)FRia ERGIesed Bays and Estuaries PlaR: VVateF Quality Control RaR fOF ERGlesedBaysandEstuaries ef „ adepted by the State Water ReseUFGeE; GE)Rtrel board ApFil 11, 
Q91, andant subsequent amendrneRtS. 

nforcenme" enG'+ r+eanethe-Gedw+th-ensu r4g, 
s4mplian- w+t t# F- s# a pier: 

ERViFORMeRtally sensitive aFeas," ( F=SA) means areas that iRGIude, but are Ret limited

aH : lc+ar Water..A t- i  , Irr uas I a ,. ri aq... wdir ` C. water , J- e s as

arz= y4rea- of- pee+a- I iol©gisal ign+fsar- 4AS8S} may the Stat Water=Rem^ G Gontrol

Board-EWater-Qu,al+ty- or# l--P-tarp-#or-t eTSa{ iegc 8as+n-(- 94}-arid-adments3 water
bodies desig-rrated as -having a- FARE-benefic+af use -bar -the -State Water-Resoerees_ Cef}t- of

inntrnl Dlan fnr the SaR DiegG Ba in (' 1 994) aori amendrneRtol or area

M



Attachment B

defined # ar he 3iege as+r} { A94e r er d++eets}: 

Erosion" refers to any process in which land is diminished or worn away due to wind, 
water, or glacial ice. Often the eroded debris ( silt or sediment) becomes a pollutant via

stormwater runoff. Erosion occurs naturally but can be intensified by land clearing activities
such as development, farming, road building, and timber harvesting. 

f sig -n ; d..by--,, 

t=rag neer cos pete t i# s.. th I rM t rafis ° f. ci i l n a aa l w w le e ' e..a ut- r ert eror on

control- meths ds— hep mi shall d'i taarge

of-serlimeRtt 
frequentes' 

and de6* ltatinn  . onat eRtranGes to

st raira - at trar ses timetreefs- arid-dr+vewaye - t ee f_the-area-Being-graded

i s ran r trot...yst ra rr+ r`srr y.. or r atio+n.. of le# lfir- faotlities ° d9. s° dirf- bairrs
flow d -the ...rnainto ari e

the reego-" r-atestthe- pro} e- t 6; 4e , public

faGi

graded -4n er; t, graded-- eEist+R-R_ tera! fa -6l+ dFet}eve wateF6 e

Groundwater" means subsurface water that occurs beneath the water table in soils and

geologic formations that are fully saturated. 
n cn__ t_, t _- - --- '---'_ aL _ _.._ _ .... 1..... .,...... J:.... J .. i 4..... o. L.. 4:.,.-. .. r...-. nb / 4..,, r 4vo4 ., f

of4ep 444 c._ 

dillside develgx exitgre tee- tk r . t'ive tl usar tµsrtu re feet"' 'nsra e Cray.. devel pr' nde11, @ that

WOU' d GreateMGre thaR five thousand squaFe feet Gf irnpepvieur, SUFfaGeS an hill6ideG with known

erosive sail d+ tion afld, 

is drsct- ardert...orn intende(:'l es„ l ut # s -not Ninaited to l rairrt anti.

i.)airal- RWte _ materalb . "y.ara:t a n(I gi. iri ,n Product; - foo l at t..a' leaa ea` €ase t d l . r; rrotor vehie

e-#luids- teriee- ar d-0ll#iltere= aflc l+ee holdk atter+ee, ta'

t Mara l tierf a r' e a a1' lr raaira l't era' at uer..tg;-sr rw-. ae f-l y l#a t t - l» epr": r t#a rr ra,t cif agriculture

lR looser . tur9 r gra. e et In th m. m,....,.. it. µw.....are c

r4 ed - int ..f ruaaetf p ',,Miat g . aps..: l l a grew . reale team ' s; --w iGh. hrav tgh permeab44.-

yLandW.4eargils;;--arvhiGh._h e .. _per t tRify rabab.....and r=
n,:a .. .. (:are..... ruR(-.)# edifia

tsar." rneanF5, tW rag n... at arat..k y t u K. GGCs arm Gharacterlstjc.

s-,.e. ioterr tierr:. i iNtratiora, avertan, 64owiar... fto cased—

bya.ark u:.. fior: a.or otber larwi- use rhap.: es that--result.. trw irraoreas streamer flawo-..,and changes

in sedirraerat transport: Bra addition; alteration of otrearra....arad-river Ghanr16&s tnstatlatio of daar, 

grad- r lrraporadra erarts4 -ar::o.  t,. trear d° n krorep e .: ora - ars, 



Attachment B

Illegal connection" means a pipe, facility, or other device connected to the stermwate
GonveyaRGe sys MS4 or receiving waters, which has not been reviewed and authorized by
the city; or a permitted/ authorized pipe, facility, or other device, which conveys illegal
discharges. 

Illegal discharge" means any discharge to the 6teFmwateF GonveyaRGe systeMMS4 or

KqLc givinq, w jjers, tha is P q ibiLq-(Lh te', " ThiS inClUdes, butjs not linAed to, J sqt s

of non- stormwater that are not exempt discharaes listed 8. 438. 050. discharges of irrigation
runoff to thestqrrii-wa4er- roiv 1 11 qL I gj"! e! 11MS4 ,, in d I connection andLj Ljj te
anv discharge that contains additional gLqjl ts d " u " e " to ' the absence of a required BMP or the
failure of a BMP. Discharcies that require a RWQCB permit that has not been issued or has not

been acknowledoed 1Y r)Dlicm.) the discharaer to be aable are illeaal discharges Discharaes

11 at ) licable NPOS 1, µr ltt r a' He gl ischa foo -au poses of this chapp jg; 
unless compliance with all applicable permit and Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

SWPPP) conditions is maintained. 

GF4e-D& k4Vg

4legat- GGnneotiGnT- a44dany- di4, rge-t4at-Ger4ai-R& add4ko+a e- the--absef+Ge- of-a

SUrfa c'e"- rrweafls GoOf" StRAted -(-)V4T4( X* fJed .6014ace"' kit

agarky orrt' iNtrata rafnfaNl= ftre- te,4, ro4nolu deS but, its, 4,1ot kniJAe4-triT-bujldk)g_ro -) ps-,, 

pa-vefne-pt, sklewaks, -a4id-64veway-s-, 

au4aGe- aR3a4GF- a-p4Ghe4- rGef4&- e tG4he- gR) 4Rd- wea4t—,he# eF&,- rather- 

afea-o44e400f4t-, e-lf-. 

d spo,sal- Gf-pfoGe wa6tewater&- a-nd-4* ia4f# efianGe--Gf -mate-rQ1,ha-nd4fng eWipment-, 

M



Attachment B

aGtrvitk.- s iter lLtde- ttae-' s4o(' a r4—.i(-, d - transportation- or conveyanc,:e of... y r aw

material-, 4Rtermed+ata-preduct,-f4ii4hed 4 ; 43b predt+rt —ar- waste- pr-0dU4C t- 

Infiltration" means the process of percolating stormwater or non- stormwater into the soil. 

Infiltration BMPs" " means any structural treatment BMP designed

primarily to percolate water into the subsurface, such as an infiltration trench or infiltration basin. 
An infiltration BMP€a4+1+ fy may include filtering prior to or during infiltration. BMPs that infiltrate
some water but which are designed primarily to retain water or to treat water, such as retention

basins, constructed wetlands, or filtering swales are not infiltration facilities. 

Quality GOR491 Plan fOF ln' and SUFfaGe WateFs of GalifGFRia -adopted by the State Watef
R-es,G r4es--G9ntme Board- Apr444-, 991-- ar4-a4-af4er aerafs- thereta- 

Land development activity" means construction rehabilitation, redevelopment, or

reconstruction of any tic sr ta ivate ro°ects . er y 4tivi#ger ropeses c»tivi y that -requires

aRy of the permits or approvals listed in SeGtiGR 8. 48. 030( jF) ef this GhapteF. 
Land disturbance activity" means any activity, requiring a grading permit that moves fifty

cubic yards of soils or substantially alters the pre- existing vegetated or man- made cover of any
land. This includes, but is not limited to, grading, digging, cutting, scraping, stockpiling or

excavating of soil; placement of fill materials; paving, pavement removal, exterior construction; 
substantial removal of vegetation where soils are disturbed including, but not limited to, removal

by clearing or grubbing; or any activity which bares soil or rock or involves streambed alterations
or the diversion or piping of any watercourse. Land disturbance activity does not include routine
maintenance to maintain original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, or the original purpose of

the facility, nor does it include emergency construction activities ( i. e., land disturbances) 
required to protect public health and safety. 

Land owner" means the holder of legal title to the land, and other persons or entities

who exercise control over a land development project pursuant to rights granted in a purchase
agreement, joint venture agreement, development agreement, or long- term lease. 

Low impact development," or " LID," means a stormwater management and land use

development strategy that emphasizes conservation and the use of on- site natural features
integrated with engineered, small- scale hydrologic controls to more closely reflect pre - 

development hydrologic functions. 

Maintenance of a BMP" means periodic action taken to maintain the as -designed
performance of a BMP, and includes, but is not limited to, repairs to the BMP as necessary, and

replacement of the BMP by an equally effective or more effective BMP at the end of its useful
life. 

Maximum extent practicable" Jar-" MEP' J means the technology- based standard

established by Congress in the Clean Water Act 402( p)( 3)( B)( iii) that municipal dischargers of
urban runoff must meet. MEP generally emphasizes pollution prevention and source control

BMPs primarily ( as the first line of defense) in combination with treatment methods serving as a
backup ( additional lines of defense). MEP is an acceptability standard for BMPs. When BMPs

a ....% ir or d tc rr' r°% 4tltAr f f t. lrv s t9acw f3 F s aa7 Wt i .: R). 7r rn a t fafl e. ive srd of I, R IIF . that i s0i

p.. ac:1i ablf.a BMP is effective if it t.al  e... w. at ._ P fuce ....or r move m... th° : i agl atarits f tl ° iJR;% 

13



Attachment

qh fa. araqter, facilities and activities: is technicallv feasible ( conside

resourc.es. and other resources av,,jh__): is ecoinoniigaTy fe if.,Jpand provides benefits that

are reasonable in relation to costs. 

MuniCiD21 separate storm sewer . MS4) means a conveyance or system of

town, borough, county, parish, district. association, q r other public body ( created by or pursuant
to State law) havinqjq[ j§ n over dig osal of s e indust! Ljajwq q, storm water, or other

jALq . 0istricts under State law such as a sewer district, flood control district

or drainage district, or similar entity, or an Indian tribe --or an authorized Indian tribal organization, 

jLia: tqd Aod app!jpved.j na ent agericy under section 208 of the CWA that
discharaes to waters of the United States: ( ii) Desianated or used for collectinq or convevinq
storm water: ( iii) Which is not a combinqq ( iv) Which is not part of the Publicly Owned

Tre,atrnerit_ Works ( POTM as defined at 40 CFR 122. 26. 

r--' ----~^'~'~~' 

MS4 Permit" referR to RWQCB Order No. R9- 2013- 0001. NPDES Permit No. 

CAS0109266, as may be amended. 

Natural drainage" means a natural swale or topographic depression, which gathers

and/ or conveys runoff to a permanent or intermittent watercourse or water body. 

Nevvdevelopment" means land disturbing activities; structural deve| opmnent, including
construction or installation of a building or structure, the creation of impervious surfaces; and
and subdivision. 

Non- atonnvvaterdisuharge^ nnemnomnydiachnrQetothe

that isnot entirely composed nfo1onnvvatec

NPDES oermit" means a National Pollutant Discharcie Elimination

issued bv the U. S. Environmental Protecti n 6q

Dego- 

Port E) s# irA,'' " ot' gnear s- Land- ar+.*a of. temporary. er &torage @# 

N10torv eS, 



Attachment B

same mea j g asA _ j)30and/ orn n 9 2jg odejjq j, i in Lemon Grove MMunic
applicable state law. 

Pollutants" shall means aqy, aaentAL) Y cause or contribute tothe.,d raclation of

or aq,,., Later ql,ua!jqj such that, a condition of pollution or contamination is created ornvated- 

Pollution" as defined in the Porter -Cologne Water Qualitv Control Act, is " the alteration of

the aualitv of the waters of the State\ waste to a degree which unreasonably affects either ofJL
the followk ),,, The waters for beneficial uses- or 2) Facilities that serve these beneficial uses-" 9-1- 11- 1 , — 
Pollution may include contamination. 

tion Slormwater Mpriagemen' t Plan',' 

a, pp I iqqb_LeJRM_FI . rgL t r" Ieyp j9p PfLq njeti _5,,jp jp
er 8, 52 ot tl e Muni PRMEMan aL_ _ P1 cooe,,_ Post-C Oil st rucfiqll Storn1water

T ,
Lment Plans are cimijr2i2iqqor i -eferred, to by titles such as Water QLKARy ectj!j a( lit

WQTR) and Storm Water Qualit Mana ement Plan SWQMP

9 frelUt gen e— m— M 1,91: 1 lff:let a

I —z-F. I. IEtie

to -hu- health; volat4e- GrgapjG-. afbol4T- su4aGt ants Fo4 arnd gfease-, Pe# ole. 

Goipiper--,-, hr-ot,,nit:tlnr(.l(,If,."iLtrl,-Siilv!ef-,4,,w'ck-(,4,- zitiif;,.-,Gyatiicle-;-,-pl-ienotsv

receivif'lg

1- t— by riii: iq pH, tetal
er tempeFatuf-e 

Tremises" means any building, lot parcel, land or portion of water whether improved or
unimproved. I
family. randapaFtme- Ats: 

d_as_-a-ny

where the to - area i&-g-Featef--tha;i--efia-ac-re-. 

arly 61" to Stantkird [ ri'dILIM"ri'aGrw-oxfe.. 15013; 5 1 4". 111E5, 1_'J'' 

7-5-39, as

4,- - Rpstaurantf.,-._71" - < Atlieg()fY jS'( jefifwa-s a4a(;,JWy- flNIt..". E-fl[ S PP&pa -,Sd fOOCIS- and

15- 



Attachment B

L t ections 8,52,3 -1 -0 -arid- 12.-G) Pr%erit ent i'_rc llect" refers to new

f ri l pt4t rtt 41rr1 l 9f
ry °

t r t ` rr 
mtm

c rwr ._. pt tpo re i set forth, 
t . o # I wit ' or u t n w in the BMP Manual and Chapter 8. 52 of the Municipal Code, 

defined,-a-&4ny-deverrt ` cr a - tave th . d- - f t- .. iq . r -vi . s

greater, 

i. . 

adja"' rlt 1 Of. dimAhe, development -OF
rade + ter

9

fe ' . a- sudaGp pit . r .& 4
of --i i ue--efa -pr d. - site- tr 4ap t -or it -S at rally -G l

r4d t, ` rrmeatl a4tj cart e, rr°wry 4 ita4aate4 itbirl-two hur° dfed- feet °cf gar ES,- A, Disohargirrt
dar-. tk tri'= aaea a wutfU w f w a dr r° age ccrwa a tens that  rat ad erati- t f

flows de eReprnerrf... r re taretepf oent, sltea t

a nt-t s: 

er ea- rand c ker4f4att-, t cp aed tc.....l.trt ara- ra f f Pr: r- iat- m; iaae t...a lara d.. rare  faaitit

f   , ,. rr9• ed-  a; -- fat

q . 

t ; fees nF g a e{ tez. 

lb f ' m " fund ed w I W tai t r d

area6 1

all vvouk:) create -two tJ W a r ar r1 fire t r r a f
s - a 4e .  m .. . 

p pA&..... r .. t... 

t r-cept-er- of...it-s- t atiy . r ' c ditiGn- and-eithe - r o a

i mater ithi ar- dtr ad _¢ r a ... rtican- a t+ pr j -- f t rtt-i-...!€scat

wit-hin-two-hundred fleet an enviranmen4tysen. sifive

r4r 7 47 + fid" t 1, 1 F r° t..$ z.,' 1 4: r"" 4&• I' k- at' r M1d° BtdO a'"$, rq" biP,# r" dl' dfi"%i+ t m,": 1`,." uftrll' r i- 9t" q i ad t3 i""w"vN' 

w4" G4ws4rom- t4and"s'-w ere -the -bbl rA o_t kRt-- 4 n twG t"}un t

fr- - the- vironmentally Citi a-. 

Project tac4.p4 iRi" mear4s t -he 1 its Gf all grading and ground di&turban; including
lapd&Gap pg e

16- 



IFFTEMM!. xsMEMMMUMMEMB191 M. 

utilized by the UAWtPd S;.. . '

exs- x - . -. G • x - 

the United States

r a ' a- x _ - x _ :. ' s' s s• - s - .. x a-- F- thts- 4definAJOP,, 

wetlandsWRIessthe .. .. as

Uncler- . .. ...-- s the --BMP was GFigiRally GOnStFUGtedE.- .: S

waters that are "Waters of •• 

GOn6tFWGtiGn of treatment.. . _ Rh_APs is prohibited • - .. ffiViRg waters," and may not

be used to roatisfy M _ _ 

Redevelopment" means any construction, alteration or improvement at an already
developed site. that will inn-rease the total arpq; nf th;; t site, er that

Redevelopment can include, but is not

limited to, the expansion of building footprints, the addition or replacement of a structure, 
exterior construction and remodeling, replacement of existing impervious surfaces that are not
part of a routine maintenance activity, and other activities that create additional impervious

Regulated GOFAFneFGial... . ... 
T. . - . engaged

FnaontenaRG8, Gleaning, rnan, darAm wing, facid preparation OF Painting aGtiVitY of that activity ha6
isGhaFge ef pollutants topotential .- disnharge Gf non sterrnwateror the . 

Mat(Bria !G, pFoGesred bulk rnateFia! G, or refuse; and any etheF facility with a total
eutdooF 6IRGoveFed area Pf mora • • twe acres that .. for an iRdustFial aGtiVity. 

Municipal

x .- b_ 

4 2 • 

dGE-WelGipment" means any development en private land that provideG living

h x •- x.:.. S x s G. x. 

yac;_;nt residence, the GwneF and the manager of the resideR

an,d 1 • x G x s a . G. - counters-- n-t-stand-s- se44R9

immediate s. •. L w. wh- ...- 

greater than fiide .. •. •. . land develer- ess than fiVe

thousand squaFe feet 



Attachment B

stonnvvater ( wet «we2 her flows) and non- mtornYVater ( drv weather flows), 

RWQCB" means the FRegional- w roQua|ity GCortro| blBoard for the San Diego
RFeoion. 

Sediment" means soils or other surficial materials eroded and then transoorted or deoosited

by the action of wind, water_ ice, or qravity. Sediment resultinq from anthropoqenic sources ( i. e. 

human induced land disturbance p_qLn jtie- 

smother bottom

9418, 

Si

gnifiGaRt Fedevelopment" means development that WGUld GFeate, add, or FeplaGe a

least five theusand squaFe feet of
6 . 

AFfaGes OR aR alFeady developed site that falls

only to the addition, and not to the eRtiFe development. When redevelopmeRt Fesults On an

pedestFiaR Famps, or bike IaRes OR ex!GtiRg reads; and FeplaGemeRt ef damaged pavement. 

Source control BMP ( both structural and non- structural)" means land use or site

planning pnactioaa, or structures that aim to prevent urban runoff pollution by reducing the
potential for contamination ot the source ofpollution. Source control BK8Pnminimize the contact

between pollutants and urban runoff. Examples include roof structures over trash or material

storage areas, and berms around fuel dispensing areas. 

tafda uFba s@ | K f-- 

ma

State general construction stormwater permit" means NPIDES Permit No. CAS000002, 

AGtiV4tieS,' and any amendments thereto. 

State general industrial stornnvvoter permit" rneonm NPOE8 Permit No. CAS000001. 

VVoeh*[ Jieohapge- Reqa*iFenie*# efof[ isGhaFgeoofStswrm-. vvate+'Assosietad wvith| nduethal

and any amendments thereto. 



Attachment B

Stop WN work Oerder" means an order issued which requires that specifically identified
activity or all activity on a site be stopped. 

t m
tji, Maf rf t- @

wwW
Mf- mart - at : igfermt- Y q a

t W of tl r t e à t r I ins. wat f t a d1  f if r ien ts4q od, td ev I ) pqj

Stormwater" means surface runoff and drainage associated with storm events. 

aquedUGtS, stGrrn dFains, popes, street gutters, iRlets to sterm draiR6, popes, OF GatGh basins. 

Stormwater management" means the use of structural or non- structural BMPs that are

designed to reduce urban run- off pollutant loads, discharge volumes, and/or peak discharge

flow rates or velocities. When applied to the city or another municipality, stormwater

management also includes planning and programmatic measures. 

Stormwater management plan" means a plan, submitted on a city form or in a city - 
specific format in connection with an application for a city permit or other city approval, 

identifying the measures that will be used for stormwater and non-stormwater management
during the permitted activity. 

QRAD 4--;---, 4 fnr nn oviciinn

Kr rfruce thattsfivetho rsa i. s ta. r„. fel ° ete°-!- e t r ae- frapra tix a f e- tos b Mes, 

ts; etorsYsles and etfae ve# isles: tkurc3ses f L NfP- f+ rerets sheets

r,rx3d , fay t ways..a d fr ew; yr 1 at r tt  1 rr 6° sir at d r s+. rfa r .. sss ate ith t l fy
w r applyinff sf t°rad4: va a fs it q,_ fe r` wat, , v s ctewel,... 1. , str ar= e p.. cr. bike

lam ; aid- r ;, nt f a aged pave t

Structural BMP" means a BMP that relies on either a physical condition, other than an

entirely natural and undisturbed condition, or on a constructed or installed device to reduce or
prevent pollutants in stormwater discharges and authorized non- stormwater discharges. 

Constructed or enhanced BMPs that depend on natural materials and processes ( e. g., 

constructed drainage swales or buffers, or constructed wetlands) i and that require period

maintenance to function as designed, are structural BMPs. 

Structural post -construction BMP" means a structural BMP, other than a temporary

construction - related BMP, put in place in connection with a land development or redevelopment

project to prevent or reduce pollution soatamination- cf+-+-_stormwater or receiving waters, or to
prevent or reduce erosion downstream from the project. All treatment control BMPs are

structural post -construction BMPs. 

SWRCB" means the State Water Resources Control Board. 

19- 



Attachment B

impaired water body if uFbaR Funeff from that faGility or aGt*Vity eRtSFS: ( 1) the stermwate

GGRVeyaRGe Gy6tem at. n n1` 319 01nd iR a niaRR8F that Will GaFry pollutant6 fOF WhiGh that wate
ter; ( 2) a f'GWiRg Stream

Yvp
ep4en,4efat-stream- tloaf- reaGhes- th,- 4m a+fe.-:; atef-during-stefrn- eve+ ts-af t# at-w—, arfy

pe' lutants fOr WhiGh that water body is impaired fFGFn the faGility OF aGtivity to the impaired wate

Urban RAR eff' means all fIeW6 * R a stormwater G9RveyaRGe system On the Gity other than

Watercourse" means a permanent or intermittent stream, creek, or other body of water, 
either natural or improved, which gathers or carries surface water. 

Water maiR" means a potable or reGyGled wateF deliveFy line greater thaR or equal t

Water quality standards" are defined as the beneficial uses ( e. g., swimming, fishing, 
municipal drinking water supply, etc.) of water and the water quality 6bjeGtives-standards
adopted by the state or the United States Environmental Protection Agency to protect those
uses. 

Waters of ille State... means any water, surface ptmmum lmrderM[ gLjjILJ inc[mLt.

saline water

within, the boundaries rl Linc Sty t at-_ C o,d Section 1 35d e The = defirMion, of klir
Waters of the State" is broader than that for the " Waters of the United States" in that all water in

e
mm_-.._- _.......... 

red to be " Waters of the Stat .. -  . the State is considered tm e" regardless of circumstances or condition. 

Waters of the United States" means water subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the
United States under the Federal Clean Water Act and applicable case law. In general, this

includes " navigable" waters, waters tributary to " navigable" waters, and adjacent wetlands. Pfd-. 

8. 48. 030 General provisions. 

A. - Responsibility for Administration. This chapter shall be administered for the city of
Lemon Grove by its authorized enforcement officials. 

B. - - Effective Date. This chapter shall take effect on MaFGh June 247, 209915. 

C. — Construction and Application. Interpretation of this chapter shall assure consistency
with the purpose and intent of this chapter and shall implement the requirements of NPDE-9

e.- GASG-1-08758the M 4 Permmit. This chapter is not intended to interfere with, abrogate
or annul any other chapter, rule or regulation, statute, or other provision of law. The

requirements of this chapter should be considered minimum requirements, and where any
provision of this chapter imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other chapter, 
rule or regulation, or other provision of law, whichever provisions are more restrictive or impose

20... 



Attachment B

higher protective standards for human health or the environment shall take precedence. 

Stormwater and non- stormwater discharges regulated under a valid facility -specific NPDES

permit or facility -specific RWQCB Waste Discharge Requirements Permit are not subject to this
chapter, but shall instead be regulated exclusively by the RWQCB. 

D. BMP Manua, The City may estabfA,. hani„ado-pt a written description of the runoff
element, management p atlr, and programs including minimum BMPs, that the Citv will im

or reauire to be implemented, to ensure comoli nce with this chapter. Thesemmdocun- tents shall
be known collectively as the BMP „

wManual. 
Amendments to the BMP anual shall be approved

resolution of the City Council. 

wateF, or the diGGharge Of FeGyGled water after use. This Ghapter is intended tG reqUiFe the 1ASe Gf

er+v+reFtttiCYtt: 

E -F-€. - Severability and Validity. If any section of this chapter is declared invalid by a court
of law, the remaining sections shall remain valid._ThewwCity C„ hereby declares that it would

1. s e this ftn t tic r a ........... each t,o raj,. lw  c 1 .... rrt rice . G1aUs and l: lyra a ... ntha roof.. 

greaw e t yr c t tl r a t i t r r a °  or.  I rtur ras, subs ficnGL_sent F ° ces clauses orp a . y. . - a .. .. 

obeen ... : t or r.tnconstitutional and i

nnfor
R ty r° anon this r°h a - shouldhad bran declared n viw ...._ 

be declared invalid or unconstitutional then the orioinal ordinance or ordinances shall be in full
force and effect. 

GF ri+®, _ ^ nam nFr,,.rQ® 

aoro rpart r by..dans.., ten r stratinr ..t° v tfr r qui Meh ent o tt i chapter-will-be-rnet.A_... an,64fi

rlminis} rn} ieia rinnrinn nnrmi}• 

b. cv r̂l;nn,,cw`

uI—,
r c: mnn+ 

d Imnrntm ren} nln / vnrl i iTn mnrlifir7} innl

nrlcr^ nn nlPsn• 

g l Nat r cor rlwtior al- t4s, ernnit_ (in u(-,' irisa., rtrodifi atlor ra r devia&i° , eaten for i

h. Minor condit -anal use. pen,,ri i"- rnc1ttdiritf,. r o :lifi lror°rr .r°rano+: °l v alior r:.. e tensian ', 

i Cnnrifir+ nlnn• 

L  Inmm n} r® iin nr

I Ci} n r;nv®Inmm n} nl7n• 

n Tc9cn4a?$ i in mon / inrli irlinn rt t manrlmnn$ nr } imn nv}nncinnl• 

21- 



Attachment B

E) Ut OR GE) FFeSPeRding seGtiE)RS of the MaRual will be met, and the permit E) F approval shall Ret

requirements. 

a. Building permit, 

h CORStr„ Gtign right of way permit; 

G. EnGrgnnhment permit• 

d. says n permit; 

e OR site wastewater system permit• 

fol Rd round tank permit; 

n Well permit

put iicyoorntnentX disserninat tw rents r s ng -V rwf --- pekjt on

disposal. 

GiFGLImstaRGes, Gan provide the same environmental proteGtien that is affE)Fded by the BMPS
rent „ red by this Ghapter or specified in the 11 Aan„ al

These gYidaRGe dOGUmeRtS may also ideRtify pFaGtiGes that have been determined by the

tlsf rrrrs"tee- aottv t ani-tare..rfo lopre=ri- astivify- trovor t- or ntr t- pour, ti r.- t-o-tt r rr; axir°. 

exteRt pFaGtiGable. 

Authorized enfeFGerneRt OffiGials may also take these guidanGe & GUmeRtS into aGGGURt

wt -ren eterrrrin, in . wi°iethe .,at w pr ctioes. use .. by.o. Hiss rafg r- orw roposo a r t p400

approprrateg- r t f r. viiert t'- sarr e-protetror- ts t ro rtea t- to-t9 er v rr rrrentp ruil or° e 

derisinnc authorizedby thisnptter. /. 69 1 2008

8. 48. 040 Discharge of non stormwaterprohibitionsed. 

A. Illegal Discharges. The discharge of pollutants to ngn stermwater directly or indirectly, 
into the stormwateF eyanre systemMS4 or receiving waters; is prohibited, except as
exempted in

no



Attachment B

Section 8. 48. 050 of this chapter. The discharge of pollutants to stormwater, directly or indirectly

into the stermwateF GOnveyanGe systemMS4 or receiving

waters, is prohibited, unless the applicable requirements of this chapter have been met. 

B. Illegal Connection. The establishment of illegal connections is prohibited. The use of
illegal connections is prohibited, even if the connection was established pursuant to a valid city
permit and was legal at the time it was constructed. 

C. t+fte p'r, astopiles Prevention of Illegal Discharges. - Throwing, depositing, 
leaving, abandoning, maintaining or keeping materials or wastes on public or private lands in a
manner and place where they may result in an illegal discharge is prohibited. , 
2008) 

e„ 

person to cause, or threaten to
mm

Violations of the S4 Permit. It is unlawful forany

cause either„iri Mclually or„" c rltly rr y d s.. 9 r into aN f rs°gip„
ITt

e t r w tee c r rpyaree

that results In or contributes to a violation of the Permit. r]r Baa
a

7nnQ 

8. 48. 050 Exceptions to discharge prohibitions. 

A. Separately -Permitted Discharges. Any discharge to the stem+, rMS4 GOnveyaRse
stei that is rer u eq ririder a, _NPDES ne n tt....iSSUed to ti e d smgtt rr ., ar rt Irr irrist rwert dry' 

tit Stat rr , 

mr
r to t r rrsioc° ' th, p N f r r na Water Code is llo^ e...,. p ovrr r that the

sti ql t: is n orr liars e ithmmrITlt rec, u errnfv rits of —the S ri iAt oNN o ataoMlwral l

laws and regulations. 

lwr rtrlwaterl r r i qes ' , I, arr I f UiN tr g. Permit Noiri- st_ors-nwateN,, d'iseliar to the

iii avatar r ve awe Eer iN Nm` I „ tr a ' i IliaNall wing ugt mm p ai am4t wr d w ( j)jt _ _.......... 
liso li. r. a o it ip c rwvwo i i de N"i"DES err' nitrMNo .,'. 19002 L WQQE3 OrderwNo, N
008. 000 or subsegjj...rjf r rile tr r tos Nrarr es to surface niters, other, than Sari Diego l ay. 

IT 
er i in compliance with all require tints o the agolicable NPDES r) ermit andand the dischar

a

all other applicable laws and regulations; or ( ii) the RWQCB determpnes in writing that coverage
under NPDES Permit No. ..CAG91 nr 10 ( orw subsepuent r rmit is not required. tlierwis . non- 

to rnw.ater" disc t- i" rr ,) Fe":. N rorn the follow irdxt ai e c ru

mare. 
itqg a,.." l` r -." g rc, o : 

n ..._ tee.. 
1 Djeelinnm;) S from unrnrr4 ' nntnrl Irrit7r" ill.. rOU' water

2...
m....

Arins - her[ lie sy5 D-_ ri( jto_ rrd LT' 
m..... 

tplwr wwtherrarwrwNr atrrr16k ,4wr;', idvrl... rrt ol.uirµilvatrrt drltiI t ir- y. Nrrt of ttj°r ear, 
t

i r r war r fir? r watr: r_fia r ? r rrr vl r y, r we - lip ms4, 

Discharaesfrom water from footing drains when the system is designed, t o,,,,,,b,, ... eN



ofher aDolicable laws and regulations. This category includes water line ffushin rnd_.WateT main

break dis r ' s from water PUIVC- YOrs iS$ Ued a Wilk'N' $ Uppl

Deoartment of Public Health or federal military installations, Discharaes from recvcled or
11- 1- 1- ,,,,-. - . ..... ...... 

rectairned water lines to fl")e sto' rrr) Watef--C-W4V er;WS4 are allowed if the discharges
I _,_ _.., q yA___ 

have coveLp( , 4r unconv ang(, Ajj p Wejkfer an NFIDFS perniit and the i

mora
C S

IQj'. permit and othe r Lap L31 ( rg) k2le laws and re gjic ns,ta ( rani waterQthf, rwis!,, iL_,t dj ges
lines are ills al isqhar es, Ld _ 

St wmwater--di6GhaFgeS4egt-4ate4--under--a--valid-faGility--6peGifir,-NP--DE-S- perm#-or--flity--6pe,Gi# c- 

state pe'rrnit, 

in- Se-ctiGn,448 Ht e6e-,difGharge- s,-aFe- F4Gt- Gthefw44h4s- Ghaptef'-. 

D-B. e eh

Cif& c, ha-rgE" x, ohibitions, estatAisfied by

werted-stream, 

l-r-r4gat+Gn- watef 4nG4Aing4eryc4ed- watef--i- d4GF4figatief L, 

Lawn- waWiag

SwiLmw iN- 

s,y-sten'+s-}.MowpNe Di w0-larrn'1W ate r disc hiVgf, 5, 4ripwaler- cp n pst1q, I 1

weer _ _ 

ytexm,IMS4 from the followinq s are aHOwk"A W,Jlhoti2ed enforcement official

ot the F"ONOC13 identifies the dischZif e, OS VSOUrr,,e of it,,, to which
I ............ . . .. --------------- 

C) 

case the discharqe is considered an illegal dischar.qe

I Ds -1 8 Uis from divertedstrearn flowsj'pguir d its-are-obtai

2. Discharges from flows from noarian habitats and wetlands: 

3, is - a riD 0 1 rqr-,, from drains - i -.4w& c - acti, e..gTGUpdwa-teridewater"ingdrains . _ jrS
hen the system is designed to he above the groundwater table at all times of

I I I I I I I I lll", . . -I - 
groundwater



the year, andilrrlgwsystem is only eXDected to ges under unusualprouce non- stormwater dischar

circumstances, 

4. Discharcueg,,_from footing drains when the system is designed to be located above
theqfqundwater table at all times of the vear, ar)(I the system is onlv enected to produce non
storm water discharges under unusual circumstances: 

5. Discharges from rising groundwater; 

6. Discharg rOUndwater infiltration to tfx' store -1wrorn q

GOnveyaRGe systernMS4: 

7. Discharaes from spqr,tqq, and

8. Discharges, from ,potable water sources, except as set forth in Section
4-38. 0,9148, 0650.,C," and except that irri tion runoff discharges are considered illegal disch,. 

and are not allowed. 

ischarnes, Nor - storrnwater dischm',jqs, firp_rrl the, following
categories are allowed if they are addressed as follows. Otherwise, non -storniwAter di, _ es

from the following

1, Air condifiorlgra coind nsation. Air conitiodni.Ljg or 9ensalirn o r nLqy

with aDDlicable RMPs identified in the BMP Manual. 

2, Individual rpsidentiall vehicwasI,e_-- t rnqjygsh grater tronaindividual residerifial: vcflikle

wNAsLiirrfj, 
es wherejeaSible, qi _, qrL.L(ze. Jirected to londsca -, d eas or otherp_ kqrvious surfac

Where dischargg. jlriot lie fearil lyprgy LIj9dj'MMP,s MUSI be
witf"r the BW1 Manual Non- commercial car washes, such as fundraisers and other sirniflar

a cA:(yltres, are not considered m6vidual residential vehicle washing, it cfygfgg 

a 0 a a & 01fff

a. Chlorinated swing nir1Ltj2gqL" ter, Chlorine, gRgcOp -,) a sl n , , cial, . 3a" ftljer I. ckwash

ia[ l be elirrih' mted water to the stgrmwater

Geny v, r

L safin ,- qust [) e rfirected tosw 11 . ...... 

the sanitary sr ver r;, according to reaWrerTients for such discharges as required by theme
urf s t nt µaarmr r rrrr Let r tura rr els ireof

water -,-or otherwise disposed of in a manner that does not result in a discharge to the Citv' s
MS4

13, 48 -70(30 T -he fol  owl n[,') 

ttlirw G') Ipte;--arid av( irot

1., 

2, Flows fr(,)rn P-?. -Tie rgem.,y- f rre - fightinq- activvUes', 
I

3 ------------ - aml

4: Waler li e fiu,-.,Nng 

M



Attachment B

cn r.fn wr. ec e - s -en n# 

d°. . 

dis ar - - - th ri e er t -e .. a}- ar-e t+sfi .- lamm-efgenGy
irr a prr rstar pce-„ tlmwe eterp wprr. rtwow t a, a ptf orfei r for° rrr k.- affia p al Irf tt- ti tr r- is

erifomerrrent offic ipaJ: is- required t

eye - das

rr f: Irurrarr; r. tdifirr+n«w i I+ Gf- t- r edr r- oli tar ts-ire- tl t dr tt: r e. i.. i9' e ,. f. r,.rl r frr.o rplitirr°ars

1 .: . ire i htin A( trvtrv fies, Non„ tort vwater  N a t R pf st t orf rap

4 from firefightincL activities are allowed if they are addressed as follows: 

1. I or err r ° r° it l itf s: aL es_C rr ru:. ewg n tir' e i; lirf du r l7 r
iraolrrcfiw + k rrlld,lr' pa lr s u1? pr sa oils t n rnaintenance dL5,ghar. _ ( e -a' S urrl dµt rrylao tlumfsitgr a controlled, 
or practice blazes. training andel maintenance activities shall bemaddressed by gMPs t
o r t ll p cfi l r r of f r lid rl m s lommthemmt rrr w at ' vO y 4. 2, _ 

rt, p r den y. furr t4l tl tpt K r g , IWisc , arges,  l lP are encq wra ,c 1),..fw, ppr r w, Lt f)r lilrsiarits tr;orri l
mm.._ y.. qm nve an te` i-n 4 DLA rnifl, j'-' - f r] m c f riorlt ) f eff rt hr uId trrlir „tlr starmraawater obe

directed toward wife,f rwertrte, and the nvirownent..f.rn r ir s rrw rl 1 ora r rLQl sN all interfcno

With Qmcrrvcn ` resr^ pnse O r s Ir7n + or Irpnar+ ni hliC health and cnfahi Via- 

Ex rrrt' ptrorismnot

Absolute
etwithstg tdir' Lg,h alf, ) ries of non- storrnw ater disc herr °t arr

s is ru aCl .. 1ow+ curl y LGIMCSectionf r 50, th7ITr rr tr.. j....rf fl' ie. «, QC or wthe autwhorizeciI

nfor+ rip n rat oftia oaf dater n it n+ drat tm art tl e r>r ratettcp osof other ise Worid tion11(?wnd non

torrnw,' iter..rfis h rgp rtr or r r F r lqr t rnls to wec iwrir rt waters, r"gidare..a....c' l rt Styr tsl rAt ti health
or s rtf t" mot

ar.
r:"..:r" r. an. srrjcj a public _ nuisance. such iii r l° rara  lr rlA... t o prohibitedwfrorn rrtr.

tnntic hutorrrrwater° Gorav yaagr -&YA 8.

48. 060 Best management practice requirements forand-tder er.9-requ4' femertts-aWic-a-ble to

all dischargers. A. 

Best anaaeent Practices Anvj,arr on en aged in activities which mawresralt in discharaes
to the slorlwwrattraorryawt sterfNMS4 shall to the MER undertake all rirw

t dares to reduce the ris .ef rron.. slurrrrw rrt r_rtt r~I anr'. 1  rt rt I INr" rl rpt 6ta cww. r.rl   I.. h.? a;* follolna

reauirernents shall apply; I _- 
6 

IS



Attachment B

the

di&Ghafge- r, 

the c4ty, rnu,.,YtA4,-u IrAe u t-and--m° nt in..-a.Weast- a lU n- mind U : 

t,.",, ... C- rocledSOJJ tri r40.:tfle4k 41 . SeaSOTI, dischajge

lvAed.. oiU -- fryom Of

FeGe44ig.. water& 4h fainly.- - 

Santa .. e . 

ever if tbe r rr ti r 

7—, 

but

sy,&tem, 
a A of U Pw F-  Fey. at

r -ii. .: 4i - rte 4 a .... 

k

3 4- + n

trot Fle- SG..4hat- 4- r* Pu , o4* Gr4 as44esi . BMS?&- - j - repaired...as

soon- ; y it i -& ate- tG G _ ... tftthe Hur - G - - ndiGates- that., the- ll P& -* ase arse

in, ipp i,opriat e- or Urr . rr: pdr r t U r asgr r r t r°  t@raw Ut i rrrr t U; rr  rd. ,, r rr r k . to

may -require a com.— ryiemi 1-; industrial -or prepare. arm

27, 



Attachment B

i ra r r  a wsl rrM r' t r rir' r rr c. r  r cx)( qfiof' v,,,- 4h t4is

R -t # 68- 

42, --------- I i r ti y # tt iii t & 

a - r=rt - tom . y-- B° tt- tet eRt&- tt

dj ban

v4y; -- " J PP-- r tufted- 4h - tt -- haW - - r Oiim.-r r tt r ay €- state

N - CSP. . nena - ; r614 r di0,fl,.. St0 fn"Iw te;w p fro° it. , Th4dli . tie, 

rt ctiwrr rrt, rrratrtas

9R.- 

t psi on-- - req ui - W su ant--tom L

rrttr t ar kr t rpt  t ire tt c  ''  r t ° tri tprevent or t;;ontrvA- po4JutJon t

rr u4 P4 - N , :- P. 

44------------- ----- 

be_r,. t pt rt t y... he di rwh' r . r....  r rMrtr' 

ri 

rrt r rr  - r rt r° r b aawt 6 r w t rrri r tr rt t t t. r° n rdt, rrrrtt is no.w"f ct- tea-- t t eollir

tori- kw -t tw ` 

its u- rrtrt- + taw r roc t

t- r tt r•t  r r t_ +°` i- ° r t --  ting- ---€ rr tt r° i. i- s - tom.- W  

r tr rg mtr ° n; [ 4)ee trr rir at  r tt rm.: arra r ..r trrw " k ry er=r r- 

r te" t by wrtttel' rrotio fror

I-& ------- 

ski - 0 - m. on4erin - cit ray --w t4er -flows.- w t -w th r- erosioR, andioF . d' - P ; 

19- ---------- 2, ------ - i t c it ++ - Wit - re i s--t r--s 41s- " - r  
W , 

trv, c t y- r ty;- t t rr t r- r•_. tc r=+ rt r c 4 t r- tri

poit its; 

2&-. ._ p r r u c a & i writ arar r r 8y i r



affeGte44ay

witNn- a-reasetea bk-, 

J'J je auttw r ized- enfv' Ge rnef it

GhaptE

1. Bvery person undertaking an activity or use of premises that ma v cause or
contribute to stormwater pollution or contamination. illegal discharicles, or non- stormwater

LISLG J'Egt's'. to the j-ernMS4 shall cqn'iLj(Y ith BMP gl., jideliries or2i - -§ yk -- .— --- -. 1- 1-- 1- 1-- l— — 

PtLj Lj C1 9" ), lis , ' y the authorted enfonienrcet official, a

BMPs; shall be maintained rotine u
y__ jy,,throuahout the life of the activity Such BMPs incl de the

minimum BMPs set forth in the BMP Manual. 

2, An authorized enforcernerit official rnOSILj I gejsjLjgs5, 

rLactivifies which n t ingn ) olltL(Lwt di%charg JLI, qtqrmwater- cgi ye" MpLMgL -- 
w

eto dey( rld eqjg1i MUSt
p q rn ' jj Iarltqp--c jj j?L —t g Storm Water Pollution Prevenfiot

include an PMD[ovee tr — ncj rp am able minimum BMPs from the BMP

Manual. 

I EacLI dis1,Liarqer that is si,& ect to any,_Nj-1, l f. It3 permit shall r o jjy th A

rrrlttirtt wt of ad suoll s, subMitted to theThe disc g . .......... h Lj:n jf t alw rnake r Oft

RWQCB or other oermitting q,, ericy, jnclud:!qq, onjtg, i, i data. available to the City upon

fgg.!Aest. 

4. Parties undertakinq land disturbance activities shall comply with all applicable

requiien-(L. rits of this chaoter. the BMP Manual, and LGUCChapter and

5, Parties Undertakina land development and redevelopment activities shall compIv

y Ah all qp - the BMP Manual. and and Chanter , 1[ ca.ble requirements of this chapter. awl-the
forcement official under h vision of theB. Guidance Documents. Anv Uthorized en t ! u - O.... a  .......... . 

City Enqineer mav vreoare, disseminate and rnaintain auidance clocurrients acldressingjhe use111111-111". ........ .. . . . .......... 

of BMPs fo specificactivities or facilities. illeaal connections, and illeaal discham2k§ ...... . . .. 
qudmstadorcuance ments mav set OUt additional compliance alternatives that,_in specified
cirIls, can orovide the same environmental oterction that is afforded Loj, the BMPs, 

or specified in the BMP Manual. reauired b . t is, chapter . . . ................ - 111111-11" .............. 
I' ll, "y _IqL_ 

C. Sicinificant Sources of Pollutants Where an authorL e(:J enforcement official identifies a
discharae that is in violation of Sections 8. 48. 0.. .4.....0.. and an authorized

M 7 j f [" 7cmfolcerr)(-"'nt official frlay!' j . .... . - - - ------------- to nt ;,- wd additipw,,11

M



Attachment B

Itmeto r- r•rma.nt row reduce r WIWITIiiMifion.. in stormwater and rmn-stormwatr r.. o the _..l' EF", An
such

worder
shall soecifv a reasonable date by which those BMPs must be put inm place. The

failure to install. implement, or maintain additional BMPs as required by any such order is a
violation of this chapter. 

D. Collection and Use of Stormwater. An Aauthorized € enforcement 9official may modify

v_ ri. m l .._`..__ _ ,llo ........ n tion mt us ofstor° r water, damn a rlr r o dent rrf rlts hake i to , Ilow tlrr sate r frll 

or the colIection of stormwaterfof tolr ery torar d useat tit r i oa tr r9 ut . taro rrdom flee

modified ...r..e . uirenie tt

wware
enforceable and rrrval nt envirorynental protecti rc. 

369  1, 2nn8) 

best

maRagement nrnn4iGe rerv„ irementy fn -.r re-sideeiitial aGtiVitio and faGilitieca r,awva, vv  ... a..,, v„ u a, v, a,+. r-u r,a- ruvnm. r. 

a ld,itior al tr t rrr rur BMS oe wf ed below••foF-Oie ategrryo f-aotfvftjes--o" ondl; jc4e- bvthat

peFFnanent roof eF other permanent GGVeF, if SUGh spaGe as available. MainteRaRGe and

Fepai
aGt*Vit*eG that are GendWGted withOLIt Gover eF without BMPs to pFeveRt pollutant disGharges are

pFehibited during times of preGipitation. 

3. Autemetuve and boat materials and wastes must be stored indeers, eF undeF GoveF, or4p

G8G6Ire and watertight nOntainer

S otorVeh+sle Wing. 

I Vizh4r- h,; ; hp" be washed ever poreys supfaGes 66IGh as lawns and gravel areas where

feasible. 

2. Remaining detergent solut d fE) F use on vehiGle washiRg, but not used up

Pr al
rbrtey d; rrflel=Ms all v aslr rr i Err s w t is iverte i...towor cor rtained--,itid-clfs osed to -,a oor0-os

area eesanitary sewer

D. eteF Vehicle Dnng. 

vehiGleS they ewn fFem parkiRg aFeas, using dFy GleaRiRg methods ( e. g., , 
gra GUUminrf r cnieeninn 

30- 



C Horne Rd Garden Gage AGtiVoties and dr/1d Gt Use. 

Jr. rkpti Fu nc , 

IMINI- lip

XTIM

W

el m

31- 



Attachment B

2008) 

cornn- temial- ac-Aivifies
and

air la r- ieat,.tine.alilir aN-- rrr a; rrr,...l iill; eeil ìe+- i- ll a-- e# i r... w-•& 1• la aa„ 

31 faGilitieS shall review their faGilitie6, aGtivities, opeFations and PFOGedLiFes at least

s lro i e --a - Ree le - an - wnieN l . ir .. krai + ra diSGhargesee. e - r iiiee e - i a ai

r er-rig#--aal+ lieW.le} I e; l- r a ae ral- l eila#-- ir eiar l. 1- wl li° ileel a Ii elae+ 

Gleaning;

a. Automobile repaiF, maintenaRGe, fueling, OF GleaRiRgL, 

d. Equipment repair, Fiq,a+ntenanGe, fueling, OF Glea„ i„ g; 

f. Moble automobile or other vehinle wa hipg

h.—Retaol or whelesale fuelongi

i- Deb+ n
FGI se nCry ivc.CTj

I remeRt mixing nr n„ 44inn• mixing vr-oaccrn, 

m Masonry; 

n. Painting and Goatinn• 

n I
nnribnaping; 

q. hI„ rseFies and nreeRhn„ o

r %' elf nn„ r o
nark and ether

f' I / F ilii' 

32- 



Attachment B

S. Cemeteries; 

i i Marinas; 

V. Portable sanitary con/ ices• 
r

W. 13 iilydinn material retailers anrt sterane; 

x 4r\imal faGilities• anti

v Power washing nen/ fines

2. The faGility is a regulated GGrnmeFGia' faGility that has outdeer industrial areas t0taliRg

ep runoff ftom the faGility rnay adversely affeGt impaired waters Gr wateps within aR ESA. 

take effeGt RiRety days afteF mailiRg or seNiGe of thir, RGtiGe. These desigRafiGRS shall be made

to theywolatien of water quality stanl•dari•ds

sner•ifierd in the Man\ ial in the felle\e i
g

areas• 

r\ le\/ ee+ram

2 Qterrr water pollution oreyentien r\ lans• 

3. Storm drawn signage anrd steneilinn• 

4. Ar; ual Feview ef faGilities and aGtivitiesm, 

d Ili hien nreyepti#r , 

6. Materials anrd wast germrrent- 

7 VeWdes anrd equipment; anrd

antiVities are nenrdiIGterd• 

1 . Veginlle aand i iinmept e\• era+

sse uT- rr r-vF  

7 Materials anrd waste management ( innLI ding tanks)• anrd

kl 48,490,Additional foi Mustri t adivities

and fanilities



Attachment B

maintain at least the additiORal M; RiMUFn BMPS, if MaRual

B. Regulated Industroal FaGillities. industrIial faGillitieS that have E) Re Or more of the

GhaFaGteFiStiG6 listed below are regulated industrial faGilities

I I

WDES permit; 

3. FaGikties subjeGt tG SARA Title 111; 

I Hazardous waste treatment, disposal, storage and FeGOveFy faGilitieS; 

tFibutary to an impaired water body, and the faGility generates a pollutant fGF WhiGh that wate
bedy us impaired; 

WN M ROOM. W

x Ml

ME M.3

ON

rna*nta*R It at the site readily available fer review. if an industrIial faGility ROt required to preparee

a state SVVPPP, the faGiNty shall pFepaFe a SVVPPP, submit that SVVPPP feF Gity approval 0
modifiGatiori -and

with an appliGable state required GF Gity requiFed Plan is a violatiGR E) f thiS Ghapter. 



9

G. ® pn rn+ & e6i In lA/ 7C} d \ A/ 7} dr fln\ F/ C

G 9 an

f TR } YYYpn+ of lee } dC nn CB} n } A 12f°1d7311 \ BALL BCttA nf Ì nY ' nVl!` 1}\ L

1 1

B - 6- for- materialMP

nno fhr nnn Tr c ra®B BC \ FB°°] C+ n h7nfillnn atrlf Î Yd/+lBl+ling° 

G. 
CYA nIn\ Ldn + Y91n In Y_1rf_lL] r_1Y_Y1L`_ 

9 I evy® uee vy

1

reye4 } I\ ed Yngln}dn°1nf^n nY°' C} I!` A. 
9

Cnlll rper+nncp nl, nning

9 1

Ra+\ A/ nr nrnndccnr! mo} pre lc he ells C} nr7gd• 
vvvvwn e a eenave eare° v ven ... 

r.... 

Furl

nd°ving lefhnrp } hnrp is +hd nn}dn} i l fnr rnlna+cn of + r\nlle 1} an+• 

1 N \ 

9

d Ga+ o+ inn forging nr fnrminn

p1
9

p L- 1 ^ l Y(' 1GU Wl°' l} prinlC C} nr°iga3 InCII lf lnn_}7Y1Y c' G
ah \ J / 

1

9

1" l. r1—\ vsCi r®fa1} nY nr6 } Yp °']+ 1Y\ n Yl} s

I° llrl ce®ter_}n c} nYa, np' 

p

ve an v, 

1 , I1/ ax C} p \ F/ a1+ dr +Yn°1+1' Y9nn}• 
uses as ewav ae van ae  eve . a, 

in/ dldI7ny, 

I R1- c} Inn• 

9

m



Attachment B



Attachment B

stormwateF GGnveyanGe systern eF FeGeiving waters. Where this is not pFaGt*Gable, MaRwFe Must
i psL

3. An* mal wastes shall not be disposed to the stermwateF GGRveyaRGe syste

AS

w kkr ir 8 krw uw w la+ w err r

1, 2008) 

and faditioc

MuniGipal fadlities must meet the requirements set out in SeGtiGRG 8. 49.01 Q thFouo

8A8 -.060,j, .. an"-, here- appficabl

muniGipal faGility. ( C) pd. 369 § 1, 20W

and Fna* nta*R BMPs shall eRS61re that their se! eGt*OR Of BMPS iS GGRGisteRt With the appi..r--;-q-hl.e
prfioatiar, Q r., wtii it r kd° fir r'. mr% ftii ar ili

r- r- a r e r-: 6airr. q• N,.; itw6 r4;-- ir r 9' r+ r. r- w rir=iiw- w i

th* s Manua4-. 

Only the requiremeRts set out in thiS GhapteF are appliGable. 

Q. Minoster*al Land Development ProjeGtS. Requirements appliGable to development

eMrprwr. pw' w:.„ aea apiraN rra:rirrrr rii' apN jedrs

when they beGOme sub
9

eGt tO thiS Ghapter as residential, GGMmw6al or industrial faGilities. 

mffiRamum BMPs, etheF objeGtive speGifiGati0RS, and water quality Standards fGF land
a ai wprwWw rri pr a i . r,,,ap riwir p wr .. Or 1140re rrirr r aa BMFQA and

other Nr li a i i wti r, . wrw iii N ar rraN...ar  , pii aia4 9 ti....r rr i ria6 arro. it r° l rwar

ri-n i# surra - ievef pnient pr j, Kt iar° y rawwar w r, w ri t rr wrr , w iwa# aar tiw i ra 1 a ipt° wild

meet the water quality Standards fA-.r thp- fa;Gility OF aGtiVity, and must redesign their pFojeG

37



Attachment B

arrrt rrr lr atall it r tler rent rr r ai k K rr rii r N w r r t, c .. t . r' ne t.. lic,;4tl) E .- , . 

rqualitysta- dards. 

04 BM P., ManLie ,- an - any. p lic, able
ntE; deGGFIIbed 1111 MGFe detail fep a paFt*GU! ar type ef faGility GF aGtmV* ty OR the Manual, the

Te lr w t ; n the MaRual shall prevail ( Ord 552 § 2, 200-2) 

Effect a JMP-- ,-Add- ` far f'e.... altar to as l a 6e t

arra rr arrrl. rrr°r 1 r t rll 641 SUF1F? t r t th i T'- 14eation- of-- M1 e-rs, -(xarls i teflt s Ade- apPIJC' zl

el rtlr atlerr . r - r t r mmi ° r ° e ea  r r pr ved- 
Im p r°a rage tffe der

F r nek. ' ter•. r # 1 ° ( xiV l trial -A  £ t r rr- e r at te r 4ind prit 4t of

ac4jv4y-oF4aGg#y-Gwoed- GF-GWate44y4hat-d4Ghafges4n P , age

rfi e.... ed raWic. able

s_ 

v ' es... tr

err- pltd lea r ° d a ry _et -4,
w ' 

act° 

ha... 

prqje,ll-uir4Rq- of-l4y...t a - air le cit t

chapter afe . ° ' - the

Jtw..RMR-are riot. app4 ableJA() giver„- arT) e

acidiflor-Tal" regtIJ eril ritr:" will° a pt ' Y tai- olor - tlete - r” j As -whetger

3— e eetc . t le eveR e -tri adltar to the

rl;r rrrerrrr. rt et...L_ rr rr r:r r rvr rmrr d tal- r l+- rata.r-; t- w tl e { t'' i1 r tr- r:rr" r,rt r rr n r' rr~rrrr

il`,. r ttrer et jet ltl ra le., rlirr e,- r rrw- atler _ ltty....tar tlrr. r° lr.. rtevelrrtrrrrt- lir°a etrm> 

rertrrdrrn one—or—'o') r'e t r o r tri rrr ry t er..r rrt m tlq t ° rrr t e trar... ; C C w.. w t..rt r . tlrrrl ter
er ebjee ° & peen° 4 tla ° able--tG-b gtti

a , .. Wit" .. ary...ta 1 ` .. abte

te... t r a at6c warytty p t pr at.... .. tea lew te4-t

leo- . i - • e r . ter th lr

e° ..... a

r here... 

fneet,apoiGable water quality -standards. 

alrlt W rl lr r - r rrrrr arra t l dl p r, wlar a, ir°r tkri . 6r tr r r°. lr p lr r.. r;a, r tlr ,.; tlt, l6 l" 11', arld--o rb' 

J Pel-, ° t I rrt the this...c-hapterp...Chapter- 8752- Gr- the AJRMP- s all- prev ° . 

38- 



Attachment B

8. 48. 078-1-30 Additional requirements for land disturbance activity. 

A.- Permit Issuance. No land owner or development project proponent shall receive any

city grading, clearing, building or other land development permit or equivalent approval required
for land disturbance activity without first meeting the requirements of this chapter- and -the BMP
Manual, and Cheater 18 0 f r i,.ar d w radinqL-with respect to the portion of the
development project and the land disturbance activity to which the permit at issue would apply. 

B.-- Owners and Operators Both Responsible and Liable. Persons or entities performing

land disturbance activity ( including but not limited to construction activities) in the city, and the
owners of land on which land disturbance activity is performed, are dischargers for purposes of
this chapter; provided, however, that a local government or public authority is not a discharger
as to activities conducted by others in public rights- of-way. 

C. - Stormwater Management Plan. All applications to the city for a permit or approval

associated with a land disturbance activity must be accompanied by a stormwater management
plan, on a form or in a format specified by the city. The stormwater management plan shall

specify the manner in which the discharger/applicant will implement the BMPs required by this
chapter, and -the BMP Manual, and Chapter 18. 08 for the activity at

issue, 

D. 

MEN UTESS Ot, MM

1 . EF06iOn nnntrnl OR GlGper, 

2. Grncinn rnntrnl OR flat aro

3. 
yelnnit

y red, iop,- 

44SedimeRt Gentre

ng- Gen4 3f, 

6, Materials managernaRt; 

7--- Wa r gemei nti' 

i9-- W tncrr-writi

a 1— - Raving- eperatieRs; 

12. De ate FiRg opeF@tinn¢' 

Iaf}fief 68i Str{ 6t14Fl-0pe tif 6', 

141 [) 0WRGtFeaM KGSinn GGR# GL

457- I- r-event+on- ©#-nail- stFirmwater d+sGha-rges; 

16.-- ProtectiGn, af-gfoend- water- Agricultural Grading and Clearing The BMP requirements

rm 8. 348. 0077 .(.) faFtt r attt; r or..Jarv,i di t> rl.)ari e actvctrr ipp y.: a

a rraa inq arid...".-ii,' inq whether onotr oa Carty. -issued gradino and

wwcleau
rif-j oeirmit isgrpculturql o,......,.., 

reauired for that activity r u9li_no or cuffivatina Dared exclusively for the oumose of. growiYi° j plants



Attachment B

or animals

8' 48Additional uinmrnemtsfmr all land

development and redevelopment projects. 

A. Application to Development and Redevelopment Projects. No land owner or

development project propnnentintheoitvohaUnamyiveanyoih/ grading, clearing, building o

Ghapter r land development activity or signifiGaRt redevelopment activity un)aoa the project
meets or will meet the requirements of this chapter and the applicable req jirements defin " ed in
the Citv' s BMP Manual and Chaoter 8. 52., For PrioritT Development Projects, the project' s

40- 



Attachment B

S' QMe- pst- C0nSts°u tion Stormwater Mar sent Plan ...must beat t M r LJm r or to tk e
issuance of such permits. 

PE)St GE)R6tFUGti0R BMP requiFerneRtS imposed by this seGtien and by the MaR61al shall Ret app! 
te these physiGal aspeGtS of the prc JeGt that have been GOMpleted GF 661196taRtially GGFnpleted

I prr nt-toad; asu equtre- y-a--vI c...cify-Perit a r-apervnit tt o tinea".a-Grp@ete..at pldc-atioN

B. Owners and Developers Responsible and Liable. Developers, development project
proponents, and land owners for land on which land development activity is performed, are
dischargers for purposes of this chapter; provided however that a local government or public

authority is not a discharger as to activities conducted by others in public rights-of-way. 
C. Post -construction Best Management Practices Required. Land development and

redevelopment projects with the potential to add pollutants to stormwater or to affect the flow

rate or velocity of stormwater runoff after construction is completed, shall be designed to include
and shall implement post -construction BMPs to ensure that pollutants and runoff from the

development will be reduced to the MEP, will not significantly degrade receiving water quality, 
and will not cause or contribute to an exceedance of receiving water quality objes#+vesstandards

h tMents A- finoel in tho PRAP Manual and Chapter 8. 52. ar' accordance ^ t the r , wjUlr  aaew, M a A+ «, e,... «« a wro Y w... 

Operations. ..._ a.. rPmPnfsD. Land Development Associated with Agricultural Operations. The reguir..ments

imposed by Section 8„_48. 080 of thischapterfor landdevelopmentactivities apply to such

activities when thev are associated with agricultural operations. 

E. Post -Construction Stormwater Management Plan. All applications to the city for a
permit or approval associated with a land development or redevelopment activity must be

accompanied by a post -construction stormwater management plan on a form or in a format
specified by the city. The plan shall specify the manner in which the discharger/applicant will
implement the post -construction BMPs required by this chapter. The plan must address those
aspects of the project that, at the time a complete application is submitted, are subject to further
environmental review pursuant to Section 15162 of the California Environmental Quality Act. 
Post -construction BMPs for other aspects of the project need not be addressed in this plan. 

F- F. Stormwater Management Plan Review Fee and Deposit. Fees for stormwater

management plan review and deposit thereof may be adopted by resolution of the city council. 

G. Control to the Maximum Extent Practicable. All dischargers engaged in land

development and significant redevelopment activities shall install, implement and maintain post - 

construction BMPs as needed to prevent or reduce pollutant discharges in stormwater from lane
disturbance to the MEP. 

8. 48. 40950 Maintenance of BMPs. 

M



Attachment B

A.- Existing Development. 
dDischargers shall maintain the BMPs they rely upon to achieve and maintain compliance with
this chapter. 

B New Deyel„ pMeRtStructural post -construction BMPs. The owners and occupants of

lands on which structural post -construction BMPs have been installed to meet the requirements

of this chapter shall ensure the maintenance of those BMPs, and shall themselves maintain

those BMPs if other persons or entities who are also obliged to maintain those BMPs ( by
contract or covenant, or pursuant to this chapter) fail to do so. 

C. Maintenance Obligations Assumed by Contract or Other Agreement. Primary
responsibility to maintain a BMP may be transferred through a contract or other agreement. If
that contract provides that it will be submitted to the city pursuant to this chapter as part of a
development permit application, and if that contract is so submitted, the person or entity
accepting a maintenance obligation in such a contract or agreement will also be legally
obligated to maintain that BMP pursuant to this chapter. 

D. Obligation to Maintain BMPs Not Avoided by Contracts or Other Agreements. For
purposes of city enforcement, no contract or other agreement imposing an obligation to maintain
a BMP can relieve a person or entity of any obligation to maintain a BMP imposed by this
chapter. 

E. Disclosure of Maintenance Obligations. Any developer who transfers ownership of land
on which a BMP is located or will be located, or who otherwise transfers ownership of a BMP or
responsibility for the maintenance of a BMP to another person or entity, shall provide clear
written notice of the maintenance obligations associated with that BMP to the new or additional

responsible party prior to that transfer. 

F. Maintenance Plans for Land Development Projects. The proponents of any land
development project or significant redevelopment project that requires a

permitinstallation of structural post -construction BMPs shall provide to the city for review and
approval prior to issuance of such permit, a plan for maintenance of all post -construction

structural BMPs associated with the project. The plan shall specify the persons or entities
responsible for maintenance activity, the persons or entities responsible for funding, schedules
and procedures for inspection and maintenance of the BMPs, worker training requirements, and
any other activities necessary to ensure BMP maintenance. The plan shall provide for servicing

of all post -construction structural BMPs at least annually, and for the retention of inspection and
maintenance records for at least three years. 

G. Access for MaintenanceEaseMeRVAgFeement. Structural post -construction BMPs shall

bewprovided adeauate access for Iona -term ins
m

pmection and maintenancegurposes. The

t=f p(- aiait of any tar d.. t vela pawa ent hawoject o - etn f cant re tevetot r rpt t roje( t It iat egtii,i. e a

Rp-tin n nrua/ vr m ln4on nn® of thv® R11A D 
N

H Assurance of Maintenance for Land Development Proiects. The proponents of anv land

pIpptttt ,1tvr tld velr m nt activre ymofmi at v.. aat requires a City pernait stmll , rovj.de to the
Ci rior to issuance of pf®N Mits for the pr )Je t,.,_p )q of a mechanism a C91P ble to, the City
which will ensure ongoinq lonq- term_ maintenance of all structural post -construction BMPs

42- 



Attachment B

associ to . with. the proposed ISM° e t. Tl e g ropenerits shell be es onsible for maintenance of
BMPs unless andmmuntiml. an alternative mechanisnN for ensuring maintenance ise

waccepted
by th

Citv and becomes effective. 

Hl.-- Security for Maintenance for Land Development Projects. If it is determined by
the authorized enforcement official that the public interest requires the posting of a bond or

other security to assure the maintenance of a BMP, such bond or security may be required by
the authorized enforcement official. 

8. 48. 100 Inspection and sampling. 

A. Regulatory Inspections. The* @Uthorized enforcernent official Gn tybl h a on or

cer tifkr atiorl -P . tl n° u a to r v lux, t M srrd end"pr t
m cep p li e w itW' thr w n uu r rr m rtk

mmof
01(i t1 1'AG' L. 

Ar wtt r+ z r t er fr rce , nt affsr Ns mai in spect facaNrfu .... r tivrtte r , 1 rest tenc s- r. rt ct t - this

4 re nnnhle timeand in re sr nnhle m 
a riTr, C1 Tiupr. m7- i46t!' rra  n C- c...........,...... .... 

apter- 1f entry for a regulatory inspection is refused by the facility owner or operator, or by the
occupant of a residence, an inspection warrant shall be obtained prior to inspection. 

B. Inspections of New Construction °^^rtesEasements. When any new storm drain

system or structural BMP is installed on private property as part of a project that requires a city

permit, in order to comply with this chapter, the property owner shall grant the City permission to
accessthearoperty at reasonable times and in a reasonable manner to ensure that the BMP is
working properly

reasonable manner to en6 ire that the READ is werkinn properly, This includes the right to enter

the property without prior notice eRse per year -for routine inspections, to enter as needed for
additional inspections when the city has a reasonable basis to believe that the BMP is not
working properly, to enter for any needed follow- up inspections, and to enter when necessary
for abatement of a nuisance or correction of a violation of this chapter. 

C. Scope of Inspections. Inspections may include all actions necessary to determine
whether any illegal discharges or illegal connections exist, whether the BMPs installed and
implemented are adequate to comply with this chapter, whether those BMPs are being properly
maintained, and whether the facility or activity complies with the other requirements of this
chapter. Thr 6 may i eterang--v+sya- iespest+e mnA

reGOFd review, he ewaer- er eperater_ ma r re uest-ari4- resefve

s,1344sem pies- ectirtYa rS-eealyses- e#k ef rrat+©r} fegu+r d ceder # zis hater may

hic rhnnter.--( vrd- 36 , 2008) 

8. 48. 110 Enforcement-. 

Authorized enforcement officials may enforce this chapter and abate public nuisances as
follows - 

A. Administrative Authorities. 

1. — 1Administrative Penalties. Administrative penalties may be imposed in
accordance with the provisions for administrative penalties set forth in this chapter. 

KIM



Attachment B

Administrative penalties may include the recovery of fines assessed against the city of Lemon
Grove by the RWQCB. Any later -enacted administrative penalty provision in the Le,OGreve
Mae+sipalCede shall also be applicable to this chapter, unless otherwise provided therein. 

2.— 2.Cease and Desist Orders. Written and/ or verbal orders may be issued to
stop illegal discharges and/ or remove illegal connections. If it is determined by an authorized
enforcement official that the public interest requires the posting of bond or other security to
assure the violation is corrected, such bond or security may be required by the authorized
enforcement official. 

3. 3. Notice and Order to Clean, Test or Abate. Written and/ or verbal orders

may be issued to perform aRy ast re uired by this ^ hapter activities to comply with the BMP

Manual, this chapter, or as directed by an authorized enforcement official where conditions

warrant. 

4. — 4. Public Nuisance Abatement. Violations of this chapter are deemed a threat

to public health, safety, and welfare; and constitute a public nuisance. If actions ordered under
subsections ( A)( 2) and ( A)( 3) of this section are not performed, the authorized

enforcement official may abate any public nuisance pursuant to the LGMCL eFnGR ( breve
AAaa+cOl-C , Chapter 1. 14. City costs for pollution detection and abatement, if not paid in full
by the discharger in addition to any other penalties, may be made a lien against the property in
accordance with the abatement procedure. 

5.— S— Stop Work Orders. Whenever any work is being done contrary to the
provisions of this chapter, or other laws implemented through enforcement of this chapter, an

authorized enforcement official may order the work stopped by notice in writing served on any
person engaged in the doing or causing such work to be done, and any such person shall
immediately stop such work until authorized by the authorized enforcement official to proceed
with the work. 

6. — Permit Suspension or Revocation. Violations of this chapter may be

grounds for permit and/ or other city license suspension or revocation in accordance with
applicable sections of the LemeR GFove MUR66palLGMCe. 

B. Judicial Authorities. 

1. I Civil Penalties and Remedies. The city attorney is hereby authorized to file
criminal and civil actions to enforce this chapter and to seek civil penalties and/ or other

remedies as provided in this section and in Section 8. 48. 12590 of this chapter. There is no

requirement that administrative enforcement procedures be pursued before such actions are

filed. 

2. 2. Injunctive Relief. The city may enforce compliance with this chapter by
judicial action for injunctive relief. 

3. Arrest or Issue Citations. The assistance of a peace officer may be enlisted
to arrest violators as provided in California Penal Code, and/ or a citation and notice to appear

as prescribed in the Penal Code, including Section 853. 6 may be issued. There is no
requirement that administrative enforcement remedies be used before such actions are taken. 

The immunities prescribed in Section 836. 5 of the Penal Code are applicable to authorized

M



Attachment B

enforcement officials acting in the course and scope of their employment pursuant to this
chapter. 

8. 48. 12380 Other acts and omissions that are violations. 

In addition to t,- v+©Iat+ofl-6-4dent+fied4fv- Sest+eas--& 8A) 4-9thf-Gugh- 8, 48,1 - failing to

comply with any of the other requirementsof this chapter, the following acts and omissions are
violations of this chapter, whether committed by a discharger or by another person or entity: 

A. Causing, Permitting, Aiding or Abetting Noncompliance. Causing, permitting, aiding, or
abetting noncompliance with any part of this chapter constitutes a violation of this chapter. 

B. Concealment, Misrepresentation and False Statements. Any falsification or

misrepresentation made to the city concerning compliance with this chapter, including any
misrepresentation in a voluntary disclosure, any submission of a report that omits required
material facts without disclosing such omission, and any withholding of information required to
be submitted by or pursuant to this chapter in order to delay city enforcement action, is a
violation of this chapter. Concealing a violation of this chapter is a violation of this chapter. 

C. Failure to Promptly Correct Non- compliance. Violations of this chapter must be
corrected with the time period specified by an authorized enforcement official. Each day ( or part
thereof) in excess of that period during which action necessary to correct a violation is not
initiated and diligently pursued is a separate violation of this chapter. Notwithstanding the
granting of any period of time to the discharger to correct the damage, the discharger shall
remain liable for some or all of any fines or penalties imposed pursuant to this chapter, or by the
anyWeWl

D. City Permits and Plans. Any failure to conform to an applicable city -required plan
prepared pursuant to this chapter; any failure to comply with stormwater- related provisions of a

city -issued grading permit or grading plan prepared to secure such a permit; and any failure to
comply with stormwater- related provisions in any other city permit or approval, is also a violation
of this chapter. For purposes of this chapter a permit provision or condition of approval is
stormwater- related" if compliance with the provision or condition would have the effect of

preventing or reducing contamination of stormwater or of moderating run- off flows rates or
velocities, whether or not the provision or condition was initially imposed to promote those
outcomes. 

8. 48. 13480 Remedies not exclusive. 

Remedies under this chapter are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any other
remedies, civil or criminal. The remedies provided for herein shall be cumulative and not
exclusive. 

Chapter 18. 08 EXCAVATION AND GRADING

Article I. General Provisions

18. 08. 010 Title. 

This chapter shall be known as the " Grading Ordinance of the city of Lemon Grove." 49rd-. 
371 s08

45- 



Attachment B

18. 08. 020 Purpose. 

This chapter establishes minimum requirements for grading, excavation and filling of land. It
also provides for the issuance of permits, and provides for the enforcement of the chapter

provisions. These provisions are supplementary and additional to the subdivision and zoning
regulations of the city and shall be read and construed as an integral part of such regulations

and the land development patterns and controls established thereby. 

18. 08. 030 Intent. 

The intent of this chapter is to protect life and property, promote the general welfare, 
enhance and improve the physical environment of the community, and preserve and protect the
natural scenic character of the city. In administering these provisions, the following goals should
be respected: 

A. Ensure that future development of lands occurs in the manner most compatible with

surrounding natural areas to have the least adverse effect upon other persons, land, or the
general public; 

B. Ensure that soil will not be stripped and removed from lands leaving barren, unsightly, 
unproductive land subject to erosion, subsidence and faulty drainage; 

C. Encourage design and development of building sites to provide the maximum in safety
and human enjoyment, while adapting development to and taking advantage of the natural
terrain; and minimizing adverse visual impacts caused by major land form modifications; 

D. Encourage and direct special attention toward retaining natural plantings and maximum
number of existing trees; 

E. Ensure that the objectives and policies of the adopted general plan for the city are met; 

F. Meet the requirements of San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board Order
Number R9 2007 0004 R9- 2013- 0001, as may be amended. ( Ord. 371 § , 2009) 

18. 08. 040 Provisions separate from other requirements. 

A. Nothing in this chapter shall preclude the inclusion in any zoning permit, subdivision
approval, waiver, review or other approval issued or approved pursuant to city ordinances of
any condition, provision or requirement concerning the grading of land. Nothing in this chapter
shall preclude the requirement for the property owner or applicant to obtain any other permit or
approval required by the city en ipA erCity Engineer or by law from any public or private party or
agency. 

B. This chapter shall not affect the requirements of any other provision of this code
requiring permits, fees or other charges, or affect any provision concerning the granting of
franchises by any other person, body or agency

C. This chapter is intended to implement the provisions of Chapters 8. 48 and 8. 52 of this

code related to stormwater regulatory requirements including compliance with all implementing
regulations of the city related to pollution control related to stormwater discharges, such as the
Lemon Grove jurisdictional runoff management program (" JRMP"). ( Ord 371 § 1 2108) 



Attachment B

18. 08. 050 Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, when used in this chapter shall be construed as defined in
this section: 

Application package" means a set of materials, i. e., the application form accompanied by

maps, studies, etc. as required by the checklist established by the Gommunity development
d+festG Development Services Director, filed by an applicant to officially request a permit subject

to this title, or other titles as may be appropriate„ 

Approval" means a written professional opinion by the responsible principal of record

concerning the satisfactory progress and completion of the work under his or her purview unless
it specifically refers to the Gity cnnineerCity Engineer. 

Approved plans" means the most current grading plans which bear the signature or stamp of

approval of the City 8RgineerCity Engineer. 

Approved testing agency" means a testing agency approved by the Gity eRqiReerCity
Engineer. 

prot ose - grad4 a t ,F dudes a vert drainage .slit l)( io Kei- EFpct reu Iifled' 

Gutlet stFuGWFes and retaiRing walls. 

Archaeologist" means a person who does scientific study of material remains of past human
life and activity. 

As -graded" means the surface and subsurface conditions and configuration upon

completion of grading. 

Bedrock" means in- place solid rock. 

Bench" means a relatively level step excavated into earth material on which fill is to be
placed. 

G. _.-._.. _ ..... 

mei ct forth in Lemon

arrest
manage , nt practices° ( Ps) shall have the same _ .... s ..__,._ rt

4." Eros ..._ Grove Munici al_Cgc 
tri".."

88020. s lop control measures" BMPs. 

BMP Manual" or " Manual" shall have the same meaninq as set forth in LGIVIC emon Grove
Municioal Code Section 8-48. 020. 

Borrow" means earth material acquired from an off- site location for use in grading on a site. 

Borrow pit" means premises from which soil, sand, gravel, decomposed granite or rock are

removed for any purpose. 

Borrow- pitt+ng"- means exGevAtion ,% ing by the s-urfce r+iefrag -Gf r©sk—ur}cc3a ated

gee' OgiGal depGGOts, or soil to provAe material ( berFew) fGr fill elsewhere.- 

Building pad" means that portion of the land contained within an area bounded by a line five
feet outside the foundation footing for a building being cleared and level. 

Building site" means that portion of the land containing the building pad( s) and lying within
an area bounded by the top of slopes and/ or toe of slopes within the lot or parcel. 

CEQA" means the California Environmental Quality Act and its associated legislation, 
findings, determinations and requirements. 

M



Attachment B

Certify" or "certification" means a signed written statement that the specific inspections and
tests required have been performed and that the works comply with the applicable requirements
of this chapter, the plans and the permit. 

City" means the city of Lemon Grove. 

cot y onnineerCity Engineer" means the Gity eRg; neeFCity Engineer or the director of publicGG

works for the city or his or her duly authorized representative. 

Civil engineer" means a professional engineer registered in the state of California to practice

in the field of civil engineering. 

Civil engineering" means the application of the knowledge of the forces of nature, principles
of mechanics, and the properties of materials for evaluation, design and construction of civil

works for the beneficial uses of the population. 

Clearing" and/ or " brushing" means the removal of vegetation ( grass, brush, trees and similar
plant types) above the natural surface of the ground. 

Development Services Director" means the director of

GOMMunity Development Services or duly authorized representative. 

Compaction" means densification of a soil or rock fill by mechanical or other acceptable
procedures. 

Contour grading" means grading which creates, or results in, land surfaces which reflect the
pre -graded natural terrain or that simulates natural terrain, i. e., rounded nonplanary surfaces
and rounded, nonangular intersections between surfaces. 

Contractor" means a contractor licensed by the state to do work under this chapter. A
contractor may be authorized to act for a property owner in doing such work. 

County" means the County of San Diego. 

w  _ _ Wings as set -forth in 8.48.020. ischaroef` shall have the niem mea .... _ _ . 48.. .... 

Discharger" shall have the same „, smeanina as set forth in the Lemon Grove Municipalmo n 

Code Section - 8. 48. 020. 

GGR# arter to.. 

a  .,., . . e s - - s a - 

mac P DepartmeRt of ,. GR state of California. 

Earth material" means any rock, natural soil, or fill and/ or any combination thereof. 

Embankment" or " fill" means any act by which earth, land, gravel, rock, or any other mated
is deposited, placed, pushed, dumped, pulled, •• -• or • -• to a new locationand the

conditions resulti• 

PF4aPe. 

e - •; s x s r - s a 

s s s a s- • - s  s - t s s x

a. a m - m - - - - . a s a- • e s• _ w s - s

intended - 

48- 



Attachment B

Engineering geologist" means a certified engineering geologist, registered by the state to
practice engineering geology. 

Engineering geology" means the application of geologic knowledge and principles in the
investigation and evaluation of naturally occurring rock and soil for use in the design of civil
work. 

Environmental initial studv" is an initial studv reauired under the National Environmental

LM

proposed project. 

Environrnent- a! y L_gsidve areas" are, define(,1 b Re otipl Water QuIplit Control Board for

S., ij,jglji QASO1Q9266,,_as " areas that ir"ICIUde but are not limited

to, all Clean Water, Act Se tion 30,' ater' bg ft qL A,. desqijated as Areas 91f, 
qL

RWQCB: State Water guaWtyPE9! gqe 6Lrn1s,, water bodies designated with the RARE
beneficial use the SWR( -,B arid RWOC _ serves or their eq
under the Multi Species Conservation Program,within the Cities and County of San Die-clo

Erosion" 

Erosion control system" means any combination of erosion control measures, as defined in
i s, (; h Li p ontrol s sten-is shall n-jeet the reauirernents of this cl-iapter, Chap i I'LOer, Erosion control s

and the BIVIP Manual and shall he designed

PFGteGtien, iPlGludinq effeGtiVe planting and the maiRtenaRGe theFeef, o protect adjacent private
property, watercourses, public facilities and receiving waters from the deposition of sediment or
dust. 

Erosion control MeOSUre" niear' s erosion cont[_Q1, Ojment control, was,te manag rnerit, 
a. 

Expansive soil" means any soil with an expansion index greater than twenty, as determined
bvthe Expansive Soil Index Tests ( UBC Std. 2S- 32). 

but -not 4inited o,—sanno+*sr

Excavation" or'' out" means any earth, nond, grovo|, rook orother similar material which is
cut into, dug, quarried, uncoxered, rennoved, diap| ooed, re| ooated, or bulldozed by people and
the conditions resulting therefrom. 

Fault" means a fracture in the earth' s crust along which movement has occurred. An active
fault is one that exhibits separation in historic time or along which separation of Holocene



Attachment B

deposits can be demonstrated. If Holocene deposits are not offset, but numerous epicenters

have been recorded on or in close proximity to the fault, a classification of active may be used. 

Fill, Nonstructural. " Nonstructural fill" means any embankment on which no soil testing was
performed or no compaction reports or other soil reports were prepared or submitted. 

F nal SGOT a giFepG_42L- R- eans

a -said -e ir4eer-wh4-4 inGludes +e#sr at+an repay n- sfape heig r#s ar d rade

FeGOMMendatiGRS fGF rtFwGtwFaI design and appmvinq the site fer its intended use. 

Geologic hazard" means any geologic feature capable of producing structural damage or
physical injury. Geologic hazards include: 

a. Landslides and potential slope instabilities resulting from bedding faults, weak clay
stone beds, and over steepened slopes; 

b. Deposits potentially subject to liquefaction, seismically induced settlement, severe
ground shaking, surface rupture, debris flows, or rock falls resulting from fault activity; 

Deposits subject to seepage conditions or high groundwater table. 

Geotechnical report" means a report which contains all appropriate soil engineering, 
geologic, geohydrologic, and seismic information, evaluation, recommendations and findings. 

This type of report combines both engineering geology and soil engineering reports. 

Grade" means the elevation and cross- sections established for the finished surface. All

grades shall be based upon the official datum of the city. 

Grading" means any excavating or filling or combination thereof. 

Grading permit" means a permit issued pursuant to this chapter. 

Grading, Rough. " Rough grading" means the condition where ground surface approximately

conforms to the design grade, generally within one- tenth of a foot, and all compaction of fills and
embankments have been performed to the specifications required by the soil engineer. 

Groundwater" r" shall have the sar_rr e meaning__ c r rwlJg(th in r ernon Grovemml^ rWun Ci I

Section 8. 48. 020. 

T _ .. m_ 

Grubbing" means the removal of roots and stumps. 

Key" means a designed compaction fill placed in a trench excavated in earth material
beneath the toe of a proposed fill slope. 

Keyway" means aR eXGavated trenGh beReath the tee of the proposed fill 6! E) pe iRte WhiGh is
placed- a- EoFapacted` ear-t# 4nater- ia

Land development" means the making of excavations and embankments on private property
and the construction of slopes, drainage structures, fences and other facilities incidental thereto. 

Land disturbance activity" shall have the sarne meanina as set forth in LGWLemon

Grove Mun.i......
WgaIWCodeW..,.....W......._... ......_....... 

ci Sectionon 8. 48. 020.. 

Landscape architect" means a landscape architect, registered by the state of California, 
who performs professional work in physical land planning and integrated land development, 
including the design of landscape planting programs. 

M



Attachment B

desig-R- sr+terga--apo-g4-44anse- tG44iotemef# 4k4-- requ+Fe t&-cif-fh+s—.hapter. 

Landscape documentation package" means those supplemental landscape -specific

attachments required by Section 18. 44. 040 to be submitted as part of an application package, 
as required elsewhere in the Municipal Code. 

Landslide" means the downward and outward movement of soil, sand, gravel, rock or fill or

a combination thereof. 

t P) h meaning as setµ forth in- LGMGMaximum extent t, tirable INIEPI shall have the same, 
Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 8. 48. 020, 

MS4" shall have the same meanina asset forth in Lemon Grove Municipal Code
SectionLGAV4C 8.48. 020. 

Natural terrain" means the lay of the land prior to any grading. 

Nuisance" shallµ have the same meanina as set forth in Lemon Grove Municipal Code
SectionI. GAAS 17. 08. 030. 

t: n sit,e : s t, ct o e. s kl o; aa tl a` ateri l- s ving-at.v,ities , t w ok ap,.e; aalic,; 

gr•ati.. c; lir~ itiorr- d tire,.a tion f fila a e h-;`+" rh cl- are r-epi- i;`c to. l„ et, a e

a. s toforrit

e) fills, gFade c vGF! emrn

46GaPiRger ether Ian4-1

that-s sefves- GafwA# ed workr, as -dares, -road -Gut -s --f&—, Ga ent

basinu or 4e°uses..= e-r at- a= smde r toy- t e-sur f e uir irff oiler-atior. s. f-:a thr= ateria4n' ov ft
ar,tivities iR areas either An n_r off- site wheFe the Fersults aFe modified by GGRGtFUGti9n of

land engiReeFedorks are deemed to

be 6i=iFfaGe eper tiens unle66 exempted rfaee MiRiRg and

QYeFb6IFd8R" FReaR6 6001FQGk 9F etheF rnateFialr, that lie above a Ratural deposit

cent ts-v it#- atf er- ta-Eanduct pefa#+ons-en-lois-ori-k et+a#: 

hetes r lr o int ,,„ t for - r- rt I1`4r rer n(av ak, 

Owner" means any person, agency, firm or corporation having a legal, possessory or
equitable interest in a given piece of real property. 

Paleontologist" means a person who holds an advanced degree, who is affiliated with a

recognized institution such as a museum or university and who is actively engaged in the
research of prehistoric life through the study of plant and animal fossils. 

Permittee" means any person to whom a permit is issued pursuant to this chapter. 

Person" means any individual, firm, association, corporation, organization or partnership, or

any GtyCi ty, county district or the state or any department or agency thereof. 

w
II have the same meaning as

w w
Grove Municipa Codee. ha set forth in Lemon . Pollutants" s__ 

Section LGW 8. 48. 020. 

P e the same meanina as set forth in Lemon Grove Municipal CodePollution" shall have ..., 

SectionLGWG 8.48. 020.. 

51- 



Attachment B

fep%sefrtative:, 

Preliminary soil engineering report" also referFed to a6 " 
means a report prepared under the responsible supervision of a soil

engineer which includes preliminary information concerning engineering properties of soil and

rock on a site prior to grading, describing locations of these materials and providing
recommendations for preparation of the site for its intended use. 

Premises" means contiguous property in the same ownership for the purposes of this
chapter. 

Property owner" means the owner, subdivider or developer of real property which will be
benefited by the proposed land development work. 

Property, Public. "Public property" mans property owned in fee by the city, or dedicated for
public use. 

Public interest slope" means any manufactured slope which meets any one of the following
criteria: 

a. A vertical height in excess of fifteen feet; 

b. A vertical height in excess of five feet located on the exterior of a subdivision and

exposed to view from any point outside the subdivision; 

c. A vertical height in excess of five feet which will be visible after completion of the

buildings to be placed on the subject graded area from any circulation element road, from any
existing or proposed public buildings, public facility, or publicly used property, from any private
property two streets or more away from the slope in question or from any private homes existing
at the time of creation of the slope. 

Public rights- of-way" means public easements or dedications for streets, alleys, drainage
ways and/ or other uses. 

Publicly used property" means property that is used frequently by persons other than the
residents and/ or owners. 

ReGlan4a# i " aft the PFGGers of land 1ron4mon4 that

rminim
mizeswF rlenr i

pe4161te- aq et+esr i4dti#e abitat#toodi+4g, erFas+ae aPA ether adverse e# eots fFeFn
s # ase ir ieg-0pefatier s + r c l di ag^' s r#a e#fests sider taJ to er9rsUad1- nI4ne& 

0thal n'lir*d lan( Js are r cgla4n"w(.4wt0- n_ Which" i's -read 0y ai#a pta We fog`- i4ern t

f.i°eate no damag
plarl- e- Zon4nr l + 5 - r$  pf f r trl Fkt pl r° s Wtw. f a J"), race s...rrm, y ext t d tc ff to f lai' 1

and saf d+r--m*ne 4aflbs;- a+ad may regw+re-ba-G44ingrab Rg reseilinn reYe9etat+ ee;-&a-I

compaction stab+llz-ation- or-0t#-+er measwes: 

IReceivina waters' shall have the same meaning as set forth in Lemon Grove M ini lna. 

Code Section4= GMG 8. 48. 020„ 

Relative compaction" means the in- place dry density ( determined by ASTM D1556, or other
Gity eRgineefCity Engineer approved equal) expressed as a percentage of the maximum dry
density ( determined by ASTM D1557, or other Gity engiReerCity Engineer approved equal). 

Retaining wall" means wall designed to resist the lateral displacement of soil or other
materials. 

M



Attachment B

Runoff" shall have • .. e::. a.. e  , ...._

n  _ iri .._.p Codethe c mP mPani,nn as set forth in Lemon rnvP M rnirina

SectionLGMG 8. 48. 020. 

Sediment" shall have the same meaninq as set forth in Lemon Grove Municioal Code
SectionLGMG 8. 48. 020. 

Slope" means the inclined exposed surface of a fill, excavation or natural terrain. 

GonditiGR prior to any grading-. 

Soil" means earth material of whatever origin, overlying bedrock and may include the
decomposed zone of bedrock which can be readily excavated by mechanical equipment. 

Soil engineer" means a registered civil engineer who holds a valid authorization to use the

title " soil engineer" as provided in Section 6736. 1 of the California Business and Professions

Code. The terms " geotechnical engineer," "soils engineer" and " soil and foundation engineer" 

are deemed to be synonymous with the term " soil engineer." 

Soil engineering" means the application of the principles of soil mechanics in the
investigation, evaluation and design of civil works involving the use of earth materials and the

inspection and testing of the construction thereof. 

Source control BMP ( both structural and non- structural" shall have the same meanina as

set forth in Lemon Grove Municipal Code SectionLAGMG 8. 48. 020. 

State general construction stormwater errrrr it" shall have the same meaning as set forth iwn
Lemon Grove Municipal Code SectionLGMG 8. 48. 020. 

tat-e4>oarrt`°,,mei dist o Lst, to-Mini.ri.nan-d--Geotoo ....E oar ti._in-thc- t ep;artniwWof
GGR6ep, ation, state of GalifOFRia. 

Ghapte-r2-ef-Div+sion-1--0fthe -P Reseufses- Code

Stockpile" means a temporary, uncompacted fill or embankment placed by artificial means, 
which is designated or intended to be moved, or relocated at a later date. 

Stop Work Order" ? fall have the sande mei nin s set forth in Lemon G9r ve MLjr4srp t
Lemon Grove unwici

walwwwCode
SectionLGVIG._ 8. 48 020, 

Stormwater shall have the same e niOS s set forth in I er r tin p e I nen o weal- ocfe

Lemon Grove Municipal Code SectionLGMG 8. 48. 020. 

Structural pocost nstruction BMP" shall have the same rn an a aws set forth in Lemon
Grove Municipal Codeectfon G 8. 48. 020. 

Subdivider" means a person, firm, corporation, partnership or association who causes land
to be divided into one or more lots or parcels for him or herself or others as defined by those

sections of the Government Code known as the Subdivision Map Act. 

Substantial conformance" means grading that conforms to Section 18. 08. 480 of this
chapter. 

M



Attachment B

Terrace" means a relatively level step constructed in the face of a graded slope surface for
drainage and maintenance purposes. 

Unsuitable materials" means any soil or earth material having properties or o" araGteFisti 
whish characteristics, which, under the criteria of this chapter or under the criteria contained in

any approved geotechnical report, make it unsuitable for use as fill or for any other intended
use. These properties or characteristics include, but are not limited to, organic content of the

material exceeding three percent, rock diameters exceeding eight inches, the presence of
concrete or asphalt, or the presence of expansive soils within three feet of finish grade of any
area intended or designed as a location for a building. 

Watercourse" small have the s memeanLgg  st f wlh in Lemon Grove Municipal Code

SectionL-GM-G 8. 48. 020. For the purposes of this chapter, ( Ord. 671,

MeaRs aRy Wat8FG06IF68, stream, river, Greek, ditGh, GhanRel, Gana', Gencluit, GUIVWt, drain, 

either, r t r . sly r ii  er tt ttly.ym nne r y a d erMt th flet a- u t t i anrbati f ò r - a

hur d- year-wed- 

a. a " P -private watercourse" is a watercourse that collects runoff from private property and
transports water to the public right-of-way and a . 

b. " P -public watercourse" is a watercourse that collects runoff from the public right- of-way
or water collected in a private watercourse that has reached the public right-of-way. ( Ord. 387§ 

3 201-0• nrd 37-1 § 1
1

2008) 

Article II. Permits and Fees

18. 08. 060 Land development work— Permit required. 

A. Except as exempted in Section 18. 08. 070, no person shall do any grading nor shall an
owner allow any grading on their property unless the person or owner has a valid grading permit
issued by the `+ity enniReeFCitr Engineer authorizing such grading. 

B. An owner is presumed to have allowed grading which has been done on property
occupied by him or her or is under his or her dominion and control. This presumption is a
presumption affecting the burden of producing evidence. 

C. A separate grading permit shall be required for each legal parcel, noncontiguous site, 
development, or each separate subdivision final map for which grading is to be performed. (Ord-. 

1 ' W

18. 08. 070 Designated exceptions. 

The following described grading is exempt from the requirement to obtain a grading permit
under the provisions of this chapter: 

A. Depositing materials in any disposal area operated by or licensed by the city or San
Diego County. 

B. Grading which meets all of the following limitations: 

1. Grading is on a single legal lot or contiguous ownership; 



Attachment B

2. Involves the cumulative movement of not more than fifty cubic yards of earth; 

3. The cut in the cut area and/ or the fill in the fill area, at their deepest points, do not
exceed a depth of three feet in vertical depth measured from the original ground; 

4. The fill is not intended to support structures; 

5. The finished cut and/ or fill slopes are not steeper than two horizontal to one vertical

2: 1); 

6. The finished grading does not alter the drainage patterns either upstream or
downstream from the grading; 

7. None of the fill is placed on existing ground having a slope steeper than five horizontal
to one vertical ( 5: 1), which is a twenty percent slope; 

8. None of the grading is closer than five feet to the adjacent ownership; 

9. The finished slopes are protected from erosion and the downstream properties are

protected from siltation resulting from the grading. 

C. Excavation below finish grade for basements, for footings or foundations for buildings, 

manufactured homes, retaining walls or other structures or facilities, all if authorized by a valid
building permit approved and issued by the GOMMURity development direGto Development
Services Director. Any embankment constructed with the excess material from the excavation
exempted by this section must either be disposed of under an approved grading permit, or be
disposed on- site without creating embankments more than three feet in unsupported height; 

D. Exploratory excavations under the direction of a soil engineer, archaeologist, 
paleontologist or engineering geologist. Such excavations must be properly backfilled and
compacted or otherwise restored. 

E. When approved by the sit eng+neeFCity Engineer, excavation for the sole purpose of
recompaction as specified or recommended by an approved soils report. 

F. Grading for which inspection is provided by the city and which is done by a developer or
contractor pursuant to city -approved improvement plans within public rights- of-way and adjacent
slope rights areas independent of adjacent land development work, or grading done pursuant to
a permit for excavation in public streets. 

G. Clearing and brushing when directed by the fire chief to mitigate a fire hazard, with the
concurrence of the GOMMURity developmeRt & 8Gto Development Services Director that such

clearing and brushing will not cause significant damage to any rare, endangered or protected
species of plant or wildlife or cause any significant damage to any habitat of any rare, 
endangered or protected species of wildlife. 

Note: The above listed exemptions do not apply to clearing, grubbing, brushing or grading
when: 

1. Grading will occur in or physically impact designated or dedicated open space or
environmentally sensitive areas designated in the CEQA, the general plan or shown on any
approved specific plan; 

2. Grading will occur in any waterway or wetland, stream, river, channel, pond, lake, 
marsh, bog, lagoon, vernal pool or riparian habitat; 

M



Attachment B

3. Grading will occur in any floodway or floodplain as shown on the San Diego county
flood plain maps or on city -revised maps; 

4. Grading will occur in any officially mapped area in high geologic risk zone; 

5. Grading will occur in any other sensitive areas such as archaeological sites, historical
sites or burial grounds. 

18. 08. 080 Permit applications

A. Any person desiring to perform land development grading not exempted by Section
18. 08. 070 shall submit a grading permit application in a form approved by the Gity eRgiReerCity
Engineer. 

B. A separate application with plans, specifications and other supplemental data as

specified in this chapter and determined to be necessary by the city eagiaeeFCity Engineer, 
shall be required for each grading permit. The application form shall be signed by the owner or
authorized agent of the property to be graded. 

C. A complete grading permit application shall be submitted for city review and approval
with the following items, completed and signed by the applicant or authorized agent, to the
satisfaction of the city engineeFCity Engineer, or this chapter: 

1. Grading plan; 

2. Separate plot plan; 

3. Preliminary soil engineering report; 

4. Landscape and irrigation plans consistent with requirements of Chapter 18. 44; 

5. Drainage study; 

6. Haul route, including source of borrow or disposal; 

7. Erosion control plan; 

8. Post -Construction Stormwater Management Plan where required pursuant to Chanter

8. 48; 

97-. Grading plan check fee; 

108. Soil engineering report review fee; 

110. Deposit for independent third party review of soil report; 

120. Inspection fees ( may be paid at any time prior to issuance of permit); 

134. Proof of legal lot ( may be waived by ^ ity engineeFCity Engineer if grading is pursuant
to an approved tentative map or zoning permit). 

D. The Gity engineeFCity Engineer may, upon his or her determination and discretion, 
require additional data or information, eliminate, or modify any of the above requirements

determined to appropriate, including those items in Section 18. 08. 090. 

E. The plans, application requirements and necessary fees may be altered or changed at
any time between application submittal and permit issuance under the following conditions: 

A change of policy or direction by the city council; 

2. A change in the grading ordinance or fee schedule approved by the city council; 

MO



Attachment B

3. Discovery that the plans, application or fees violate or do not meet existing ordinances
or policies or conform to the requirements of other permits or approvals, such as zoning permits

or subdivision maps; 

4. Discovery of any design defect, soil or geologic hazard, or any other fact or item which if
left unchanged could cause damage, harm or hazard to public or private properties, or to life, 
limb or the general public' s safety or welfare. 

If such discoveries are made as described in subsections 3 and 4 of this subsection, and
changes are so directed, the applicant shall be granted an extension of the application

expiration date for thirty days, or for such other period as the Gity engiReerCityEngineer may
grant to the applicant, to allow for all required changes to reasonably be made and
accomplished. 

F. The time limits set out in Sections 18. 08.260 and 18. 08. 300 shall apply to all grading
plans and applications. ; 

18. 08. 090 Additional information. 

Other items which may be required by the e+ty eRgineerCity Engineer in order to complete
the grading permit application include: 

A. Special erosion control plans, including landscape and irrigation plans; 

B. Hydrology and hydraulic reports; 

C. Application for environmental initial study (AEIS); 

D. _ Geotechnical reports on seismicity and geology; 

E. Letters of permission from adjacent owners or easement holders to grade off- site or on

easements; 

F. Right of entry; 

G. Waiver and release to divert or concentrate drainage affecting downstream off-site

property; 

H. Easement and flowage rights documents; 

I. Other information as determined by the Gi+y eRgiReeFCity Engineer to be necessary to
protect the public interest and fulfill the purposes of this chapter. 

Recommendations included in such reports and approved by the Gity eRgineerCity Engineer
shall be incorporated in the grading plan, landscape and irrigation plan and the land
development specifications. 

18. 08. 100 Grading plan requirements. 

A. Grading plans shall be prepared and submitted with the grading permit application in
accordance with the G it, ensneerCity Engineering standards and the requirements of the G4
eRgir+eerCity Engineer. 

B. All grading plans shall be signed by a registered civil engineer and by the soil engineer, 
The Git , eRgineeFCity Engineer may waive this requirement when the proposed grading is on a
single lot or parcel not proposed for further subdivision and in the opinion of the city

M



Attachment B

eagiqeerCitY Engineer, the proposed grading entails no hazard to any adjacent property, does
not necessitate construction of extensive drainage structures or erosion control facilities, and

does not interfere in any way with existing natural or improved drainage courses or channels. 

C. The Gity engiReerCity Engineer may stop work and require amendment or change of
approved grading, erosion control or landscape and irrigation plans for any of the following
reasons: 

Extension or renewal of the grading permits; 

2. Changes have been made in the actual work which are not reflected on the approved

plans; 

3. The scope or quantity of grading has been changed; 

4. Construction, traffic, drainage, soil, geologic, public safety or environmental problems
not considered, known or evident at the time of permit issuance or plan approval become

evident. 

18. 08. 110 Plot plans. 

A separate plot plan showing the location of the land development boundaries, lot lines, 
public and private rights- of-way lines, and precise grading information in accordance with
specifications set forth in this chapter and as required by the city eRg' ReerCitY Engineer shall
also be submitted. A print of the approved tentative subdivision map or tentative parcel map
showing the required information may be submitted in lieu of a plot plan. 

18. 08. 120 Preliminary soil engineering and geology reports

A. Three copies of a preliminary soils engineering report shall be submitted with the
application for a grading permit. Each report shall be prepared by a soil engineer and contain all
information applicable to the project in accordance with generally accepted geotechnical
engineering practice. The preliminary soil engineering report shall include, but not be limited to, 
the following: 

1. Information and date regarding the nature, distribution, and the physical and chemical
properties of existing soils; 

2. Location of faults as defined by a registered geologist or certified engineering geologist; 

3. Conclusions as to the adequacy of the site for the proposed grading; 

4. Recommendations for general and corrective grading procedures; 

5. Foundation design criteria; 

6. Slope gradient, height and benching, or terracing recommendations; 

7. The potential for groundwater and seepage conditions and procedures for mitigation of

the groundwater - related problems; 

8. Other recommendations, as necessary, commensurate with the project grading and
development. 

B. The soil engineer and engineering geologist should refer to the geologic conditions
element of the Lemon Grove general plan in preparing the reports required by this section. 

5W



Attachment B

C. Recommendations contained in the approved reports shall be incorporated into the

grading plans and specifications and shall become conditions of the grading permit. 
D. Preliminary geologic investigations and reports shall be required for all land

development projects where known or reasonably inferred instability may adversely affect the
property. The preliminary geological investigation report shall include, but not be limited to, the
following: 

1. A comprehensive description of the site topography and geology including, where

necessary, a geology map; 

2. A statement as to the adequacy of the proposed development from an engineering
geologic standpoint; 

3. A statement as to the extent that known or reasonably inferred stability on adjacent

properties may adversely affect the project; 

4. A description of the field investigation and findings; 

5. Conclusions regarding the effects geologic conditions will have on the proposed
development; 

6. Specific recommendations for plan modification, corrective grading and/ or special

techniques and systems to facilitate a safe and stable development; 

7. Provide other recommendations, as necessary, commensurate with the project grading
development. 

E. The preliminary geological investigation report may be combined with the preliminary
soils engineering report. , 2008) 

18. 08. 130 Landscape and irrigation plans. 

A. Except for agricultural grading plans, all slopes to be constructed, but only final slopes of
any borrow pit, shall be provided with an irrigation system which shall be used by the permittee
to promote the growth of plants to protect the slopes against erosion. A landscape

documentation package, if required by Chapter 18. 44, shall accompany grading plan submitted

for grading permits. 

B. The grading on the project shall be designed for the efficient use of water by minimizing
soil erosion, runoff and water waste, resulting from precipitation and irrigation. 

C. The plans shall include specifications for the preparation of the existing soils or for the
application of topsoil amendments to the slopes to encourage vigorous growth. The permittee
shall be responsible for full compliance with the standards and procedures established by the

city in this chapter or other applicable ordinances, standards or manuals. Landscape and
irrigation plans and specifications shall maximize the use of drought resistant plants and shall

provide for water conservation measures throughout the planting irrigation and maintenance
plans and specifications. The plan shall show the finished configuration and elevations of each

landscaped area including the height of graded slopes, the drainage pattern, pad elevations, 
finish grade and any stormwater retention improvements. 

D. The landscape documentation package shall be prepared by a licensed landscape
architect, licensed civil engineer, licensed architect, or other landscape professional

IIF



Attachment B

appropriately licensed by the state and shall contain all of the elements required by Section
18. 44. 070. 

E. The permittee shall be responsible for installation and maintenance of the irrigation

system until the sityengineeFCity Engineer determines that the system has been properly
installed and meets the minimum requirements of this section and the requirements of Chapter

18. 44. ( Ord. 387 § 32010; Ord. 371 R 1 20

18. 08. 140 Minimum BMPs for land disturbance activities. 

All dischargers engaged in land disturbance activities shall implement BMPs as detailed in

the city' s BMP Manual, this

chapter, and Chapter 8. 48, E as applicable to the project. ( 94 371 § 1, 2008) 

o " 

A. Project proponents shall implement ethe-f&4& Mn94* P mw-n-erosion pfeventiwGn- ontrol

measures r .'« e' a ed in the BMP Manual, this chapter, and Chapttr 8 o minimize

the project' s potential.- 

rr. ., ,«e b" w r a,, 

2. Th -- l- 
C MIS, Jr +i. 

r

l4 at est erosi r n ots--p# y-in stalled
e rca-:+ nr +h n+ hate_+S° rn® nrcrrn_ 

4F

at all

7 nd® n„ a ter plei

A - ua - i-mt- ntroi Ps -m ust_ - i tall - and- main ad

4®, 

O



Attachment B

r-ov nt df - must- be st - n- the- s+te; 

A apt n d ° weati a t i n t'°  i r t r  1a  t at i . . ir'rrt l .: e sty tion 1f1 toe

eva nt- tln ot redicte` f...st r° r wr t-  , tsf y- Im. K at +. e. a• a,: o t w_ a. o r er t- d u; t 1 v

the- oity.-to-de- h t - BM Rs- tNr+ - 4- hGurs- 44h- e d - ted- st nt; 

v sl - b st + lig 4R ai fits; -and

s

eveRtee

greater than -Ae verfleen a c res, the dlsch arge( SflaII fiI' stIR4br -'wt Jo I he 6t air°rginee(,- 6ten

s...of jx'fl14; 4ants- trs the-+1Ia irn't4I 

t t- g. ral le;- f-- leverets° os. rttcs t°tca4l. ta it,swth t.wc l lv so-e- sor trlt, nt°: t 

y- aso in _ -€- tr c a s t-- - ' ofi-, 

de l r lsr sr sl n l re or iior  s r rrst deo i stall d  r . l e tat l sl or. -.f   fM GGIIIl ted' 

sk pos- prior to-: tolrw "Vst r d-; aiw tal e f- tf*-r o gP rwrt-- tt e- wet ; if -a Nt t Rs; it rr ust°l" a

a

rrrrvrtar sWttr- tty ont ar roer ff r vs..tp. e...rtistrt r'rr o  . a. lart. re - r ^ rNtrr t.. l N; r- er t tl t- 

dissl arr r. r-or  is « tfa r v l'-tri-dr tr..r+ l w r"r- aro a., ftr, ate - tl rr=r- ssysr tsorr ,a r. s w:. tl rrr° tisol"°°r} 

s  r tat

is a{ ! tet t • t - aim rrt--- r ° oma i - of

11 rtar is t t wort oa r tf+b t + otatio of water alit - st ar to

Ist a of in - t+voly- r Gted

18. 08. 160 Erosion control plan requirements. 

As applicable, all applications for permits related to construction activities, regardless of the

date of submittal and including but not limited to projects that require an approved grading plan
or permit, shall include an erosion control plan designed to limit erosion of all disturbed portions

of the property and to eliminate the transport of soil onto adjacent properties or into streets, 
storm drains, or drainage ways. 

18. 08. 170 Erosion control required. 

61- 



A. Plans for an erosion control system shall be prepared and submitted for the review and

approval of the Gity engineeras a part of any application for a construction permit. 
The erosion control system shall comply with the requirements of the latest State general
construction stormwater permit ( NPDES Permit No. CAS000002) and any amendments

theretoNRational pPelli itant DdicnhaFge jelimiRatinn 9systom Dpermit the MS4 Permit, Lemon

Grove Municipal Code LGIVIC Chapters 8. 481 and this chapter to satisfy the requirements for
erosion control and to eliminate the discharge of sediment and pollutants. The erosion control

plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: 

1. Name, address, and a twenty- four hour phone number of the owner or responsible
party, and the person or contractor responsible for installing and maintaining the erosion control
system and performing emergency erosion control work; 

2. The name, address and signature of the civil engineer or person who prepared the plan; 

3. All desilting basins, debris basins, silt traps, and other desilting, velocity retarding and
protection facilities necessary to adequately protect the site and downstream properties from
erosion and its effects, preserve natural hydrologic features, and preserve riparian buffers and

corridors; 

4. The streets, easements, drains, and other improvements; 

5. The location and placement of gravel bags, diverters, check dams, temporary erosion

control measures -such as muwlches._or soil binde„ryslope planting, drains, and other erosion
controlling devices and measures as required by the BMP Manual; 

6. Access routes to all such erosion control facilities and how access shall be maintained

during inclement weather. 

B. Erosion control system standards shall be as follows: 

1. Erosion control BMPsmeasures shall be implemented as reauired by the

City' s BMP Manual, this chapter, and Chapter 8. 48. 

2. The permittee or owner shall be responsible for control of erosion on all areas of

roading until accep gncewof the coreµ leted rad  b

wthe
tti rwwCwouncwil. This resp onsibilAy

extends to completed and occupied lots. 

3. No earth or organic material shall be deposited or placed where it may be directly

carved into a stream or bodv of standina water. 

4. Eauioment and workers for emeraencv work shall be made available at all times. One

titagdr_e t ` nty.:fwvewue cenof a 11 ncess ry materials shall b - available.,on site, 4

stockpiled at convenient locations.. and present in sufficient quantities to facilitate rapid

construction of temporary devices at all times. Failure to maintain sufficient materials onsite to

i?! r,v@!) t nd control....discharges of se6aient andother. Hiutnnts..inaccordanceinWth„the

r& j0rern r°its of flits Chapterr and the Cit , s BMP P' anuM is a violation, of this Chapter. 

5

M



Attachment B

oit- e+ig+rrreer rtyr;m r i e a r tr y d...t+ cc cr + ol eros rrrprev rr t.. isc# egg - f sed rnerr

and provide

relative GOMpaGt* OR Of RiRety peFGent of maximum deRsity. A gravel bag E) F plaStiG spillway must
be iRstalled for overflow, as desigRed by the eRgineer of weFk, to avoid faiI61Fe Of the eaFthen
dar nits er g,ineering T ort 1a- epar d by t° e..so l r gin -, r lei g o t of ff 9 ® t itirig

peFfem; ed, lGGati9R and results of testing shall be submitted tG the Gity engiReerGity- ERQ+Reef

fei- r ta- frrµovita-a-d tk--- o eity- k± :xeabl- af-r taani g.k t ipatedm rn r ffo a peried

of turne adequate to all()W FeaSGRable settlement of suspended paFt Gies. feasibier.

a,ndr s all - o vide irnpr. v n w r ter ao a cess.... frorn-pa ec roads -- during wet-wtt-her- desil}

inn basins 7.—

All removable protective devices shown shall be in place at the end of each working day

when there is a fifty percent chance of rain within a forty- eight hour period. If the developer does
not provide the required installation or maintenanceof erosion control structures within two hours

of notificationat the twenty- four hour number on the plans, the Gity eRgiReeFCity Engineer may
order city crews to do the work or may issue contracts for such work and charge the cost of this
work along with reasonable overhead charges to the cash deposits or other instruments implemented
for this work without further notification to the owner. No additional work on the project

except erosion control work may be performed until the full amount drawn from the deposit
is restored by the developer. 86. 

At any time of year, an inactive site or inactive portions of an active site, shall be fully
protected from erosion and discharges of sediment. Flat are__ with less than fire PeFGent grade-

shaif be ft;rttycov ret urrlerr  se i rerit- contro4 --pr v d- ttwou9ha,t. all. A

site or portion of a site is considered inactive if construction activities have
ceased for a period of ten -14 or more consecutive days. If construction activites have tive

days on only a portion of the site. only that ortion of the site ceasedfor 14 or morewwconsecu is

considered inactive. C. 

No grading work shall be allowed between October 1st and the following April 30th on any
site when the îty eRqiReerCity Engineer determines that erosion, mudflow or sediment of silt
discharge may adversely affect downstream properties, drainage courses, storm drains, streets, 
easements, or public or private facilities or improvements unless an approved erosion control

system has been implemented on the site. If the city determines that it is necessary for the
city to cause erosion control measures to be installed or cleanup to be done, the developer shall
pay all of the city's direct and indirect costs including extra inspection, supervision, and reasonable
overhead charges. M1



Attachment B

18. 08. 180 BMP maintenance. 

All BMPs for erosion prevention and sediment control shall be functional at all time. Prior to

the rainy season and after each major storm, all s#ur* +, m, BMPs

shall be inspected to assure the functionality. BMP maintenance shall be conducted throughout
the life of the project. 

18. 08. 190 Grading and grading for building construction. 

An owner of land desiring to perform land development work incidental to and in connection
with the construction of a building or structure shall present an application and obtain a grading
permit. The Gity eRg*neerCity Engineer may require a field inspection of the completed grade
with representatives of the Ppublic wWorks Department, the GGMFnunffityDevelopment Services

develspmeet dDepartments, the permittee, the civil engineer, and the soil engineer prior to

commencement of work authorized under a building permit. The permittee shall request the
inspection of the work, if required, two working days prior to the inspection. The grading phase
of the land development work shall be completed and a soils report, including, but not limited to, 
relative compaction of the pads and verification of pad elevations shall be submitted prior to

commencement of work authorized under the associated building permit. The soity
develOpMeRt Development Services Director may direct the building official to suspend
or revoke any building permit in accordance with Section 303 of the Uniform Administrative
Code where it is found that land development is being done or has been done illegally without a
grading permit, or is in violation of a permit, until a grading permit is issued pursuant to the
provision of this chapter. The Development Services Director

will not certify to the completion of the building where land development work has been done
until a grading permit is issued and certified as complete. , 2008) 

18. 08. 200 Early subdivision grading. 

Grading of the subdivision will not be permitted prior to approval of the final map or parcel
map unless specifically approved as a condition of the tentative subdivision or tentative parcel

map. If early subdivision grading is approved, the subdivider may make application to do so
under a standard grading permit. This application shall be accompanied by detailed plans and
specifications based upon the approved tentative map in conformity with the provisions of
Sections 18. 08. 080 through 18. 08140 of this chapter. A grading schedule and cost estimate
based upon plans and specifications shall accompany the application. 

18. 08. 210 Environmental review. 

A. Prior to the issuance of any grading permit, the Gity engineerCity Engineer shall refer the
application for such permit to the Development Services

Director for environmental review pursuant to CEQA. 

B. The c;Gn°'mi nimly dev lepnmre, rrt dti,, , 3tw rl ery , lopment Services Director shall review each

application referred to him/ her to determine whether the grading, if carried out as proposed, 
could have a significant impact on the environment. If the GOMMURit„ deyel pmeRt

direGto Development Services Director determines that the grading may have a significant

ME



Attachment B

impact on the environment, he or she shall return the application to the , i+ y o^^,^ norC

Engineer with appropriate scoping guidance to be furnished to the applicant for preparation of
necessary environmental studies, or for the preparation of an application for environmental
initial study. 

18. 08. 220 Right of entry— Indemnification of city. 

As a prerequisite of issuance of any grading permit, the owner of the site to be graded, and
the contractor, if any, shall grant to the city permission, a right of entry into the site for inspection
and/ or correction of grading not performed in compliance with the terms and conditions of the
permit. The owner and the contractor shall agree to indemnify the city for any claims or

damages which may result from the city' s entry onto the property including any corrective action
taken pursuant to such right of entry. The right of entry and indemnification agreement form
shall be approved by the city attorney. , 2008) 

18. 08. 230 Restriction on permit issuance— Excessive grades. 

Except for the movement of earth for small projects such as custom lots, individual building
foundations, and driveways as approved by the Gommunity develepmeRt direGto Development
Services Director, or for local roads or trenches to mitigate a geologic hazard to adjacent

property, or as required for the construction of necessary access or fire roads, as approved by
the Gity eRgiReeFCity Engineer, no person shall grade upon nor shall any permit be issued for
grading upon natural grades or slopes which exceed twenty- five percent gradient through a
vertical rise of more than twenty- five feet, unless specifically approved by the city council or
planning commission. 

18. 08. 240 Nonstructural fills. 

A. Nonstructural ( uncompacted) fills are prohibited, except for temporary stockpiles, unless

specifically authorized by the City Engineer . 
B. Applications for grading permits involving nonstructural fills shall be accompanied by an

agreement signed by the property owner. The agreement for development of nonstructural fills
shall be prepared by the City Enqineer and shall contain the following provisions
and such other provisions as may, in the opinion of the city attorney and of the sity-eegiReerC
Enqineer, to afford protection to the property owner and the city: 

1. The development work shall be designated as nonstructural fill and shall be constructed
in accordance with grading plans approved by the Gity engiReerCity Engineer; 

2. The owner acknowledges that as a nonstructural fill, the site is not eligible for a building
permit until, subject to the review and approval of the city engiReerCity Engineer, a soils
investigation report, additional geotechnical reports in accordance with Section 18. 08. 120, and

any other pertinent information as deemed necessary by the Gity eRgiReerCity Engineer, have
been submitted and approved by the city; 

l



Attachment B

3. The land development work shall be done and maintained in a safe, sanitary and non - 
nuisance condition at the sole cost, risk and responsibility of the owner and his or her
successors in interest, who shall hold the city harmless with respect thereto; 

4. The agreement for nonstructural fills shall be presented to the city council for approval, 
and if approved, shall be recorded in the office of the San Diego County recorder. The notice
shall remain in effect until release of the agreement is filed by the sit engineerCity Engineer. 

18. 08. 250 Drainage easement required. 

A. For all public watercourses, the applicant may be required to grant or cause to be
granted to the city, a drainage easement in accordance with the specifications set forth by the
city @RgineorCity Engineer prior to the issuance of the grading permit. 

B. For all private watercourses where the continuous functioning of the drainageway is
essential to the protection and use of multiple properties, the applicant may be required to
record a covenant, a maintenance agreement and/ or deed restriction placing the responsibility

for the maintenance of the drainageway(s) on the owners of record of each respective lot
affected, Permanent off-site drainage easements, as required by the Gits, 8RgiReeFCity Engineer, 
shall be acquired by the applicant,, Suoh easements shall be subject to approval by the G4
ergiee° iity Erineer and recorded prior to issuance of the grading permit. 

C. For all watercourses where no public or private improvements are to be installed, but

which must, in the opinion of the Gity onnineorCity Engineer, be kept open and clear for natural
stormwater runoff, the applicant may be required, prior to the issuance of a grading permit, to
grant a flowage easement to the city. Flowage easements shall be granted on a form approved
by the city attorney. 

18. 08. 260 Permit applications— Expiration and extension. 

Any grading permit application for which a valid grading permit has not been issued, whether
or not the grading plans have been approved and signed by the city onnineorCity Engineer, 
shall expire, automatically, one hundred eighty days after receipt of the application by the city, 
after which time the application and plans shall be deemed as expired and invalid. ( Ord. 371 § 

T , 2008) 

18. 08. 270 Issuance of permits. 

The Gity eRgiReeFCity Engineer shall issue grading permits for land development work upon
approval of applications and plans; receipt of prescribed studies, reports and other required

documents, receipt of fees, and securities, receipt of the required originals, sepias and prints of

the approved grading plans signed by the Gity onnineorCity Engineer, the soil engineer, the
landscape architect, the engineer geologist and others as required by the Gity eRgineeFcity
Engineer, who have been retained by the permittee to perform the work. The permit shall
include, or refer to, the conditions, plans and specifications which shall govern the work
authorized. 



Attachment B

18. 08. 280 Denial of permits. 

A. Hazardous Grading. The ^ ity onnineerCity Engineer shall not issue a grading permit in
any case where he/ she finds or where it may reasonably be inferred that the work as proposed
by the applicant will: 

1. Damage any private or public property; or

2. Expose any property to landslide or geologic hazard; or

3. Adversely interfere with existing drainage courses or patterns; or

4. Cause erosion which could result in the depositing of mud, silt, or debris on any public

or private street or way or in the City' s MS4; or

5. Create any hazard to person or property. 

B. Geological Hazard. If, in the opinion of the city engineerCity Engineer, the land area for
which grading is proposed is subject to geological hazard to the extent that no reasonable
amount of corrective work can eliminate or sufficiently reduce the hazard to person or property, 

the grading permit shall be denied. 

C. Flood Hazard. If, in the opinion of the city eRgaReerCity Engineer, the proposed grading

would adversely affect the flow of runoff or would alter runoff to the detriment of upstream, 
downstream or adjacent properties, the grading permit shall be denied. 

D. Subdivision or Zoning Permits. Under either of the following circumstances, a grading
permit shall not be issued unless and until a subdivision map or a zoning permit has been

approved or conditionally approved, and it has been determined by the engineeFCity

Engineer and the GOMMURity development direGtG Development Services Director that the
subdivision map or zoning permit is not threatened with expiration: 

1. If the purpose of the proposed grading, as stated in the application is to prepare the
land for subdivision or for some use for which a zoning permit is required; or

2. Notwithstanding the purpose of the proposed grading as stated in the application, if the
city engineerand' GGFR a ARit r deve4epm8^ t° orDevelopment Services Director

find that the purpose of the proposed grading is to prepare the land for subdivision or other
purpose for which a zoning permit is required. 

E. Other Reasons. The sity eng+neerCity Engineer shall deny issuance of a grading permit

if so directed by the city council; or if prohibited therefrom by a duly enacted moratorium, court
order, injunction, or other legal order; or if the applicant or owner has failed to comply with the
provisions of this code; or if the work proposed is not consistent with the city general plan, or

any element thereof, or any specific plan, land use ordinance or regulation, zoning ordinance
regulation or permit, or subdivision map. The city engineerCity Engineer shall deny applications
which are not in the interest of the public health, safety, or general welfare, or do not constitute
a reasonable use of land as indicated by the existing zoning or an approved land use plan. FOrd: 
371 § 1, 2llW

18. 08. 290 Appeals. 

M



Attachment B

An applicant may appeal the Gity engineerCity Engineer' s denial of, or the conditions of
approval of, an application for a grading permit to the city planning commission. The applicant or
the permittee may appeal a decision of the sity eRgiaeerCity Engineer within ten working days
after the decision is made. Appeals shall be in writing and shall state the specific nature of the
appeal. Appeals shall be filed with the GOMMUnity development diFeGto Development Services
Director, who shall set a hearing within sixty days, and shall notify the owners of record, 
interested persons signing the appeal in question, and owners of adjacent land identified by the
Git eRgineefCity Enqineer as being affected by the proposed grading. The decision of the
planning commission may be appealed to the city council. ( Ord. 371 §,, 2008) 

18. 08. 300 Permit expiration, extension and cancellation. 

A. Expiration. Every duly issued grading permit shall be valid for the time period specified
on the permit up to a maximum of one year from the date of issuance. All work covered in the
permit shall be completed within such a period, except as specified in this section. 

B. Every permit issued shall expire by limitation and become null and void if the work
authorized by the permit is not commenced and diligently pursued within one hundred eighty
days from the date of permit issuance, or stopped, suspended or abandoned for a period of one

hundred eighty days. 

C. If work is not commenced or diligently pursued, within the extension period specified in
this section, then the permit shall thereafter be deemed expired and null and void. 

D. For purposes of this section, " diligently pursued" work shall be grading of such
magnitude, frequency, or complexity as to require the regular services of the permittee' s soil
engineer and/ or civil engineer or other professionals, and which is inspected at regular intervals

by the city. 

E. Extensions. Upon written request from the permittee, submitted prior to the expiration of

the one hundred eighty -day period in which work was to commence, the city engineerCity
Engineer may extend the period in which the permittee must start work, for one hundred eighty
days, provided the permittee demonstrates that circumstances beyond the permittee' s control

prevented commencement of the approved work. 

F. If the work authorized by the grading permit is not completed within the permit period, 
the Eity eng er- Engineer, upon written request from the permittee, submitted prior to the

expiration of the permit, may extend the permit for a period of one year. 

G. Cancellation. The s}ty engiReerCitX Engineer may cancel a permit or may require the
plans to be amended in the interest of public health, safety and welfare or under any of the
following conditions upon the request of the permittee. 

18. 08. 310 Revocation of permits. 

A. The ri+„ on„ ineeFCity Engineer may revoke any permit granted under the provisions of
this chapter if the ri+ iReerCity Engineer determines that the permit was obtained by fraud, 
or that one or more of the conditions upon which the permit was granted have been violated, or

that the permittee failed or refused to correct a deficiency or hazard upon the receipt of written
notice and within the time specified in such notices, or that the permittee fails or refuses to



Attachment B

perform any of the conditions or standards established for any subdivision, zoning permit or
other approval granted by the city, or fails to correct any hazard or condition as referred to in
Section 18. 08. 590. 

B. The permittee, owner or other party aggrieved or adversely affected by the revocation
of the grading permit may appeal such action to the city council. Any such appeal shall be in
writing, accompanied by a filing fee as shown in the master fee schedule and submitted to the
city clerk within ten working days after the decision is made by the sity-engineerCity Engineer. 
The appeal shall cite reasons and contain other information as necessary to explain why the sify

eng+neerCity Engineer' s action should be rescinded or modified. Upon receipt of any such
written appeal, the city clerk shall set the matter for public hearing. 

C. Any interested person may appear at the hearing and present evidence. At the
conclusion of deliberations on an appeal of a permit revocation, the city council may deny the

appeal, modify existing conditions of, or add new conditions to the permit, or reinstate the
permit. 

D. If a permit is revoked, no further work shall be done upon that site except to correct

hazards and to complete any work required by the permittee' s agreement with the city

eR9i
ieerCity Engineer or city council. Every agreement and every security required by this

chapter shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding any revocation. 

18. 08. 320 Fee schedule— Generally. 

A. Fees required by this chapter shall be collected by the finance director. Such fees shall
be as presently designed or as may in the future be amended. 

B. The Gity nnnineeFCity Engineer may require the payment of additional fees for any of
the following reasons: 

Extension or renewal of the grading permit; 

2. Enlargement of the scope or quantity of grading or any change which increased the
need for inspection or administration of the project; 

3. Additional soil or geotechnical review by a third party of any modified grading. 

C. No permit shall be issued, and no land development shall be permitted until the fees

applicable under this chapter have been received by the finance director. 

18. 08. 330 Plan check and permit fees. 

A. Before accepting an application for grading and/ or landscape and irrigation plans and
specifications for checking, the finance director shall collect a plan -checking fee. The amount of
the plan -checking fee for grading and landscape and irrigation plans shall be as determined by
the sity- engiRee,4: Engineer and as set forth by council resolution. 

B. The plan checking fee for a grading permit authorizing additional work under a valid
permit shall be the difference between the plan check fee paid for the original permit and the fee

required for the entire project. 

18. 08.340 Preliminary soils engineering report review fee. 

II[ 



Attachment B

Before accepting a preliminary soils engineering report for review, the finance director shall
collect a report review fee. A fee will be charged for each individual report submitted for review. 

The amount of the review fee shall be as determined by the Gity engineeFCity Engineer and set

forth by council resolution. Additional deposits may be required for independent review of the
soil engineering report. 

18. 08.350 Inspection deposit. 

Prior to the issuance of the grading permit, a deposit shall be paid to the finance director to
cover the city' s expenses, costs, and overhead for field inspection, office engineering, and
administration of the work performed, including landscape and irrigation work. This will be based
on an estimate of the hours needed for inspection. The amount of the deposit shall be as

determined by the Gity eRg; ReeFCity Engineer. 

18. 08. 360 Work commenced before permit issuance— Fee. 

In addition to any penalty prescribed for violation of this code or for violation of the provisions
of this chapter, and in addition to the fees required in this chapter, a separate fee of one

hundred dollars shall be assessed for any work for which a permit is required by this chapter, 
commenced prior to obtaining such permit. Payment of such fee shall not relieve any person
from any liability under the provisions of this code or from fully complying with the requirements
of this chapter. The fee prescribed in this section shall not be construed as penalty but is added

to defray the expense of the enforcement of the provisions of the chapter and shall be assessed
for each violation cited. 

18. 08. 370 Fee exemptions. 

Permits for grading when approved and inspected by a city, county, state or federal agency, 
may be issued without all or part payment of any of the above fees as approved by the s+fy
engieerCity Engineer. 

18. 08. 380 Refunds. 

A. No fee collected pursuant to this chapter shall be refunded in whole or in part except as

provided in this section: 

1. Plan check fees may be refunded, less any city expenses, including overhead incurred, 
upon the applicant' s request, provided no plan checking has commenced. There shall be no

refund of any plan check fees after issuance of a permit. 

2. Report Review Fees. Prior to review of a report, any fees paid for report review shall be

fully refundable, less a handling charge, upon the applicant' s request, providing the permit has
expired, or is withdrawn, or if the project does not warrant preparation of a soil engineering
report. 

3. Grading inspection fees may be refunded in full, less a handling charge and city
expenses, at any time prior to the start of the work authorized by the permit, upon the
applicant' s request, provide the grading application has expired or has been withdrawn. 



Attachment B

B. No refund shall be made, however, if the applicant or permittee has any outstanding

debts owed to the city, or if corrective work remains to be done on the grading work itself. 
C. No refund shall be made pursuant to this section if a request for refund is submitted to

the city more than one year from the date of payment of the fee as to which a refund is claimed; 
nor shall any refund be paid if the total refundable amount, after deduction of city costs as
provided in this section, is less than twenty- five dollars. 

Article III. Design Standards

18. 08. 390 Design responsibilities. 

A. Civil Engineer. It shall be the responsibility of the civil engineer who prepared the

grading plans to incorporate the applicable recommendations from the soil engineering and
geology reports and to incorporate any Gity engineerCity Engineer approved alternative concept
grading plan into the grading plan. 

B. The civil engineer shall be responsible for establishing line and grade for the grading
and drainage improvements and shall act as the coordinating agent in the event the need arises
for liaison between the other professionals, the contractor and the Gity eRg wneFCity Engineer. 
The civil engineer shall also be responsible for the preparation of plan revisions, and upon

completion of the work, the submission of as graded drawings incorporating all changes and/or

additions made during construction. Prior to the release of building permits for any given lot or
lots, the civil engineer shall submit a written statement as evidence that rough grading for land
development has been completed within standard tolerances in accordance with the approved
plans and that all embankments and cut slopes and pad sizes are as shown on the approved
plans. 

C. Landscape Architect. The designing landscape architect shall incorporate applicable
recommendations from the soils engineering reports along with appropriate measures related to
soil engineering into the landscape and irrigation plans and conditional approval
recommendations. The landscape architect shall also prepare plan revisions, to include

securing approval from the city engifleeFCity Engineer prior to installation, and shall submit as - 
graded drawings incorporating all changes and/ or additions made during construction. The
landscape architect shall, if requested by the G'+ fr eerCity Engineer, prepare alternative

concept contour grading plans for review and approval by the Gity engineerCity Engineer. 
D. All groundcover shall provide one hundred percent coverage within nine months of

planting, or additional landscaping shall be required in order to meet this standard. 
E. Soil Engineer. The soil engineer is responsible for performing the preliminary soils

engineering investigation and preparing the preliminary soils during grading, providing
compaction inspection and testing, and preparing the final soils engineering report. The soil
engineer is also responsible for reviewing and signing the grading plan insuring and assuring
that they comply with the soils and geotechnical recommendations of the preliminary soils
engineering report. 

18. 08. 400 Setbacks. 

M



Attachment B

A. Setbacks and other restrictions specified by this section are minimums and may be
increased by the Gity onniReerCity Engineer or by the recommendation of the civil engineer, soil
engineer or engineering geologist, if necessary for safety and stability, or to prevent damage to
adjacent properties from deposition or erosion, or to provide access for slope maintenance and

drainage. Where zoning requirements exceed the minimums in this section, the zoning setbacks
shall govern. 

B. Retaining wall may be used to reduce the required setbacks when approved by the city
eRgieeerCity Engineer. 

C. The tops and toes of slopes shall be set back from the outer boundaries of the permit

area, including slope rights areas and easements, as follows: 

1. Top of Cut Slope. Top of cut slopes shall not be made nearer to a site boundary line
than one fifth of the vertical height of cut with a minimum of two feet and a maximum of ten feet, 

as measured horizontally. 

2. Toe of Fill Slope. The toe of fill slopes shall be made not nearer to the site boundary line
than one half the height of the slope with a minimum of two feet and a maximum of twenty feet, 
as measured horizontally. 

D. Setbacks between graded slopes ( cut or fill) and structures shall be provided to the

satisfaction of the Gity onninoorCity Engineer. 

E. A usable side yard of at least five feet from any building wall shall be provided to the toe
and top of a slope, unless waived by the Gity eRgineeFCity Engineer. 

F. No provision in this section shall be construed to allow less than the required setback

for berms and drainage unless an approved drainage device is used to reduce these

requirements. 

18. 0 8. 410 Cuts. 

A. Cut slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontal to one vertical ( 2: 1) unless the

applicant can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the city GRgineerCity Engineer and GOMMUR+ty
Development Services Director that the project would be substantially

improved with steeper cut slopes. 

B. Requests for approval of cut slopes steeper than 2: 1 must be accompanied by a
geotechnical report that establishes such slopes will be stable, and accompanied by a
landscape architect report that establishes such slopes can be adequately landscaped. In no
case shall cut slopes steeper than 1- 1/ 2: 1 be allowed under any waiver of the 2: 1 standard. 

C. The city- eng4ReerCity Engineer may require slopes flatter than 2: 1 in order to achieve
the stated design and landscaping purposes of the city. 

D. Unless specifically approved by the city council or planning commission, no cut shall
exceed a vertical height of forty feet. In approving cut slopes higher than forty feet, the following
shall be considered: 

1. The lack of feasible alternative grading designs which result in slopes of forty feet or
less; and the furtherance of general plan goals and objectives by the proposed development; or

2. Overriding benefits to the city from the development proposal. acrd. 371 § 1, 2008) 

M



Attachment B

18. 08. 420 Fills. 

A. Fill slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontal to one vertical ( 2: 1), exclusive of

benches and terraces. The `+ity cnninoorCity Engineer may require slopes flatter than 2: 1 in
order to achieve the stated design and landscaping purposes of the city. Where a fill slope is to
be located near the site boundary and the adjacent off-site property is developed, special
precautions shall be incorporated in the work as the sity- engineeFCity Engineer deems

necessary to protect the adjoining property from damage as a result of such grading. 
B. Unless specifically approved by the city council or planning commission, no fill shall

exceed a vertical height of forty feet. In approving fill slopes higher than forty feet, the following
shall be considered: 

1. The lack of feasible alternative grading designs which result in slopes of forty feet or
less; and the furtherance of general plan goals and objectives by the proposed development; or

2. Overriding benefits to the city from the development proposal. 

C. Slope stability analyses shall accompany soil engineering reports for all fill slopes
exceeding forty feet in height, where authorized by the city council or planning commission, 
regardless of the slope ratio. The soil engineer shall provide a written statement approving the

slope stability. In addition, the soil engineer shall recommend alternative methods of

construction or compaction requirements necessary for stability. , 2008) 

18. 08. 430 Terraces. 

All slopes thirty feet or more in vertical height shall have drainage terraces at least six feet in
width established at not more than thirty foot vertical intervals on all cut or fill slopes to control
surface drainage and debris. Where only one terrace is required, it shall be at mid -height. 
Suitable access shall be provided to permit proper cleaning and maintenance. Such drainage
terraces shall be improved with a paved swale or ditch at least one foot deep, with a minimum

grade of two percent and wide enough to carry the one -hundred year storm runoff arriving at the
terrace. 

18. 08. 440 Berms. 

Unless waived by the ^ ity engineeFCity Engineer, a compacted earthen berm shall be
constructed at the top, or along the line of vertical curvature, of all slopes steeper than 5: 1. The
berm shall conform to the slope and shall be a minimum of one- half foot high and two feet wide. 

The city eagineerCity Engineer may require larger berms if necessary to achieve the stated
design purposes of the city. 

18. 08. 450 Stormwater runoff. 

Stormwater runoff from lots or adjacent properties shall not be carried over cut or fill slopes

steeper than 5: 1. Such runoff shall be provided to the satisfaction of the ri+ engiReerCity

Engineer. Surface runoff shall not be permitted to flow from one residential lot to another. Pfd-. 
371 § 1, 20W

M



Attachment B

18. 08. 460 Subsurface drainage. 

A. Cut and fill slopes shall be provided with subsurface drainage as necessary for stability, 
and as recommended by the soil engineer and/ or the engineering geologist. 

B. All canyon fills and buttress fills shall be provided with subdrains, unless waived by the
Gity enninewCity Engineer, based upon the information provided by the engineering geologist
and/ or the soil engineer indicating that they are not necessary and recommending against them. 

18. 08. 470 Contour grading. 

The sity6RgiReerCity Engineer may require public interest slopes to be rounded into existing
terrain to produce a contoured and smooth transition from cut or fill faces to natural ground and

abutting cut or fill surfaces. Such slopes shall be contour graded and landscaped pursuant to a

landscape plan prepared by a landscape architect and approved by the Git„ engineerCity
Engineer. The contours of the finished slope shall approximate the natural contours to the

satisfaction of the Git„ cnnineerCity Engineer. The brows or tops of slopes may be straight to
match the lot lines and facilitate placement of lot fences. 

18. 08. 480 Grading— Standards for substantial conformance. 

A. The grading will be considered in substantial compliance if the pad elevations and slope
heights shown on the approved grading plan are within plus or minus one foot of the elevations
shown on the tentative map or approved conceptual grading plans. 

B. The s+ty engineerCity Engineer and the Development

Services Director have discretion to permit up to a two -foot elevation variation if they determine
that the change will not adversely affect views, drainage and unusable yard areas, and the
change is needed to create a better design. 

Article IV. Performance Security

18. 08. 490 Required security. 

A. No grading permit shall be issued for grading unless the applicant shall first post a
security with the city comprised of a cash deposit or a combination of cash deposit and
corporate surety bond of a surety authorized to do business in the state. An instrument of credit
or other security pledging the performance of the work, may be submitted in lieu of he surety

bond to insure installation of required structures, drains, landscaping, irrigation and other
improvements shown on the grading plans. Such funds are trust funds for the purposes of
satisfying the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created by the work or lack of
maintenance thereof. An irrevocable standby letter of credit issued by a financial institution
subject to regulation by the state or federal government may be posted in lieu of the surety
bond, instrument of credit or other security. 

B. The estimated cost of the work shall be determined by the Git„ on„ iReeFCity Engineer
after reviewing the civil engineer' s estimates. If the ,- it„ onnineerCity Engineer determines that

74_ 



Attachment B

the size, complexity and scope of the work does not justify the full amount of the security, he
may waive all or part of the amount to the extent that there is no hazard or danger. If the scope
of work increases, or new conditions are discovered after grading commences, the G4

engi ieerCity Engineer may increase the amount of the security. 

C. The security shall be in the form approved by the city attorney. The total amount of the
security shall be equal to one hundred fifty percent of the estimated cost of the grading work
authorized by the permit plus an additional sum equal to one hundred percent of the estimated
cost for the construction of drainage structures or facilities, including standard terrace drains, 

slope planting, irrigation system, erosion control devices, retaining walls and similar facilities
authorized by the permit. ( nrd 371 § 1, 2008) 

18. 08. 500 Cash deposit requirements— In lieu of bond. 

A. The cash deposit shall be equal to twenty percent of the calculated security, as

approved by the City Engineer. Interest shall not be paid on cash deposits. 

B. In no instance shall the cash deposit be less than one thousand dollars or more than

twenty thousand dollars. In instances where twenty percent of the appraised calculated security
exceeds twenty thousand dollars, that remaining portion of the security in excess of twenty
thousand dollars shall be combined with the remaining eighty percent of the approved security

in the form of a corporate surety bond, or other security authorized by Section 18. 08.490. 
C. The cash deposit shall be used to satisfy the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard

or injury created by the work in violation of the terms and conditions of the grading permit and in
violation of the provisions of this chapter or any other applicable law or ordinance; or for
maintenance, cleanup or repair of any public or private street or easement, or for the
maintenance, upkeep or installation of debris basins, erosion control devices, etc. Use of the
cash deposit or a portion thereof shall in no way limit or release the obligation of the permittee
or surety to satisfy the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created by the work or
to maintain the same in safe condition. If the amount of the cash deposit is insufficient to satisfy
the cost in full, the surety shall be liable to satisfy the remainder of the cost in excess of the
cash deposit to the extent that the remainder does not exceed the full penalty amount of the
bond. In addition, if suit is brought upon the surety by the city and judgment is recovered, the
surety shall pay all costs incurred by the city in such suit, including a reasonable attorney' s fee
to be fixed by the court. 

18. 08. 510 Erosion control security requirements. 

When the Gity eRgiReeFCity Engineer determines, pursuant to Section 18. 08. 150 of this
chapter, that plans for erosion control system be prepared as part of the grading permit, the

applicant shall furnish the city a cash deposit in connection with an agreement to perform
erosion control work. The amount of deposit shall be one hundred percent of the cost estimate
for the work shown on the erosion control plan, subject to the approval of the Gity eRgiReeFCity
Engineer. Section 18. 08. 490 shall be applicable regarding types of securities acceptable by the

city. In addition to the required security for erosion control work, a cash deposit in the amount of
five thousand dollars shall be required for emergency erosion control work and/ or for emergency
cleanup. 

I



Attachment B

18. 08. 520 Required terms and conditions of securities. 

A. Every surety bond and instrument of credit shall include and every cash deposit and
letter of credit shall be made on the conditions that the permittee shall: 

1. Comply with all provisions of this chapter, applicable laws and ordinances; 

2. Comply with all the terms and conditions of the grading permit to the satisfaction of the
City en„ ineeFCity Engineer; 

3. Complete all of the work contemplated under the grading permit within the time limit
specified in the grading permit, or if no time limit is so specified, the time limit specified in this
chapter. The city engineerCity Engineer may, for sufficient cause, extend the time specified in

the permit, but no such extension shall release the owner or the surety on the bond or person
issuing the instrument of credit; 

4. Each security shall remain in effect until the completion of the work to the satisfaction of
the Gity eRgiReerCity Engineer. 

18. 08. 530 Use of securities for work done by city. 

In the event of failure to complete the work or failure to comply with all conditions and terms
of the grading permit, the sify eRgineerCity Engineer may order such work that in his or her
opinion is necessary to correct any deficiencies or eliminate any dangerous condition and leave
the site in safe, stable and nuisance -free condition to his or her satisfaction. The permittee and

the surety executing such bond or person issuing the instrument of credit, letter of credit or
making the cash deposit shall continue to be firmly bound under a continuing obligation for the
payment of all necessary costs and expenses that may be incurred or expended by the city in
causing any and all such work to be done. 

18. 08. 540 Release of securities. 

A. Cash deposits, bonds, or other security shall be released upon request in writing by the
developer when work is complete and approved by the cityeng4ieerCity Engineer. 

B. No security under the provisions of this chapter shall be required from the state, or any
of its political subdivisions or any governmental agency. However, a contractor working for the
state or any of its political subdivisions or any governmental agency shall present a security for
performance unless proof is submitted that the work is covered by a separate and similar
security inuring to the benefit of the state or agency. ( 04 371 § 1 008) 

Article V. Grading Operations

18. 08. 550 Work authorized by permit. 

The issuance of a grading permit shall constitute an authorization to do only that work which
is described or illustrated on the application for the permit, or in the plans and specifications

approved by the cit„ eRgineerCity Engineer. The work shall be done in accordance with any
conditions imposed by the 6ty-e eerCity Engineer and in accordance with the requirements



Attachment B

of this article. Conditions imposed by the Gity eRgiReerCity Engineer shall be shown on the
grading plans under the heading " General Notes." 

18. 08. 560 Responsibility of permittee. 

It shall be the responsibility of the permittee to know the conditions and/ or restrictions placed
on the grading permit and as outlined in applicable sections of this chapter, and as continued on
the approved report( s) and to insure that all contractors, subcontractors, employees, agents and

consultants are also knowledgeable of the same, and insure that they carry out the proposed
work in accordance with the approved plans and specifications and with the requirements of the
permit and this chapter. The permittee shall also be responsible to maintain in an obvious and

accessible location on the site, a copy of the permit and grading plans bearing the approval of
the sity- eeg+eeerCity Engineer. 

18. 08. 570 Contractor qualifications. 

A. Every person doing land development shall meet such qualifications as may be
determined by the ^ i+ 9:. eeTCity Engineer to be necessary to protect the public interest. The
Gity Enqineer may require an application for qualification which shall contain all
information necessary to determine the person' s qualifications to do the land development. 

B. All land development work shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the state to
perform the types of work required by permit. 

18. 08. 580 Time of grading operations. 

A. All grading operations, including the warming up, repair, arrival, departure or running of
trucks, earth moving equipment, construction equipment and any other associated grading
equipment shall be limited to the period between seven a. m. to six p. m. each day, Monday

through Friday. No earth moving or grading operations shall be conducted on Saturdays, 
Sundays or holidays recognized by the city without written permission of theGity eRgiReerCity
Engineer. 

B. No grading shall be allowed between October 15th and the following April 15th on any
site when the Gity eRgiReerCity Engineer determines that erosion, mud flow or sediment
discharge from grading may adversely affect downstream properties, drainage courses, storm
drains, streets, easements, or public or private facilities or improvements unless an erosion

control system approved by the s+ty-eegfeeerCity Engineer has been implemented on the site to
the satisfaction of the ^ i+: neerCit Engineer. (

Qui 371 § 1, 2008) 

18. 08. 590 Temporary suspension of permit. 

A. The Gity engiReerCity Engineer has the authority to temporarily suspend all work on a
grading project and suspend the permit by issuing a written stop work order if he or she
determines that field conditions present an immediate hazard or danger to life or property; if the

work being done is contrary to the approved plans or conditions thereof; if the work being done
under a grading permit issued for a subdivision or zoning permit is contrary or conflicting with

I



Attachment B

any approved changes and/ or modifications made to the originally approved or conditionally
approved tentative map or zoning permit subsequent to the issuance of the grading permit; if
there is lack of supervision of the grading operation, lack of engineering control, lack of soil
engineering control or lack of dust or air pollution control; if archaeological or paleontological

artifacts or resources are discovered; or for any other reason which in the city engincorG' 
Engineer' s opinion, presents a threat to the public safety or welfare immediately, or in the future, 
or which may cause unstable earth conditions. This temporary suspension shall continue in
effect until the hazard or condition is corrected to the satisfaction of the Gity eRgbReeFCit
Engineer. 

B. It shall be the responsibility of the owner to furnish any additional information, 
investigations and reports necessary to resolve the stop work order conditions. The owner shall
pay for all work associated with furnishing these items, as well as any additional staff time in
resolving the stop work order conditions. 

18. 08. 600 Transfer of responsibilities. 

A. If the civil engineer, soil engineer, engineering geologist, landscape architect, the testing
agency, or the grading contractor of record are changed during the course of the work, the work
shall be stopped until: 

1. The owner submits a letter of notification verifying the change of the responsible
professional; and

2. The new responsible professional submits in writing that he or she has reviewed all
prior reports and/ or plans ( specified by date and title) and work performed by the prior
responsible professional, and that the responsible professional concurs with the findings, 

conclusions and recommendations and is satisfied with the work performed. The responsible

professional must state that he or she assumes all responsibility within his or her purview as of
a specified date. 

a

B. All exceptions to subsections A( 1) and ( 2) of this section must be approved by the city
eRgineerCity Engineer. 

C. Where clearly indicated that the firm, not the individual professional, is the contracting
party, the designated engineer, architect or geologist may be reassigned and another individual
of comparable professional accreditation within the firm may assume responsibility, without
complying with the requirements of subsection A( 1) and ( 2) of this section. ( Ord 371 § 1 008) 

18.08. 610 Construction of fills. 

A. Preparation of Ground. The ground surface shall be prepared to receive fill by removing
vegetation, noncomplying fill, topsoil and other unsuitable materials, and by scarifying to a depth
of one foot to provide a bond with the new fill. Where existing slopes exceed five feet in height
and/ or are steeper than 5: 1, the ground shall be prepared by benching into sound bedrock or
other competent material as determined by the soil engineer and approved by the G4
engiReerCity Engineer. The lowermost bench beneath the toe of a fill slope on natural ground

shall be a minimum ten feet in width and at least one foot into dense formational materials. The



Attachment B

ground surface below the toe of the fill shall be prepared for sheet flow runoff, or a paved drain
shall be provided. 

B. Where fill is to be placed over an existing cut slope, the bench under the toe of the new
fill shall be at least fifteen feet wide and shall meet the approval of the soil engineer and/ or

engineering geologist as a suitable foundation for fill. 
C. Expansive Soils. Whenever expansive soils are encountered within three feet of the

finish grade of any area intended or designed as a location for a building, the permittee shall
cause expansive soil to be removed to a minimum depth of three feet below finish grade and

replace with properly compacted, nonexpansive soil. 

D. Fill Material. Any organic material shall not be permitted in fills. 

E. Except as outlined in subsection F of this section, no rock or similar irreducible
materials with a maximum dimension greater than eight inches shall be buried or placed in fills. 

F. Unless the engineer properly devises a method of placement, continuously inspects
placement and approves the soil stability and competency, the following conditions shall also

apply: 

1. Prior to issuance of the grading permit, potential rock disposal area( s) shall be
delineated on the grading plan; 

2. Rock sizes greater than eight inches in maximum dimension shall be at least six feet or

more below grade, measured vertically, and ten feet measured horizontally from slope faces, 
and shall be two feet or more below the bottom of any utility pipeline; 

3. When the design of the development or covenants and restrictions provide assurance

that no structure or utilities will be placed on a precisely definable area, these dimensions may
be reduced with the approval of the sity- engineerCity Engineer; 

4. Rocks greater than eight inches shall be placed so as to be completely surrounded by

soils; nesting of rocks will not be permitted. 

G. All fill slopes shall be overfilled to a distance from finished slope face that will allow

compaction equipment to operate freely within the zone of the finished slope, and then cut back
to the finish grade to expose the compacted core. Alternate methods may be employed by the

grading contractor subject to approval by the soil engineer and sify- eegieeerCity Engineer. In
such instances, the grading contractor shall provide detailed specifications for the method of
placement and compaction of the soil within a distance of an equipment width from the slope
face. 

H. Buttress/ Stabilization Fills. Recommendations for buttress fills or stabilization fills by the

soil engineer shall be accompanied by a report by the soils engineer or certified engineering

geologist setting forth the soil or geologic factors necessitating the buttress/ stabilization fill, 
stability calculations based on both static and pseudostatic conditions ( pseudostatic loads need
not normally be analyzed when bedding planes are flatter than twelve degrees from the
horizontal), laboratory test data upon which the calculations are based, the buttress/ stabilization
fill, a scaled section of the buttress/ stabilization fill and recommendations with details of
subdrain requirements. 

I. Utility Line Backfill. Backfills for on- site utility line trenches, such as water, sewer, gas
and electrical services shall be compacted and tested in accordance with Section 18. 08. 780( D) 

6



Attachment B

of this chapter. Alternate materials and methods may be used for utility line backfills provided
that the material specification and method of placement are recommended by the soil engineer
and approved by the Goy- engineerCity Engineer prior to backfilling. 

J. The final utility line backfill report shall include a statement of compliance by the soil
engineer that the tested backfill is suitable for the intended use. 

18. 08. 620 Lot grading— Safety precautions. 

A. At any stage of grading work, whether an approved grading plan, or a grading permit is
required, if the Gi+engineerCity Engineer determines that authorized grading is likely to
endanger any public or private property or result in the deposition of debris on any public way or
interfere with any existing drainage course, the Gity eRgineeFCity Engineer may specify and
require reasonable safety precautions to avoid the danger. The permittee may be responsible
for removing excess soil and debris deposited upon adjacent and downstream public or private
property resulting from his/ her grading operations. Soil and debris shall be removed and
damage to adjacent and downstream property repaired as directed by the Gity engineeFCity

Engineer. Erosion and siltation control shall require temporary or permanent siltation basins, 
energy dissipaters, or other measures as field conditions warrant, whether or not such
measures are a part of approved plans. Cost associated with any work outlined in this section

shall be incurred by the permittee. 

B. No off-site work will be required when, in the opinion of the City eng+neerCity Engineer, 
the permittee has properly implemented and maintained erosion control measures in
accordance with the City' s BMP Manual and the deposition of soil and debris or erosion on

adjacent properties is the direct or indirect result of actions of the downstream property owner. 

18. 08. 630 Public protection from hazards. 

During grading operations, the contractor and property owner shall take all necessary
measures to eliminate any hazard resulting from the work to the public in its normal use of
public property or right- of-way. Any fences or barricades installed shall be approved by the cit} 
engfeeerCity Engineer and shall be properly constructed and maintained. They shall separate
the public from the hazard as long as the hazard exists. 

18. 08. 640 Public facilities within public rights-of-way. 

The following provisions of this section shall apply unless provision is made by a secured
agreement pursuant to land development work done in conjunction with the authorized

subdivision of property. 

A. A property owner shall pay the city for all costs of placing, repairing, replacing or
maintaining a city -owned facility within a public right- of-way when the city facility has been
damaged or has failed as a result of the construction or existence of the owner' s land

development work during the progress of such work; 



Attachment B

B. The costs of placing, replacing or maintaining the city -owned facility shall include the
cost of obtaining an alternate easement if necessary; 

C. The Gity eng! ReeFCity Engineer shall notify the property owner of such damage or
failure as set forth in the provisions of this section. The city may withhold certification of the

completion of a building or other permitted work where a notice has been issued. 
20883

18. 08. 650 Protection of adjacent property. 

A. Notwithstanding the minimum standards set forth in this chapter, the permittee shall be
responsible for the prevention of damage to adjacent property and no person shall excavate on

land so close to the property line as to endanger any adjoining public street, sidewalk, alley or
other public or private property without supporting and protecting such property from settling, 
cracking or other damage which might result. 

B. In addition, each adjacent property owner is entitled to the lateral and adjacent support

which his or her land receives from the adjoining land, subject to the right of the property owner

of the adjoining land to make proper and usual excavations on the same for purposes of
construction or improvement, under the following conditions: 

1. Any owner of land or his or her lessee intending to permit or to make an excavation
greater than ten feet in depth within ten feet of his/ her property lines shall give reasonable

notice to the owner or owners of land abutting the property lines affected by such excavation, 
stating the depth for which such excavation is intended to be made and when the excavation will
begin; 

2. In making any excavation, reasonable care and skill shall be used and reasonable
precautions taken to ensure that the soil of adjoining property will not cave in or settle to the
detriment of any building or other structure which may be thereon; 

3. No land development work shall be approved which physically prevents the use of

existing legal or physical and usable ( in the opinion of the Gity 8RgiReerCity Engineer) access to
any parcel. 

18.08. 660 Maintenance of protective devices. 

The owner of any property on which a fill or excavation has been made pursuant to a grading
permit granted under the provisions of this chapter, or any other person or agent in control of

such property shall maintain in good condition and repair all retaining walls, cribbing, drainage
structures or means, and other pretecti a de ices temporary or permanent BMPs, and other

protective devices pursuant to Chapter 8.48 (A-1-he- I. GNIC. or the BMP Manual, or as determined
by the 6ty eRgiReefCity Engineer, and planting shown in the approved plans and specifications
or in the as -graded drawings or as required by the grading permit. Facilities dedicated for use by
the public and accepted for such use by a public agency are excepted. 

18. 08. 670 Protection of utilities. 

M



Attachment B

A. During grading operations the permittee shall be responsible for the prevention of
damage to any public utilities or services. 

B. The responsibility applies within the limits of grading and along any routes of travel of
equipment. 

C. Before starting any excavation work the permittee shall be responsible to contact
Underground Service Alert, Incorporated and coordinate the proposed excavation with all

interested utility companies, districts and agencies. ( Ord 371 § 1, 2008) 

18. 08. 680 Debris on public streets. 

The California Vehicle Code and this chapter forbid the placing, dumping or depositing of soil
and rocks on the public streets or any portion of the public right- of-way. All, vehicles engaged in
hauling materials under the permit provisions of this chapter shall refrain from depositing soil or
debris on the public streets by any means, including, but not limited to, spillage from the bed of
a truck or other vehicle and debris collected on the wheels of the haul vehicle. The s+ty
engiRe4aF Engineer may require a cash deposit to insure the cleanup of public streets. 40fd: 

18. 08. 690 Dust control. 

The contractor/ permittee conducting any earth moving operation under this chapter shall be
responsible for controlling dust created by its grading operations or activities at all times. 49rd: 
371§ 1, 2GW

18. 08. 700 Cleanup. 

The permittee conducting any earth -moving operation under this chapter which requires
vehicles to haul earth materials on any public street shall be responsible for the complete
removal of such materials ( soil, mud or other material) from the street, if spilled, dumped or

deposited on a public street. If the permittee fails to completely remove such spillage, the sit -y
eRgiReerCity Engineer may order the necessary removal work. The permittee and the surety
shall be firmly bound under a continuing obligation for payment of all costs incurred or expended
by the city pursuant to Sections 18. 08. 500 and 18. 08. 530. ( Ord. 371 § ' 2008) 

18. 08.710 Preservation of existing monuments. 

All existing survey monuments shall be shown on the grading plan. Evidence indicating that
arrangements have been made for the preservation and/ or relocation of existing monuments

shall be submitted to the Gity eRgiReeFCity Engineer prior to issuance of a grading permit. 40r . 
371 § 1 7! 08) 

18. 08. 720 Archaeological or paleontological resources. 

If any archaeological or paleontological resources are discovered during grading operations, 
such operations shall cease immediately and the permittee shall notify the eRginei-_FqLty

M



Attachment B

Engineer of the discovery. Grading operations shall not recommence until the permittee has
received written authority from the city engf+aeeFCity Engineer to do so. ( Ord 371 § 1 2008) 

Article VI. Supervision, Testing Inspection and Enforcement

18. 08. 730 City Eengineer—Responsibilities. 

A. The city engineer shall enforce the provisions of this chapter, except as otherwise
provided in this section. 

B. The city engineer may establish and implement special inspection requirements and
augment his/ her resources or expertise as he/ she deems necessary to properly inspect a
particular grading project. The cost of these special requirements or augmentations shall be
paid for by the benefiting permittee. 

C. Prior to the approval of any land development work requiring grading plans and

specifications, the Gity engined City Engineer may inspect the site to determine that the plans
and specifications are current and reflect existing conditions. 

D. After grading permit issuance, but prior to any land development work involving grading, 
brushing or clearing, there shall be a pre -grading meeting. Prior to pouring curbs and gutters or
placement of base materials, there shall be a pre -paving meeting held on the site. The
permittee, or his or her agent, shall notify the city eeg+neerCity Engineer at least two working
days prior to the meetings and shall be responsible for notifying all principals responsible for

grading and paving related operations. 

E. The ^' t. iReeFCity Engineer or his or her designee shall inspect the land
development project at various stages of work requiring approval and at any more frequent

intervals necessary to determine that adequate inspection and testing is being exercised. 
F. The sity- engineerCity Engineer shall require inspection of work done in connection with

land development to insure compliance with the provisions of this chapter and shall release the

security when such work is properly completed. 

G. The sityengineerCity Engineer shall cause land development being done without a
permit to be stopped until a permit has been obtained. The Gity eRgineeFCity Engineer may
require that such work done without a permit be removed or corrected at the expense of the
responsible person. Where land development work involves an embankment improperly

constructed or constructed without adequate testing, he or she shall cause such embankment to
be reconstructed or, in lieu thereof, order the work stopped and corrected as set forth in
Sections 18. 08. 590 and 18. 08. 820( D) of this chapter. 

18. 08. 740 Liability of city. 

A. Neither the issuance of a permit under the provisions of this chapter, nor the compliance

with the provisions of this chapter or with any conditions imposed by any city official under this
chapter, shall relieve any person from any responsibility for damage to persons or property
otherwise imposed by law, nor impose any liability upon the city for damage to persons or
property. 

M



Attachment B

B. The Gity ennineerCity Engineer or an employee duly authorized with the enforcement of
this chapter, acting in good faith and without malice for the city in the discharge of these duties, 
shall not render himself or herself liable personally and is relieved from all personal liability for
any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or by reason
of any act or omission in the discharge of his or her duties. Any suit brought against the sity
engineerCity Engineer or employee, because of such act or omission performed by him or her in
the enforcement of any provision of this chapter, shall be defended by the legal department of
the city until final determination of the proceedings. ( C) Fd 371 § 1, 2008) 

18. 08. 750 Supervised or regular grading— Observation required. 

A. All grading, except grading for a borrow pit, in excess of two thousand five hundred
cubic yards shall be performed under the general observation of and coordination of the civil

engineer who signed the grading plans and shall be designated as " supervised grading." 

B. Grading not supervised in accordance with this section shall be designated as " regular
grading." 

C. For grading of two thousand five hundred cubic yards or less, the permittee may elect
to have the grading performed as either supervised grading or regular grading. , 
2 -GW

18. 08. 760 Regular grading requirements. 

A. The Gity eneineeFCity Engineer shall cause regular grading work to be inspected to the
extent he/she deems necessary and shall require inspection of excavations and fills and
compaction control by a soil engineer. The grading plan shall be a part of the building permit
plan set. 

B. The Gity enninoerCity Engineer shall require sufficient inspection by the soil engineer to
assure that the soil engineer has adequately considered all geologic conditions. 

C. The soil engineer shall file a report with the eitygineerCity Engineer assuring the
compaction and acceptability of all fills. Where potentially expansive soils are present at either
cut or fill grade, the soil engineer shall provide written recommendation regarding treatment
given or to be given to such soils. ( Ord. 371 § 1, 2008) 

18. 08. 770 Supervised grading requirements. 

A. For supervised grading it shall be the responsibility of the civil engineer supervising the
grading to supervise and coordinate all field surveys, setting of grade stakes in conformance
with the plans, and site inspection during grading operations to assure that the site is graded in
accordance with the permit. 

B. Soils reports shall be required and geology reports may also be required as specified in
Sections 18. 08. 780, 18. 08. 790 and 18. 08. 830. In addition to the copies filed with the G4

engi
4eerCity Engineer, copies of such reports shall be sent by the permittee to the civil engineer

supervising the grading. 

84- 



Attachment B

C. The soil engineer shall make such tests and inspections as necessary to assure that

the recommendations given in the preliminary soils engineering report and incorporated in the
grading plan, specifications or the permit have been followed, and comply with the requirements
of Section 18. 08. 780. 1

18. 08. 780 Soil engineer— Observation and testing responsibilities. 

A. General. The soil engineer' s area of responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, the
professional inspection and approval concerning the preparation of ground to receive fills, 
testing for required compaction, stability of all finish slopes, design of buttress fills where
required and incorporating data supplies by the engineering geologist. 

B. Preliminary and final soils reports shall be required as specified in this chapter. During
grading all necessary analyses, compaction data, soil engineering and engineering geology
recommendations and reports shall be submitted to the client for distribution as required, and a

copy of all such documents shall be provided to the Gity eRgOR88FCity Engineer. 
C. When preliminary soils engineering reports are not required, the Gity eRg; neerCitv

Engineer may yet require inspection and approval by the soil engineer. The soil engineer's
responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, approval of cleared areas and benches to
receive fill, the compaction and testing of fills and their inspection and approval. The soil
engineer will submit a statement that all embankments under his or her direction have been

compacted to a minimum of ninety percent relative compaction percentage approved by the si# 
eRgieewCity Engineer. Prior to the release of building permits for any given lot or lots, the soil
engineer shall submit a compaction report to the satisfaction of the Gity onnineerCity Engineer

as evidence that rough grading has been compacted in accordance with the approved
preliminary soils engineering report. 

D. Density Testing. All fills shall be compacted to a minimum of ninety percent relative
compaction unless a lesser density has been specifically approved by the Gity ennineerG' 
Engineer. Field den- 

sity tests shall be performed in accordance with ASTM D1556, or as revised ( sand cone test), or
equivalent, as approved by the city- eeg+neerCity Engineer. Atleast twenty- five percent of the
total tests shall be by ASTM D1556 to verify the accuracy of the equivalent method. All such
tests shall be reasonably and uniformly distributed within the fill or fill slope surface so that
representative results are obtained. 

E. At least twenty percent of the field density tests taken shall be located within three feet
of the final slope location and at least one density test shall be taken within the outer twelve
inches of finished slope face for every five thousand square feet of slope area. 

F. Locations of field density tests shall be determined by the soil engineer or approved
testing agency, but shall be sufficient in both horizontal and vertical placement to provide
representative testing of all fill placed. 

G. Field density tests shall be performed on the basis of at least one test for one thousand
cubic yards of compacted fill and at least one test for each two feet of fill thickness. 

H. Testing in areas of critical nature or special emphasis shall be in addition to a network of
representative sampling. Where lower density and very high potential expansion characteristics

No



Attachment B

exist, as determined by the soil engineer, lesser compaction may be granted by the c4

engi
4eerCity Engineer upon justification and recommendation by the soil engineer. 

I. Testing for expansive soil sufficient for each building pad shall be performed on soil
within three feet of the finish grade of any land development intended or designed as a location
for a building. ( nr.-I 371 § 1, 2008) 

18. 08. 790 Engineering geologist— Responsibilities. 

The engineering geologist' s area of responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, 
professional inspection and approval of the stability of cut slopes with respect to geological
matters, and the need for subdrains or other groundwater drainage devices. The engineering
geologist shall report his/ her findings to the soil engineer for engineering analysis. ( Ord 371 § 4

2OW

18. 08. 800 Required inspections. 

The following inspections by the city shall be required of the items of work listed, at the stage
or time indicated. The permittee shall notify the Gity onnineerCity Engineer at least one working
day ahead of the time the work will be ready. 

A. Excavation and Fill. 

1. Canyon cleanout: after all brush and unsuitable material have been removed and an

acceptable base has been exposed, but before any fill is placed; 

2. Toe bench and key: after the natural ground or bedrock is exposed and prepared to
receive fill, but before fill is placed; 

3. Over -excavation: after the area has been excavated but before fill is placed; 

4. Excavation: after the excavation is started, but before the vertical depth of the

excavation; 

5. Fill: after the fill has started, but before the vertical height of the fill exceeds ten feet and

every ten -foot interval thereafter. 

B. Concrete or Gunite Drainage Devices. 

1. Cross gutter: 

a. Subgrade: after the subgrade is prepared and required reinforcement placed, 

b. Concrete during concrete placement; 

2. Curb and gutter (private property): 

a. Subgrade: after subgrade is made, forms in place, with required reinforcement, 

b. Concrete: during concrete placement; 

3. Terrace drains, down drains, brow ditches and all over -paved drainage devices: 

a. Subgrade: after grade is made but prior to placement of welded wire mesh or

reinforcing steel, 

b. Reinforcement: after thickness control wire and reinforcing steel or welded wire are in
place, 

FM



Attachment B

c. Concrete: during concrete or gunite placement. 

C. Drainage Devices other than Concrete or Gunite. 

1. Subdrains: 

a. After excavation but prior to placement of filter material and pipe. The subdrain pipe and
filter material shall be on- site for inspection, 

b. After filter material and subdrain have been placed but prior to covering with backfill; 

2. Storm drains and inlets: 

a. After placement of storm drains, but prior to covering with backfill; 

b. After placement of inlet forms but prior to pouring concrete; 

3. Earth swales: prior to rough grading approval. 

D. Rough Grading. An inspection will be made when all rough grading has been
completed. This inspection may be called for at the completion of rough grading after the c+fy

engi
4eerCity Enqineer has reviewed and approved the required reports and the civil engineer

has submitted the written report required by Section 18. 08. 830( A)( 1)( c) indicating substantial
conformance to line and grade. 

A building permit will not be issued until rough grading has been approved and receipt of the
final soils report required by Section 18. 08. 830( A)( 2)( a) and the report required by Section
18. 08. 830( A)( 2)( d). 

E. Irrigation. 

1. Pipe Lines and Control Valves. During installation of main and lateral lines, inspections
shall be made to assure continuous support of all pipe, properly assembled fittings and valve
installation, as well as proper backfill procedures. 

2. Coverage Test. When the irrigation system is completed, a coverage test shall be
performed in the presence of the G' t iReerCity Engineer or appointed inspector. 

F. Planting. 

1. General Soil Preparation. After the finish grade has been established and appropriate

drainage is accomplished, incorporation of amendments shall be inspected. Amendment
material shall be approved prior to import. Material invoices and/ or licensed weighmaster' s

certificates may be required. 

2. Plant Pit Preparation. During the preparation of all plant pits, inspections shall confirm
standard procedures are followed to maximize the promotion of healthy root development. 

Material invoices may be required. 

3. Staking and/ or Guying Procedures. Upon completion of planting, all nursery stakes
directed to be removed, and proper staking and/ or guying practices shall be accomplished. 
Inspection of procedures will confirm compliance. 

G. Erosion Control FaGilitiesMeasures ) 

1. After excavation of desilting basins but prior to fill placement, prefabricated devices are
to be available on- site for inspection; 



Attachment B

2. After fill placement for desilting basins but prior to placement of concrete or other non- 
erosive materials; 

3. After completion of an erosion control system in accordance with an approved erosion

control plan and the requirements of the Gity onninoerCity Engineer. 

H. Final Inspection. A final inspection by the city shall be made when all work including
installation of all drainage structures, irrigation, slope planting and other protective devices, has
been completed and all written professional approvals, certifications and the required reports

and as -graded drawings have been submitted. 

18. 08. 810 Notification of noncompliance. 

If, in the course of fulfilling responsibility under this chapter, the city onninoerCity Engineer, 
the soil engineer, the engineering geologist, or the testing agency finds that the land
development work is not being performed in accordance with approved plans, specifications or
this chapter, the discrepancies shall be reported immediately in writing to the grading contractor, 
the property owner, and the Gity nnniReerCity Engineer. Recommendations for corrective

measures shall be submitted for approval by the cit„ onninoerCity Engineer. ( QF 4-,- 

20M20

18. 08. 820 Stopping and correction of work. 

A. Whenever the Gity eRgineerCity Engineer determines that any work does not comply
with the terms of a permit, or this chapter, or that the soil or other conditions are not as stated

on the permit, or that work is being improperly, or in a hazardous manner, he or she may order
the work stopped by notice in writing served on any persons engaged in doing or causing of
such work to be done, and any such persons shall forthwith stop such work until authorized by
the city engieeeFCity Engineer to proceed with the work. See also Section 18. 08.600 of this
chapter for related provisions. 

B. Whenever any work on which city inspections are required is covered or concealed by
additional work without first having been inspected, the cit„ engineerCity Engineer may require, 
by written notice, that such work be exposed for examination. The work of exposing and
recovering shall not entail or be subject to expense by the city. 

C. If the Gity engiRe8FCity Engineer finds the soil or other conditions not as stated in the
approved plans and geotechnical reports or in additional information which was required for

issuance of the grading permit, he or she may issue a stop work order until approval is obtained
for a revised grading plan which will conform to the conditions existing at the site. 

D. Work may be resumed and the stop order shall be rescinded upon the Gity onninoerG' 
Engineer' s determination that conditions have changed, corrections have been made, or the

cause or actions which required a stop order have been acceptably remedied or alleviated to his
or her satisfaction.( n 3?§ r- 2008) 

18. 08. 830 Completion of work, 

111



Attachment B

A. Final Reports. Upon completion of the rough grading work or at the final completion of
the land development work under the grading permit, but prior to approval of the grading
securities or issuance of a notice of completion or certificate of use and occupancy: 

The responsible civil engineer shall submit to the ^ itt, eRgiReerCity Engineer: 

a. A certification letter stating that the grading was done per the approved plan or an as - 
graded version of the grading plan ( as -graded drawings) prepared, signed and dated by the
responsible civil engineer which shall include original and " as -graded" ground surface

elevations, pad elevations, slope ratios, and elevations and locations of all surface and

subsurface drainage facilities, location and scaled sections of all buttress/ stabilization and fills, 
subdrains and general location and depth of all areas of removal of unsuitable soil. 

b. The as -graded drawings submitted by civil engineer shall include the landscape and
irrigation sheets of grading plan showing the as -built landscape and irrigation works. The civil
engineer shall work directly with the landscape architect to complete these as -built drawings. 

c. Prior to issuance of a building permit, a written statement ( rough grading report) signed

by the civil engineer reporting that the site is rough graded in conformance with the approved
grading plan, as modified or amended by any construction changes approved by the sity
engineeFCity Engineer, and which specifically states the following items were performed under
his or her supervision, and are shown correctly on the as -graded drawings: 

i. Staking of line and grade for all engineered drainage devices and retaining walls ( rough
and final grading); 

ii. Staking of property corners for proper building and slope location ( rough grading); 
iii. Location of permanent walls or structure on property corners or property lines; 

iv. Location and slope ratio of all manufactured slopes; 

v. Construction of earthen berms and positive building pad drainage. 

2. The soil engineer shall submit to the Gity eRgineerCity Engineer: 

a. A final soils engineering report prepared by the soil engineer, including type of field
testing performed, compaction reports, suitability of utility trench and retaining wall backfill, 
summaries of field and laboratory tests and other substantiating data, and comments on any
changes made during grading and their effect on the recommendations made in the preliminary
soils engineering report. Each field density test shall be identified, located on a plan or map, the
elevation of the test, and the test method of obtaining the in- place density described; either
ASTM D1556- 78 or the approved equal shall be so noted; daily reports from the soils tech
should be included; 

b. Written approval as to the adequacy of the site for the intended use as affected by
geologic factors, a statement of compliance to finish slope heights and gradients, and when

required by the Gity engineerCity Engineer, shall submit an as -graded geologic map; 

c. The utility line backfill report required by Section 18. 08. 610( J); 

d. A final geological report or certification by a certified engineering geologist indicating
that all geologic problems identified in the engineering geological report have been addressed. 

B. Notification of Completion and Certificate of Completion. The permit holder or agent

shall notify the Gity engiReerCity Engineer when the grading operation is ready for final
inspection. Final approval shall not be given until all work, including installation of all drainage



Attachment B

facilities and their protective devices, required irrigation system installed protective devices, 

required planting, and all erosion control measures have been completed in accordance with the
final approved grading plan and the as -graded drawings, required reports and statements of
compliance consistent with this section and Chapter 18.44 have been submitted. {0438 3

2010. Ord 371 § 1 7

18. 08. 840 Violation— Misdemeanor, 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor. Each such person, firm or corporation shall be deemed guilty
of a separate offense for every day during any portion of which any violations of any provisions
of this chapter are permitted, continued or committed by such person, firm or corporation and
shall be punishable therefor as provided in Chapter 1. 12 of this code. 

18. 08. 850 Violations— Public nuisance. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, any grading done contrary to the provisions of
the chapter is also a public nuisance. Upon order of the city council, the city attorney is
authorized to commence necessary proceedings provided by local or state law to abate, remove
and/ or enjoin such public nuisance. Any grading done without graders first having obtained a
grading permit thereof, regardless of whether such failure is due to neglect or refusal, shall be
prima facie evidence that a public nuisance has been committed. To implement this section, the

city attorndy may proceed as in a civil or criminal penalty procedure. The civil remedy may be
before a court within the local jurisdiction of the city or may be an adjudicatory hearing before
the city council. 

18. 08. 860 Denial of further permits. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 18. 08.830 and 18. 08. 840, any grading done
contrary to the provisions of this chapter shall result in denying issuance of any further permits
involving development and use of the property up to a maximum of three years. In addition, 
depending on the time required to resolve the grading violation, the city may record with the
court recorder, notice of grading violation and denial of issuance of any further permits. { Q. 

371 § 1, 2GW

18. 08. 870 Lot grading—Responsibility of permittee— Protection of adjacent property. 

A. For all public watercourses, the applicant shall grant or cause to be granted to the city, 
at the City eRgiReerCity Engineer' s discretion, a drainage easement ( riparian buffers and

corridors) in accordance with the requirements of the eity ereerCity Engineer prior to the
issuance of a grading permit, or prior to the approval of a grading plan. 

B. For all private watercourses, including brow ditches, where the continuous functioning
of the drainage way is essential to the protection and use of multiple properties, a covenant, a

maintenance agreement and/ or deed restriction shall be recorded by the applicant, placing the
responsibility for the maintenance of the drainage way( s) on the property owners of record of



Attachment B

each respective lot affected. Permanent off-site drainage or flowage easements, as required by

the city engineerCity Engineer, shall be acquired by the applicant. Such easements shall be
subject to approval by the Gity engineerCity Engineer and recorded prior to approval of the
grading plan, or issuance of a grading permit. 

C. No man- made dams, ponds, diversions, flow decelerators or excessive vegetation shall

be placed, allowed to be placed, or allowed to grow within the property subject to an approved

grading plan, or a grading permit, without suitable provisions, as approved by the city
engineerCity Engineer, for maintenance. Erosion or siltation as a result of these features shall

be the sole responsibility of the property owner. 

D. The permittee has the right to the proper discharge of natural drainage, within the

provisions of this division, into natural drainage courses. The quantity of peak runoff shall be

limited to the quantity of peak runoff of predevelopment conditions. This includes the right to
discharge, within natural basins, runoff due to decrease of permeability of the property from

grading operations, landscaping, and the construction of improvements and to discharge a
reasonable silt load in this runoff comparable to the historic, predevelopment condition.40rcl- 
271 § 1, 70( lS2\ 

18. 08. 880 Establishment of permanent vegetation. 

A. The face of all cut and fill slopes, in excess of three feet in vertical height, but only final

slopes of any borrow pit, shall be planted and maintained with a ground cover or other planting
to protect the slopes against erosion and instability. Planting shall commence as soon as slopes
are completed on any portion of the site and shall be established upon all slopes prior to the
final approval of the grading. In order to minimize the period during which a cut or filled surface
remains exposed, such planting shall provide for rapid short- term coverage of the slope as well
as long- term permanent coverage. Planting materials and procedures shall conform to
regulations adopted by the sity-eag+neerCity Engineer. Other plant materials as specified by a
landscape architect may be approved by the sity-eng+neerCity Engineer. The permittee shall
maintain such planting until it is well established as determined by the s+ty-enginneerCity
Engineer. 

B. Minimum Requirements. In addition to planting with ground cover, slopes in excess of
fifteen feet in vertical height shall be planted with shrubs in two and one- quarter inch pots or

trees having a one gallon minimum size at ten feet on center in both directions on the slope. 
The plant and planting pattern, but not the quantity, may be varied upon the recommendation of
landscape architect and approval by the ^ i+„ eR9in8orCity Engineer. 

C. Where cut slopes are not subject to erosion due to their rocky character or where the
slopes are protected with pneumatically applied concrete mortar or otherwise treated to protect
against erosion and instability to the satisfaction of the c+fy-eRgineer, the

requirement of this section may be waived by the Gity-eegineerCity Engineer. (04 371 § T

2OW

18. 08. 890 Preservation of natural hydrologic features, riparian buffers and corridors. 

All natural hydrologic features and riparian buffer zones and corridors must be preserved to

eliminate or minimize runoff from construction sites. Polluted runoff generated in construction



Attachment B

sites should be treated to maximum extent practicable prior to discharge into the said features., 

18. 08. 900 General construction permit requirements. 

A. Dischargers required to comply with the Sstate construction general stormwater permit
shall maintain on site and make available for inspection on request by the city any state -issued
waste discharge identification number (" WDID") for the site, and a copy of the notice of intent

NOI") filed with the State Water Resources Control Board pursuant to that permit. 

B. Dischargers required to prepare a SWPPP under the sState general construction storm

water permit must prepare the SWPPP, implement the SWPPP and maintain it at the site, 

readily available for review. Failure to comply with an applicable state - required SWPPP is a
violation of this chapter. 

C. Dischargers required to conduct monitoring under the Sstate construction general

storm water permit must conduct such monitoring in conformance with requirements specified
by the state, retain records of such monitoring on site, and make such records available for
inspection by an authorized enforcement official or authorized enforcement staff. (Qrd 371 § 

2OW

18. 08. 910 Penalties. 

A. Administrative Penalties. Administrative penalties may be imposed pursuant to the
Lemon Grove Municipal Code. Any later -enacted administrative penalty provision in the code
shall also be applicable to violations of this chapter, unless otherwise provided therein. 

B. Misdemeanor Penalties. Non- compliance with any part of this chapter may be charged
as a misdemeanor and may be enforced and punished as prescribed in the Penal Code and
Government Code of the state of California, and the Lemon Grove Municipal Code. 

C. Penalties for Infractions. Any violation of this chapter may be charged as an infraction
at the discretion of the prosecutor. Infractions may be abated as a nuisance or enforced and
punished as prescribed in this code, Penal Code and Government Code of the state of

California. 

D. For Civil Actions. In addition to other penalties and remedies permitted in this chapter, a

violation of this chapter may result in the filing of a civil action by the city. Except where a
maximum monetary amount is specified, the following may also be awarded without monetary
limitations in any civil action: 

Injunctive relief; 

2. Costs to investigate, inspect, monitor, survey, or litigate; 

3. Costs to place or remove soils or erosion control materials, costs to correct any
violation, and costs to restore environmental damage or to end any other adverse effects of a
violation; 

4. Compensatory damages for losses to the city or any other plaintiff caused by violations; 
and/ or restitution to third parties for losses caused by violations; 

5. Civil penalties; 

IN



Attachment B

6. Reasonable attorney fees; and

7. Fines assessed against the city by the RWQCB. 

As part of a civil action filed by the city to enforce provisions of this chapter, a court may
assess a maximum civil penalty in accordance with the general penalty clause as set forth in
Section 1. 12. 010 of this code, or any other penalty adopted by the city, but in any case to be
assessed per violation of this chapter for each day during which any violation of any provision of
this chapter is committed, continued, permitted or maintained by such person( s). 

In determining the amount of any civil liability to be imposed pursuant to this chapter, the
court shall take into consideration the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation

or violations, whether any discharge caused the violation is susceptible to cleanup or
abatement, and, with respect to the violator, the ability to pay, the effect on ability to continue in
business, any voluntary cleanup efforts undertaken, any prior history of violations, the degree of
culpability, economic savings, if any resulting from the violation, and such other matters as
justice may require. 

E. Penalties and Remedies Not Exclusive. Penalties and remedies under this section may

be cumulative and in addition to other administrative, civil or criminal remedies. , 

2-G



Attachment B

Exhibit 2

Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual

94- 



City of LemonGrove

Stormwater Best .'• Practices



Table of Contents

1 Introduction...................................................................................................................................w 3

1. 1 Stormwater Best Management Practices ( BMPs) Manual ............... „,...-.....„........-..,,,.. 3

1. 2 Purposes ......................... .......... M.,,,, „........ ,......„ ......„ ...,.... 3

1. 3 BMP Manual Document Outline ............................................ ......,..,,,,. .,.,„...,,. „,,,.,....,,, 3

2 Minimum BMP Requirements................................................................„.....,m,.,..,„.,.,...........,.., 4

2. 1 Construction........................................................................................„,...,.„....,,,....<.,,,......... 4

2. 1. 1 Additional Erosion and Sediment Control Requirements .......... ......„,....,,.......... _.,, 6

2. 1. 2 Maximum Disturbed Area for Erosion Controls ..........................„,.. .........__ 7

2. 1. 3 Advanced Treatment Methods ..................................... .............. ,,... ......„,,, 7

2.2 Post- Construction...................................................................................
w,.„...........,.,.,......,,,..

8

2. 2. 1 Notice Regarding Upcoming Changes to Requirements ........ .............. .,...,.......... 8

2. 2. 2 Current Requirements ....... ......... ... ......... ................ ............ 8

2. 3 Industrial, Commercial and Municipal.., a,.„......... . ........ ..... .,....,. 11

2. 4 Residential.................................................„.,..,
w.. ...... ,.. .....„... 20

3 Enforcement Response Plan„ „.„...... .... ....... ........, .„,..............,,. 
a ..,,.. ............ ................. .., 25

3. 1 Administrative Enforcement Actions............................................................................. 25

3. 1. 1 Written and Verbal Warnings ( LLMC §§ 8. 48. 110. A. 2- 3)........,.., ........................... 25

3. 1. 2 Administrative Citations and Fines ( LGMC Chapter 1. 24)...................... w... a,..,,.,„ 25

3. 1. 3 Public Nuisance Abatement (LGMC § 8. 48. 110. A.4)..................
w.,.......,,...,.,,,....,... 

26

3. 1. 4 Stop Work Order (LGMC § 8. 48. 110. A. 5, LGMC § 18. 08. 820),,,.,,,.„„....„.„.,,.„,..,,,... 26

3. 1. 5 Required Bonds or Securities..................................................................................... 27

3. 1. 6 Permit Suspension or Revocation............................................................................... 27

3. 1. 7 Enforcement of Contracts.. .„„,,_ . ....._ ... ..,,„., ,,._,_....,_....... .... ... . ........ .. .„., 27

3. 2 Judicial Enforcement Actions .......................... ......... 27

3. 2. 1 Civil or Criminal Penalties and Remedies ( LGMC § 8. 48. 110. B. 1) .,.. 27

3. 2. 2 Injunctive Relief ( LGMC § 8. 48. 110. B. 2) ........... ....... ......... 27

3. 2. 3 Arrest or Issue Citations (LGMC § 8. 48. 110. B. 3) ,,,.... , , 28

3. 3 Enforcement Documentation ........,.,, .,., _ _ 28

3. 4 Municipal Enforcement .. ............ . .... .„ , ..., ............. ,,..., . ...... ,,.................... ,...... 28

3. 5 Industrial and Commercial Enforcement.....,. ,.,,. . ......., -. „ 29

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 1 of 38

Updated June 2015



3. 5. 1 Mobile Business ~.... --__--__-.............. --~__-_~-^.~.......... 30

3. 6 Residential Enforcement ............................ -.~..... ~.—___._~...~.............. .—_-........ 3U

3. 7Development ........................................ -.-........... ~_--''—_ 3l

3. 8 Construction Management Enforcement..~-.^-.-.'__---.—~'— .......... ~---_.__ 33

3. 9 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Enforcement ......... 35

Tables

Table 1. Minimum BMPsfor Construction Sites ......... _.._........ .._----.—.-.^.._^_...__—.. 4

Table 2. Minimum BMPa{ or Industrial, Commercial and Municipal —_----.- ll

Figure 1. Typical Enforcement Process for Private Construction Projects ..... ---- ....................... 34

City ofLernomGrove S mrryiwaKer BMP. Manmal Page 2of38

Updated June 2015



1. 1 Stormwater Best Management Practices ( Bi Ps) Manual

This Stormwater BMP Manual ( Manual) is to be used in conjunction with the City of Lemon
Grove ( City) Stormwater Management and Discharge Control Ordinance ( Stormwater

Ordinance), codified as Lemon Grove Municipal Code ( LGMC) Chapter 8. 48, and the water

quality protection provisions of the Excavation and Grading Ordinance, codified as LGMC
Chapter 18. 08. This Manual is not a stand- alone document, but must be read in conjunction

with other parts of the Stormwater Ordinance and the Grading and Excavation Ordinance

collectively, " Ordinances"). In general, this Manual sets out in more detail, by project category, 
what Dischargers must do to comply with the Ordinances and to receive permits for projects
and activities that are subject to the Ordinances. The Manual and the Ordinances have been

prepared to provide the City with the legal authority necessary to comply with the

requirements of San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) Order No. R9- 
2013-0001, as amended by Order No. R9- 2015- 0001 ( Municipal Permit). 

MMLM= 
The purposes of this Manual are to establish clear minimum stormwater management

requirements and controls, and to support the following objectives stated in Section 8. 48. 010 of
the Stormwater Ordinance: 

To establish requirements for discharges into the MS4, receiving waters, and the
environment, 

To protect, to the maximum extent practicable ( MEP), life, property, receiving waters, 
aquatic life, and the environment from loss, injury, degradation, or damage by
discharges from within the City' s jurisdiction; 
To protect the MS4 from damage; and

To meet the requirements of state and federal law and the MS4 Permit. 

1. 3 BMP Manual Document Outline

Section 1, Introduction, provides a brief discussion of the intended use and purpose of the

Manual, and includes the document outline. 

Section 2, BMP Requirements, presents the minimum BMP requirements for construction sites; 

post -construction sites; industrial, commercial and municipal sites/ sources; and residential

sites/ sources. 

Section 3, Enforcement Response Plan, presents enforcement actions performed by the City
that address Stormwater Ordinance violations by different types of entities. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 3 of 38

Updated June 2015



Z Minimum BMP Requirements

The City' s minimum BMP requirements for construction sites; post -construction sites; industrial, 
commercial and municipal facilities; and residential properties are described in this section. 

Wherever BMP requirements reference " where applicable," " where feasible," or similar terms

that involve discretion, the final determination shall be made by the Authorized Enforcement
Official. Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 8. 48 defines " Authorized Enforcement Official" 
as follows: " the City Manager of the City of Lemon Grove or any designee of the City Manager
of the City of Lemon Grove who is responsible for enforcing the provisions of this chapter, 
including but not limited to, the directors, their management staff and designees." References

to " CASQA Factsheets" refer to factsheets in manuals prepared by the California Stormwater

Quality Association ( CASQA). CASQA materials can be accessed at www. casga. or . Some

materials are available for free, and others require paying for access. 

Table 1 below presents the minimum BMPs required for construction sites within the City' s
jurisdiction. Types of BMPs include project planning, erosion control, sediment control, good
site management (" housekeeping"), and non-Stormwater management. Following Table 1 are

additional BMP requirements for sediment and erosion control, maximum disturbed area and
advanced treatment methods. 

Table 1. Minimum BMPs for Construction Sites' 

Construction sites that are subject to the State Water Resources Control Board' s ( SWRC: B) Construction General

Permit ( Order No. 2012- 0006- DWQ) ( CGI') must also adhere to the BMP requirements of the CGP. The minimum

BMPs listed within this section are required for all construction sites within the City' s jurisdiction, unless otherwise

stated. Some requirements may only apply to sites required to obtain a City grading permit. 
2 All BMPs in this table must be implemented, where applicable. For categories of BMPs marked as "( select at least

one.)," the responsible party is not required to implement all BMPs in the category but must implement at least one of
the BMPs in the category. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual
Page 4 of 3€ 3

Updated June 2015

CAS

BMP Type Minimum Required BMPsz Factsheet

Preservation of existing vegetation EC -2

Minimization of areas that are cleared and graded to only the portion of the
site that is necessary for construction

Project

ma_. 
Minimization of exposure time of disturbed soil areas ( with a aximum area EC -1

of 17 acres or to the alternate maximum area approved by the City in writing) 

Minimization of grading during the wet season and correlation of grading with EC - 1

L- A seasonal dry weather periods to the extent feasible

Construction sites that are subject to the State Water Resources Control Board' s ( SWRC: B) Construction General

Permit ( Order No. 2012- 0006- DWQ) ( CGI') must also adhere to the BMP requirements of the CGP. The minimum

BMPs listed within this section are required for all construction sites within the City' s jurisdiction, unless otherwise

stated. Some requirements may only apply to sites required to obtain a City grading permit. 
2 All BMPs in this table must be implemented, where applicable. For categories of BMPs marked as "( select at least

one.)," the responsible party is not required to implement all BMPs in the category but must implement at least one of
the BMPs in the category. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual
Page 4 of 3€ 3

Updated June 2015



Table 1. Minimum BMPs for Construction Sites ( Continued) 

BMP Type

Erosion Control

Minimum Required BMPs2

Temporary stabilization and permanent re -vegetation or landscaping as early
as feasible

Preservation of existing vegetation

Physical Stabilization ( select at least one) 

Hydraulic Mulch

Hydroseeding
Soil Binders

Straw Mulch

Geotextiles, Plastic Covers, and Erosion Control Blankets/ Mats

CASQA

Factsheet

EC -1

EC -2

EC -3

EC -4

EC - 5

EC -6

EC - 7

EC -8

Site Drainage ( select at least one) 

Earth Dikes/ Drainage Swales EC -9

Energy Dissipater/ Outlet Protection EC -10

Slope Drains EC - 11

Perimeter Protection ( select at least one) 

Silt Fence SE - 1

Gravel Bag Berm SE - 6

Fiber Rolls SE - 5

Sediment Capture ( select at least one) 

Sediment/ Desilting Basin3 SE - 2

Sediment Control
Storm Drain Inlet Protection SE -10

Sediment Trap SE -3

Gravel Bag Barrier SE -8

Straw Barrier SE - 9

Sediment Tracking

Stabilized Construction Entrance/ Exit TC - 1

Construction Road Stabilization TC - 2

Entrance/ Exit Tire Wash TC -3

Street Sweepinq SC - 7

Vehicle and Equipment Management

Cleaning NS -8

Fueling NS - 9

Good Site 0 Maintenance NS - 10

Management, 

Housekeeping" 
Materials Management

Material Delivery and Storage WM- 1

Material Use WM- 2

Stockpile Management WM- 3

Spill Prevention and ControlWM 4

3 Desilting basins roast be designed in accordance with C:ASQA standards, or other recognized standard approved by the City
Engineer. If the project is one acre or greater, the de -silting, basin must be designed in accordance with the current CGI". 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 5 of 38

Updated June 2015



Table 1. Minimum BMPs for Construction Sites ( Continued) 

2. 1. 1 Additional Erosion and Sediment Control ReqLfirements

In addition to the minimum BPs listed in Table 1, construction projects are also required to

comply with the following requirements: 

1. The faces of cut - and - fill slopes and the project site shall be prepared and maintained to

control against erosion. Where cut slopes are not subject to erosion due to the erosion - 

resistant character of the materials, such protection may be omitted upon approval of

the City Engineer. 

2. Where necessary, temporary and/ or permanent erosion control devices such as desilting
basins, check dams, cribbing, riprap, or other devices or methods as approved by the
City Engineer, shall be employed to control erosion, pr" event discharge of sediment, and
provide safety. 

3. desilting •. constructed • compacted earth shall • compacted to a

relative compaction of ninety percent of maximum density. A gravel bag or plastic
must •- •• I• • as designed by the engineer •' • to avoid

failure of the earthen dam. A soils engineering report prepared by the soils engineer, 

including the type • field- testing performed, location and results •' testing shall •'. 

submitted to the City Engineer for approval upon completion of the desilting basins. 
4. Desilting facilities shall be provided at drainage outlets from the graded site, and shall

be designed to provide a desilting capacity capable of containing the anticipated runoff
for a period of time adequate to allow reasonable settlement of suspended particles. 

5. Desilting basins shall be constructed around the perimeter of projects, whenever feasible, 
and shall provide improved maintenance access from paved roads during wet weather. 

Grading cost estimates must include maintenance and ultimate removal costs for
temporary desilting basins. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual
Page 6 of 38

Updated June 2015

CASQA

BMP Type Minimum Required BMPS2 Factsheet

Waste Management

Solid Waste WM- 5

Hazardous Waste WM- 6

Contaminated Soil WM- 7

Concrete Waste WM- 8

Sanitary Waste WM_9

Liquid Waste WM- 10

Water Conservation Practices NS -1

Non- Stormwater Dewatering Operations S- 2

Management
Paving and Grinding NS -3

Potable Water/ Irrigation and Flushing
NS -7

2. 1. 1 Additional Erosion and Sediment Control ReqLfirements

In addition to the minimum BPs listed in Table 1, construction projects are also required to

comply with the following requirements: 

1. The faces of cut - and - fill slopes and the project site shall be prepared and maintained to

control against erosion. Where cut slopes are not subject to erosion due to the erosion - 

resistant character of the materials, such protection may be omitted upon approval of

the City Engineer. 

2. Where necessary, temporary and/ or permanent erosion control devices such as desilting
basins, check dams, cribbing, riprap, or other devices or methods as approved by the

City Engineer, shall be employed to control erosion, pr" event discharge of sediment, and
provide safety. 

3. desilting •. constructed • compacted earth shall • compacted to a

relative compaction of ninety percent of maximum density. A gravel bag or plastic
must •- •• I• • as designed by the engineer •' • to avoid

failure of the earthen dam. A soils engineering report prepared by the soils engineer, 

including the type • field- testing performed, location and results •' testing shall •'. 

submitted to the City Engineer for approval upon completion of the desilting basins. 
4. Desilting facilities shall be provided at drainage outlets from the graded site, and shall

be designed to provide a desilting capacity capable of containing the anticipated runoff
for a period of time adequate to allow reasonable settlement of suspended particles. 

5. Desilting basins shall be constructed around the perimeter of projects, whenever feasible, 
and shall provide improved maintenance access from paved roads during wet weather. 

Grading cost estimates must include maintenance and ultimate removal costs for
temporary desilting basins. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual
Page 6 of 38

Updated June 2015



6. The erosion control provisions shall take into account drainage patterns during the
current and future phases of grading. 

7. An approved " weather triggered" response plan is mandated for implementation in the

event that a predicted storm event has a fifty percent chance of rain. The proponent
must have the capacity to deploy the standby BMPs within forty-eight hours of the
predicted storm event; 

8. All removable protective devices shown shall be in place at the end of each working day
when there is a fifty percent chance of rain within a forty-eight hour period. If the

developer does not provide the required installation or maintenance of erosion control

structures within two hours of notification at the twenty-four hour number on the plans, 
the City Engineer may order city crews to do the work or may issue contracts for such
work and charge the cost of this work along with reasonable overhead charges to the
cash deposits or other instruments implemented for this work without further

notification to the owner. No additional work on the project except erosion control work

may be performed until the full amount drawn from the deposit is restored by the
developer. 

9. At any time of year, an inactive site shall be fully protected from erosion and discharges
of sediment. Flat areas with less than five percent grade shall be fully covered unless
sediment control is provided through desiltation basins at all project discharge points. 

A site is considered inactive if construction activities have ceased for a period of 14 or

more consecutive days. 

2. 1. 2 Maximum Disturbed Area for Erosion Controls

Cleared or graded areas left exposed at any given time are limited to the amount of acreage that
the discharger can adequately protect prior to a predicted storm event or 17 acres, whichever is

smaller, unless the disturbance of a larger area is approved in writing by the City Engineer. In
the event that a discharger requests approval to disturb an area greater than 17 acres, the

discharger shall first submit to the City Engineer written documentation describing how it
ensures that it reduces discharges of pollutants to the maximum extent practicable and prevents

discharges of pollutants that would cause or contribute to violations of water quality standards
despite the larger disturbed area. 

2. 1. 3 Advanced Treatment Methods

For the majority of the construction sites within the City' s jurisdiction, the minimum required
BMPs, if correctly installed and maintained, should adequately control sediment discharges
from the site. However, if it is determined that a site possesses characteristics that could result

in standard construction BMPs being ineffective in the treatment of sediment, thus resulting in
an exceptional threat to water quality ( TTWQ), advanced treatment will be required. A site is

considered to be an exceptional TTWQ if It meets ALL of the following criteria: 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 7 of 38

Updated June 2015



The site, or a portion of the site, is located within or adjacent to ( within 200 feet) a

receiving water body listed on the Clean Water Act Section 303( d) List of Water
Quality Limited Segments as impaired for sedimentation or turbidity; 

Disturbance is greater than five acres, including all phases of the development; 

Disturbed slopes are steeper than 4: 1 ( horizontal: vertical) and higher than 10 feet

that drain toward the 303( d) listed receiving water body; 

Contains a predominance of soils with U.S. Department of Agriculture — Natural

Resources Conservation Service Erosion factors K greater than or equal to 0.4. 

Alternatively, applicants may perform a Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation or Modified
Universal Soil Loss Equation analysis to prove to the City Engineer' s satisfaction that advanced

Treatment effluent water quality shall meet or exceed the water quality objectives for turbidity
and any other parameter deemed necessary by the City as listed in the Water Quality Control
Plan for the San Diego Basin for Inland Surface Water and Lagoons and Estuaries ( 2007) for the

appropriate hydrologic unit. 

Additionally, the City may require advanced treatment for sites that have a record of
noncompliance with the City' s construction BMP requirements, regardless of if they meet the
above criteria. For projects where advance treatment is required, the applicant must submit the

design, operations and maintenance schedule, monitoring plan, and certification of training of

staff to the satisfaction of the City. 

This section includes post -construction minimum BMP requirements. These BMPs include, but

are not limited to, site design, source control, and treatment control BMPs. 

2. 2. 1 ' Notice Regarding Upcoming Changes toRequireinents
The City will be adopting updated post -construction BMP requirements for development
projects to meet the requirements of the Municipal Permit. Those new requirements are

anticipated to go into effect in December 2015. All projects that do not have prior lawful

approval at the time the new requirements become effective must be designed to meet the new

requirements. Portions of a plan that, at the time a complete application is submitted, is subject

to further environmental review pursuant to Section 15162 of the California Environmental

Quality Act, are considered not to have prior lawful approval. Please consult with City

Engineering staff if you believe your project may be subject to the new requirements. 

2. 2. 2 Current Requirements

The following post -construction minimum BMPs are required for all land development and
redevelopment projects. For projects that are Priority Development Projects ( PDPs), as defined

in LLMC Chapter 8. 52, the requirements of Chapter 8. 52 must also be met. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 8 of 38

Updated June 2015



Whether a permit or approval is required or not, and whether a post -construction stormwater

management plan is required to be submitted or not, all dischargers engaged in land

development or significant redevelopment activities in the City shall implement post - 
construction BMPs in the following areas if applicable to the project: 

1. BMPs for permanent control of erosion from slopes. These BMPs can include structures

to convey runoff safely from the tops of slopes, vegetation or alternative stabilization of
all disturbed slopes, the use of natural drainage systems to the MEP, flow and velocity
controls upstream of sites; and stabilization or permanent channel crossings, unless the

crossing is not publicly accessible and is not frequently used. 

2. BMPs to control flows, velocity and erosion. These BMPs can include but are not limited
to the use of energy dissipaters, such as riprap, at the outlets of storm drains, culverts, 
conduits or lined channels that enter unlined channels to minimize erosion; installation

of retention or equalization basins, or other measures. Flow control and downstream

erosion protection measures shall prevent any significant increase in downstream
erosion as a result of the new development, but shall not prevent flows needed to

sustain downstream riparian habitats or wetlands. 

3. Pollution prevention and source control BMPs, to minimize the release of pollutants into

stormwater. 

4. Site design BMPs, such as impervious surface minimization; and appropriate use of

buffer areas to protect natural water bodies. 

5. Site planning BMPs, such as siting and clustering of development to conserve natural
areas to the extent practicable. 

6. The installation of storm drain tiles or concrete stamping, and appropriate signage to
discourage illegal discharges. 

7. BMPs for trash storage and disposal and materials storage areas. 

8. Structural BMPs to treat and/ or to infiltrate stormwater where a development project

would otherwise cause or contribute to a violation of water quality standards in

receiving waters. Offsite structural BMPs may be used for treatment and infiltration

necessary to meet water quality standards only if the conveyance of runoff to those
facilities prior to treatment will not cause or contribute to an exceedance of water quality
standards, or deprive wetlands or riparian habitats of needed flows. Offsite facilities

shall not substitute for the use of any onsite source control BMPs required by this BMP
Manual. 

9. When an infiltration BMP is used, related BMPs set out in this BMP Manual ( including

but not limited to siting constraints), to protect present uses of groundwater, and future

uses of that groundwater as currently designated in the applicable RWQCB basin plan. 

City of Lennon Grove stormwater BMP Manual Page 9 of 38

Updated June 2015



Discharges to infiltration BMPs may also require an RWQCB permit, and additional

State requirements may also be applicable to these discharges). 

11. Natural BMPs, such as constructed wetlands, grassed swales, biofilters, wet ponds, and

vegetated filter strips, shall be utilized whenever practicable for post -construction BMPs

that are proposed by a discharger. 

City of I- ernon Grove Storrnwater BMP Manual Page 10 of 38

Updated June 20115



CON

an

d

Qd

a

Q

t

V

RLL- 

UU) oUCO

U

d' 

coo u7

a

HQ) 0

O

oC

v

u

O

0Q) 

i3

L

C

O

CCf

O

E

C

Q) 

Q

s 

ulC
O = 

C

Q

OU

O

CCU . 

o >. 

c

U

CJ =

U

0m
E

bC

M- 

q

U

C

O

O

a.° 

7 (

D

a) 

c
O

v

v

U

Op

CU

a) . 

O

C . 

C_ 

E

O

CU

vJ

Q

CU

O

a-+ 

C7f

o— 

p• 

SQ

O

X

70

O

a) 

E

L

a`
ni

0

C

C

7

w-+ _ 

p- 

Cif

CU

CU

QJ

cua

A

a) 

O

cl, —

w

o

E 

o

i

m

U) 

N

O

ca

aEi

O

0

0 -

0i

v

wv

a

i

c

E

o

s

aai

itf

m

in

O

o

rocc
U " 

c) 

S

o

Ud

OV

n

C

O

L

O

cna
0

C

N

C

E

C •> 

O

O

a

a

O (

00

O

Ucu
v

m

LU

Cn

C

C

O

O

0

U= 

0

O

a = 

C

CU

v

O

U

m

a

0) -

C) 

a
a) 

CU

mow .

Ci

cn

C0

fn - 

U

Z 

a) 

cQ

C

O

CU

a

C

U

CU

L

cn

U) 

L

Q

O

C]_ Q) 

CT — 

C

U

C

m

O

C

O

w

rn

CU

Q) 

a) 

OU

CCS

m

a` 

a
C!

1 .

O (

D

a

2

w

OL

C

4) 

Q% 

cu

o

r - 

ca

O

a

L (

D

N

U

O

U) 

3

bD

E

m

a

o

CU >, 

E

m

c

4

E

0— 

mawC

m ' •— 3
of

a' 

of

w

u

m

c

E

o

U

U) 

O

a

a.. 

C (

Un

z

a) 

L

m

V

ofC

E

E

ofm

rpr

N

a) 

41 ' 

O

G

O > (

U

y

a) 

2)

C 

cif

En

v' 

c

E

c

2 

u

0

ami

SQ

o

cu

o .

m

mU2
E

o

0

a

Q

2: -

c:; 

cna (
D -

70

an

O

c

m

V

0

ac"

i

o

Na) 

b° 

C

a

Q' 

M

v 

r:.

o

o

m

m

v

a

of

v

E

c

E

E

O

o° 

W

of

W

U), 

n . 

O

N

U

sa. 

U

ff



d

C- U) 

C

a

mcli
o

OD

a) 

Q

UCO

UU) 

d

y

o

CO

4v

Q = 

C. 

U

U

u

Cl) 

cn

ca

to

N

O

U) 
n

m - 

coir

CL

0
o

U) 

bO

0

oti

0

as

w

o

U

0

O

v

oG

0

w

U) O

N

bo
0) 

w

o

Q, 

C
n

4-

t

y

O

n

Oco

bp . 
G

En

V

alj

a

m

a

0

P. 

C0

W, 

C- 

U) 

o

a) 

C
Co

ca) 
a

Cup
L

0

a

E

a) 

u (

u

O

i- 

a

C

O

L

O

u

ZT

cn (

D - 

L

Q

O

Cu

dm

p

0 ° 

cn

a) 

c

a +-  . 

U

to

N

O

U) 
n

m - 

coir

CL

a

0

g- 

U

p

cu

y "

C

4v

o

a

c

L0

ca

o

vOi
o

M"=

30

m

c

o

c (
u

U

m

o

o

E

m :- 

a

ca

a) 

c

Q

0- 
L

a ... 

D

cu

O

0

L ,

C (

u

C

c0

w

c

U

o

O

6

c

oU

o

0

cn

a)

u

O

a) 

a

L

U

a) 

fl.. 

O

j

i

N

N

C }

O

oU

o

C> 

O

o

2' 

O

cn

d

N

0

O () 

a) 

a) '

X

cu

a) 

c6

E0
O

0

O

L

L

u) 

V

E

0

L

cL
a) 

a) 

Q

a) 

o

a

o

0

C

L

cu

o

o
a) 

Q

cn 

L

CD
N

cn

Q

U

E

a

Q

O

E (

E > 

a • 

i

cp

C

ci

L

N

a) a) 

U (

v

O

C

U

OO . 

a) 

C-.

r- 
t

U) > >. 

a

o

o (

n) 

o

cu

o

c

a

c

L
o

caO. 

a) 

U

o

a) 

L

a) 

Q (

Q

o

a)) 

0

a

O_ 

a

V

Q) 

U

NO

n  

E

a` 

U

L

a) > 

Q

O

Cu

Dca
O

O

to

Q) 

t

C

cn

C _ 

Q

0).

N

E

U

C

cnJ
O

U

a) 

a

cu

Q (
6

E

a

U

m

CL

U

I

E

a) 

O

C

a

a

0-- 

N

c

a (

a

u

C . 

CL

cn

C

Cu

U) 

Cd

o

a) 

N

U (

n

L

a

cn

L .

0

C

v- 

N

0

O

C-

5 -

i- 

D

U (

u

cu

C9

a
CB

C6

C (

U — (

O

O

O

to

O

a) 

a

a) 
s= 

o

c3

0

0

a) 

L (

Z

E  

m

L

o

0

0

O) 

o

a

Q

a > 

m

L
0

c) L

0

CU

a) 

a) 

C

w

C

Q

C

C

Cu

a) 

U

Cu

oU

a-) 

O

E :

V -

0 (

S1

E

a) 

Cn

o

N

N

Cu

uC

O (

n

o

O

En

L

t

Da) 
cn

a) 

C

M

L

O

N

a) .= 

o  

co

j+ ? 

U) (

n (

D

C

N

2i _ 

a) - 

00

0

0- 

E

C

a) 

L

a

0 ,

C

o

a

Q) " - 

U

c

O-

0
a) 

O ,

C

U

C '

n

o

C

CU

C

Q

a) 

a
a) 

cu

ca

a > 

0-

0

m

u

N

7

E-

8

a

M

W

E

C

a) 

N

O

N- 

C

oU

0 >

O

a) 

D

o 

N

m

C

a) 

d- 

U

L

Q

6

pL

O

C

o

0

o

N

C

U

a) 

CD

E >

i- 

C

O

U) 

O

a

Q

a

Q_ 

a) 

U

L

N 

cn

O

C

a) 

0

O

L

0

Cu (

n

N

C

N

O (

u

O

cn

En

Q) 

a3

m

0

0

a) 

cu

CL

3

N

O

D

O  

E

C

U) 

Q) 

70

a

fOn

a) 

j

o

N

a) 

aa)

N

a) U

d. 

U

C

O

U

0

a) . 

Q

Co

U (

n

C "

C

C

E

L

a) 

C6 ( 

O '- 

to

A

N

C

Q
C

Ln

N

L

C

N

E

a) >+ 

F

o

a (

a

C13

Q

O

F- 

2i

cu

O

cu

0

S1

O

N +

L--' -

i (

n

o

6 (

u

0
o

U) 

bO

0

oti

0

as

w

o

U

0

O

v

oG

0

w

U) 

O

N

bo

0) 

w

o

Q, 

Cn

4-

t

y

O

n

O
co

bp . 
G

En

V

alj

am

a

0

P. 

C0

W, 

C- U) 

o

O

0

U) 

U) 

cu

a) 

y

U

a

go- 

o

E

dm

0

O (

D

Q

m

A
U) U) 

C

iS

U

p

cu

y "

C

a- 

Q3: 

W

a

cu

o

M

V

Z
i

0
o

U) 

bO

0

oti

0

as

w

o

U

0

O

v

oG

0

w

U) O

N

bo
0) 

w

o

Q, 

Cn

4-
t

y

O

n

Oco

bp . 
G

En

V

alj

am

a

0

P. 

C0

W, 



A

WE

CL (

D

m

L- 

CD

f) 

m (

1) 

C/) 

D

CD

U) 

U)

cn

CO

C/) 

0

Q) U'
j

LL

0

bio

U3

WO
1) 

cu

E

0 (

L) 

C- 

C

0

al

cu

F, 

v -

E

W

0 :

t: 

u

w

cu

0

W

CL
a) 

0

cx

Cc

W

0

L) 

W

c

cu >

1

M - = 

W

CU

LI) 

c- 

0

CL

0 - 

W

6

CL

0 >

1

m

a) 

0

F= 

cu

3

cm
U) 

M (

1) 

cru

W (

1) 

Q> 

c

0

Mm
U

D

CM

D

0- >- 

c- 

cuEf 
E

15

u) 

c) 

ua)) 

2

c

w

ca

w

a) 

0
0

2

bo

0

L'O

cu .

23

R

CU

to

0

0) -

C

W

0
C

3

0- 

0

ZZ

0

0

Q

M >, 

W
0

IE5 -

n

m

D

W

C- =

3

CL
F- (

D

0

W

E — 

a) 

E

Q) 

U

CU

CD

CL

W

ca

0

CU (

D

CM

0

D : 

CD

0

0

0

ri) 

WE
E = 

w

D

CL) 

0- 

W

cu

N= 

0

0

Q) u

0

0

W

W

E

0 

i

U) 

E

W

0

v

60

I0

U) 

0- 

a) 

cu

a) 

0

9_- 

CL

w = 

m

0

0

W — _

0

W

0 - 

a) - 

cu

0

E

0) 

2

m

W

W

0

m

w

0

w

Lr- 

a)  

3

0) 

0

0 " - 

CO

S 

C/) 

W

W

E

2

u, 

C- 

co

m _

0

u) 

E

0

CJ

0

0 -

T

a) 

E

0

0

0

a) 

0 — .- 

E

M -

0

V

CL

3

M

E 

E

aN) -

L=- -

0 >' _

0

a) =

M3

con

a) 

W > 

CU

Cf) 

0

U

a) 

C

a) 

M

0

W

t5

a) 

0

fu

cli (

D

cs

D

U) 

cu

U) 

D

E _

0

D

75

M

0

a) 

0 -

C

a) 

a) 

W

2

E

W

cau

0

0

0

0

0 -

0-

0

a) 0

0

Cl) 

In

0 (

D

cu

0vi
C3) 

0 -

L- 

in;

6

m

CU

Co

biD

C-) 

f_- 

0) 

E

E

m

m

0n

cu

w

CU

0-

0

3: 

a) 

0- 

0

CL - 

V

0) 

C: (

1) 

CD

E —

U) 

W

U) 

E

m- 

E

0

w

w

3 -

6

Ol -

C 

W

W (

D

cu

v - 

r- 

0

W

0

cz - (

U

U '

0

tvC- 0

0

W

0

a) 

M

W

0

CD- 

0

E0
a

a) 

a — — - — 

0

cn

W

2

T (

D (

D

c_- 

cu •

R! 

can) 

W

cm

W (D

m

co

D

M

E

E

E

0

W

0) -

0c) 

0

CM

0 , 

W

D

0

z

cu

cu

CO

L) 

Cl) 

CU

E

Cf) 

0

C

a

0CL

1

0

w

W

W -

0

CU

0

Ln

0

c) , 

C

0

O5

c

3

CU
c- •

S 

E

E

0

0

E

a) !

E

c

m -

2

co -

t-- 

C- 

a) < > 

E2

c_ -

a) 

0

m

a) 

U) 

G

bo

D

0

tr) —

c- 

cc '-

E

mu

c' 

0

E

0) 

A

0) 

0

CU •

T- 

cu

W

a) (

D

tt-: .

2 _

0

0

a) 

cu (

D

cu

U) 

a) 

C- 

i. 4

a) 

2

o

0

2

0

0

t) 

t6

C

M

0 — 

cl
U) 

cm

C)- -

2

w

E

m

E-
2 —

c- 

tz

0

0 -

0 -

0

C- 

W

2 - ->, 

0- 

V) 

S 

a) 

cu

U) 

U-

0

a) 

0 (

D

a) 

9-- 

cm

0

cr

0

E

0

W :

5

C) 

W

C) 

0 * 

9,-- 

Q) 

o

F

cui !

E > 

a) 

W

E

E - 

m

a> 

Cn- 

cz

W

CU

0

0

0- 

Z:

f

0

E

3: 

0

E

2

S

rtf

LL. 

Q

CL

S: 

42

0

CD- 

C/) 

t; 

L) 0

e

0 (

10

C

0

0

0

Q) W0

0

z

Q) 

0- 

FU

c

CL

0

0

U) 

0

0- 

0— 

0) 

CY ) 

20

E

2 - 

w

0

W

0--

0

1) 

0-) 

Q) = 

0) 

c> 

cu

W

U

0

A

F= —

0ca

cl- (

D

D

cc-- 

E

D

CD- 

u 

L) -

e

dJ

2

cu _

L

u

2

u) . § 

0--

0

m

Q, 

m

Fij

2

a) 

Q- 

L70

U) (

n - 

CL -
0

u) 

cz

LO

co

0

Ti

u

A

WE



e

a

Uc

d

dd

N

N

pp

a

UCf) 

UCf) 

o

Q

U

U

0
wQ) 

o

o

U) 

Cn

Q

U

U

U

y

U) 

U) 

v
m
LL. 

rn

O

E

O- 

c

0-

2-

0

a) 

a) 

a) 

o

c

a) ' 

v

N .

c

a)

O

U

N

T

a) 

c

a) 

LO ` 

cu

i- 

Q .- 

C

iT

C

a

i

O

a) -

0

3

0) 

U)

0-

0

r-.

O - 

C

C

0

Q

E

C "

O

7

En

O 

O

a) 

D

p +' 

U

OU

o

i(

D

C

O

cn

O

N

U

Q ' O- 

L

Q

c

y

c

Cn

3

C

cu •

C

O

c6

c

cu

viC

E

a) 

a>. •(

p

Q . 

C

E

c

cu "(

n

Co

Lu

c

O

E

0

Fu

o

a ' a) 

zacua

c

a

Q- 

U

rn

N

a) 

c

0

o

vi •

cu

a) 

a

c

30 

D

l

o

cuZ

O

E

a) 

wa
v

E

cu

N

a) 

n

c

m

e

cno

o
V) 

L

cu

L

E

o) 

Cu " 

C

0
U

0

0

N

Cn

c

cu

a) 

Op
T

cu

a) 

a (

D

p

N

O

cu

O '

O

v) "=

3

oc

cu . 

Si

3- 

U

C

v-- 

La

3

a) 

i

7

v

iu

O

E

U

p

cn () 

L

O

E

p

O

O

O

Nm
M6

Ocn 

CU

n

O( 

D >

O

cL

T

O

UpCU.- 

O

a) 

N .

CU

cu

p

L

N

L

o

CD

a) 

E

c

c

o

ca

v) 

E

U) 

CL

L

a)) 

O

ca -

co

c 

O

4) 

p

Cn

00M

U

L

U

L

C

U

p

p

Cn

O

U

B

O (

u _

0

U

p

2 >+ 

C, 

Cl) 

t7

O

N - 

a >+ ,- 

N

L

E

MZ

a

U

a) 

C1

0

cn

O

O

N

O

C2

O

U
O

o-. 

cnC

O

E

N

a

co

Q
CCU

co

O

N •(

C-6

O

p

N

N

Lco
p) 

Cn "(

B

f4

Q

a) 

a) 

O

m

a) 

L) 

o

a

6) 

o

a) 

o

E

a) ' 

a) 

L
a) 

o

E

0

c

E

p

ami

m

cu

C

Z

o

Q_ 

a) 

E

o

L- 

p

O

c

o

c

a) 

iZ

m

e =

3

E

o

E (

n

a

p

r., 

a) 

v

n

N

0-

M

L

o

c

E

U

N

N

O

cn

n

amici

E

0
0

u) 

m

o.

0- > 

cm - 

a) 

U) 

Lu

Em

a) 

2

3

E

CT

o "

L

O

cu  

2) 

CO

L .

TJ

CO

U

N (

D

N

N

C6

i

a) 

L •

C

U) 

o

D

o

L

N

Cu

U

c.

i

N

d

C3. 

cu

Q

E

Z

C) 

iu

O

CT

3O

N

o) 

N

U

C

p

L

0

0

0

C

C

a) 

co

cn

u

a) 

p

aL--. 

O

C

C

Z "

O

a) 

0

C

U) 

O

M

0

a) (

u

co

C1

Q +-

a) 

U

C1
U

O

a) 

O- 

2 •

O _ 

C,

T

3

c

cu

C
ca

3

C- 

i 

cn

a) 

a) 

sZ

ca

Ucn

N

m . 

N , 

j

E

ca

N

3

Cn
c' 

iu ) 

30

c

a) 

aci

C7

Cl

in

a) 

u) 

cu
N

N

o

Q' 

U) 

C +- 

3 _:. 

C

J

N

C

o

a) 

L

O

U

CO

a

Q

CO

Q
U) 

0

a) 

OLCU

O

3

a0

v) 

L

CT (

6

C

C

E

O

7

B

O

Z

L

U ' 

fl- 

U (

u

T

O. 

V

iL

Ca) 

O

C

iE

O

L

N

E

D

CT
U) 

O

0) 

N

C6

C . 

U .

0

C

E -(

D

t7)'

O

U

p

to

a) 

a) 

cn

o

c (

6

a) 

0

Cn

c

c

C

C

c

a

n

C

O

OO

m (

BC

a) (

B

a) C

L ._ 

a) 

LLI

c (

n

oU

p

p

o

U

L

a) 

3

O '

N

m

o

u) 

e

E 

a

n
aa) 

c

o

2) 

a`) 

a`) 

U) 

a) 

vpi

cu

o

L

aci

E

u

N

E

a) 

a -

0

a

aci

a) 

CO

0) 

a

o

aci

U
L: 

U

D

L °) 

E

O

N

E

c

c

3

C

in

E

L> 

a) 

cO

o
U

cu

N

a) 

u) 
cn

n (

n

cn

cn

cu

O

cu

0

L

L

D

v

a) 

O

Q

0

Q 

O

0

U

c) 

iu

o.

m

m

Q

w

i

E

C

E 

m

c
C

U

cn

O

U) 

N

Cl) 

E

o

Cm

0

a) 

cu

U °) 

U

O_ 

7

U'  

U' 

a) 

o

O

O

Q) o_ 

0

0O
O

O

C) 

U

U

QC6
U

LL

Cu

v= 

CL
a_ 

Q'  ' 

cn

CO

M

J -

O

Cu

cn

c

CT

O) 

B

2 -) 

U

i

E

cu

o

c

p

iO

C6

c

O- 

v

cm
O

n

a) 

3

U) 

U

U

C

O

C= 

M

C

N

W

a) 

CT

a) .® '

C7

0) 

J+ 

C .

0 .® 

C

L

Cu

m

O

C

C6

C

O (

6

ga

u

CCT

a) 

C

O

U

E

E

O

N

in

m

Nn®

U'

D

U

O

O 

LU

U

LLCM ® 

a) 

Z

aJ

m

a

r

a



Dv

cn

c  

c' 

Q-• 

d

N

00 () Q

W_ 

a
c

C ) 

C! U) 

m

EOO

v

s

U

v

Ucn

L
a) 

VVJ

0

Li

d

I

MU

N

U

co

v

m

UC

cn

c  

O

009_- 

U

ac

2
O

i

EOO

a)  

O+ 

E

Cf

L
a) 

V
VJ

0

d

Q

7

p) 

C

O

O -- ' _ 

O

O

a

C

0

n '

W- 

a) 

En3

U  

N

U) 

m

a

N  

0

a

a)

Q

U

a

cu > 

to

a

a] 

0 -

En

co

t

CU . 

Z

CD> 

O

CD

a) 

O

O

Na

QN

0

Q

C

01

O

v '

0

m

O

CE

u
O

a

M
a) C

yL, 

a

cu

r_

O

U) 

O

a- 

V) 

cu

O

U
U

U

O0

cu

a
L
0

O

c

w

Q

a

cu

O

N
d

p

O

O

a

Dcn

o

Q

U

U (

uL

Q! 

Q7

CU

O

s

as

O

O

U

O

U) 

a 

O

C0

OL
0- 

cu

U) O

L

N

0— 

C

a) 

a

cCL

a

LU
W

g_— 

cn

O

C

E

U

YO

O
v

v

E

2  O

0

O

0v.

f-_ 

CD

E

cu

T

CD

a

0

Cl

i

0 >

i

o

o

U

U) 

C

Ucn
E

u

C

cu

O

cu

CU >. 

O

aa) 

a) (

z

0

0) 

N

u

7

Cu

C

c

Ua) 

c

O

cu

yL. 

7

cu

vi :

c

0

U

a

O

cu

U
4) 

n

U) 

i3

Rg

O

U) 

a) 

UO

a) 

0

o

C- 

C

CLX .— 

iu

D

v

U

w

cn

I

MU

N

U

co

v

m

UC

cn

NLO

v

06-

0

u . 

G

G

O

U

a
c

EOO

O+ 

Q

L
a) 

VVJ

d

Q

7

p) 

C

O

O -- ' _ 

O

O

Y

0

n '

W- 

a) 

En3

N

U) 

m

a

N  

O

a

O ( 

O

o

0

U

cu > 

to

a

0 -

En

t

Z

O

I

MU

N

U

co

v

m

UC

cn

NLO

v

0
6-

0

u . 

G

G

O

ac

a) 

L
a) 

V
VJ

3

L

T

a) 

En3

cu

Q '

a

o

a

a) (

L) 

0) 

L

g

O

Na
U

NN
0 -

En

t

O=

0

0

O

N

v

O

O

Na

QN

C
O

C

01

O

v '

0

U

OL
Q

C6

0, 

CE

u
O

a

c

0

cuU '
Q

a

O

m

U) 

O

a- 

V) 

cu

O

U
U

w

U) 

bo

0

cu

9-- 

G

O

c

w

Q

a

cu

Oo

Vro

C) 
Q

U

U (

uL

Q! 

Q7

CU

O

s

as

O

O

U

O

U) 

a 

O

E

C

a) 

a

cCL

a

N

O

O

C

E

U

YO

O
v

v

E

0

0v.
f-_ 

CD

E

cu

a

0

Cl

i

0 >

i

o

U

U) 

C

r; 

G

E

cu

a

a
a) 

a) (

z

0

0) 

N

u

c

U
a) 

c

O

cu

bA

w

vi :

c

0

a (

u

0) 

CuCMO
C

U
4) 

n

U) 

i3

Rg

O

N

a) 

0

C

vi

a) 

O

iu

D

v

U

CN E

00

cnL

U) En(

U

jm

E &

i ® 

MW

Y2
O

D

U) 

Q) 

V) 

A

cu

cn

0

B

Cu

1

O

o

cu

L

E

0

CU

0

N

3

7

U

v

Z

v

d

cl

N

O

v

a

a -

0

0C
U0

CU

Ucu
V) 

L

8

0

u

cn

Q) 

a3

m

OEn
O

C

0i

a • 

0

v

Cp7

U  

6

O

E

l

a) 

a) 

4) 

C

m

bo

c6
0- 

E

0O

v>

a

Y

U) _

0

u

v

v

0

M

v

ff



rn

a) 

00
m

L) C
W

Cl) 

M

M

OD

a)

as

U
C/) 

C/) 

Uco (

h

Q  

U

bD

Cy

04

0

0

U

c- 

U) 

U

CO

U) 

URLL

m,.,._ 

co

O

CYO

E

E

a) 

O

D

N

a) 

U 76

D

T

a

N

E

O >, 

C

o

N =

p

C Ca

c

U

o

m

LLj

m

c

ami --- 

o

cu

a

o

CA  •

L  

a

c

U .

Q

O

0

0 ^

rn2

Et

M06
a :-

O

U -=•`-- 

o (

D

Q 

N +-. 

a

C

C

O  "

Cu —

co

Q= 

O

a) 

0

0

3' 

u) (

v) 

C

O

T
o

N

i

a

N

O

Q

Q

t

N

a) 

n

L

N

C

a) >, 

Q

CM

N

p

cn

a) 

U= (

O

a) 

o = (

O

N

a)  

0

0 — 

OC

i0

co

O

0

C
Q) 

c0

C

o '"". 

y

N  

a

E

o -

a

Uj
a) 

CLO

L (

O (

C6 - 

0

C: 

Q) 

U

m

C

cm
a) 

d
CO

C

Q

i

E ` 

O

T— 

LO

a .

N

CT

U

CD

Q

0-

5

vi

O

CA

cm

a) 

a) 

N

a) 

c .

0

L

C

L

C

4) 

rn

a

Y

N. 

a

U) 

O

O

o= 

N -

C

U

to

O

O

U

p— >, 

7

CO '= 

O

07 +

N-' 

Q -

CO

E

U

O

L  

C

N- 

N

U

U

C

N

U

o

a) (

O

O

C (

6

O

O

U

N

p

O >, 

a -. (

O

D

N

a

L

Q
U

E

L--. (

O

U) 

Q

cD

C

C

U

C

Q
a) . 

m

c0 (

O

o

a (

O

Q

a) 

o

o 

D

a ' (

D

a

3

o

o

a) 

O . 

m

cl

o .

CU

C

0) 

6 (

LO

t

a) (

O (

O

N

CU

N

F

N

E '

a

Q

CO

L

a) 

o` 

E _ 

o

0

c

0 ' 

ca

c0

E

a) 

0

Ut.` 

a0) 

a

iv

o

M - 

is-

0° 

0

a`ni

m

cNa

Oca
a— 

U

O

E

U

Q) 

E

0

N

cn

a

N

N

0 

O

p

w

LO

a> 

Cn

O

O -

j

O

O

p (

U6

N. —

O "

D

Q= 

CU

C

p

a

N— ' 

CO

0 (

O

E

L

C

O

a) 

U

O

2i -

C

U

CLO

C

i

a

cr

L

C

E

a .

Q

s

co

U

G) 

O

N (

O

cB

N

a) 

3

U

ca

D

o

c
o

E

D

o

o

a

cn

a

z

g

a) 

c_

La

a) 

cn

sT -

0

N

o

m

E

O  

aNip

m

a

C

c

c0i  

U

a) 

N— 

a

U

Q •

E

a

T
2

g-  

0

a

0

0

Q

Cn

rn

d

tm

O

C

Q

C

a (

U '

O (

O

C

OL >

i 

B

a) 

cu

E ' 

O

7

0

O

O

rL

O

a

O

10

p

E

C

cu ' 

a) '

7

0

C

E

vi

CO

o

C

E

a) 

U 

c

U

a) 

m

U) 

0

E

O

O0 +
L--' . 

N
a) 

0) 

Q

U

c0 '

0

p

N

CO

O>, 

a

p (

LO

a)

U

C6

c

cu - 

a

N

E

o

a

O

a

O

o

U

O _ 

in

0

Q
a

O

CO

N • 

C

w

E

0> 

N

Cl. 

CCO «

3

Q

0

O

E

C0
LO

c0

ca

Ya.
c

CL

cLU

N

E 

L

o

c

CU

a) > 

o

a) >> 

N

a) 

C

t

a) 

E ' 

vi

UO + 

0) 

c

U

iu

c0

ami .

N > 

L

N

O (

D

O

cu

U

O

a) 

L> 

o

Q

C

CO

C

O

ca

C6

a) 

L

C

C

U

a) 

CU6

Cn = 

C

C 

U

aCD

L

0

0

CU

a

o

a- 

o

ami

0 '

w

c

ami

to

N ° (

D

c (

n •> 

E

c (

u

m

a

E

o

0

u) > (

n > 

N '

c — 

is

o>, 

Q (

v

in

cn- 

cL) 

m

ocu — 
a

cu

L

u

a

CU

0

c

a) 

a) 

0

O (

n

a

Q

n

L

0

E

U

C

N .

E

o= 

0

L (

n

E _ ( 

CU

o (

n

a

0

a

o

c0 > 

0

n. (

O

OU

o

0

cu

t7') 

O

C

a) 

C

0

O

c

C) 

0

0o .

m

E

o

a) 

N

N73

v

c

v) - (

n

0

0

o

C) 

f

o

E

a) 

3

E

cn

a) 

E

CU

rn

cu .- 

a) 

m

o

U

Q

L

E

U

cu

a

U

cz

C

c (

n

a) 

0L

0

o

0

0

0

00

Q

o

Q° 

o

O 

ca

o

o

0— 

E

a) 

E

p ° 

o

z

a

U

o ~ 

o

U

m

a) 

C

o

a) 

c

S

o

w

o (

n

o

o-) 

o

CA

c

a (

a = 

ca

a0i

vi

O

U

E

o

c0

ai ? 

o

o _— 

0 ) 

o

a'
i " 

E

o0

o

0

a

Q

a

u

a

N

a

o0

N

o

CU

ctz

L

0

0

O

O

a) 

C

Q

O

a`) 

a0) 

O

x

L

O

CO

C

c0

0

Cp

O

L .

c 

M (

n

o

U) 

Q

Q

a

n

N

a) (

O

U

in

a) (

O

ca

L

ca

ca (

O = 

U) (

n — 

mG

O

0

O

c

a

C

0

U) 

ca

o

o

O

U

a

cu> 

LO

a ® 

a

c

L

O

a

O

U

O

c

ca

E

p 

N

G

2- 

4- 

v

7 ® -

M

w  

c' 

p

E

E

Q

Q

L

E

O

U (

n

d

a

E

Rt

U® 

Q

Q (

a

n- .... 

O (

n

e....--- -.-.-.-.-.-.,,. 

6

a

s) 

W

U



Dc

an

d

QN

N

Q ) U

wLL

U

O

co

vD

CO

m

u

U) 

U

U

U
C'

v

U) 

U) 

O

N

U

N

MCOU)

u) 

m.. ..

a...... 

N

n.. _,.,.,.,.,.......... 

NU
C/) 

mw _ -- ...... a) 

c

UU) 

00a) 

0

o

Q

j

c._

0

SEN

aCn_ 

cu

va) ` 

N

Cn

N

a) 

CU ` 

000

a

O

N

E

y... 

i

L

a) 

a) 

a) .? 

0

0

c

CU

0

0

CA

C

cn

Q
C (

B

co (

6

O (

Dp
cu

C

O

cu

T
a) 

E

o

6

a) 

m

a) 

cu

L' 

cu •' 

N

E

E

cu

E

E

a) «

L

p

O . 

U

C 

o

0

O

C

C2

Cu

C6 (

u

C

a

N

2

0

N

O

O

oU

cu

C1

L

L

a) > 

i

O

p

Q • 

ca

a

o

a) 

cn

a

0

0) 

N— 

o

cu -

o

CO

i

7 . 

V

a

i  

5j -= 

cD

C1

N [

n

0, 

c0.) 

N

a

0

C
aa) 

D

cu

E

a :> 

a) 

p

ccu

a

o

0

L
F- 

L -

0

0 '

Q

L
c-) 

cu

c

v

0

C () 

Lr

U) 

a) 

U) 

v

o

N

o

o

0) 

cu > >' 

in

O

o

c' 

LO

O

a) 

p

E

11) 

0 (

11)

cu

o

c)

M

p

CD

a (

n

0o
f

Qcu

E

U

N

3, 

0

N

C2 "

cu

L

O

O

0

O

u) C= 

u

y0
J , 

0 — 

CA

Q) 

N

0

i

C1  

O

V

C

Cu

O ._ 

m

p

2 (

6

r-.. 

p

0

O

i

i

O

i

C _

p

N

p

C

cu .

O

a) 

30

C1 - 

0- 

CL

G. 

U

0

N= 

cu

i

7

w

c

cu

o

C

N

0.) 

0

E 

a) o

cu

a) 

U

Q

C

o

C 

E
c) 

cu

i

cn

tcu
a) 

C

E

a) 

E

o

a) 

o

cn

a) `

o

o

C

fl

10

cu

o

Y

O

a

p "

c

E

a

o

a

O

0

N

p

a) 

0) 

j

a) 

T

o

0

a

0

C

0

w

N

O' 

a) 

O

C1

Cz

a

m

a-

0 (

D

5 _ 

a

o

o

FLL
C- ` 

o

m

E

O

v

f

cu

cu  

0
0

a

rn

o

M

0

ca

m

con € 

E

a=

3

as

a

o •

E

a) 

a

N

E

o= 

0

M

O

o

E

o

2

cn

o

ami

m

m

cncu
v
a) 

a () 

3

v) 

a) 

E

o

a) 

U

m

a

a

CZ -

0

0) 

CD

a) 

rn - 

L

aa)) 

0o

n' 

o0

o

iu

E

a

ami  

c°)) 

c

U)) 

f.

1

a) 

0- 

2

Q(
t) 

u) 

0)— 

N ` 

a

N

a) 

0

O

C2

a) 

a) 

d

0

cu

0

Cin

Q

L

to

Q

p

to

U

0

Cu

cu

cu

O

U

O

C

E >+ 

L

a) 

a

cn

d

a — 

C)- 

U - 

cu

cu

c

L

0

cn

N

2

N

a) 

o

o

L

Q

O

a

io

cu

a

a) 

v

0

0

Cs .> -

0

0o

a

m = 

U) 

a

cn

L] 

C

cu

N

E

0

0 , 

0

p

M

2

u) 

cu

E >

O

Ca

0) 

c

a) 

a) 

0) 

o

w ' 

m

E

0) 

a) 

Q

p

o •

CL

0)> 

o- 

E

N

E

cu

0

p

cn .

O

0

i

0

a

C

0

0

V

ti
a

0

5

N

a

d

Cn . 

6

cn

E

N

CU

O .

0ca

O

a`) 

Q. 

N> 

L (

u

a) 

L

O

0

a) 

a

p) 

Q

O

N

N

S

D

a) 

O

Z! 

Q

a

i (

n

C

O

a) 

cu

EO

R) 

O

O

i— 

a

O

o

N

C

L

co

O ..-• 

Q) 

0

m

cu

a

Q

E

N . 

T

C

D

Y

i '> (

D

a) 

Q

U

Cu

U

Cu

C

2

cu

C

N

a) 

ZT — 

U

L

CD

Cu

O' 

3" 

a

Q

L

cn

U

U 

0

Eoo
E

E

a) 

cn `

n

C, 

o

o - 

c

cu

N

a

C : 

CM

0

M

3 (

B

O

C2

CB

T

0

0

cnL

o

in

O

L

p

Q

a) 

C

0

L

L

O

N

O

p

L

O

0

0

N

U

O

Q

0

cu

00

tL

Lu [

n (

6

L

Q

E.... 

N

UO

O.. 

00

C2

0

to

Cts

cn

E

a
Cl) 

E

w_ 

m., 

e

m •,....

e .

w.  . 

Q

a) 

cmo U) 

0

z3E

CU

O

a) p

o

CO

O

O

a

p

Cu

U

E

fn - 

Q

cn (

n

C

O

m

U) 

p -

C

O

C

O

m

i ) 

a) 

a) 

N

Q `) 

C

Cn

a) 

cu

Q '.
p--'' -

N

a) 

cu

0

E

a

E,

c

a

U

0

0

Q

a' 

E

a > 

a) 

U

O

o

Baao

Z

N

N

N

C
1

I



al0Env
ViiOCncnedVvOUdEn0ww

F-
4NvH

CO

CL

a) 

N

o

DN ?

00

m
a) 

C) 

N

U

Q

w_ 

N

CM

v

0

N

Cl) 

o

M

C/) 

Cl) 

s

U

U

U

U

r

CO

Cn

C/) 

UcoLL

m, _ 

rn

Q

E =

L

U) 

L

C

U) 

0

c

O

Cu (

D

c

U) 

U) 

rn

rn

ai

co

v

a) 

L (

n16

C6

i (

n

o

N

C (

D

o

O

O (

o

N

R;: 

cu

O> 

a) 

Fn

O

p

N >+ 

Q

Q

O

p

3= 

3

co

O

O

O

m

ca

o

f

O ' 

E

cn

3= 

CL
U

U

Qp
a) 

Q

O

C

a) 

Q

0

C

Y

O

V

Q

o

in _

0Q
o

7

L

co

O

cn

a) 

p

p

cu

O

C

N

cn

N

3

C

Y

0

00
a) 

y

N

L

Q

O

O

cd

O

3

p= 

Ecu

L '

O

a) 

3

Co

a) 

co

7

O

C

m

N

X

a) 

0

a) 

M '

n - 

C

co

OL

C

M (

n -

5(D

ca - 

a) 

ca (

D

C)- 

C (

D

a

2 = 

E

a) 

a) (

n

a

N

E

L

n

N

o

0 -

c-

o

E

o

O

u

0

y 

L

U

O

O

C

a) - 

a) 

C — 

C — 

C

O (

n

U

O

U) +

r

U

E

a)  

O

p

p

O

N '

L ( 

a3

C

n

L

w- 

a)

cn

0

co

L (

n

C

O

CO -

0

O

Cl) "

3

O

O

0

0

a) 

N

QCm

p

pLd }, 

Q

y
u

Q

E

E

ate`) 

a

coa

coo

o- 
a) 

C

E

a) 

en

a

0

cu

cn

N

p• 

m

c

N

co

a- 

E

E

aoi

a) 

m

o

0

co

D ? 

a) 

c

E

o

c

ao)-  

o

3

p

a

w

o

m

cn

E

o

c

aS

o

E

c

m

a. 

c

a

coi >. 

o 

o

E

75

CU - 

t

a) 

t ' > 

o

a) 

C) 

co

N

LO .. 

t

a) , 

3

io

m

m

Q
a) 

Q

v

cn

o

cu

a`) 

o

E

3

a

y
3
CD

CU4?
EL

O

Y  •- -

0

C

v

N

O

U) - 

O

O

co

L, >` 

E

a) 

07

J

O

Q

O '

a) 

L

C ` 

O

N

Y

cu

cu

a

a

CO

LO

io
a) 

O

N »

c

Q) 

o

d

C

o

Q
a) 

a) 

a) 

U

U

n3

a) 

co

c

cn

a

0 - > 

cn

n3

E

co

a) 

a) 

m

p - 

c

o

a) 

co .

Lo -

o

o

E

2

E -

o

Fu

o

a) 

a2i  

c   

a) 

oo "- 

ami   (

n

U) 

a) 

Q- 

cn

a) 

0

0

a

c

a) 

o

o` 

cn (

D

L

m

cu (

U (

n

a) 

a) 

0

U) 

N

a= 

v

a

o

a) 

E

0

a) 

o

L

co • 

N

c

c

co •

0

c

E_

0

to

co

o

L

o

cw
15„'

E

0- 

ui .

Q 

3

E

C

cn

c0

a) 

co

a) 

o

a) 

a) 

p

O

L _ 

E

cn

O ' 

a) 

T'- 

a

3

a

CU

N

G

a

cn

a

o

C

U -. 

0 - 

0

3

0

a) 

0

3

C

C

cn

o > 

o (

U

0

0

N

L

D

M

0

vi - 

co

C6

cuN

N

to

0

O

A
C-

6 .

NCU ' 

U

O

O

Z, 

o

Na3
cz

a)

cn

w

a`
ni

a

m

a`) 

E

o

m

u -

0-

0

Co

cv

o = 

E' - 

a) 

3 -

O

a

co

co ) 

E

o

a) `

Lo ? 

oo

ami

p -('-) 

L ' 

a) 

L

Oca

c'

cu

cu

oo

coo

con "

ca

Q

o

a

Baa)) 

0

0o

colo

o - 

2

cu

E

O

0

E =

o -

0 -

0

V) 

co -

0

o

E

0

a

CO

H

co

E

r--  

0

0  

a) 

en ' 

o

M

g- 

3

a) 

a) 

o

U

N

aCJ

a) -

fl

L

0

O

a) 

d

T

N (

n

E

U

Q >+ 

0

o > 

0

N

a

O

C

Q) 

NCL
HCD

z

E

a

ca

E

a) ” 

oa

co

a

c

m

F

in

m- ®  

E

o

Q

o ® 

10

m

e6

a) 

a) 

O

U

U

in + 

v

O

C® 

0- 

C

a) 

en

Q

L7. 

E

en

L

N

i

L2
m

o

E

O

a3

O '

p

U

Cl

cv

0

a

Cuo ` 
N

m® 

a) 

c

w. 

v

co

a) 

n

o

o

E® (

n

0  ® 

L

o

c

C3

U

m

O ®. 

co

o

H

cn ® 

a

o .

E ®

z7  

U

a) 

U) 

d

co

C

o ® 

mronCL

Z

N

N

cv

CO

cry

U



dco............... 
C

ems

a

d

oCl) 

0

o

0

m

m

m

m

Q) 

C
a) 

M

M

Cl) 

L

U

U

U

U

v

U) 

cn

LL

a) 
aS

0

0

3

co

E

a

a) 

o

0

a) 

co

c

0

a) 

0

0

a) 

c

C- 

Co

C- 

2

m` 

2

0

fu

FuE () E

Y

ai

Q
U) 

oa

co

0

U) 

0

m

N

N

En

a) 

Q

a) 

Ec

a

o >.- 

co

O-10

0

0

coEE
Q. 

o

Q
co

o
o

ca

a

U

Y
a) 

U

a

U) a) 

a) 

co

a

O

O

co

O

m

L

0

N

m

n

F- 

p

Q
O

m

U

am

o

a

m

0cu

cn

0 

T

p

U

a4) 

E

co

0- 

a

m

a) 

i

C

E

Y

d

O

n

Q

0(

nN

0

0

0''

C

ca

E

E

0- 

a) 

ani

n

E

a`) 

0Q

cn
a

E

U

0

En

0

CU

cn

a) 

m

E

a) 

a) 

ca

coO
3: 

T0
CD

in

co

Q

3

0

m

N

s
O

o

cn

a

a

co  

a) 

0

a) 

co

0O

n

M

0-(

n

0

I— 

0CU

rn

O

E "_ 

ai

C7

co

0

E

0

cm

0

m

u

a) 

2) 

0

T () 

a) . 

E (

n

coo

E

CQ

U

O

L (

Q

c —_ 

a) 

L

n

a) 

0

U1co

cu

E

a) 

as

6

N

0

O ' 

a

m

a) 

c6 (

6

w

U (

ten

o- 

a

o  

m .- 

0

O

Z

N

cV

U



I

O •', JcJ  

vM

u  Q

v

uv

w

ou

v

uo

vNaCd

o

v  v

Q) 

Q

NOv
oo

v

41

o

v

a

cn  

o

o

O

Q) fl

O

v

0MIO



Cfia) Incz
F --

q

iF! 
D

C14

D

m
4- 

CO

C) C/) 

C-) 

Dw

CO

C/) 

U) 

a— 

C) 

C:) 

C ) U) 

C/) (

D
Q) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

U) 

U) 

U) 

U) 

L) cuLL

E

U) _

0

M

0

0

C) 

CO

0

C- 

U) 

cu

M- 3

U) 

a) 

c

Q0- 

0

E - 

0 (

D

E

0

Z-

0

CL

0 -

0

U. . 

0

2)

0

o

0

a) 

0

m

3: - 

C: -

0

c . 

a) 

cu

a) 

o

E

En — 

a) 

a) 

2

cu

Q

CL

D -

0

C-) 

0

M

om
Cf) -

0

0

0 . 

Z

0 -

0

C- 

I- 

0

U-

0

cu >

1

co

C= 

m ;

9 

C, - !

E

E -

0

u) -

t-- 

0

0 .- 

0

0

2

o

0

cu

0

3: 

0

r4

E

Cn- 

C: 

cu

0

2

2

U 

CU -

0-

0

a) 

CU -

tf

0

2

175

9_- - 

0

w

m - 

CL

a) 0

2 .- 

a) 

2

u) 

w

0

cu

a) 

a) 

o- 

cl

CU

a) 

cn

E

2 -

Ud) 

a) 

cu

g- (

U

0 - 

in

0

a) -

0

c

a) 

CD

2

CL

0

c

cu

3

0

0

CU

a) 

a3

a) 

cx. — 

2

a) 

m- 

cu

U) 

En

U) 

0 

cu

o — 

HE

U) -

0

0

cu

cn

0

cu

0 - 

cn

00 (

n

3

cu

0

U) 

O — > 

C/) 

0).- 

a) 

E

21 =
3

0

cn

a) 

a) 

0 — 

CU

CL (

1) 

C, 

cu

C

cn =

3

W

U 

c-- 

w

0
cn

a) 

f- 

CU

a) 

C6

cn

C3 >, 

m

a3 -

F

In

V) - -

0

D

c

n .- 

CU

a) 

a) 

D

0- 

a) (

D

a) 

0

Lr -
3

C- 

a) 

E — 

a) 

LL- 

cn

a) 

cu

0

cu

a) (

D

Ca. 

En

CU

cu

0

D

0 " 

5; — 

Ca- 

cn

CDL :
F; 

0- 

E (

n

0

CD

2 =

3

E2

C: 

o > 

3 - 

0

Q5) 

om

2

E=

03

a) 

L) 

CD (

D

E = 

cn = 

a) 

0

CU

0

2 -

a

D

U> 

a) 

C:)- — 

0

CD- 

2

n

3: 

a) = 

0

F,- 

C

E

w

M
5-- 

w

w

03) 2

CL

0

6

0

cu
ED

D

CU

n

uj

cn

cu - -

Z 

CU

C- 

0

C- 

u) 

cu

m

CL

o

C- 

cn

cu

5, 

C

U) 

cn

U) 

0

co -

0

m

0

CU

0

ca

W (

D (

D

M

cm
C- 

a) (

D

F= 

N '

E

0 -

0

a) 

U 

cu

E

Lr- 

E

Oa) 

cu

a) 

n " — 

CU

Cl) •

0

a) 

CU

cu

0

a) -

0

Ca. 

CU

0

I

Cc

E

E

16

cn

EM

RE

aw) 

0

E (

n : 

M (

D = '- 

CO

CU

Ca. 

W

c

Q. 

E

CU - 

n -- 

0

CU (

D

cn

n

cu

cn — =, 

0

0 (

n

0

D ' 

5 -

2n

to

C- (

U

0

CU

0

a) In

a) 

o

o

E

0

1-- - (

D _

0 (

n

a) 

cn

2) 

OP

0
cnn

CI- (

D

cn

U) 

cu -

0 -

0 - 

0a) 

0- 

E

a-) 

cm
E

w

M

U) -

C3

r
0 - = 

cn

0 -

0

cn

0n

L) 

D -

2

C (

D

M (

n

W

UW) 

ow

ID

L) 

E

c: 

E

0

2

n =

3

U) 

3 (

D

C

U) 

U) 

CU >

1 .- 

a) 

LE5

U

D

cu

iE

2-

0a) 

a- 

cu -

0

iu

u.) 

2) 

a) 

2

C - 

CD- 

0 = 

cu

a) -

0

n

a) 

0

11, 

cu

3: - 

n

to

cu

0

a.) 

CL

0

ou -

E

E

U) 

1 

2

w

o

cu

0 - 

U

L) M

cu - 

w

w

w

0

D

U) 

m

a) 

cn

c- 

3

E

Fna3

u)_ 

cl

a) 

w -

0

2) 

g = (

D (

n

cu

0

0

V) 

a) 

Co

cu :

F

Q) 

E

E

o) -

o

a) 

Fu

a) 

0

U) 

0 >, 

2) 

tm

3

U) 

t- 

U) 

cu

o

U) (

n

D — 

o

U) 

a) 

a3

0

M

U) 

mU) 

co3: 

U) 

CU .-

2

0- (

D -

2

0

U) — 

EP

C/) 

W

a) 

0) (

D

C

E

3: -

Fu '

Fu

o

U) - 

co

0

0

U) 

E

cu

D < > 

5-- 

D -- 

0 - 

co3: — 
0

cn -

0

ai

f- 

cu

a) 

cu0a) 

a) 

CU

En

c- - 

0

Fu = 

C

n

za

E

U) 

o

Fn

0

m

E0 (

D -

Fu

n

cn -
0

2

63 (

D

E

D — - 

0

cm

D

a) 

U) =

3

5-) 

0

0

cn

o

U 

0- 

0

0
5-- -

ca

0

0

CU

CU

t; 

0 — 

0

2

E

a) 

t; 

0

co

w

cu

0_ 

E

F; 

0 (

D
C - 

Cu (

nEO

L) 

D

0

U) (

n

0

C_ 

c

0- 

cn '

n

3: 

1

ID
0

U) 

UO) :

05

u

L) 

o- 

T- 

n

in

r_ (

D

cu =-

T- 

U) 

a) 

3: 

E

t-- 

cl

0

a) 

0

U) cu

Fn

T

0

C) 

C- = 

cn

CU

CU

0)-

2

0 (

D

2

Fu

E

3

0

0

C) 

2

c

C-) 

C) 

cu

01) U) (

n

U) 

O

Q) ch

E

c6

0cx. LI) -

o

fl2
CL.- (

D

C/) 

C-) 

2) L

0

0

0

1- 

ca. 

0 .- 

0

U) 

cl- 

cc

0

O)

o

9-- 

E

m

a) 

U) 

CX. -

C 

3 (

1) 

Sj %;- 

U) 

M

I- 

m (

L) 

Ma) 

E

1

2

U5

LS

C= (

D (

n

21

o

5

U) 

0) 

Q) cx. .

2- 

Ui

L) 

Lr- 

1) 

Q) 

CU

C) -

0

1  

3 -

Z5

2

Q) 

07

2 

iL

M

16

D

C--_

0

C) 

2

0- 

cu

U

I_- 

c

c

0

0

o

o -

U) 

1) 

3: 

I- 

in

E

w

2

n

Cf) 

M -

0

0

C) 

C) -(

z) 

ME



c

M

d

Y) 

O
N

N

Cl) 

ON

a

D

CO

C

v

U

U

o

U

U

a

U) 

U) 

v

C/) 

a) iccW

ca  

Q  

c

a

cU

JcuQ) O

o

a) 

a

s

O (

n

U

o

i

0- 

cco

C

a

Q) 

a

Q)  

L

0- 

O

L
Q)!? 

cu

a) 

CU6

a

n

a)

a

C

a) 

N

a) 

Z

O

0

a) 

I_— -

FuU

ca

a

c

a) 

a) 

cn

O ` 

cucu

E

cu

a) 

C . 

cu

cu

O

o

a) 

a) 

cn

a
a) 

v> 

a) 

rn
a)  

N

E

E

a) 

3U) 

a

O

cu

O (—

D

c

O

a) 

m '

U .

a

a) L

a) 

a) . 

CU

N

N

N

a) 

iu

a

j ((

n

m

U

O

E

a) 

a

cu

Co

C

C `– 

Cu

CU

i

C
cn

a) 

j . 

Ocn

7

fnCLO

a) > 

0).

s; 

Z

L
c

O

a

U

Cn

N

Q

N

E

O

i

N

C2O

U

O

a) 

O_ 

CL

a
0

cn

CL

i
O

CU
4

0- 

E 

CU

0aU

O

Q

U) 

O

a) 

m

m

O

a

a) 

O 

O 

CD- 

a)

E

aii
cn

o

QCU. aCu

0

cu

o

a) 

U) 

a

O

EN
Q- 

m

0

3 .

2

a

a`) 

E

cu

E

cn

cn

cn
co

E

0

0

CL

c

O

LLm
UO

AU

E

U

cl, 

r

OL
n

n

Y4accn)

U) 

U

cc
a) 

7

ucu) 

a) 

cu

E

U

a

E

CU  

L

nEQ
i

O

OO

m

Op)

O

iu

a) 

W

a

O

c

cn

o

E

EQ
d

E

E

a

a) 

a

v

Oo

a) 

c 

cu

E

Q  

W

a) 

a) . 

c

cc

i

a) - 

O

U

Q) 

U) 

O

0

U

5, 

CU .

C7

a) 

m
a) 

7

En _

C

O

U

Cn

a) 

a) 

m

U) 

U0

N

Z

U

OCU
cu

O

ECa- 
m
a) 

L

3

a) 

r. 

L

c

a) 

16

LD

cu

CU

m

C6

O >+ 

aa) ' 

O -

cn -

C

Q_ 

In

E

y •.-+ 

CT

cn

cu

m

a •— _ 

E

cucn

E

L

O

O

a) 

O

D

o

E

o

o `) 

E

m

m

U

cu

c6

m

c

o

cn

o

W

c

may, 

a) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

ca

co

0 _ 

a

Y , 

r

a) 

cn

i •` 

a) 

O

aaa

aU)) 

c

E

o

c

a(

U

U

O

ice) 

CL

s

cu  

a) 

ca

En

Co

0

a

E

L =

c- 

cn

r

G_ 

G . 

E

In

Cl

a) 

L

rl91) 

a
a.) 

a

j  

E

a), 

tl-

1ma

a.) 

a) 

c, 

0

a

O

C9

Cl

7b

00

O

O ...

a-) 

W

a ..-• 

m, 

C' 

i : 

caa ., 

0 .:..— 

aEcf

C

O

o

O0i

0a
c

m

i 

O

o) ) 

Q

2 '

C6

vi

CL
11

U

C6

m

J

C

OO

Q

U -

C_ 

N

Q) 

O

T5 (

L) N

C" 

a

r- 

O

a
i 

L - 

aB .

Q

Q

cu

S_ 

Q > (

6

co

a) 

a) 

Q) 

a

00

a (

6

CU

a) 

EU

E

a

U

O

CU

U -

N

CU

E

N

U

CU

a) 

v

c

o

L

E

O

U

0)

a

N `

C

a) 

cn - 

p
a)  

O >+ 

L

cn  

L

0- :

3

a) 

Cn

l

W

o

o

Q! 

cu

a) 

O_ 

G_ 

cu

cU

a) > 

s? 

U

Q

L 

c

O

a

N .

E - 

O

43i

12cti
r

U

Z

W, 



m

D

mm

000
K' 

U

CL

N

d

N

M

N

N

Q

t

Cf) 

n

N

a) 

CY

UL6_ 
U

Ubb

Q

Ot

U

U

U

U) 

n

n

ccU LL

O

C

N

O

0n

0EE

p

EE

Co

0) 

N

1

v- 

N (

p4

7

6

N - 

coL

a) 

o

CU

pcuU

N
s= 

c

cu • 

I_- 

o 

o

N=

3

O

E

0

U

M

C

coE
E

co

co

UT

t

Co

M

a) 

a) 

aa) (

n

ami

U

cu

00 .

0

O

a) 

a

J+ — • 

E

a) 

C6 -

0

a) 

C

o -

t2C

o >

i

cO

c

tmm

cu

a

N

N

N

a

a) 

a) 

U

a) "

a (

O

7

a) 

U . 

O

m

a

CU

0

U

O

c

O

s= 

p

O

E

c

0

aa) 

Cu

O(

D

O

p

O

V

n

E

O

0

rn

U

C

7

U

N

cu

N

L _

C •_ 

0 (

6

D_ 

CT —

0

Q) 

cc

to

p

NCn

N

a

E >, 

U

a) 

E

aO

C

E

N

E

0) 

Cu

T

C

C

m
N

C

L •

iZ
a) 

L

U

0) 

CA

0-= 

L

C

C- 

a) .--. 

0

m

LE

O

ca

0

v

EL

ca

N

C= 

o

p

E

m

E (

D

m

Q

O

N

IE

0

u) 

Co

in

a, 

D

N >(

D

O(

D

Q

C7

m

R

u

oU

E '_' 

Q

E

pU

a

sZ

O

U— 

N

N

N

U

m

a> 

0

E— 

fn

a- U) 

C3

C6 (

13

N

Eia

N

O

p

0- > 

C

m

i

u

pp

co

C

t > UCT
CT

i

c

D

U) 

sZ

0

E

L

N

n (

Q

a) -

0

Q) 

O

L

i

o

O
i

CU

a) 

to

o -

p

E

0

E

EL

to

C (

n

0

U

L

cu

o

N  . 

Q

fn

D

Q

C6

a) 

o

a

o= 

U

o

Q

a) 

a

o -

o

a

E

CII

U -

0

00

tf .•. 

a) 

tf

C13

B

N

Uj

CU

U

M (

U

N

O

a

to

L

N

Q) 

E `°  

0-

0

a) 

co

c)) 

o  - 

M

r- 

in— 

L

L

Zn

s= 

a) .

E . 

s? 

0

cn7

iZ

0 > 

pU

p

cz

N

L0

O

O

N

E

0

0

D

O

z

6
a) -

C

N

N

N

Co

0

OL

a) ,

y

a) 

Q) 

T

O

N

to

a

OL

L

0

O

0

N

Co0

cu

Eo
L

L- 

ami

o

6

cu

tm

a) 

co

c

U) 

ccuu

a = 

U

aNi

iu

CD

cu

in

c

o

o

o

m (

n

o

a) - (

n

v

c

o _ 

o

U

ri

o' 

m . 

cn

n

o (

u

M.= 

E

a

co

0

U -

0

p > 

0

0) 

U

cu

0- :- co

N  

O

Q °

n

a- 

w

0- -- 

o
u) 

ccoo

J

U) 

E

cu

O

in

E

N

a) 

Ca) 

v

CD

L
7

E

a) 

E

U

0

o

N

C

U

T

O

V

cQ) 

E _ . 

E (

n

n

L

O

O

c

o

U) 

o

a) 

a

0

a) 

O (

u

v

0

O

q0y

c

0

ca

y

0

m

uj

C

fl

0

Zu

G

m

Co

E ®

0

Q . - 

j

a

U

a) (

1

c

a) (

n

p

o

ll

a) 

p

p (

n

C

a- 

a) 

E (

n

ca

0- 

a (

z

a

e5

aD

0

Upi

C6

L

Q

L

N

d

O (

n

E

cu -

0 (

D'' 

Pt
T

p

cn

cb

r

U  

Z



2

00

DLc

o

M

ch

M

QCY

M

U

UU) 

UU) 

C/) 

Q

U

U

N

U) 

RLL.. 

m -.

m---- 

a

U

a

w

n

C

06

B (

n

N

@

cu

O

i

ten -

M

N

cn

a) 

a

a

a

M

cc6

nm

N

O

D

U

o

m

a

3

O

a
a) 

Ci

cn  

E

m

u

E

a

8

O

O

6

C

a) 

L
a) = -

p

C

Q) 

caca

nO

a

toD

ca 

a

m

d

c

E

Dn -

iu

O(

U

O

O

O

O

o

L)

U

7
to

aa) 

LNa)— 

E

O

j -

0

Q

Q

O

is

O

C

CD

C ()  

C

C

Y

a) 

io (

n

E '

E

O_ 

o

c`

u

3: (

n

O

c6

uco

cB

E

a)

c a

a) 

O

O

E '

CO

U

6

n

0

co

to

m

a) 

N

E

a) 

O

m

En

E ?- 

3: . 

Lo

o

E

cO_ 

ac1

a

cx -

n — 

M

p

N

c . 

V

OI

m .

O (

n

cB

o

U

0

Q) 

C

a) 

C

a) 

O'_ 

N

O

Daa) 

cu

Ej
O

O

M

CU

C 

L

a

Uap
o

N

o

DZ

o

a

a

oE

a

n

a

m

aU) 

cNo

M

m

U) 

o

a) 

o

c

a
o

ac
E

c

a

a) 

a) 

6— 

c6

p) 

O

E

cu

p

O

o (

te) 

U)• 

cu

tea` 

ac
a`) 

4
CzU

U

M

M

O

L

p  N

E

O

U

Jia

O

O

E

o

O

O

m

s.

c_

aO

o

cnT

a (

v

2i

a) 

c

n (

4

m

C

in -

2T

ca

O

a) 

Q) 

n

0

T

Zn_ 

O(

D

Na) 

a) _

T

O

O

N

a

O

mu

a (

D

U

a) 

m

O

Q) 

a) 

O

B

cB

Q- 

o

cu

d

En

o

L ` 

a

2

Q

Nn

D

0

E

EC

C

C

n (

n

w

W

m

ca

m

cn "

C- 

m(

a

cn

O

m° 

a) 

to (

D    

p

U) 

a

to

mn

a '
ti=

cu

Q) 

v

m - 

L

a) 

a

mB (

D  

0

a) 

cn  

m

c ; 

a) 

w

n >

i

O

a

L

o

O

O

c

E

a

a) 

0- 2

C
C

a) 

a7

E

U

Q

a) 

a

a) 

E

Q

Cs" 

O

0

a) (

n .— 

O

C

O

cnn

Eo

a

E

Q

vo

Ln

a- 

M (

a

a

a

a)(

D

n

m

Cl)a) 

a) 

a) 

ioE

E

C

O

o

1— 

a) -

p

tea

a) 

0

cm

m

cu

v

n

a) 

S

T
O

a

a) 

ca

0

ID

Wo

No

ecn

G

m

0- 

E ,

mn

0 (

n

N

amiQ

a) 

Q

mC

a) 

c
C

a) ((

Us> 

c3

E

n

o (

n

a

n

U

en

c

w= 

fl

a

S

1

Z

N

N

N

U



3 Enforcement Response Plan

The City of Lemon Grove ( City) enforces compliance with the requirements of its Stormwater
Ordinance ( LLMC Chapter 8. 48) and the requirements of its Excavation and Grading Ordinance
LLMC Chapter 18. 08), including the BMP requirements in Section 2 of this document. In

accordance with Section E. 6 of the Municipal Permit, compliance with the City' s stormwater
requirements will be assessed through a variety of means, including, but not limited to
inspections, responses to hotline calls, and the routine municipal separate storm sewer system

MS4) outfall monitoring. Where violations are observed, the enforcement actions and

procedures described in this section will be employed to enforce the requirements. 

The City typically employs a tiered, escalating enforcement system. However, the City reserves
the right to use whatever tools the enforcement official deems most appropriate for a given

situation, as dictated by the specifics of each case. 

Enforcement actions, including escalated enforcement actions, are described in the following
sections. It should be noted that experience and professional judgment of City staff are
important in guiding the appropriate response to a violation. Escalated enforcement actions

will continue to increase in severity, as necessary, to compel compliance as soon as possible. 

HHEM

FOR iiiii 11 iii ill ii111 ii i Ili i

a . 11. 11 . . 11 Wti - tten and Verbal Warnings ( LLMC §§ 8. 48. 1' 10. A.2- 3) 

A written or verbal warning is typically the City' s first level of enforcement action when a
violation of the City' s Stormwater Ordinance is observed. Written warnings can be given using
a variety of methods including cease and desist orders, notices of correction, inspection reports, 
notices of violation ( NOV), and orders to clean, test, or abate. 

Notice and orders to clean, test, or abate may be issued to perform any act required by the
City' s Municipal Code. When written warnings are issued, the violation is noted, a time frame
to correct the violation is given, and a follow-up date is scheduled. City inspectors follow-up
with violations as necessary to determine whether or not compliance has been achieved. 

3. 1. 2 Administrative Citations and Fines ( LLMC Chapter 1. 24) 

The City' s authorized enforcement staff may issue administrative citations for violations of the
City' s Municipal Code. Maximum citation amounts are defined in LMGC § 1. 24. 030D and

depend on the number of previous violations by the same responsible party that have taken
place within the last 18 months, as follows: 

0 First violation: $ 100

Second violation: $ 200

Third violation: $ 500

Additional violations: $ 1, 000

Per LMGC § 1. 24. 030. 13, every day that a violation of the Municipal Code exists is considered a
separate, distinct violation. Therefore, " a separate citation may be issued for each day that a

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 25 of 38

Updated June 2015



violation occurs" ( LMGC § 1. 24. 030. 13). This means that, for example, a violation left unresolv

for three days may be considered three separate, distinct violations, and citation amounts in
be escalated accordingly. 

T4, - RA-i-i-iteTwiiLvAioLitionbeLtLnd the first violation, the infraction needs to relao- 

to the same ordinance, term, or condition and result in citing the same responsible pars' ble pa

I] 

r

Subsequent violations do not, however, have to occur at the same physical location, involve

same personnel, or be for exactly the same reason to be considered additional violations beyo
the first violation( LMGC § 1. 24. 030. E). For example, if a contractor violates erosion control B

requirements, and then later on violates sediment control BMP requirements, thejsedime
18 months of the first (erosion control) violation. 

When an administrative citation is issued, the responsible party may request a hearing to
contest the enforcement official' s determination that a violation of the City' s stormwater
requirements has occurred. Details on the City' s hearing and appeals process can be found in
LGMC Chapter 1. 24. 

3. 1. 3 Public Nuisance Abate.i.i.ient( LGM.C'§ 8. 48. 110. A.4) 

Violations of LGMC Chapter 8.48 are considered a public nuisance. If actions required to

resolve noncompliance with LGMC Chapter 8. 48 are not taken, the authorized enforcement

official may abate the nuisance pursuant to LGMC Chapter 1. 14. City costs for pollution
detection and abatement, such as BMP implementation, may be recovered from the discharger
in addition to any other penalties. City costs for pollution detection and abatement, if not paid
in full by the discharger in addition to any other penalties, may be made a lien against the
property in accordance with the abatement procedure ( LGMC § 8. 48. A. 4). Costs for pollution

detection and abatement may be recovered from the discharger in addition to any other
penalties. 

3. 1. 4 Stop Work Order (LGMC § 8. 48. 110. A.5, LGMC § 18. 08. 820) 

Whenever any work is being done contrary to the City' s Municipal Code, or other laws or
ordinances, an authorized enforcement official, as defined in LGMC § 8.48. 020, may order the

work stopped by notice in writing to any person engaged in doing or causing such work to be
done. Any person receiving a Stop Work Order is required to immediately stop such work until
approved by the authorized enforcement official or authorized enforcement staff to proceed
with the work. 

For enforcement of required BMPs at construction or industrial/ commercial sites, the City can

issue a Stop Work Order. Stop Work Orders are typically given if written warnings have been
issued and the violation has not been corrected, or if an observed violation poses a significant

threat to water quality. Stop Work Orders prohibit further activity until the problem is
resolved. The Stop Work Order will describe the infraction and specify what corrective action
must be taken. A copy of the Stop Work Order will be given to the owner or contractor and
placed in the site' s active inspection file. To restart work once a Stop Work Order has been

issued, the responsible party must request that a City inspector re -inspect the site to verify that

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 26 of 38

Updated June 2015



the deficiencies have been satisfactorily corrected. Once the inspector verifies that the

appropriate corrections have been implemented, activities may resume. 

3. 1. 5 Required Bonds or Securities

The authorized enforcement official may require a bond or other security to be posted in the

following circumstances: 

When necessary to assure a violation is corrected (LGMC § 8. 48. 110. A. 2) 

When necessary assure the maintenance of a BMP ( LGMC § 8. 48. 090. 1) 

The authorized enforcement official determines the amount of the bond or security required. 

3. 1. 6 Permit Suspension or Revocation

Where compliance with the City' s stormwater requirements is a condition of a City -issued
permit or other license, violations of the stormwater requirements may be grounds for permit
and/ or other city license suspension or revocation. For instance, in severe cases of

noncompliance, or significant discharges relating to development and/or construction activities, 
the City may revoke the building or grading permits that a contractor is working under for the
project or deny future permits on the project. The responsible party will then need to re -apply
for permits and meet the requirements the City may have placed on the project before resuming
the project. 

3. 1. 7 Enforcement of Contracts

If a contractor is performing work for the City, then the City may use the provisions within the
contract for enforcement of noncompliance. Such contract provisions may allow the City to
refuse payment, stop work ( without time penalties), and/ or revoke contracts if contractors

performing activities do not comply with all appropriate permits, laws, regulations, and
ordinances. 

3. 2 judicial Enforcement Actions

In addition to administrative enforcement procedures, the City also may take the judicial
enforcement actions described below. 

3. 2. 1 Civil or. Criminal Penalties and Remedies ( LGMC § 8. 48.110. 13. 1) 

The City Attorney is authorized to file criminal and civil actions and to seek civil penalties
and/ or other remedies to enforce LGMC Chapter 8. 48. There is no requirement that

administrative enforcement procedures be pursued before such actions are filed. 

3. 2. 2 Injunctive Relief (LLMC § 8.48, 110. 13. 2) 

The City may pursue enforcement by judicial action for preliminary or permanent injunctive

relief for any violation of LLMC Chapter 8. 48. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 27 of 38

Updated June 2015



3. 2.3 Arrestor Issue Citations ( 1, GMC § 8. 48110. 8. 3) 

Violators may be arrested, with the assistance of a peace officer, pursuant to the provisions of
the California Penal Code. Violators may also be issued a citation and notice to appear as
prescribed in the California Penal Code. The City is not required to take administrative

enforcement actions before taking either of these steps. 

During each investigation, all observed noncompliance activity is documented. The following
information, is recorded for use in administrative and judicial enforcement actions, where

applicable: 

Chronology of events

Case summary

Time and expense log

Inspection reports

Complaints

Phone conversation records

Correspondence

Maps and diagrams

Photographs

Witness list

Explanation of the violations

Request -to -file form

Field notes

Emergency incident reports

Lab results

Chain -of -custody for samples

Permit applications

Sampling plans

Other supporting documents

Reports from regulatory agencies

During routine municipal facility inspections, City or contract staff will assess facility areas and
activities to ensure all are maintained in accordance with City regulations, ordinances, and BMP
requirements. If BMPs are found to be deficient or otherwise ineffective, the responsible party

or department will be provided with required corrective actions. If the responsible City staff

member or department/ division does not perform the necessary corrective actions in response
to the inspection findings, escalated enforcement action will be taken by involving higher

ranking representatives within the responsible department or division, who may enact internal
disciplinary procedures, until the deficiencies are resolved. 

If the inspector notes that specific areas of a leased facility require additional BMPs, the City can
require the implementation of BMPs in addition to the required minimum for the specific

area/ activity. If a leased facility continues to be out of compliance, the City may choose to
discontinue the lease, which would remove the tenant from that particular site. Discontinuing a

lease is considered an escalated enforcement action. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 28 of 38

Updated June 2015



As required by the Municipal Permit, City staff will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

Fill, frofro -us 1". " 11 1

The City ensures that pollution prevention methods and BMPs are implemented by enforcing
its ordinance. City inspectors and staff members properly document each observed violation at
facilities failing to comply with stormwater requirements, and enforcement action is taken
where necessary to bring about compliance. 

Depending on the nature and severity of the violation, enforcement may consist of any of the
actions listed in Sections 3. 1 or 3.2. Typical enforcement actions are listed below; escalated

enforcement actions are marked with an asterisk (*): 

Verbal warnings

Written warnings

Administrative citations* 

Public nuisance abatement* 

Revocation of permits or licenses* 

Inspectors seek to resolve noncompliance promptly and establish appropriate compliance time

frames on a case-by-case basis. Escalated enforcement measures are used as needed to ensure

compliance. Note that the City maintains the authority to require facilities to prepare Storm
Water Pollution Prevention Plans or to conduct sampling and analysis where deemed necessary
by the City. 

If the City inspector observes a significant and/ or immediate threat to water quality, action will

be taken to require the facility owner and/ or operator to immediately cease and correct the

discharge or activity. Conditions that would warrant such action may include observations of

runoff from the industrial site that are not reasonably controlled by the protective measures or
observation of a failure in BMPs resulting in or potentially resulting in a release of pollutants to

a degree that may substantially degrade water quality. Discharges related to noncompliance

deemed to pose a threat to health or the environment will be reported to the RWQCB orally

within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required by Attachment B of the Municipal
Permit. Section 3. 4. 5 of the City' s JRMP document provides more information on reporting
requirements. 

Events of noncompliance are evaluated according to the following criteria to determine whether
the events pose a threat to human or environmental health: 

The event of noncompliance resulted in a spill or discharge of hazardous materials, 

pollutants, or runoff containing pollutants that had an effect on a receiving water body. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 29 of 38

Updated June 2015



The quantity and/ or concentration of the pollutants in the spill or discharge affecting
the receiving water was such that it may cause or contribute to an exceedance in water
quality objectives as specified in the San Diego Basin Plan. 

As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

3. 5. 1 Mobile Busiriess Enforcement

Most violations associated with mobile businesses are anticipated to be related to illegal

discharges. The City' s enforcement approach to such discharges will require the discharge to be
stopped and the area cleaned of discharged materials when applicable and feasible. Education

may also be provided to operators who are not aware of the City' s stormwater requirements. 
Businesses that do not possess the materials necessary to implement the required BMPs will

likely be required to demonstrate to the City that they have obtained such materials and can
properly use them before the City allows such businesses to resume operations in the City. 
Mobile businesses that do not have City business licenses will be required to obtain them. 
Discharges related to noncompliance deemed to pose a threat to health or the environment will

be reported to the RWQCB orally within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required
by Attachment B of the Municipal Permit. Section 3.4.5 of the City' s JRMP document provides
more information on reporting requirements. 

As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

The following mechanisms will be used by the City to determine areas where enforcement
actions may be necessary, where appropriate: 

Public reporting hotline

Analysis of field screening and analytical monitoring results

0 Observations from City personnel

During investigations of incidents reported to the hotline, or discovered during routine MS4
outfall monitoring, that are associated with a residential source, City staff will address issues of
stormwater concern where feasible, and provide education where appropriate. Voluntary

compliance and escalating enforcement mechanisms are implemented to immediately eliminate
an illegal connection and illegal discharge IC/ ID once the source has been identified. Violations

to the City' s Municipal Code will be investigated by City personnel with enforcement authority. 
Violations are documented and depending on the nature and severity of the violation, 

enforcement may consist of any of the enforcement measures described in sections 3. 1 and 3.2. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 30 of 38

Updated June 2015



There are two methods of discovering residential activities contributing to urban runoff. One is
through complaint/ referral process. Complaints may be received through direct contact with

City or contract staff or through calls to the City' s Stormwater hotline. The other route is

through observations made by City staff during residential area inspections, during scheduled
MS4 outfall monitoring, and during routine City activities such as MS4 maintenance. 
Additional, focused investigations of areas upstream of outfalls with obvious pollutants present

during the Dry Weather MS4 Outfall Monitoring Program and complaint response
investigations provide further information about potential problem areas. The City believes
that the combination of monitoring, public reporting, direct observations by City staff that are
routinely in the field, and targeted additional investigations where necessary provide sufficient
oversight of residential areas and activities. 

During investigations of incidents reported to the hotline or discovered during monitoring, the
City will continue to use the opportunity to address any other issues of concern, and provides
educational materials where appropriate. Voluntary compliance and escalating enforcement
mechanisms are implemented to immediately eliminate an IC/ ID once the source has been
identified. Further details of enforcement mechanisms pertaining to IC/ IDs can be found in
Section 3. 9 of this document. 

Follow- up inspections conducted as a result of residential BMP deficiencies will be performed. 

Violations will continue to be investigated by City personnel with enforcement authority within
a reasonable timeframe. Depending on the nature and severity of the violation, enforcement

may consist of any of the actions listed in Sections 3. 1 or 3.2. Typical enforcement actions are

listed below; escalated enforcement actions are marked with an asterisk (*): 

Verbal warnings

Written warnings

Administrative citations* 

Public nuisance abatement* 

Discharges related to noncompliance deemed to pose a threat to health or the environment will

be reported to the RWQCB orally within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required
by Attachment B of the Municipal Permit. Section 3. 4.5 of the City' s JRMP document provides
more information on reporting requirements. 

As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

3. 7 Development Planning Enforcerneiit
The City will use a variety of enforcement methods to ensure stormwater requirements for all

development projects within the City' s jurisdiction are implemented. Enforcement measures

will escalate with continued violations as necessary. The City' s current plan check process

includes steps to enforce the implementation of development requirements during construction. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 3.1 of 38

Updated June 2015



Since all structural BPs are required to be shown on the project' s plans, inspectors check to

make sure these BPs have been correctly installed during their routine inspections. If any

mistakes in BMP installation are noted during plan checks, the City requires the project to
promptly correct these errors until BMP installation is consistent with the specification on the
project' s approved plans. 

Once a project has been completed, ongoing operation and maintenance is verified through
inspections or through review of submitted maintenance verification certifications. If a project

is found not to be maintaining BPs as required, depending on the nature and severity of the
violation, enforcement may consist of any of the actions listed in Sections 3. 1 or 3.2. Typical

enforcement actions are listed below; escalated enforcement actions are marked with an asterisk

Verbal warnings

Written warnings

Administrative citations* 

Public nuisance abatement, which may include placing a lien against the property* 

If an inspector finds maintenance deficiencies with any structural BMPs at a completed project, 

he or she first attempts to explain the deficiencies and necessary corrective actions to the

responsible party, if the responsible party is present. If the responsible party performs all

necessary corrective actions promptly in response to the verbal explanation from the inspector, 
the case is closed, and the resolution is documented. Otherwise, a written notice is issued to the

responsible party. The notice indicates the type and location of each BMP and describes the

deficiencies observed by the inspector as well as the required corrective actions. Responsible

parties are required to perform the corrective actions and demonstrate that all necessary

maintenance activities were completed through a re -inspection with the City inspector or

through providing photographs of corrections. The inspector may also -• additional

documentation or perform a re -inspection at their discretion. 

The maintenance condition of structural BMPs are determined through an annual self - 

certification program where the City requires reports from authorized parties demonstrating
proper maintenance and operation of BMPs. If the responsible party fails to provide the annual

the City will issue a written notice -• the responsible •. to provide the .•• 

within a given timeframe. 

If a responsible party fails to sufficiently respond to a notice from the City by the response
deadline, the inspector may issue a written warning. If the responsible party still fails to

perform the necessary corrective actions, the inspector may issue an administrative citation. 

Follow- up inspections conducted as a result of structural or treatment control BMP deficiencies
will be performed. All enforcement actions will be documented appropriately in the
development project' s database file. If a development site receives frequent citations or is not

responsive to previously issued enforcement actions, more severe actions, such as court actions, 

will be used as necessary. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 32 of 38

Updated June 2015



As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept in the project' s file. 

The City is responsible for enforcement of applicable local ordinances and permits at all
construction sites in its jurisdiction. When violations are observed and documented during a
site inspection, the City will implement appropriate enforcement measures based on the
severity of the violation. Enforcement can range from written warnings to more severe

enforcement such as Stop Work Orders. Stronger enforcement measures will be used as

necessary if proper corrective actions are not implemented during the allotted time frame or if
the severity of the violation warrants stricter enforcement. 

The typical progressive enforcement steps that the City will implement include the following; 
actions considered escalated enforcement are marked with an asterisk (*): 

Written warnings, including
inspection reports, correct work

notices, and NOVs

0 Stop Work Orders

0 Enforcement of contracts

City projects) 

0 First administrative citation ($ 100) 

Additional administrative citations

200 to $1000)* 

BMP implementation by City -hired
contractor, with cost reimbursement

to the City* 

0 Revocation of permits* 

0 Civil and/ or criminal court action* 

Escalated enforcement actions will be reported to the RWQCB within five (5) days, as required

by the Municipal Permit. 

The City works closely with development projects prior to the commencement of construction
activities. All construction sites are expected to be aware of the City' s BMP requirements. 

Accordingly, a written warning will typically be the first enforcement step, and additional
enforcement actions will be taken if that is not sufficient to achieve compliance. Figure 1

illustrates the typical enforcement process for a private project. The City seeks to resolve

violations as quickly as possible, including prior to rain events where feasible. In cases of

significant or repeated noncompliance, the City may hire an outside contractor to implement
required BMPs at a construction site when there is at least a 50% chance of rain within the next

72 hours. The City will require cost recovery from the responsible party ( private projects) or

contractor ( City projects) for the costs of BMP implementation in this scenario. In cases where a
violation cannot be resolved within 30 days, the reason additional time was needed for case

resolution will be documented and kept in the project' s file, as required by the Municipal
Permit. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 33 of 38

Updated June 2015



gj 111111111 111 11 111  1111 7 1 111 1 1 1111

activities', 

correct work notice

LGMC §§ 8. 48. 110. A. 2- 3) 

Administrative citation 4

ls' violation: $100

2nd violation: $200

3, d violation: $500

LGMC § 1. 24. 030) 

required BMPs. Responsible part

i-eqcrin--d

LGMC § 8. 48. 110. A. 4) 

Compliance

Achieved

Notes

1. An administrative citation may be issued directly, without taking other enforcement actions shown in thisfigure first, for
illicit discharges or illicit connections. 

2. The City reserves the right to issue higher level enforcement actions without first taking lower level enforcement actions
where necessary to reduce the discharge of pollutants to its storm drain systems to themaximurn extent practicable. 
3. An administrative citation ..may be issued concurrently with a stop work order iff deemed necessary by the City. 
4. All violations within the last 18 months may considered in determining the applicable citation amount. Each day that a
violation exists may be considered a separate and distinct violation. (LG.N4C § 1. 24.030). 

Oty of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual
Updated June 2015



Revocation of permits and civil or criminal court actions are rarely used tools and therefore are

not shown in Figure 1, but the City does reserve the right to use those enforcement tools where
necessary. The enforcement process for a City project is similar to the private project
enforcement process, except that, in addition to the enforcement measures shown in Figure 1, 

the City may also use enforcement of for its own projects. 

When a site is subject to the Construction General Permit ( CGP), City staff may also collaborate

with RWQCB staff on enforcement actions. The City will notify the RWQCB in writing within
five calendar days of issuing escalated enforcement to a construction site that poses a significant
threat to water quality as a result of violations of other noncompliance. Written notification

may be provided to the appropriate RWQCB staff member by email. The City will also notify
the RWQCB of any construction sites required to obtain coverage under the CGP that, to the
City' s knowledge, have not filed NOls, within five calendar days from the time the City became
aware of the circumstances. At minimum, the construction project location and name of owner

or operator will be provided to the RWQCB. Written notification may be provided

electronically by email to Nonfilers R9@waterboards. ca. gay. 

Any noncompliance that may endanger health or the environmental will be reported to the

RWQCB orally within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required by Attachment B of
the Municipal Permit. Criteria listed below will be used in addition to the criteria listed in

Section 3. 4. 5 of the City' s J to determine the threats to health or the environment associated

with a noncompliance event, whether from stormwater or non-stormwater discharges, where

applicable: 

0 Other materials discharged that pose a threat ( concrete washout, sanitary washes, etc.) 

3. 9 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Enforcement

The City implements and enforces its ordinances, orders, or other legal authority to prevent
illicit discharges and connections to its MS4. If the City identifies the source as a controllable
source of non- stormwater or as an IC/ ID, the administrative and judicial enforcement measures

previously listed will be used, as necessary, to eliminate IC/ IDs. 

If a complaint is received that indicates an IC/ ID, City staff will conduct a field investigation for
complaints with details suggesting an actual or potential discharge to the MS4 or receiving
water body. If investigators find evidence of a violation with the potential to release pollutants
or an actual IC/ ID, every effort is made to find the responsible party and inform them of the
complaint or issue a written warning. Parties found to be responsible for a violation or IC/ ID

are required to clean up or remove pollutants to the maximum extent practicable ( MEP). Any

refusal by the responsible party to perform clean up of a violation or discharge will be handled

by Code Enforcement staff and appropriate enforcement actions will be taken. 

The nature of the City' s enforcement approach is determined on a case- by- case basis and is

based on factors such as the severity of the violation, the threat to human or environmental

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 35 of 38

Updated June 2015



health, site- specific circumstances, and past compliance history. If the situation is determined

to pose an immediate risk to public health or the environment, the City may coordinate with

other agencies or teams that are specially trained to assess and mitigate emergency situations as

necessary ( e. g., those involving hazardous wastes/ materials, etc.). The discharge is also

reported to the RWQCB as required by the Municipal Permit. 

Any noncompliance that may endanger health or the environmental will be reported to the
RWQCB orally within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required by Attachment B of
the Municipal Permit. Criteria listed below will be used to determine the threats to health or

the environment associated with a noncompliance event, whether from stormwater or non- 

stormwater discharges, where applicable: 

Estimated pollutant load discharged from site

Estimated volume of discharge

Types of pollutants discharged, including if toxic materials were discharged

Sensitivity of the receiving water body, including if it is 303( d) listed for any of the
pollutants in the discharge

Proximity of site to sensitive habitat/ endangered species

Proximity of site to public water supply (well head, monitoring wells) 

Quantity, if any of the discharge reached the receiving water body

Beneficial uses for affected water bodies

Additionally, water observed at major MS4 outfalls and traced to an anthropogenic source( s) is
considered an illegal discharge. If the anthropogenic source( s) is/ are found to be from a( n) 

industrial/commercial site, an inspection of the industrial/commercial facility will be performed

in a timely manner to investigate the discharge. The inspection report will include a note

describing that the inspection was prompted due to recent IC/ ID discovery associated with MS4
outfall monitoring. 

If the anthropogenic source is found to be from a residential area, the City' s field crew will leave
educational materials and/ or a written notification informing the responsible party of the illegal
discharge and their responsibility to eliminate it. Follow- up inspections will be conducted as

necessary to ensure the discharge has been eliminated. 

If the anthropogenic source is traced a municipal source, further investigation will be completed

to identify actions needed to eliminate the source. 

Any IC/ ID observed to have potential to immediately impact human health or the environment
will be immediately reported to Code Enforcement staff and the Fire Department, if necessary, 
and all associated enforcement action( s) will be handled by Code Enforcement staff. 

As required by the Municipal Permit, City staff will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 36 of 38

Updated June 2015


